### **RENTAL HOUSING IN FLORIDA**

**Revised December 2001** 

Prepared for Florida Housing Finance Corporation 227 N. Bronough St., Suite 5000 Tallahassee, Florida 32301-1329

Prepared by Shimberg Center for Affordable Housing University of Florida P. O. Box 115703 Gainesville, Florida 32611-5703

### **Table of Contents**

| I. Introduction  | 1   |
|--|-----|
| II. Summary of Findings  | 2   |
| III. Rental Housing Need: Households with Cost Burden  | 4   |
| IV. Cost Burden Appendix   | 58  |
| V. Florida Housing Finance Corporation-Supported Units and<br>County Location Compared to Need | 103 |
| VI. Federal- and State-Supported Units and County Location<br>Compared to Need                 | 112 |
| VII. Market Survey   | 119 |
| VIII. Summary of Methodology   | 135 |
| IX. Conclusion   | 142 |

### Index of Tables, Charts, and Maps

### Households with Cost Burden

| Table III-1. All cost burdened, renter households sorted by county size and growth, 2001-2007          | 6  |
|--|----|
| Chart III-1. Percentage of cost burdened renter households by county size                              | 8  |
| Chart III-2. Growth in cost burdened renter households by county size, 2001-2007                       | 9  |
| Table III-2. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households sorted by county size and growth, 2001-2007 | 10 |
| Chart III-3. Percentage of multi-family cost burdened renter households by county size                 | 12 |
| Table III-3. All cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and percent of income                 | 14 |
| Chart III-4. Distribution of all cost burdened renter households by cost burden and income range       | 20 |
| Table III-4. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and percent of income        | 21 |
| Chart III-5. Distribution of multi-family cost burdened households by cost burden and income range     | 27 |
| Table III-5. All cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size                    | 28 |
| Chart III-6. Distribution of Cost Burdened Renter Households by Cost Burden and<br>Household Size      | 34 |
| Table III-6. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size           | 35 |
| Chart III-7. Distribution of multi-family renter households by household size and cost burden          | 41 |
| Table III-7. All cost burdened, renter households by age of householder and cost burden                | 43 |
| Chart III-8. Distribution of cost burdened households by age and cost burden                           | 49 |
| Table III-8. Multi-family renter households by age of householder and cost burden                      | 50 |

### **Cost Burden Appendix**

| Map IV-1. All cost burdened renter households by county, 2001  | 59  |
|--|-----|
| Map IV-2. Multi-family cost burdened renter households by county, 2001   | 60  |
| Map IV-3. Growth in all cost burdened renter households, 2001-2007   | 61  |
| Map IV-4. Growth in multi-family cost burdened renter households, 2001-2007  | 62  |
| Table IV-1. All cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and percent of income          | 63  |
| Table IV-2. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and percent of income | 69  |
| Table IV-3. All cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and household size             | 75  |
| Table IV-4. All cost burdened renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and age                          | 81  |
| Table IV-5. Multi-family cost burdened renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and age                 | 87  |
| Table IV-6. Multi-family renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and household size                    | 93  |
| Table IV-7. Multi-family cost burdened households by county as a percent of state total by cost burden                 | 99  |
| Table IV-8. Multi-family cost burdened households, growth and percent of state in 2002and 2007                         | 101 |

### **FHFC-Supported Units**

| Table V-1. Income-Restricted FHFC Units by Targeted Income Category and<br>County  | 104 |
|--|-----|
| Table V-2. Subtotals of FHFC Income Restricted Units by County   | 106 |
| Table V-3. Ratio of FHFC units to renters (Units with income restrictions at 60% compared to renters with incomes 40%-60% of AMI – Units with income restrictions expiring through 2004 are not counted) | 109 |

### Federal- and State-Supported Units

| Table VI-1. Subsidized units by county                             | 113 |
|--|-----|
| Table VI-2. Comparisons of subsidized unit totals to renter totals | 116 |

### **Market Survey**

| Table VII-1. Market rate unit description                          | 121 |
|--|-----|
| Table VII-2 Comparison of market rate rents to the 60 percent rent | 131 |

### Preface to the December revision

The two most significant changes in this revision to the September 2001 Rental Market Study are: the removal of the Mismatch section (Section VII in the September report), and the reestimation of the likely pool of eligible renters in the comparison of FHFC-supported units to renter need (Section V). A further discussion of these changes can be found in the Memorandum to Interested Parties from Housing Finance.

Minor editing changes have been made to provide additional explanation for some tables and the tables, charts and maps have been renumbered for better understanding. As a result of the changes made in Section V regarding the reestimation of renter need some very minor changes were made to tables V-1, V-2, VI-1and VI-2.

### I. Introduction

The following report was prepared for the Florida Housing Finance Corporation (FHFC) by the Shimberg Center for Affordable Housing at the University of Florida. The FHFC supports and monitors multi-family rental housing in Florida through several programs. This report is intended to provide information about Florida's overall rental housing stock, the subsidized housing available in the state, and the characteristics of households in need of affordable rental housing.

The report contains the following sections:

- A summary of key findings;
- A discussion of the *cost burdened* renter households in Florida counties: in this report cost burdened renter households are those households paying more than 40 percent of income toward housing costs;
- A comparison of the FHFC-supported housing inventory to renter households in Florida counties;
- A comparison of the demand for subsidized rental housing to the supply of such housing;
- Certain characteristics of Florida's market rate multi-family housing stock, based on a survey of apartment owners and managers;
- A discussion of the methodology underlying the various sections of the report; and
- A list of conclusions based on data presented in the report.

### **II. Summary of Findings**

Key findings of the study are as follows:

#### Cost Burdened Households

- An estimated 317,199 renter households in the state of Florida have incomes between 20 and 60 percent of area median income (AMI) and with cost burdens of greater than 40 percent.
- Large counties in Florida—Broward, Duval, Hillsborough, Miami-Dade, Orange, Palm Beach, and Pinellas—contain the greatest number of cost burdened renter households. Of all cost burdened renter households, 206,583, or about 65 percent, are found in the large counties.
- By the year 2007, Florida is projected to add 27,219 cost burdened renter households with incomes between 20 and 60 percent of AMI. About 57 percent of the growth is expected to take place in the large counties, 39 percent in the medium counties, and 4 percent in the small counties.
- Cost burdened households are concentrated in the lowest income categories. Of the total cost burdened renter households with incomes between 20 and 60 percent of AMI, over 62 percent (197,902) fall in the 20-39 percent category.
- Most of the households facing a cost burden are small. Over 68 percent of the total households with cost burden in the 20-60 percent of AMI income category are composed of 1-2 persons.
- Most cost burdened households (215,107, or 68 percent of total cost burdened households) are headed by persons aged 15-54. However, in many counties, households headed by persons aged 55 or older make up a disproportionate share of cost burdened households compared to that age group's presence in the population. Moreover, most of the growth in cost burdened households between 2001 and 2007 will take place among older households.

### FHFC-Supported Housing

- There are 101,708 FHFC supported units for which we can determine income restrictions; that is, a household must have an income at or below a qualifying income to occupy the unit. Three large counties, Miami-Dade, Hillsborough, and Orange Counties contain more than 10,000 FHFC income-restricted units each. These FHFC-supported units comprise slightly less than 11 percent of the state's multi-family rental stock.
- Most FHFC units are targeted toward households with maximum incomes of 40 to 60 percent of median income.
- There are widely varying levels of FHFC units in each county relative to the rental housing demand by county. Among the large and medium counties, those with particularly high "levels of efforts"—i.e., ratios of FHFC units to household demand—include Osceola, Collier, Indian River, Orange, Lake, and St. Lucie Counties.

• Large counties show the greatest absolute difference between the number of income eligible renters and the number of FHFC units. Counties with the largest differences include Miami-Dade, Broward, Duval, Orange, Palm Beach, and Pinellas.

#### Subsidized Housing

• Statewide, the number of federal- and FHFC-subsidized units equals slightly over 11 percent of Florida's total renter households.

In sum, FHFC has had a significant impact on the supply of affordable rental housing available to households with incomes in the 20 to 60 percent of area median income category and particularly for households in the 40 to 60 percent income category. Despite this effort, more affordable units are needed to address the sheer magnitude of renters' needs and the coming growth in the state's lower-income renter households. Finally, FHFC may want to examine the income targeting of units to ensure that the needs of under-served households in the lowest income ranges are met.

### III. Rental Housing Need: Households With Cost Burden

#### Introduction

This report summarizes data on housing needs prepared for the Florida Housing Finance Corporation (FHFC). The focus of the estimates and projections to follow is the target population of FHFC programs: multi-family renter households with incomes below 60 percent of the local area median income, adjusted for family size. Because of the nature of FHFC programs, the analysis was also limited to include households above 20 percent of the applicable median income; households below that threshold generally would require federal subsidy assistance. The analysis also examines the supply for multi-family rental units. The data will assist the FHFC in program development and resource allocation.

The pages that follow present an overview of the data that has been assembled for the FHFC. The data highlight the tremendous diversity in multi-family housing need characteristics across the state, particularly between the large, medium, and small counties. The study provides estimates and projections for the state - large, medium and small counties as a group - and individual counties. Estimates are for the year 2001; projections are provided for 2002 and 2007. Households are analyzed by number, size, age of householder, and income. In addition, a statewide survey of rental housing complexes was conducted and the results used to characterize the multi-family rental housing stock in the state. Finally, an inventory of housing assisted by federal or state programs is developed.

The methodology involved the use of data sources including:

- U.S. Bureau of the Census
- U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
- Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation
- Florida Housing Finance Corporation
- University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research

#### **Study Parameters**

A common measure of housing need is the number of *cost burdened* households: those households paying more than a certain percentage of their income toward housing costs. For renters, housing costs include rent and utilities. The assumption underlying this measure is that households devoting above a certain percentage of income to housing are unable to meet other living expenses such as food, clothing, and transportation. In this report, at FHFC's request, households are assumed to be cost burdened if they pay more than 40 percent of their household income toward housing cost.

The number of cost burdened households is reported in the decennial Census, but must be estimated between Census years. Therefore, this analysis combines 1990 U.S. Census data on population and household characteristics with 2000 Census figures available to date and county

level population estimates and projections developed by the University of Florida's Bureau of Economic and Business Research (BEBR).

In addition to identifying the number of cost burdened households in Florida counties, this study breaks this number down based on several variables:

- Extent of cost burden: the number of households paying 40-49 percent and 50 or more percent of income for housing costs;
- Income level: number of households in the 20-39 percent, 40-49 percent, and 50-60 percent of area median income ranges;
- Number of persons in the households;
- Age of householders.

Moreover, this analysis considers all cost burdened renter households as well as *multi-family* cost burdened renter households. Multi-family renter households are those living in non-transient apartment complexes with five or more units. The group of all renter households includes these households as well as those in other types of rental housing, such as single-family homes, duplexes, mobile homes, condominiums, or apartment properties with less than five units. This larger group is of interest because some households residing in other types of housing might move to a suitable multi-family accommodation if it were available.

Statewide, about one-half of all renters reside in multi-family units licensed by the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation; there are estimated to be about 1.9 million renters and approximately 934,000 multi-family units in buildings of five or more units in the state. However, statewide summary numbers mask the relatively low numbers of multi-family units in small counties. Focusing only on cost burdened multi-family renters may underestimate the extent of cost burdened renter households who might be willing to occupy an FHFC-financed multi-family project in such counties.

Note that the number of cost burdened households is not equivalent to housing construction need. A household paying more than 40 percent of its income toward housing costs may not move to a unit in a multi-family housing development even if such a development offers the opportunity to pay a lower housing cost. Households also consider location, type of unit, and satisfaction with current living arrangement in making the decision to move to a new unit. Thus, the demand for units is likely less than the cost burden number. This is particularly true for the small, non-metropolitan counties, many of which have less than 200 cost burdened households. Considering the factors discussed above, such a cost burden indicated need may translate only into a small project at a particular location in that county.

#### **Overview of All Cost Burdened Renters**

There are estimated to be a total of 317,199 renters in the state of Florida with incomes between 20 and 60 percent of local area median income and with cost burdens of greater than 40 percent. Table III-1 on the following pages shows the number of cost burdened renter households in each Florida county in 2001 and the projected growth in those households from 2002 to 2007. The table is sorted by the size of the counties and, within the small, medium, and large county categories, the projected growth in cost burdened households.

| County          | Households 2001 | Percentage of<br>State Total 2001 | Growth<br>2001-02 | Growth<br>2002-07 | Total growth<br>2001-07 |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------------|
| Large counties  |                 |                                   |                   |                   |                         |
| Miami-Dade      | 66,907          | 21.09                             | 694               | 3,624             | 4,318                   |
| Broward         | 37,568          | 11.84                             | 494               | 2,540             | 3,034                   |
| Orange          | 23,434          | 7.39                              | 463               | 2,368             | 2,831                   |
| Palm Beach      | 19,613          | 6.18                              | 330               | 1,625             | 1,955                   |
| Hillsborough    | 22,870          | 7.21                              | 286               | 1,541             | 1,827                   |
| Duval           | 15,981          | 5.04                              | 164               | 811               | 975                     |
| Pinellas        | 20,210          | 6.37                              | 109               | 538               | 647                     |
| Subtotal        | 206,583         | 65.13                             | 2,540             | 13,047            | 15,587                  |
| Medium counties |                 |                                   |                   |                   |                         |
| Seminole        | 6,177           | 1.95                              | 134               | 695               | 829                     |
| Lee             | 6,921           | 2.18                              | 141               | 670               | 811                     |
| Volusia         | 8,505           | 2.68                              | 116               | 594               | 710                     |
| Brevard         | 7,676           | 2.42                              | 113               | 587               | 700                     |
| Polk            | 7,916           | 2.50                              | 103               | 532               | 635                     |
| Osceola         | 3,480           | 1.10                              | 102               | 501               | 603                     |
| Leon            | 3,958           | 1.25                              | 83                | 438               | 521                     |
| Collier         | 3,545           | 1.12                              | 77                | 414               | 491                     |
| Marion          | 3,371           | 1.06                              | 71                | 366               | 437                     |
| Manatee         | 5,110           | 1.61                              | 75                | 358               | 433                     |
| Sarasota        | 5,563           | 1.75                              | 70                | 349               | 419                     |
| Pasco           | 4,593           | 1.45                              | 62                | 343               | 405                     |
| Alachua         | 3,796           | 1.20                              | 57                | 332               | 389                     |
| Okaloosa        | 3,300           | 1.04                              | 65                | 265               | 330                     |
| Escambia        | 5,889           | 1.86                              | 50                | 276               | 326                     |
| Saint Lucie     | 2,565           | 0.81                              | 59                | 237               | 296                     |
| Lake            | 2,092           | 0.66                              | 48                | 237               | 285                     |
| Clay            | 1,503           | 0.47                              | 44                | 204               | 248                     |
| Saint Johns     | 1,581           | 0.50                              | 42                | 202               | 244                     |
| Hernando        | 1,541           | 0.49                              | 38                | 192               | 230                     |
| Bay             | 2,613           | 0.82                              | 37                | 186               | 223                     |
| Santa Rosa      | 1,477           | 0.47                              | 25                | 188               | 213                     |
| Charlotte       | 1,594           | 0.50                              | 38                | 161               | 199                     |
| Indian River    | 1,806           | 0.57                              | 28                | 161               | 189                     |
| Martin          | 1,754           | 0.55                              | 28                | 155               | 183                     |
| Citrus          | 1,170           | 0.37                              | 23                | 128               | 151                     |
| Subtotal        | 99,496          | 31.37                             | 1,729             | 8,771             | 10,500                  |
| Small counties  |                 |                                   |                   |                   |                         |
| Flagler         | 499             | 0.16                              | 17                | 102               | 119                     |
| Columbia        | 620             | 0.20                              | 19                | 66                | 85                      |
| Highlands       | 1,013           | 0.32                              | 16                | 65                | 81                      |

Table III-1. All cost burdened, renter households sorted by county size and growth, 2001-2007\*

\* Note: Cost burdened households are those with a housing burden of 40 percent or more of income and household income between 20 percent and 60 percent of adjusted area median. County size is based on 2000 Census population.

| County              | Households<br>2001 | Percentage of<br>State Total 2001 | Growth<br>2001-02 | Growth<br>2002-07 | Total growth<br>2001-07 |
|---------------------|--------------------|-----------------------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------------|
| Small counties (Con | tinued)            |                                   |                   |                   |                         |
| Monroe              | 1,754              | 0.55                              | 10                | 71                | 81                      |
| Sumter              | 444                | 0.14                              | 16                | 65                | 81                      |
| Nassau              | 542                | 0.17                              | 12                | 65                | 77                      |
| Walton              | 464                | 0.15                              | 13                | 63                | 76                      |
| Suwannee            | 317                | 0.10                              | 9                 | 41                | 50                      |
| Putnam              | 672                | 0.21                              | 8                 | 34                | 42                      |
| Levy                | 332                | 0.11                              | 7                 | 33                | 40                      |
| Gadsden             | 306                | 0.10                              | 7                 | 32                | 39                      |
| Okeechobee          | 467                | 0.15                              | 4                 | 31                | 35                      |
| Hendry              | 409                | 0.13                              | 10                | 21                | 31                      |
| Jackson             | 425                | 0.13                              | 9                 | 21                | 30                      |
| Baker               | 204                | 0.06                              | 3                 | 25                | 28                      |
| Wakulla             | 162                | 0.05                              | 7                 | 20                | 27                      |
| Washington          | 212                | 0.07                              | 4                 | 18                | 22                      |
| DeSoto              | 374                | 0.12                              | 5                 | 14                | 19                      |
| Hamilton            | 83                 | 0.03                              | 3                 | 15                | 18                      |
| Union               | 105                | 0.03                              | 2                 | 14                | 16                      |
| Bradford            | 231                | 0.07                              | 2                 | 13                | 15                      |
| Calhoun             | 91                 | 0.03                              | 2                 | 12                | 14                      |
| Gilchrist           | 68                 | 0.02                              | 2                 | 12                | 14                      |
| Franklin            | 87                 | 0.03                              | 1                 | 11                | 12                      |
| Holmes              | 138                | 0.04                              | 4                 | 6                 | 10                      |
| Jefferson           | 112                | 0.04                              | 0                 | 10                | 10                      |
| Madison             | 153                | 0.05                              | 2                 | 8                 | 10                      |
| Glades              | 92                 | 0.03                              | 0                 | 9                 | 9                       |
| Gulf                | 112                | 0.04                              | 3                 | 5                 | 8                       |
| Lafayette           | 47                 | 0.02                              | 2                 | 6                 | 8                       |
| Taylor              | 176                | 0.06                              | 4                 | 4                 | 8                       |
| Dixie               | 53                 | 0.02                              | 1                 | 5                 | 6                       |
| Hardee              | 304                | 0.10                              | 1                 | 5                 | 6                       |
| Liberty             | 52                 | 0.02                              | 0                 | 5                 | 5                       |
| Subtotal            | 11,120             | 3.51                              | 205               | 927               | 1,132                   |
|                     |                    |                                   |                   |                   |                         |
| Florida             | 317,199            | 100                               | 4,474             | 22,745            | 27,219                  |

## Table III-1. All cost burdened, renter households sorted by county size and growth, 2001-2007 (continued) \*

\* Note: Cost burdened households are those with a housing burden of 40 percent or more of income and household income between 20 percent and 60 percent of adjusted area median. County size is based on 2000 Census population.

Chart III-1 shows the percentage of cost burdened renter households in each of the county size categories.





As Table III-1 and Chart III-1 demonstrate, most of the cost burdened households are concentrated in large counties. Of all cost burdened renter households in 2001, 206,583, or about 65 percent are found in the large counties (Broward, Duval, Hillsborough, Miami-Dade, Orange, Palm Beach, and Pinellas). Miami-Dade County alone has 66,907 cost-burdened renter households in the target income range, over 21 percent of the state total, and the combination of Broward and Miami-Dade Counties are estimated to have about one-third of the statewide total. The medium size counties have about 31 percent of the statewide total of cost burdened renter households in the income category, with 99,496 such households. Among the medium size counties, the largest numbers of cost burdened households, counties with more than 5,000 such households, were in the area surrounding Orlando: Volusia, Brevard, Polk, and Seminole Counties, as well as Escambia, Lee, Manatee, and Sarasota Counties. Only 11,120 cost burdened households, or 3.5 percent of the state total, were in the small counties, with only two counties having more than 1,000 cost burdened households: Monroe and Highlands.

By the year 2007, an additional 27,219 cost burdened renter households with incomes between 20 and 60 percent of local area median income are projected to be found in Florida. The increase reflects the growth of the state's population and the changing age structure of that population. Chart III-2 shows the distribution of this growth among small, medium, and large counties.





About 57 percent of the growth is projected to be in the large counties, 39 percent in the medium counties, and 4 percent in the small counties. Moreover, reflecting population growth, some counties are projected to have a larger share of the growth in cost burdened households than their share of the state's total of cost burdened households in 2001. For example, Seminole County is estimated to have the fifth largest cost burden number among medium size counties in 2001 but the largest growth in cost burdened households (811) by 2007. Similarly, Flagler County has the greatest increase in cost burden among small counties, even though several small counties have more cost burdened households in 2001.

#### **Overview of Multi-family Cost Burdened Households**

An estimated 156,550 cost burdened *multi-family* households with incomes between 20 and 60 percent of local area median income lived in Florida in 2001. Table III-2 on the following pages lists the number of these households by county in 2001 and the projected growth in these households from 2001 to 2007.

| County          | Households<br>2001 | Percentage of<br>State Total 2001 | Growth 2001-02 | Growth 2002-07 | Total growth 2001-07 |
|-----------------|--------------------|-----------------------------------|----------------|----------------|----------------------|
| Large counties  |                    |                                   |                |                |                      |
| Miami-Dade      | 34,969             | 22.34                             | 364            | 1,890          | 2,254                |
| Orange          | 16,574             | 10.59                             | 336            | 1,695          | 2,031                |
| Broward         | 20,918             | 13.36                             | 277            | 1,460          | 1,737                |
| Hillsborough    | 15,135             | 9.67                              | 201            | 1,039          | 1,240                |
| Palm Beach      | 9,319              | 5.95                              | 168            | 814            | 982                  |
| Duval           | 9,885              | 6.31                              | 98             | 477            | 575                  |
| Pinellas        | 10,335             | 6.60                              | 64             | 316            | 380                  |
| Subtotal        | 117,135            | 74.82                             | 1,508          | 7,691          | 9,199                |
| Medium counties |                    |                                   |                |                |                      |
| Seminole        | 4,154              | 2.65                              | 95             | 495            | 590                  |
| Brevard         | 3,454              | 2.21                              | 55             | 272            | 327                  |
| Osceola         | 1.772              | 1.13                              | 54             | 263            | 317                  |
| Leon            | 2.337              | 1.49                              | 46             | 241            | 287                  |
| Volusia         | 3.279              | 2.10                              | 42             | 235            | 277                  |
| Lee             | 2,208              | 1.41                              | 49             | 219            | 268                  |
| Alachua         | 2,576              | 1.65                              | 38             | 221            | 259                  |
| Polk            | 2,533              | 1.62                              | 39             | 173            | 212                  |
| Collier         | 1,490              | 0.95                              | 29             | 169            | 198                  |
| Manatee         | 1,909              | 1.22                              | 29             | 148            | 177                  |
| Clay            | 779                | 0.50                              | 23             | 123            | 146                  |
| Pasco           | 1,420              | 0.91                              | 17             | 119            | 136                  |
| Sarasota        | 1,870              | 1.20                              | 23             | 108            | 131                  |
| Lake            | 745                | 0.48                              | 17             | 89             | 106                  |
| Marion          | 756                | 0.48                              | 23             | 83             | 106                  |
| Escambia        | 1,920              | 1.23                              | 14             | 85             | 99                   |
| Saint Johns     | 537                | 0.34                              | 17             | 65             | 82                   |
| Bay             | 1,015              | 0.65                              | 16             | 65             | 81                   |
| Okaloosa        | 656                | 0.42                              | 12             | 63             | 75                   |
| Martin          | 520                | 0.33                              | 16             | 57             | 73                   |
| Saint Lucie     | 380                | 0.24                              | 8              | 37             | 45                   |
| Santa Rosa      | 274                | 0.18                              | 3              | 34             | 37                   |
| Indian River    | 388                | 0.25                              | 5              | 31             | 36                   |
| Hernando        | 208                | 0.13                              | 7              | 24             | 31                   |
| Charlotte       | 191                | 0.12                              | 7              | 16             | 23                   |
| Citrus          | 155                | 0.10                              | 3              | 15             | 18                   |
| Subtotal        | 37,526             | 23.97                             | 687            | 3,450          | 4,137                |
| Small counties  |                    |                                   |                |                |                      |
| Nassau          | 134                | 0.09                              | 4              | 20             | 24                   |
| Columbia        | 157                | 0.10                              | 4              | 19             | 23                   |
| Highlands       | 231                | 0.15                              | 4              | 19             | 23                   |

### Table III-2. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households sorted by county size and growth, 2001-2007\*

Highlands2310.15419\*Note: Cost burdened households are those with a housing burden of 40 percent or more of income and<br/>household income between 20 percent and 60 percent of adjusted area median. County size is based on<br/>2000 Census population.

| 0.06<br>0.10<br>0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.18<br>0.01<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04   | 2<br>2<br>1<br>4<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>3<br>0<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0 | 14<br>9<br>10<br>7<br>7<br>6<br>6<br>6<br>3<br>3<br>5<br>5<br>3<br>5<br>4<br>2<br>1<br>2<br>2   | $     \begin{array}{r}         16 \\         111 \\         111 \\         111 \\         $   |
|--|---|---|---|
| 0.06<br>0.10<br>0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.18<br>0.01<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.00                         | 2<br>2<br>1<br>4<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>3<br>0<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0 | 14<br>9<br>10<br>7<br>7<br>6<br>6<br>6<br>3<br>5<br>5<br>3<br>5<br>3<br>5<br>4<br>2<br>1<br>2<br>2  | $     \begin{array}{r}         16 \\         11 \\         11 \\         11 \\         $  |
| 0.06<br>0.10<br>0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.18<br>0.01<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04   | 2<br>2<br>1<br>4<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>3<br>0<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0 | 14<br>9<br>10<br>7<br>7<br>6<br>6<br>6<br>6<br>3<br>3<br>5<br>3<br>5<br>3<br>5<br>3<br>5<br>4<br>2<br>2<br>2  | $     \begin{array}{r}         16 \\         11 \\         11 \\         11 \\         $  |
| 0.06<br>0.10<br>0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.18<br>0.01<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.03<br>0.00 | 2<br>2<br>1<br>4<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>3<br>0<br>0<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0 | $     \begin{array}{r}       14 \\       9 \\       10 \\       7 \\       7 \\       7 \\       6 \\       6 \\       3 \\       5 \\       3 \\       5 \\       4 \\       2 \\       1 \\       2 \\       2 \\       2     \end{array} $ | $     \begin{array}{r}       16 \\       11 \\       11 \\       11 \\       8 \\       8 \\       8 \\       8 \\       6 \\       6 \\       5 \\       5 \\       5 \\       5 \\       5 \\       3 \\       2 \\       2 \\       2       2       \end{array} $                                      |
| 0.10<br>0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.18<br>0.01<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.00<br>0.00 | $ \begin{array}{c} 2 \\ 1 \\ 4 \\ 2 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 3 \\ 0 \\ 2 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 1 \\ 2 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 0$           | 9<br>10<br>7<br>7<br>6<br>6<br>3<br>5<br>3<br>5<br>4<br>2<br>1<br>2<br>2  | $     \begin{array}{r}         11 \\         11 \\         11 \\         $  |
| 0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.18<br>0.01<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04   | 1<br>4<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>3<br>3<br>0<br>2<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0           | $     \begin{array}{r}       10 \\       7 \\       7 \\       7 \\       6 \\       6 \\       3 \\       5 \\       3 \\       5 \\       4 \\       2 \\       1 \\       2 \\       2 \\       2     \end{array} $                        | $     \begin{array}{r}         11 \\         11 \\         88 \\         88 \\         66 \\         66 \\         55 \\         55 \\         55 \\         $  |
| 0.05<br>0.03<br>0.18<br>0.01<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04   | 1<br>2<br>0<br>3<br>0<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0                          | 7<br>7<br>6<br>3<br>5<br>3<br>5<br>3<br>5<br>4<br>2<br>1<br>2<br>2  | $     \begin{array}{r}         11 \\             88 \\           $  |
| 0.03<br>0.18<br>0.01<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04   | 1<br>2<br>0<br>3<br>0<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0  | 7       6       6       3       5       3       5       4       2       1       2       2       2   | 8<br>8<br>6<br>6<br>5<br>5<br>5<br>5<br>4<br>3<br>3<br>2<br>2<br>2  |
| 0.18<br>0.01<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04   | 2<br>0<br>3<br>0<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0  | 6         3         5         3         5         4         2         1         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2                 | 8<br>6<br>6<br>5<br>5<br>5<br>5<br>4<br>3<br>3<br>2<br>2<br>2   |
| 0.01<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.00<br>0.00   | 0<br>3<br>0<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0  | 6         3         5         3         5         4         2         1         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2         2   | 6<br>6<br>5<br>5<br>5<br>4<br>3<br>3<br>2<br>2<br>2   |
| 0.04<br>0.01<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.00<br>0.00   | 0<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0   | 3<br>5<br>3<br>5<br>4<br>2<br>1<br>2<br>2<br>2  | 6<br>5<br>5<br>4<br>3<br>3<br>2<br>2<br>2   |
| 0.01<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.00<br>0.00   | 0<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0  | 5<br>3<br>5<br>4<br>2<br>1<br>2<br>2  | 5<br>5<br>5<br>4<br>3<br>3<br>2<br>2<br>2   |
| 0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.00<br>0.00   | 2<br>0<br>0<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0  | 3<br>5<br>4<br>2<br>1<br>2<br>2   | 5<br>5<br>4<br>3<br>3<br>2<br>2<br>2  |
| 0.04<br>0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.00<br>0.01   | 0<br>0<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0   | 5<br>4<br>2<br>1<br>2<br>2  | 5<br>4<br>3<br>3<br>2<br>2<br>2   |
| 0.04<br>0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.00<br>0.01   | 0<br>1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0  | 4<br>2<br>1<br>2<br>2<br>2  | 4<br>3<br>3<br>2<br>2<br>2  |
| 0.04<br>0.05<br>0.03<br>0.00<br>0.01   | 1<br>2<br>0<br>0<br>0   | 2<br>1<br>2<br>2  | 3<br>3<br>2<br>2<br>2   |
| 0.05<br>0.03<br>0.00<br>0.01   | 2<br>0<br>0   | 1<br>2<br>2   | 3<br>2<br>2   |
| 0.03 0.00 0.01   | 0 0   | 2 2   | 2 2   |
| 0.00 0.01  | 0   | 2   | 2   |
| 0.01   | 0   |   |   |
| A 1 1  | 0   | 2   | 2   |
| 0.00   | 1   | 0   | 1   |
| 0.00   | 0   | 1   | 1   |
| 0.01   | 1   | 0   | 1   |
| 0.01   | 1   | 0   | 1   |
| 0.02   | 0   | 1   | 1   |
| 0.03   | 1   | 0   | 1   |
| 0.03   | 0   | 1   | 1   |
| 0.01   | 0   | 1   | 1   |
| 0.01   | 0   | 0   | 0   |
| 0.01   | 0   | 0   | 0   |
| 0.00   | 0   | 0   | 0   |
| 0.00   | 0   | 0   | 0   |
| 0.01   | 0   | 0   | 0   |
| 0.01   | 0   | 0   | 0   |
| 1.21   | 36  | 150   | 186   |
|  | 0.001   | 11,291  | 13,522  |
|  | 0.01<br>0.00<br>0.00<br>0.01<br>0.01<br>1.21  | 0.01         0           0.00         0           0.00         0           0.01         0           0.01         0           1.21         36           2,231  | 0.01         0         0           0.00         0         0         0           0.00         0         0         0         0           0.01         0         0         0         0           0.01         0         0         0         150           2,231         11,291         11,291         11,291 |

Table III-2. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households sorted by county size and growth, 2001-2007 (continued)\*

\*Note: Cost burdened households are those with a housing burden of 40 percent or more of income and household income between 20 percent and 60 percent of adjusted area median. County size is based on 2000 Census population.

Of the total, 117,135 or 75 percent are found in the large counties, 37,526 or 24 percent are in the medium counties, and 1,889 or 1 percent are in the small counties. Chart III-3 shows the percentages of multi-family cost burdened renter households in each of the county size categories.

#### Chart III-3. Percentage of multi-family cost burdened renter households by county size



Table III-2 and Chart III-3 demonstrate the predominance of multi-family units in large counties over other types of rental housing; large counties have an even higher share of multi-family cost burdened households than they do of all cost burdened households. More than one-half of all cost burdened renter households in large counties are in multi-family units, as compared to about 38 percent in medium counties and 17 percent in small counties. Miami-Dade County has over 22 percent of the statewide cost burdened multi-family households in the target income category and Broward County has over 13 percent of the total, so that these two counties comprise about 36 percent of the statewide cost burdened multi-family renter households. Combining the Orange and Hillsborough County results with the Miami-Dade and Broward results, these four counties contain an estimated 56 percent of the statewide multi-family rental housing need. The three South Florida counties, Miami-Dade, Broward, and Palm Beach, are estimated to have 42 percent of the total large-county cost-burdened households.

Among the medium size counties, those with the largest multi-family cost burden numbers are Seminole, Brevard, and Volusia Counties. Unlike in the larger counties, several of the medium size counties have significantly lower cost burdened multi-family households than total renter households.<sup>1</sup> For example, Lee County has an estimated 6,921 total cost burdened renter households but only 2,208 multi-family households, less than one-third the total. Sarasota, Polk, Marion, St. Lucie, Indian River, and Charlotte Counties are among others for which this effect is particularly pronounced. The same phenomenon is present throughout the small counties. For example, Flagler has an estimated 499 cost burdened renter households but only

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The DBPR does not license non-transient condominium rentals. This undoubtedly effects the distribution of renters in this data.

30 such multi-family renter households. Among the small counties, over one-half of the cost burdened multi-family households are found in five counties: Monroe, Highlands, Columbia, Putnam, and Nassau.

The methodology used in this study probably underestimates multi-family demand in small counties within the cost burden and income categories of interest in this report. While there are a variety of possible reasons for this much comes down to the fact that there are very few multi-family units and households in Florida's small counties. This is exacerbated by: (1) the sample size of one of the major sources of demand-side data; (2) the measurement problems inherent in trying to survey supply in such cases; and (3) the significant size of the cross-tabulation attempted in this survey – age by size by income by cost burden – which results in up to 504 possible combinations of demographic characteristics.

Florida is projected to add 13,522 cost burdened multi-family renter households by 2007, with 9,199 or 68 percent in the large counties. While Miami-Dade County will experience the largest growth, Orange County will add similar numbers of households even though its current base of these households is less than half the size of Miami-Dade's. Among medium size counties, Seminole and Brevard will experience the greatest growth in cost burdened multi-family households. Increases will be small in the counties with populations of 100,000 or less.

#### Cost Burden by Income, Household Size, and Age

The estimates and projections of cost burdened households have been further broken down by income, household size, and age. The following sections discuss each of these categories, first for all renter households and then for multi-family renter households. Each category includes a discussion of households paying between 40 and 49 percent of their income toward rent and those paying 50 percent or more.

**Income**: Cost burdened households are reported for three sub-groups within the 20-60 percent of local area median income group discussed above: households with incomes at 20-39 percent, 40-49 percent, and 50-60 percent of adjusted local area median income (AMI). In addition, cost burden is broken into two categories: those paying 40-49 percent of income toward rent and those paying 50 percent or more of income toward housing. Table III-3 on the following pages shows the number of cost burdened renter households in each county by the level of cost burden and the percentage of their income paid toward rent for 2001, plus projected growth in these households for 2002-2007.

|                       | Households, 2001   |               |                |                  |                |                |           |
|-----------------------|--------------------|---------------|----------------|------------------|----------------|----------------|-----------|
|                       | Cost b             | ourden 40-49  | %              | Cost             | burden 50+%    |                |           |
|                       | Percent of         | area median i | income         | Percent of       | area median ii | ncome          |           |
| County                | 20-39%             | 40-49%        | 50-60%         | 20-39%           | 40-49%         | 50-60%         | Total     |
| Alachua               | 639                | 469           | 273            | 2 105            | 167            | 143            | 3 796     |
| Baker                 | 37                 | 23            | 16             | 2,103            | 9              | 5              | 204       |
| Bay                   | 429                | 316           | 277            | 1 212            | 262            | 117            | 2613      |
| Bradford              | 65                 | 28            | 15             | 114              | 202            | 2              | 2,013     |
| Breverd               | 1 0/18             | 013           | 508            | 114              | 657            | 185            | 7 676     |
| Broward               | 1,040              | 4 210         | 4 025          | 18 258           | 4 4 2 2        | 2 494          | 37 568    |
| Calhoun               | 38                 | 4,210         | 4,025          | 30               | 4,422          | 2,494          | 91        |
| Charlotte             | 120                | 22            | 236            | 503              | 346            | 57             | 1 504     |
| Citrus                | 86                 | 233           | 01             | 740              | 125            | 37             | 1,394     |
| Clau                  | 220                | 140           | 249            | 612              | 123            | 20             | 1,170     |
| Callier               | 163                | 388           | 406            | 1 680            | 618            | 20             | 3 5 4 5   |
| Columbia              | 103                | <u> </u>      | 400            | 1,080            | 20             | 290            | 5,343     |
| DeSete                | 1/4                | 10            | 16             | 171              | 20             | 5              | 274       |
| Divie                 | 28                 | 40            | 40             | 1/1              | 29             | 0              | 53        |
| Duval                 | 3 1 1 8            | 2 097         | 1 453          | 7 247            | 1 516          | 550            | 15 981    |
| Escambia              | 1.042              | 631           | 373            | 3 290            | 1,510          | 115            | 5 880     |
| Elogler               | 1,042              | 52            | 575            | 3,290            | 438            | 53             | 3,889     |
| Franklin              | 36                 | 0             | 5              | 38               | 8              |                | 499       |
| Gadadan               | 123                | 6             | 21             | 122              | 24             | 0              | 306       |
| Cilobrist             | 24                 | 4             | <u> </u>       | 34               |                | 0              | 68        |
| Glades                | 27                 | 12            | 7              | 41               | 3              | 2              | 92        |
| Gulf                  | 42                 | 7             | 2              | 46               | 7              | 8              | 112       |
| Hamilton              | 40                 | 8             | 1              | 33               | 1              | 0              | 83        |
| Hardee                | 61                 | 28            | 39             | 148              | 22             | 6              | 304       |
| Handry                | 91                 | 54            | 44             | 194              | 20             | 6              | 409       |
| Hernando              | 200                | 108           | 63             | 771              | 198            | 111            | 1 541     |
| Highlands             | 200                | 100           | 78             | 511              | 30             | 13             | 1 013     |
| Hillshorough          | 2 573              | 3 271         | 2 500          | 11 372           | 2 300          | 854            | 22 870    |
| Holmes                | 2,373              | 3,271         | 2,300          | 67               | 2,300          | 0.04           | 138       |
| Indian River          | 180                | 205           | 10             | 903              | 106            | 118            | 1.30      |
| Jackson               | 109                | 203           | 8              | 174              | 27             | 24             | 1,800     |
| Jackson               | 27                 | 14            | 2              | 50               | 6              | 24             | 423       |
| L ofovette            | 14                 | 5             | 2              | 25               | 0              | 1              |           |
| Lalayette             | 704                | 240           | 64             | 827              | 122            | 26             | 2 002     |
| Lake                  | 670                | 249           | 750            | 3 / 3/           | 768            | 503            | 6.021     |
| Lee                   | 652                | 504           | 252            | 2 207            | 170            | 164            | 3 058     |
| Leon                  | 40                 | 26            | 10             | 2,207            | 20             | 104            | 3,930     |
| Levy                  | 13                 | 20            | 19             | 220              | 20             | 1              | 52        |
| Medison               | 69                 | 12            | 3              | 67               | 2              |                | 153       |
| Manataa               | 712                | 682           | 451            | 2 571            | 507            | 186            | 5 110     |
| Marian                | /13                | 400           | 268            | 2,371            | 285            | 224            | 2 271     |
| Martin                | 409                | 490           | 208            | 1,093            | 412            | 4              | 3,371     |
| Miani Dada            | 7.509              | (121          | 230<br>5 117   | 26 161           | 7.016          | 2 004          | 1,/34     |
| *Nata: Cast hunder of | /,398              | 0,121         | J,11/          | 50,101           | /,910          | 3,994          | 00,907    |
| *Note: Cost burdened  | a nousenoids are   | those with a  | nousing burden | of 40 percent or | more of incol  | me and nousend | la income |
| between 20 percent ar | nd 60 percent of a | adjusted area | median.        |                  |                |                |           |

### Table III-3a. All cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and percent of income\*

|            | Households, 2001 |               |        |         |                |          |         |
|------------|------------------|---------------|--------|---------|----------------|----------|---------|
|            | Cost             | t burden 40-4 | 9%     | Co      | ost burden 504 | -%       |         |
|            | Percent o        | f area mediar | income | Percent | of area media  | n income |         |
| County     | 20-39%           | 40-49%        | 50-60% | 20-39%  | 40-49%         | 50-60%   | Total   |
| Monroe     | 82               | 207           | 179    | 845     | 297            | 144      | 1,754   |
| Nassau     | 139              | 48            | 69     | 211     | 59             | 16       | 542     |
| Okaloosa   | 617              | 316           | 312    | 1,722   | 191            | 142      | 3,300   |
| Okeechobee | 113              | 54            | 14     | 252     | 26             | 8        | 467     |
| Orange     | 2,200            | 3,763         | 3,234  | 10,239  | 2,975          | 1,023    | 23,434  |
| Osceola    | 163              | 671           | 305    | 1,579   | 635            | 127      | 3,480   |
| Palm Beach | 2,518            | 2,108         | 1,964  | 9,106   | 2,495          | 1,422    | 19,613  |
| Pasco      | 910              | 607           | 411    | 2,166   | 436            | 63       | 4,593   |
| Pinellas   | 2,476            | 2,705         | 2,076  | 9,828   | 2,280          | 845      | 20,210  |
| Polk       | 1,307            | 806           | 620    | 4,345   | 558            | 280      | 7,916   |
| Putnam     | 247              | 36            | 44     | 334     | 11             | 0        | 672     |
| St. Johns  | 174              | 175           | 182    | 689     | 211            | 150      | 1,581   |
| St. Lucie  | 315              | 410           | 242    | 1,151   | 400            | 47       | 2,565   |
| Santa Rosa | 282              | 150           | 84     | 833     | 97             | 31       | 1,477   |
| Sarasota   | 553              | 624           | 638    | 2,426   | 995            | 327      | 5,563   |
| Seminole   | 576              | 938           | 446    | 2,894   | 1,114          | 209      | 6,177   |
| Sumter     | 28               | 33            | 35     | 279     | 56             | 13       | 444     |
| Suwannee   | 116              | 19            | 22     | 157     | 3              | 0        | 317     |
| Taylor     | 57               | 16            | 12     | 87      | 2              | 2        | 176     |
| Union      | 28               | 11            | 6      | 56      | 3              | 1        | 105     |
| Volusia    | 623              | 962           | 897    | 4,487   | 985            | 551      | 8,505   |
| Wakulla    | 23               | 24            | 2      | 96      | 8              | 9        | 162     |
| Walton     | 82               | 58            | 39     | 224     | 50             | 11       | 464     |
| Washington | 40               | 32            | 8      | 108     | 18             | 6        | 212     |
| Florida    | 40,352           | 37,503        | 30,151 | 157,550 | 35,825         | 15,818   | 317,199 |

## Table III-3a. All cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|                      |                   |               | Change in      | households, 20  | 01-2002        |                |           |
|----------------------|-------------------|---------------|----------------|-----------------|----------------|----------------|-----------|
|                      | Cost              | burden 40-49  | %              | Cos             | t burden 50+%  |                |           |
|                      | Percent of        | area median   | income         | Percent of      | area median i  | ncome          |           |
| County               | 20-39%            | 40-49%        | 50-60%         | 20-39%          | 40-49%         | 50-60%         | Total     |
| Alashua              | 0                 | 6             | 4              | 24              | 1              | 2              | 57        |
| Alacilua             | 9                 | 0             | 4              | 2               | 1              | 5              |           |
| Dakei                | 0                 | 0             | 2              | 15              | 0              | 0              | 27        |
| Drodford             | 8                 | 0             | 3              | 15              | 3              | 2              | <u> </u>  |
| Bradiord             | 12                | 10            | 1              | 0               | 0              | 0              | <u> </u>  |
| Brevard              | 13                | 10            | /              | 69              | 50             | 3              | 113       |
| Broward              | 54                | 46            | 46             | 254             | 58             | 36             | 494       |
| Calnoun              | 2                 | 0             | 0              | 0               | 0              | 0              | 2         |
| Charlotte            | 4                 | 7             | 5              | 11              | 9              | 2              | 38        |
| Citrus               | 1                 | 4             | 2              | 13              | 3              | 0              | 23        |
| Clay                 | 12                | 4             | 6              | 15              | 7              | 0              | 44        |
| Collier              | 2                 | 9             | 8              | 39              | 14             | 5              | 77        |
| Columbia             | 8                 | 0             | 1              | 10              | 0              | 0              | 19        |
| DeSoto               | 1                 | 1             | 2              | 0               | 1              | 0              | 5         |
| Dixie                | 0                 | 0             | 0              | 1               | 0              | 0              | 1         |
| Duval                | 33                | 14            | 15             | 86              | 11             | 5              | 164       |
| Escambia             | 6                 | 7             | 1              | 30              | 4              | 2              | 50        |
| Flagler              | 1                 | 2             | 2              | 8               | 3              | 1              | 17        |
| Franklin             | 0                 | 0             | 0              | 1               | 0              | 0              | 1         |
| Gadsden              | 2                 | 1             | 0              | 3               | 1              | 0              | 7         |
| Gilchrist            | 1                 | 0             | 0              | 1               | 0              | 0              | 2         |
| Glades               | 0                 | 0             | 0              | 0               | 0              | 0              | 0         |
| Gulf                 | 2                 | 0             | 0              | 1               | 0              | 0              | 3         |
| Hamilton             | 1                 | 1             | 0              | 1               | 0              | 0              | 3         |
| Hardee               | 0                 | 0             | 0              | 0               | 0              | 1              | 1         |
| Hendry               | 2                 | 1             | 2              | 3               | 1              | 1              | 10        |
| Hernando             | 3                 | 4             | 3              | 19              | 6              | 3              | 38        |
| Highlands            | 5                 | 1             | 2              | 7               | 1              | 0              | 16        |
| Hillshorough         | 34                | 32            | 24             | 162             | 26             | 8              | 286       |
| Holmes               | 1                 | 0             | 0              | 3               | 0              | 0              | 200       |
| Indian River         | Δ                 | 3             | 2              | 14              | 4              | 1              | 28        |
| Jackson              | 4                 | 0             | 0              | 3               | 0              | 2              | 9         |
| Jefferson            |                   | 0             | 0              | 0               | 0              | 0              | 0         |
| I afavette           | 0                 | 0             | 0              | 2               | 0              | 0              | 2         |
| Lalayette            | 18                | 4             | 2              | 10              | 4              | 1              |           |
| Lac                  | 10                | 18            | 12             | 71              | 16             | 1              | 1/1       |
| Lee                  | 14                | 10            | 12             | /1              | 10             | 10             | 02        |
| Leon                 | 11                | 9             | 3              | 49              | 4              | 1              |           |
| Levy                 | 1                 | 1             | 0              | 4               | 0              | 1              | /         |
| Madiana              | 0                 | 0             | 0              | 0               | 0              | 0              | 0         |
| Madison              | 2                 | 0             | 0              | 0               | 0              | 0              | 2         |
| ivianatee            | 8                 | 10            | 1              | 36              | 10             | 4              | - 15      |
| Marion               | 9                 | 8             | 6              | 38              | 6              | 4              | 7/1       |
| Martin               | 3                 | 2             | 3              | 14              | 6              | 0              | 28        |
| Miami-Dade           | 76                | 49            | 48             | 401             | 78             | 42             | 694       |
| *Note: Cost burdene  | ed households are | those with a  | housing burden | of 40 percent o | r more of inco | me and househo | ld income |
| between 20 percent a | and 60 percent of | adjusted area | median.        |                 |                |                |           |

# Table III-3b. All cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|            |            | Change in households, 2001-2002 |        |            |               |        |       |  |  |  |  |
|------------|------------|---------------------------------|--------|------------|---------------|--------|-------|--|--|--|--|
|            | Cost       | burden 40-49%                   | /0     | Cost       | burden 50+%   | )      |       |  |  |  |  |
|            | Percent of | area median i                   | ncome  | Percent of | area median i | ncome  |       |  |  |  |  |
| County     | 20-39%     | 40-49%                          | 50-60% | 20-39%     | 40-49%        | 50-60% | Total |  |  |  |  |
| Monroe     | 0          | 1                               | 0      | 6          | 3             | 0      | 10    |  |  |  |  |
| Nassau     | 3          | 1                               | 3      | 4          | 0             | 1      | 12    |  |  |  |  |
| Okaloosa   | 9          | 11                              | 4      | 32         | 6             | 3      | 65    |  |  |  |  |
| Okeechobee | 0          | 1                               | 1      | 2          | 0             | 0      | 4     |  |  |  |  |
| Orange     | 43         | 73                              | 54     | 206        | 61            | 26     | 463   |  |  |  |  |
| Osceola    | 5          | 17                              | 10     | 50         | 15            | 5      | 102   |  |  |  |  |
| Palm Beach | 37         | 33                              | 32     | 161        | 41            | 26     | 330   |  |  |  |  |
| Pasco      | 6          | 7                               | 6      | 31         | 12            | 0      | 62    |  |  |  |  |
| Pinellas   | 19         | 11                              | 8      | 54         | 12            | 5      | 109   |  |  |  |  |
| Polk       | 18         | 7                               | 5      | 58         | 11            | 4      | 103   |  |  |  |  |
| Putnam     | 4          | 1                               | 0      | 3          | 0             | 0      | 8     |  |  |  |  |
| St. Johns  | 5          | 2                               | 4      | 21         | 7             | 3      | 42    |  |  |  |  |
| St. Lucie  | 8          | 10                              | 5      | 27         | 8             | 1      | 59    |  |  |  |  |
| Santa Rosa | 3          | 4                               | 1      | 15         | 1             | 1      | 25    |  |  |  |  |
| Sarasota   | 9          | 5                               | 6      | 32         | 15            | 3      | 70    |  |  |  |  |
| Seminole   | 12         | 16                              | 10     | 63         | 28            | 5      | 134   |  |  |  |  |
| Sumter     | 2          | 0                               | 1      | 10         | 2             | 1      | 16    |  |  |  |  |
| Suwannee   | 4          | 0                               | 0      | 5          | 0             | 0      | 9     |  |  |  |  |
| Taylor     | 1          | 1                               | 0      | 2          | 0             | 0      | 4     |  |  |  |  |
| Union      | 1          | 0                               | 0      | 1          | 0             | 0      | 2     |  |  |  |  |
| Volusia    | 8          | 11                              | 11     | 62         | 14            | 10     | 116   |  |  |  |  |
| Wakulla    | 0          | 0                               | 0      | 7          | 0             | 0      | 7     |  |  |  |  |
| Walton     | 3          | 1                               | 0      | 8          | 0             | 1      | 13    |  |  |  |  |
| Washington | 1          | 0                               | 0      | 3          | 0             | 0      | 4     |  |  |  |  |
| Florida    | 557        | 473                             | 380    | 2,303      | 524           | 237    | 4,474 |  |  |  |  |

# Table III-3b. All cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|                      |                   |               | Change in      | households, 20   | 02-2007        |                |            |
|----------------------|-------------------|---------------|----------------|------------------|----------------|----------------|------------|
|                      | Cost              | burden 40-49  | %              | Cost             | t burden 50+%  | )              |            |
|                      | Percent of        | area median i | ncome          | Percent of       | area median i  | ncome          |            |
| County               | 20-39%            | 40-49%        | 50-60%         | 20-39%           | 40-49%         | 50-60%         | Total      |
| Alashus              | 4.9               | 20            | 22             | 102              | 15             | 1.4            | 222        |
| Alachua              | 48                | 39            | 23             | 193              | 15             | 14             | 332        |
| Dave                 | 25                | 2             | 1              | 14               | 3              | 1              | 23         |
| Day<br>Das 16 and    | 55                | 20            | 12             | 98               | 14             | /              | 180        |
| Bradiord             | 3                 | 1             | 0              | 0                | 50             | 0              | 13         |
| Dressond             | //                | 0/            | 43             | 1 204            | 204            | 23             | 2540       |
| Broward<br>Calleaur  | 292               | 231           | 247            | 1,304            | 294            | 1/2            | 2,540      |
| Calnoun              | 4                 | 0             | 0              | /                | 1              | 0              | 12         |
| Charlotte            | 16                | 26            | 24             | 48               | 40             | /              | 161        |
| Citrus               | 4                 | 10            | 8              | 85               | 19             | 2              | 128        |
| Clay                 | 53                | 13            | 27             | 74               | 32             | 5              | 204        |
| Collier              | 23                | 42            | 36             | 207              | 79             | 27             | 414        |
| Columbia             | 17                | 8             | 5              | 32               | 3              | 1              | 66         |
| DeSoto               | 3                 | 0             | 2              | 8                | 1              | 0              | 14         |
| Dixie                | 3                 | 0             | 0              | 2                | 0              | 0              | 5          |
| Duval                | 148               | 83            | 69             | 431              | 57             | 23             | 811        |
| Escambia             | 40                | 27            | 17             | 161              | 24             | 7              | 276        |
| Flagler              | 14                | 10            | 8              | 44               | 14             | 12             | 102        |
| Franklin             | 5                 | 0             | 1              | 4                | 1              | 0              | 11         |
| Gadsden              | 13                | 1             | 4              | 12               | 2              | 0              | 32         |
| Gilchrist            | 5                 | 1             | 1              | 5                | 0              | 0              | 12         |
| Glades               | 4                 | 0             | 0              | 5                | 0              | 0              | 9          |
| Gulf                 | 0                 | 1             | 0              | 3                | 1              | 0              | 5          |
| Hamilton             | 7                 | 1             | 0              | 7                | 0              | 0              | 15         |
| Hardee               | 1                 | 0             | 1              | 2                | 1              | 0              | 5          |
| Hendry               | 4                 | 2             | 3              | 12               | 0              | 0              | 21         |
| Hernando             | 18                | 22            | 11             | 93               | 29             | 19             | 192        |
| Highlands            | 17                | 5             | 4              | 34               | 5              | 0              | 65         |
| Hillsborough         | 195               | 175           | 117            | 870              | 131            | 53             | 1,541      |
| Holmes               | 3                 | 1             | 1              | 1                | 0              | 0              | 6          |
| Indian River         | 16                | 16            | 13             | 86               | 20             | 10             | 161        |
| Jackson              | 6                 | 1             | 1              | 11               | 1              | 1              | 21         |
| Jefferson            | 3                 | 0             | 0              | 4                | 1              | 2              | 10         |
| Lafavette            | 1                 | 0             | 1              | 4                | 0              | 0              | 6          |
| Lake                 | 91                | 24            | 3              | 95               | 17             | 7              | 237        |
| Lee                  | 66                | 68            | 66             | 346              | 77             | 47             | 670        |
| Leon                 | 56                | 54            | 26             | 263              | 18             | 21             | 438        |
| Levy                 | 2                 | 2             | 20             | 205              | 2              | 0              | 33         |
| Liberty              | 0                 | 2             | 0              | 3                | 0              | 0              | 5          |
| Madison              | 3                 | 2             | 0              | 3                | 0              | 0              | <u> </u>   |
| Manatee              | 51                | 52            | 25             | 173              | 38             | 10             | 358        |
| Marion               | 10                | 40            | 23             | 202              | 22             | 17             | 266        |
| Martin               | 48                | 40            | <u></u>        | 203              | 20             | 21             | 300        |
| Miami Dede           | 202               | 13            | 257            | 2 120            | 30<br>206      | 201            | 2 4 2 4    |
| Whather O the 1      | 392               | <u></u>       | <u> </u>       | 2,130            | 390            | 201            | 3,024      |
| "Note: Cost burden   | ea households are | those with a  | nousing burden | of 40 percent of | r more of inco | me and househo | bid income |
| between 20 percent a | and 60 percent of | adjusted area | median.        |                  |                |                |            |

# Table III-3c. All cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|            | Change in households, 2002-2007 |              |        |            |                               |        |        |  |  |
|------------|---------------------------------|--------------|--------|------------|-------------------------------|--------|--------|--|--|
|            | Cost                            | burden 40-49 | 9%     | Co         | st burden 50+                 | %      |        |  |  |
|            | Percent of                      | area median  | income | Percent of | Percent of area median income |        |        |  |  |
| County     | 20-39%                          | 40-49%       | 50-60% | 20-39%     | 40-49%                        | 50-60% | Total  |  |  |
| Monroe     | 6                               | 9            | 4      | 33         | 16                            | 3      | 71     |  |  |
| Nassau     | 19                              | 6            | 7      | 22         | 9                             | 2      | 65     |  |  |
| Okaloosa   | 40                              | 27           | 21     | 149        | 19                            | 9      | 265    |  |  |
| Okeechobee | 2                               | 4            | 1      | 20         | 3                             | 1      | 31     |  |  |
| Orange     | 224                             | 355          | 277    | 1,084      | 296                           | 132    | 2,368  |  |  |
| Osceola    | 20                              | 83           | 57     | 233        | 83                            | 25     | 501    |  |  |
| Palm Beach | 206                             | 156          | 142    | 793        | 206                           | 122    | 1,625  |  |  |
| Pasco      | 55                              | 43           | 29     | 174        | 38                            | 4      | 343    |  |  |
| Pinellas   | 84                              | 47           | 36     | 281        | 59                            | 31     | 538    |  |  |
| Polk       | 85                              | 45           | 36     | 302        | 45                            | 19     | 532    |  |  |
| Putnam     | 12                              | 2            | 2      | 18         | 0                             | 0      | 34     |  |  |
| St. Johns  | 22                              | 20           | 15     | 95         | 28                            | 22     | 202    |  |  |
| St. Lucie  | 25                              | 34           | 14     | 120        | 41                            | 3      | 237    |  |  |
| Santa Rosa | 31                              | 18           | 10     | 112        | 14                            | 3      | 188    |  |  |
| Sarasota   | 38                              | 29           | 36     | 162        | 73                            | 11     | 349    |  |  |
| Seminole   | 52                              | 97           | 40     | 344        | 143                           | 19     | 695    |  |  |
| Sumter     | 2                               | 5            | 4      | 40         | 13                            | 1      | 65     |  |  |
| Suwannee   | 15                              | 2            | 4      | 20         | 0                             | 0      | 41     |  |  |
| Taylor     | 2                               | 1            | 1      | 0          | 0                             | 0      | 4      |  |  |
| Union      | 8                               | 0            | 2      | 4          | 0                             | 0      | 14     |  |  |
| Volusia    | 49                              | 61           | 59     | 325        | 61                            | 39     | 594    |  |  |
| Wakulla    | 2                               | 4            | 0      | 12         | 0                             | 2      | 20     |  |  |
| Walton     | 12                              | 9            | 5      | 29         | 6                             | 2      | 63     |  |  |
| Washington | 2                               | 3            | 0      | 9          | 3                             | 1      | 18     |  |  |
| Florida    | 2,820                           | 2,370        | 1,899  | 11,880     | 2,620                         | 1,156  | 22,745 |  |  |

### Table III-3c. All cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

\*Note: Cost burdened households are those with a housing burden of 40 percent or more of income and household income between 20 percent and 60 percent of adjusted area median.

Chart III-4 shows the statewide distribution of all cost burdened renter households by percentage of income spent on rent and income range.





As Table III-3 and Chart III-4 demonstrate, most of the cost burdened households pay more than 50 percent of their income for rent and utilities. Sixty-six percent of the 317,199 cost burdened households (209,193 households) had a cost burden of 50 percent or more. Not surprisingly, households with cost burdens are most likely to fall within the lowest income ranges. Of the total cost burdened renter households, over 62 percent (197,902) had incomes between 20 and 39 percent of AMI. Finally, these trends tend to converge: the lowest income households tend to have the highest cost burdens. Eighty percent of cost burdened households in the 20-39 percent of AMI category have cost burdens of 50 percent or more, comprising 75 percent of all the households with a 50 percent or greater cost burden. Clearly, the greatest need for housing lies with households of incomes in the 20-39 percent of AMI paying 50 percent or more of their income toward rent followed by households in the 40-49 percent income category.

The distribution of incomes and cost burdens for multi-family cost burdened renters is similar to that of the larger group of all cost burdened households. Table III-4 on the following pages shows the number of multi-family cost burdened renter households in each county by the level of cost burden and the percentage of their income paid toward rent.

|                   | Households, 2001 |               |               |                             |               |              |             |  |
|-------------------|------------------|---------------|---------------|-----------------------------|---------------|--------------|-------------|--|
|                   | Cost             | burden 40-49  | 9%            | Cos                         | t burden 50+  | %            |             |  |
|                   | Percent of       | area median   | income        | Percent of                  | area median   | income       |             |  |
| County            | 20-39%           | 40-49%        | 50-60%        | 20-39%                      | 40-49%        | 50-60%       | Total       |  |
|                   |                  |               |               |                             |               |              |             |  |
| Alachua           | 474              | 283           | 262           | 1,395                       | 102           | 60           | 2,576       |  |
| Baker             | 1                | 0             | 2             | 8                           | 0             | 0            | 11          |  |
| Bay               | 132              | 108           | 165           | 423                         | 88            | 99           | 1,015       |  |
| Bradford          | 14               | 14            | 5             | 28                          | 1             | 0            | 62          |  |
| Brevard           | 416              | 317           | 275           | 2,138                       | 261           | 47           | 3,454       |  |
| Broward           | 1,807            | 2,477         | 2,558         | 10,034                      | 2,615         | 1,427        | 20,918      |  |
| Calhoun           | 5                | 0             | 0             | 4                           | 0             | 0            | 9           |  |
| Charlotte         | 23               | 25            | 32            | 73                          | 27            | 11           | 191         |  |
| Citrus            | 0                | 0             | 0             | 142                         | 13            | 0            | 155         |  |
| Clay              | 110              | 88            | 172           | 334                         | 75            | 0            | 779         |  |
| Collier           | 54               | 134           | 230           | 682                         | 250           | 140          | 1,490       |  |
| Columbia          | 35               | 36            | 12            | 70                          | 4             | 0            | 157         |  |
| DeSoto            | 4                | 0             | 1             | 55                          | 5             | 1            | 66          |  |
| Dixie             | 2                | 0             | 0             | 1                           | 0             | 0            | 3           |  |
| Duval             | 1,667            | 1,404         | 958           | 4,381                       | 1,093         | 382          | 9,885       |  |
| Escambia          | 233              | 256           | 187           | 996                         | 221           | 27           | 1,920       |  |
| Flagler           | 2                | 3             | 2             | 18                          | 2             | 3            | 30          |  |
| Franklin          | 4                | 0             | 0             | 4                           | 0             | 0            | 8           |  |
| Gadsden           | 23               | 0             | 0             | 21                          | 0             | 0            | 44          |  |
| Gilchrist         | 3                | 0             | 1             | 2                           | 0             | 0            | 6           |  |
| Glades            | 0                | 0             | 0             | 4                           | 1             | 0            | 5           |  |
| Gulf              | 11               | 1             | 0             | 5                           | 0             | 0            | 17          |  |
| Hamilton          | 8                | 2             | 0             | 5                           | 0             | 0            | 15          |  |
| Hardee            | 4                | 0             | 1             | 48                          | 3             | 2            | 58          |  |
| Hendry            | 4                | 1             | 0             | 55                          | 5             | 1            | 66          |  |
| Hernando          | 25               | 66            | 0             | 79                          | 17            | 21           | 208         |  |
| Highlands         | 31               | 11            | 0             | 156                         | 33            | 0            | 231         |  |
| Hillsborough      | 1,358            | 2,451         | 1,570         | 7,746                       | 1,519         | 491          | 15,135      |  |
| Holmes            | 7                | 0             | 1             | 5                           | 0             | 0            | 13          |  |
| Indian River      | 20               | 39            | 39            | 193                         | 50            | 47           | 388         |  |
| Jackson           | 50               | 5             | 0             | 25                          | 0             | 0            | 80          |  |
| Jefferson         | 14               | 1             | 0             | 13                          | 0             | 0            | 28          |  |
| Lafavette         | 1                | 1             | 0             | 3                           | 0             | 0            | 5           |  |
| Lake              | 345              | 58            | 0             | 311                         | 0             | 31           | 745         |  |
| Lee               | 93               | 225           | 231           | 1.096                       | 287           | 276          | 2.208       |  |
| Leon              | 432              | 258           | 237           | 1,265                       | 92            | 53           | 2,337       |  |
| Levy              | 0                | 0             | 0             | 60                          | 0             | 0            | 60          |  |
| Liberty           | 0                | 0             | 0             | 0                           | 0             | 0            | 0           |  |
| Madison           | 22               | 4             | 0             | 15                          | 0             | 0            | 41          |  |
| Manatee           | 166              | 265           | 282           | 909                         | 197           | 90           | 1.909       |  |
| Marion            | 101              | 26            | 106           | 336                         | 68            | 119          | 756         |  |
| Martin            | 76               | 21            | 60            | 243                         | 120           | 0            | 520         |  |
| Miami-Dade        | 4.180            | 2.962         | 2.449         | 19.030                      | 4.358         | 1.990        | 34.969      |  |
| *Note: Cost burde | ened household   | s are those w | rith a housin | g burden of 40 percent or n | nore of incon | ne and house | hold income |  |

# Table III-4a. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and percent income\*

|            | Households, 2001              |              |        |           |                               |        |         |  |
|------------|-------------------------------|--------------|--------|-----------|-------------------------------|--------|---------|--|
|            | Cost                          | burden 40-49 | %      | Co        | st burden 50                  | +%     |         |  |
|            | Percent of area median income |              |        | Percent o | Percent of area median income |        |         |  |
| County     | 20-39%                        | 40-49%       | 50-60% | 20-39%    | 40-49%                        | 50-60% | Total   |  |
| Monroe     | 11                            | 28           | 45     | 128       | 46                            | 26     | 284     |  |
| Nassau     | 22                            | 13           | 28     | 55        | 16                            | 0      | 134     |  |
| Okaloosa   | 119                           | 78           | 29     | 356       | 49                            | 25     | 656     |  |
| Okeechobee | 2                             | 2            | 0      | 4         | 0                             | 0      | 8       |  |
| Orange     | 1,453                         | 2,929        | 2,442  | 6,885     | 2,191                         | 674    | 16,574  |  |
| Osceola    | 0                             | 300          | 136    | 778       | 486                           | 72     | 1,772   |  |
| Palm Beach | 1,118                         | 964          | 1,026  | 4,086     | 1,280                         | 845    | 9,319   |  |
| Pasco      | 241                           | 237          | 165    | 715       | 35                            | 27     | 1,420   |  |
| Pinellas   | 1,226                         | 1,428        | 1,097  | 5,246     | 952                           | 386    | 10,335  |  |
| Polk       | 309                           | 191          | 247    | 1,315     | 308                           | 163    | 2,533   |  |
| Putnam     | 69                            | 0            | 11     | 71        | 3                             | 0      | 154     |  |
| St. Johns  | 46                            | 66           | 42     | 307       | 29                            | 47     | 537     |  |
| St. Lucie  | 98                            | 86           | 27     | 104       | 65                            | 0      | 380     |  |
| Santa Rosa | 34                            | 37           | 26     | 142       | 31                            | 4      | 274     |  |
| Sarasota   | 96                            | 245          | 221    | 942       | 275                           | 91     | 1,870   |  |
| Seminole   | 282                           | 770          | 262    | 1,893     | 822                           | 125    | 4,154   |  |
| Sumter     | 0                             | 0            | 0      | 84        | 7                             | 0      | 91      |  |
| Suwannee   | 25                            | 0            | 4      | 28        | 0                             | 0      | 57      |  |
| Taylor     | 15                            | 3            | 3      | 18        | 1                             | 0      | 40      |  |
| Union      | 2                             | 3            | 1      | 5         | 0                             | 0      | 11      |  |
| Volusia    | 263                           | 325          | 282    | 1,819     | 400                           | 190    | 3,279   |  |
| Wakulla    | 3                             | 1            | 1      | 8         | 0                             | 0      | 13      |  |
| Walton     | 10                            | 7            | 12     | 31        | 7                             | 7      | 74      |  |
| Washington | 2                             | 1            | 1      | 3         | 1                             | 0      | 8       |  |
| Florida    | 17,403                        | 19,256       | 15,946 | 77,434    | 18,511                        | 8,000  | 156,550 |  |

## Table III-4a. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and percent income (continued)\*

|                   | Change in households, 2001-2002 |                 |             |                  |           |               |               |            |  |  |
|-------------------|---------------------------------|-----------------|-------------|------------------|-----------|---------------|---------------|------------|--|--|
|                   | Cost                            | t burden 40-49  | %           |                  | C         | ost burden 50 | )+%           |            |  |  |
|                   | Percent o                       | f area median i | income      |                  | Percent   | of area medi  | an income     |            |  |  |
| County            | 20-39%                          | 40-49%          | 50-60%      |                  | 20-39%    | 40-49%        | 50-60%        | Total      |  |  |
|                   |                                 |                 |             |                  |           |               |               |            |  |  |
| Alachua           | 7                               | 4               | 4           |                  | 21        | 1             | 1             | 38         |  |  |
| Baker             | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 0          |  |  |
| Bay               | 4                               | 2               | 2           |                  | 5         | 1             | 2             | 16         |  |  |
| Bradford          | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 0          |  |  |
| Brevard           | 6                               | 2               | 4           |                  | 37        | 5             | 1             | 55         |  |  |
| Broward           | 24                              | 27              | 29          |                  | 140       | 37            | 20            | 277        |  |  |
| Calhoun           | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 0          |  |  |
| Charlotte         | 2                               | 1               | 0           |                  | 2         | 1             | 1             | 7          |  |  |
| Citrus            | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 2         | 1             | 0             | 3          |  |  |
| Clay              | 6                               | 2               | 3           |                  | 8         | 4             | 0             | 23         |  |  |
| Collier           | 0                               | 2               | 4           |                  | 16        | 5             | 2             | 29         |  |  |
| Columbia          | 2                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 2         | 0             | 0             | 4          |  |  |
| DeSoto            | 0                               | 0               | 1           |                  | 0         | 1             | 0             | 2          |  |  |
| Dixie             | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 1         | 0             | 0             | 1          |  |  |
| Duval             | 17                              | 11              | 9           |                  | 50        | 8             | 3             | 98         |  |  |
| Escambia          | 1                               | 2               | 1           |                  | 7         | 2             | 1             | 14         |  |  |
| Flagler           | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 1         | 0             | 0             | 1          |  |  |
| Franklin          | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 0          |  |  |
| Gadsden           | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 0          |  |  |
| Gilchrist         | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 0          |  |  |
| Glades            | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 0          |  |  |
| Gulf              | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 1         | 0             | 0             | 1          |  |  |
| Hamilton          | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 0          |  |  |
| Hardee            | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 1             | 1          |  |  |
| Hendry            | 0                               | 1               | 0           |                  | 1         | 1             | 0             | 3          |  |  |
| Hernando          | 0                               | 3               | 0           |                  | 3         | 1             | 0             | 7          |  |  |
| Highlands         | 1                               | 1               | 0           |                  | 1         | 1             | 0             | 4          |  |  |
| Hillsborough      | 23                              | 24              | 15          |                  | 115       | 19            | 5             | 201        |  |  |
| Holmes            | 1                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 1          |  |  |
| Indian River      | 1                               | 1               | 0           |                  | 2         | 1             | 0             | 5          |  |  |
| Jackson           | 2                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 2          |  |  |
| Jefferson         | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 0          |  |  |
| Lafayette         | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 0          |  |  |
| Lake              | 8                               | 1               | 0           |                  | 7         | 0             | 1             | 17         |  |  |
| Lee               | 4                               | 5               | 4           |                  | 25        | 6             | 5             | 49         |  |  |
| Leon              | 8                               | 3               | 5           |                  | 26        | 2             | 2             | 46         |  |  |
| Levy              | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 0          |  |  |
| Liberty           | 0                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 0          |  |  |
| Madison           | 1                               | 0               | 0           |                  | 0         | 0             | 0             | 1          |  |  |
| Manatee           | 2                               | 3               | 4           |                  | 14        | 3             | 3             | 29         |  |  |
| Marion            | 4                               | 1               | 4           |                  | 9         | 2             | 3             | 23         |  |  |
| Martin            | 3                               | 1               | 2           |                  | 7         | 3             | 0             | 16         |  |  |
| Miami-Dade        | 43                              | 21              | 21          |                  | 212       | 45            | 22            | 364        |  |  |
| *Note: Cost burde | ened household                  | ds are those wi | th a housin | g burden of 40 p | ercent or | more of inco  | me and househ | old income |  |  |
| between 20 percen | t and 60 perce                  | ent of adjusted | area media  | n.               |           |               |               |            |  |  |

# Table III-4b. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|            | Change in households, 2001-2002 |                    |        |         |              |           |       |  |
|------------|---------------------------------|--------------------|--------|---------|--------------|-----------|-------|--|
|            | Cost b                          | Cost burden 40-49% |        |         | ost burden 5 | 0+%       |       |  |
|            | Percent of                      | area median        | income | Percent | of area medi | an income |       |  |
| County     | 20-39%                          | 40-49%             | 50-60% | 20-39%  | 40-49%       | 50-60%    | Total |  |
| Monroe     | 0                               | 0                  | 0      | 1       | 1            | 0         | 2     |  |
| Nassau     | 1                               | 0                  | 1      | 2       | 0            | 0         |       |  |
| Okaloosa   | 2                               | 3                  | 0      | 5       | 1            | 1         | 12    |  |
| Okeechobee | 0                               | 0                  | 0      | 0       | 0            | 0         | 12    |  |
| Orange     | 28                              | 58                 | 43     | 140     | 48           | 19        | 336   |  |
| Osceola    | 0                               | 7                  | 7      | 25      | 11           | 4         | 54    |  |
| Palm Beach | 17                              | 17                 | 18     | 76      | 23           | 17        | 168   |  |
| Pasco      | 0                               | 2                  | 2      | 12      | 1            | 0         | 17    |  |
| Pinellas   | 11                              | 8                  | - 6    | 31      | 5            | 3         | 64    |  |
| Polk       | 5                               | 1                  | 3      | 20      | 7            | 3         | 39    |  |
| Putnam     | 1                               | 0                  | 0      | 1       | 0            | 0         | 2     |  |
| St. Johns  | 3                               | 0                  | 1      | 9       | 2            | 2         | 17    |  |
| St. Lucie  | 3                               | 2                  | 0      | 2       | 1            | 0         | 8     |  |
| Santa Rosa | 0                               | 0                  | 1      | 1       | 1            | 0         | 3     |  |
| Sarasota   | 1                               | 3                  | 2      | 10      | 6            | 1         | 23    |  |
| Seminole   | 7                               | 14                 | 4      | 46      | 22           | 2         | 95    |  |
| Sumter     | 0                               | 0                  | 0      | 2       | 0            | 0         | 2     |  |
| Suwannee   | 1                               | 0                  | 0      | 0       | 0            | 0         | 1     |  |
| Taylor     | 0                               | 0                  | 0      | 0       | 0            | 0         | 0     |  |
| Union      | 0                               | 0                  | 0      | 0       | 0            | 0         | 0     |  |
| Volusia    | 4                               | 4                  | 3      | 23      | 4            | 4         | 42    |  |
| Wakulla    | 0                               | 0                  | 0      | 0       | 0            | 0         | 0     |  |
| Walton     | 0                               | 0                  | 0      | 3       | 0            | 1         | 4     |  |
| Washington | 0                               | 0                  | 0      | 0       | 0            | 0         | 0     |  |
| Florida    | 254                             | 237                | 203    | 1,124   | 283          | 130       | 2,231 |  |

## Table III-4b. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|              | Change in households, 2002-2007 |              |        |         |              |           |       |  |  |
|--------------|---------------------------------|--------------|--------|---------|--------------|-----------|-------|--|--|
|              | Cost                            | burden 40-49 | %      | Co      |              |           |       |  |  |
|              | Percent of                      | area median  | income | Percent | of area medi | an income |       |  |  |
| County       | 20-39%                          | 40-49%       | 50-60% | 20-39%  | 40-49%       | 50-60%    | Total |  |  |
|              |                                 |              |        |         |              |           |       |  |  |
| Alachua      | 36                              | 21           | 22     | 123     | 10           | 9         | 221   |  |  |
| Baker        | 0                               | 1            | 0      | 2       | 1            | 1         | 5     |  |  |
| Bay          | 9                               | 4            | 5      | 36      | 4            | 7         | 65    |  |  |
| Bradford     | 1                               | 0            | 0      | 2       | 1            | 0         | 4     |  |  |
| Brevard      | 31                              | 22           | 24     | 163     | 24           | 8         | 272   |  |  |
| Broward      | 121                             | 139          | 153    | 753     | 192          | 102       | 1,460 |  |  |
| Calhoun      | 0                               | 0            | 0      | 0       | 0            | 0         | 0     |  |  |
| Charlotte    | 1                               | 2            | 2      | 7       | 3            | 1         | 16    |  |  |
| Citrus       | 0                               | 0            | 0      | 13      | 2            | 0         | 15    |  |  |
| Clay         | 30                              | 6            | 21     | 43      | 23           | 0         | 123   |  |  |
| Collier      | 5                               | 11           | 19     | 88      | 31           | 15        | 169   |  |  |
| Columbia     | 5                               | 2            | 1      | 9       | 2            | 0         | 19    |  |  |
| DeSoto       | 1                               | 0            | 0      | 2       | 0            | 0         | 3     |  |  |
| Dixie        | 0                               | 0            | 0      | 0       | 0            | 0         | 0     |  |  |
| Duval        | 79                              | 56           | 43     | 246     | 37           | 16        | 477   |  |  |
| Escambia     | 7                               | 9            | 11     | 40      | 15           | 3         | 85    |  |  |
| Flagler      | 1                               | 1            | 0      | 4       | 1            | 0         | 7     |  |  |
| Franklin     | 0                               | 0            | 0      | 0       | 0            | 0         | 0     |  |  |
| Gadsden      | 1                               | 0            | 0      | 1       | 0            | 0         | 2     |  |  |
| Gilchrist    | 1                               | 0            | 0      | 1       | 0            | 0         | 2     |  |  |
| Glades       | 0                               | 0            | 0      | 1       | 0            | 0         | 1     |  |  |
| Gulf         | 0                               | 0            | 0      | 0       | 0            | 0         | 0     |  |  |
| Hamilton     | 3                               | 0            | 0      | 3       | 0            | 0         | 6     |  |  |
| Hardee       | 0                               | 0            | 1      | 0       | 1            | 0         | 2     |  |  |
| Hendry       | 1                               | 0            | 0      | 2       | 0            | 0         | 3     |  |  |
| Hernando     | 2                               | 7            | 0      | 9       | 2            | 4         | 24    |  |  |
| Highlands    | 4                               | 1            | 0      | 9       | 5            | 0         | 19    |  |  |
| Hillsborough | 121                             | 123          | 78     | 599     | 86           | 32        | 1,039 |  |  |
| Holmes       | 0                               | 0            | 0      | 0       | 0            | 0         | 0     |  |  |
| Indian River | 2                               | 2            | 1      | 18      | 5            | 3         | 31    |  |  |
| Jackson      | 0                               | 0            | 0      | 1       | 0            | 0         | 1     |  |  |
| Jefferson    | 0                               | 0            | 0      | 1       | 0            | 0         | 1     |  |  |
| Lafayette    | 0                               | 0            | 0      | 0       | 0            | 0         | 0     |  |  |
| Lake         | 40                              | 4            | 0      | 39      | 0            | 6         | 89    |  |  |
| Lee          | 17                              | 20           | 20     | 111     | 28           | 23        | 219   |  |  |
| Leon         | 34                              | 22           | 25     | 136     | 12           | 12        | 241   |  |  |
| Levy         | 0                               | 0            | 0      | 5       | 0            | 0         | 5     |  |  |
| Liberty      | 0                               | 0            | 0      | 0       | 0            | 0         | 0     |  |  |
| Madison      | 0                               | 0            | 0      | 0       | 0            | 0         | 0     |  |  |
| Manatee      | 16                              | 20           | 16     | 71      | 14           | 11        | 148   |  |  |
| Marion       | 14                              | 5            | 9      | 38      | 6            | 11        | 83    |  |  |
| Martin       | 9                               | 4            | 7      | 25      | 12           | 0         | 57    |  |  |
|              |                                 |              |        |         |              |           |       |  |  |

## Table III-4c. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|                                   |                                  | Change in households, 2002-2007 |                            |  |               |              |        |  |  |  |
|-----------------------------------|----------------------------------|---------------------------------|----------------------------|--|---------------|--------------|--------|--|--|--|
|                                   | Cost l                           | ourden 40-49                    | %                          | Co   | ost burden 50 | )+%          |        |  |  |  |
|                                   | Percent of                       | area median                     | income                     | Percent  | of area media | an income    |        |  |  |  |
| County                            | 20-39%                           | 40-49%                          | 50-60%                     | 20-39%   | 40-49%        | 50-60%       | Total  |  |  |  |
|                                   |                                  |                                 |                            |  |               |              |        |  |  |  |
| Monroe                            | 0                                | 0                               | 1                          | 3  | 0             | 2            | 6      |  |  |  |
| Nassau                            | 6                                | 1                               | 3                          | 6  | 4             | 0            | 20     |  |  |  |
| Okaloosa                          | 9                                | 6                               | 2                          | 37   | 7             | 2            | 63     |  |  |  |
| Okeechobee                        | 0                                | 0                               | 0                          | 0  | 0             | 0            | 0      |  |  |  |
| Orange                            | 152                              | 283                             | 210                        | 722  | 231           | 97           | 1,695  |  |  |  |
| Osceola                           | 0                                | 30                              | 35                         | 118  | 62            | 18           | 263    |  |  |  |
| Palm Beach                        | 88                               | 76                              | 79                         | 379  | 112           | 80           | 814    |  |  |  |
| Pasco                             | 15                               | 15                              | 14                         | 70   | 4             | 1            | 119    |  |  |  |
| Pinellas                          | 57                               | 32                              | 19                         | 166  | 26            | 16           | 316    |  |  |  |
| Polk                              | 19                               | 8                               | 15                         | 88   | 32            | 11           | 173    |  |  |  |
| Putnam                            | 4                                | 0                               | 1                          | 4  | 0             | 0            | 9      |  |  |  |
| St. Johns                         | 8                                | 5                               | 3                          | 38   | 6             | 5            | 65     |  |  |  |
| St. Lucie                         | 8                                | 14                              | 2                          | 9  | 4             | 0            | 37     |  |  |  |
| Santa Rosa                        | 3                                | 4                               | 3                          | 19   | 4             | 1            | 34     |  |  |  |
| Sarasota                          | 7                                | 8                               | 14                         | 52   | 24            | 3            | 108    |  |  |  |
| Seminole                          | 34                               | 77                              | 23                         | 239  | 109           | 13           | 495    |  |  |  |
| Sumter                            | 0                                | 0                               | 0                          | 12   | 2             | 0            | 14     |  |  |  |
| Suwannee                          | 4                                | 0                               | 0                          | 6  | 0             | 0            | 10     |  |  |  |
| Taylor                            | 1                                | 0                               | 0                          | 0  | 0             | 0            | 1      |  |  |  |
| Union                             | 1                                | 0                               | 0                          | 0  | 0             | 0            | 1      |  |  |  |
| Volusia                           | 25                               | 19                              | 19                         | 129  | 30            | 13           | 235    |  |  |  |
| Wakulla                           | 1                                | 0                               | 0                          | 1  | 0             | 0            | 2      |  |  |  |
| Walton                            | 1                                | 1                               | 1                          | 2  | 1             | 1            | 7      |  |  |  |
| Washington                        | 0                                | 0                               | 0                          | 0  | 0             | 0            | 0      |  |  |  |
| Florida                           | 1,260                            | 1,175                           | 1,018                      | 5,809  | 1,398         | 631          | 11,291 |  |  |  |
| *Note: Cost bu<br>household incom | urdened househ<br>e between 20 p | olds are thos<br>bercent and 6  | e with a ho<br>0 percent o | busing burden of 40 perce<br>f adjusted area median. | ent or more c | f income and |        |  |  |  |

## Table III-4c. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

Chart III-5 shows the statewide distribution of multi-family cost burdened households by percentage of income spent on rent and income range.





In a similar trend to that of all cost burdened households, nearly one-half of all multifamily cost burdened households in the target income range have an income of 20-39 percent of AMI and pay over 50 percent of income toward rent. About 15 percent of the households with cost burdens have incomes of 50-60 percent of AMI, a total of 23,946 households. Of these, 5 percent or 8,000 pay more than 50 percent of their income toward rent. Again, the largest numbers of households with cost burdens, and particularly with cost burden of greater than 50 percent, are in the low end of the income distribution, followed by those households.

In 2001 a number of counties have over one-half of their cost burdened multi-family renter households in the 20-39 percent of AMI category and paying more than 50 percent of income toward rent. Among large counties, Miami-Dade, Hillsborough and Pinellas exceed 50 percent and Broward is close at 48 percent. Medium size counties in this category include Alachua, Brevard, Citrus, Escambia, Leon, Okaloosa, Pasco, Polk, St. Johns, Santa Rosa, Sarasota and Volusia. Thirteen small counties have half or more of their cost burdened households falling in the 20-39 percent of AMI and paying more than 50 percent category. See Tables 1 and 2 in the Cost Burden Appendix that follows this section for a listing of the percentages of cost burdened households in each income and cost burden category by county.

While the use of percentages masks the obvious differences in the size of the cost burden numbers across counties, they do show that the distribution of need varies across counties. Some counties may require deeper subsidies to address the largest share of their cost burden needs.

**Household Size**: Household size is another factor to be considered in determining housing needs. This analysis includes three categories of household size: 1-2, 3-4, and 5-or-more persons per household. Table III-5 on the following pages shows the number of cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size in Florida counties.

|                          |         | Households, 2001 |         |             |               |          |        |  |  |  |  |
|--------------------------|---------|------------------|---------|-------------|---------------|----------|--------|--|--|--|--|
|                          | Cost    | burden 40-49     | %       | C           | Cost burden 5 | 0%       |        |  |  |  |  |
|                          | Но      | usehold size     |         |             | Household si  | ze       |        |  |  |  |  |
| County                   | 1-2     | 3-4              | 5+      | 1-2         | 3-4           | 5+       | Total  |  |  |  |  |
| Alaahua                  | 1 1 4 7 | 100              | 50      | 2 125       | 262           | 27       | 2 706  |  |  |  |  |
| Daltar                   | 1,147   | 102              | 32      | 2,123       | 203           | 27       | 3,790  |  |  |  |  |
| Dakei                    | 4/      | 20               | 9       | 1 099       | 33            | 10       | 204    |  |  |  |  |
| Day<br>Drodford          | /44     | 213              | 03      | 1,000       | 417           | 12       | 2,013  |  |  |  |  |
| Draward                  | 1 612   | 32               | 210     | 19<br>רדר כ | 1 1 2 2       | 217      | 231    |  |  |  |  |
| Dievalu                  | 1,013   | 2 256            | 1 070   | 3,///       | 1,123         | 1 265    | 27.569 |  |  |  |  |
| Calhoun                  | 8,039   | 5,230            | 1,079   | 17,907      | 3,342         | 1,003    | 37,308 |  |  |  |  |
| Charlotta                | 2.9     | 11               | 4       | 764         | 0             | 2        | 1 504  |  |  |  |  |
| Citrus                   | 125     | 1/0              | 61      | 704         | 130           | <u> </u> | 1,394  |  |  |  |  |
| Cluus                    | 123     | 207              | 52      | /14         | 242           | 30       | 1,170  |  |  |  |  |
| Clay                     | 438     | 207              | 32      | 448         | 243           | 212      | 1,503  |  |  |  |  |
| Collier                  | 083     | 237              | 33      | 1,839       | 537           | 212      | 3,545  |  |  |  |  |
|                          | 185     | 64               | 19      | 242         | 52            |          | 020    |  |  |  |  |
| Desolo                   | 37      | 67               | 44      | 103         | 97            | 0        | 5/4    |  |  |  |  |
| Dixie                    | 4 214   | 2 020            | 424     | 7 104       | 1 742         |          | 15 091 |  |  |  |  |
| Duvai                    | 4,214   | 2,020            | 434     | 7,104       | 1,742         | 407      | 13,981 |  |  |  |  |
| Escambla<br>Elector      | 1,280   | 6//              | 89      | 2,786       | /95           | 262      | 5,889  |  |  |  |  |
| Flagler<br>Engelslin     | 115     | 52               | 1       | 224         | 83            | 24       | 499    |  |  |  |  |
| Franklin                 | 20      | 11               | 4       | 30          | 8             | 2        | 8/     |  |  |  |  |
| Gadsden                  | 100     | 43               | /       | 130         | 19            | 1        | 300    |  |  |  |  |
| Glichfist                | 23      | 0                | 12      | 23          | 0             | 0        | 08     |  |  |  |  |
| Glades                   | 15      | 19               | 12      | 20          | 18            | 2        | 92     |  |  |  |  |
| Gulf                     | 33      | 11               | /       | 42          | 17            | 2        | 112    |  |  |  |  |
| Hamilton                 | 35      | 10               | 4       | 25          | 4             | 3        | 83     |  |  |  |  |
| Hardee                   | 46      | 49               | 33      | 88          | 81            | 1        | 304    |  |  |  |  |
| Hendry                   | 03      | /8               | 48      | 113         | 101           | 0        | 409    |  |  |  |  |
| Hernando                 | 235     | 1/6              | 50      | 967         | 85            | 28       | 1,541  |  |  |  |  |
| Highlands                | ( 071   | 153              | 98      | 309         | 1/5           | 19       | 1,013  |  |  |  |  |
| Hillsborougn             | 0,0/1   | 1,398            | 0/3     | 11,131      | 2,390         | /99      | 22,870 |  |  |  |  |
| Holmes                   | 290     | 13               | 3       | 4/          | 12            | 10       | 138    |  |  |  |  |
| Indian Kiver             | 380     | 143              | 04      | 843         | 500           | 08       | 1,800  |  |  |  |  |
| Jackson                  | 155     | 39               | 20      | 101         | 30            | 0        | 423    |  |  |  |  |
| Jefferson<br>L ofovietto | 33      | 10               | 0       | 43          | 15            | 1        | 112    |  |  |  |  |
| Lalayette                | 729     | 212              | 2<br>57 | 18          | 4             | 4        | 2 002  |  |  |  |  |
| Lake                     | 1 204   | 512              | 249     | 2 242       | 1 209         | 43       | 2,092  |  |  |  |  |
| Lee                      | 1,394   | 3/4              | 248     | 3,243       | 1,208         | 254      | 0,921  |  |  |  |  |
| Leon                     | 1,130   | 202              | /0      | 2,193       | 321           | 30       | 3,938  |  |  |  |  |
| Levy<br>Liberta          | 32      | 54               | 19      | 190         | 40            | 11       | 532    |  |  |  |  |
| Liberty                  | 11      | 20               | 4       | 22          | 9             | <u> </u> | 52     |  |  |  |  |
| Manatag                  | 1.075   | 20               | 4       | 2 2 2 1 6   | 9             | 8        | <br>   |  |  |  |  |
| Marian                   | 1,075   | 200              | 207     | 2,216       | /31           | 297      | 5,110  |  |  |  |  |
| Martin                   | 000     | 399              | 162     | 1,455       | 381           | 108      | 3,3/1  |  |  |  |  |
| Miami Dada               | 303     | 243              | 2 100   | 8/3         | 12747         | <u> </u> | 1,/34  |  |  |  |  |
| ivitami-Dade             | 9,3/8   | 0,200            | 3,198   | 29,953      | 12,747        | 5,3/1    | 06,907 |  |  |  |  |

### Table III-5a. All cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size\*

|            |         |             |        | Households, 2001 | cholds, 2001 |        |         |  |
|------------|---------|-------------|--------|------------------|--------------|--------|---------|--|
|            | Cost bi | urden 40-49 | %      | С                | ost burden 5 | 0%     |         |  |
|            | Hou     | sehold size |        | ]                | Household si | ze     |         |  |
| County     | 1-2     | 3-4         | 5+     | 1-2              | 3-4          | 5+     | Total   |  |
| Monroe     | 305     | 136         | 27     | 845              | 314          | 127    | 1,754   |  |
| Nassau     | 136     | 93          | 27     | 162              | 89           | 35     | 542     |  |
| Okaloosa   | 684     | 449         | 112    | 1,289            | 484          | 282    | 3,300   |  |
| Okeechobee | 95      | 66          | 20     | 181              | 91           | 14     | 467     |  |
| Orange     | 6,487   | 2,003       | 707    | 10,261           | 3,272        | 704    | 23,434  |  |
| Osceola    | 716     | 250         | 173    | 1,750            | 542          | 49     | 3,480   |  |
| Palm Beach | 4,272   | 1,644       | 674    | 9,528            | 2,716        | 779    | 19,613  |  |
| Pasco      | 1,245   | 538         | 145    | 1,976            | 525          | 164    | 4,593   |  |
| Pinellas   | 5,081   | 1,622       | 554    | 10,709           | 1,859        | 385    | 20,210  |  |
| Polk       | 1,857   | 647         | 229    | 3,869            | 1,001        | 313    | 7,916   |  |
| Putnam     | 223     | 85          | 19     | 255              | 53           | 37     | 672     |  |
| St. Johns  | 342     | 186         | 3      | 663              | 305          | 82     | 1,581   |  |
| St. Lucie  | 405     | 230         | 332    | 934              | 442          | 222    | 2,565   |  |
| Santa Rosa | 305     | 183         | 28     | 646              | 233          | 82     | 1,477   |  |
| Sarasota   | 1,460   | 280         | 75     | 2,978            | 619          | 151    | 5,563   |  |
| Seminole   | 1,409   | 443         | 108    | 3,312            | 602          | 303    | 6,177   |  |
| Sumter     | 43      | 30          | 23     | 276              | 54           | 18     | 444     |  |
| Suwannee   | 113     | 35          | 9      | 118              | 24           | 18     | 317     |  |
| Taylor     | 58      | 22          | 5      | 68               | 13           | 10     | 176     |  |
| Union      | 30      | 10          | 5      | 40               | 12           | 8      | 105     |  |
| Volusia    | 1,807   | 423         | 252    | 4,517            | 1,223        | 283    | 8,505   |  |
| Wakulla    | 32      | 11          | 6      | 88               | 22           | 3      | 162     |  |
| Walton     | 132     | 36          | 11     | 183              | 82           | 20     | 464     |  |
| Washington | 44      | 28          | 8      | 87               | 39           | 6      | 212     |  |
| Florida    | 68,678  | 28,479      | 10,849 | 149,273          | 45,049       | 14,871 | 317,199 |  |

### Table III-5a. All cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|                  | Change in households, 2001-2002 |               |            |                          |                 |              |          |
|------------------|---------------------------------|---------------|------------|--------------------------|-----------------|--------------|----------|
|                  | Cost burden 40-49%              |               |            | (                        | Cost burden 50% |              |          |
|                  | Household size                  |               |            |                          | Household size  |              |          |
| County           | 1-2                             | 3-4           | 5+         | 1-2                      | 3-4             | 5+           | Total    |
| Alachua          | 17                              | 2             | 0          | 34                       | 1               | 0            | 57       |
| Dalsar           | 17                              | 2             | 0          | 34                       | 4               | 0            | 37       |
| Bay              | 15                              | 1             | 1          | 17                       |                 | 0            | 37       |
| Day<br>Bradford  | 13                              | 1             | 1          | 17                       | 2               | 1            | <u> </u> |
| Braufolu         | 2                               | 7             | 0          | 66                       | 16              | 1            | 112      |
| Broward          | 111                             | 20            | 6          | 281                      | 51              | 1            | 113      |
| Calhoun          | 2                               | 29            | 0          | 201                      | 51              | 10           | 494      |
| Charlotta        | 2                               | 0             | 2          | 19                       |                 | 0            | 28       |
| Citariotte       | 9                               | 4             | 3          | 16                       | 3               | 1            | 30       |
| Cluus            | 4                               | 1             |            | 10                       |                 | 0            | 23       |
| Clay             | 10                              | 3             | 1          | 1/                       | 4               | 1            | 44       |
| Columbia         | 10                              | <u> </u>      | 1          | 40                       | 10              |              | //       |
|                  | /                               | 1             | 1          | 8                        |                 | 1            | 19       |
| Desoto           | 2                               | 2             | 0          | l                        | 0               | 0            | 3        |
| Dixie            | 0                               | 0             | 0          | 1                        | 0               | 0            | l        |
|                  | 4/                              | 12            | 3          | 8/                       | 11              | 4            | 164      |
| Escambia         | 10                              | 4             | 0          | 32                       | 4               | 0            | 50       |
| Flagler          | 2                               | 3             | 0          | 11                       | 1               | 0            | 17       |
| Franklin         | 0                               | 0             | 0          | l                        | 0               | 0            | 1        |
| Gadsden          | 3                               | 0             | 0          | 3                        | l               | 0            | 1        |
| Gilchrist        | 0                               | 0             | 1          | l                        | 0               | 0            | 2        |
| Glades           | 0                               | 0             | 0          | 0                        | 0               | 0            | 0        |
| Gulf             | 2                               | 0             | 0          | 1                        | 0               | 0            | 3        |
| Hamilton         | 2                               | 0             | 0          | 1                        | 0               | 0            | 3        |
| Hardee           | 0                               | 0             | 0          | 1                        | 0               | 0            | 1        |
| Hendry           | 3                               | 1             | 1          | 3                        | 2               | 0            | 10       |
| Hernando         | 7                               | 3             | 0          | 26                       | 2               | 0            | 38       |
| Highlands        | 6                               | 0             | 2          | 6                        | 1               | 1            | 16       |
| Hillsborough     | 74                              | 10            | 6          | 170                      | 21              | 5            | 286      |
| Holmes           | 0                               | 1             | 0          | 3                        | 0               | 0            | 4        |
| Indian River     | 8                               | 1             | 0          | 14                       | . 5             | 0            | 28       |
| Jackson          | 4                               | 0             | 0          | 3                        | 2               | 0            | 9        |
| Jefferson        | 0                               | 0             | 0          | 0                        | 0               | 0            | 0        |
| Lafayette        | 0                               | 0             | 0          | 2                        | 0               | 0            | 2        |
| Lake             | 18                              | 4             | 2          | 20                       | 3               | 1            | 48       |
| Lee              | 31                              | 10            | 3          | 77                       | 17              | 3            | 141      |
| Leon             | 19                              | 5             | 1          | 52                       | 5               | 1            | 83       |
| Levy             | 2                               | 0             | 0          | 4                        | 0               | 1            | 7        |
| Liberty          | 0                               | 0             | 0          | 0                        | 0               | 0            | 0        |
| Madison          | 1                               | 1             | 0          | 0                        | 0               | 0            | 2        |
| Manatee          | 18                              | 5             | 2          | 40                       | 7               | 3            | 75       |
| Marion           | 14                              | 7             | 2          | 38                       | 9               | 1            | 71       |
| Martin           | 6                               | 2             | 0          | 18                       | 0               | 2            | 28       |
| Miami-Dade       | 106                             | 41            | 26         | 389                      | 94              | 38           | 694      |
| *Note: Cost burd | lened househol                  | lde are those | with a hou | sing burden of 40 percer | nt or more of   | income and h | ousehold |

# Table III-5b. All cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size (continued)\*
|            |         |             | Cha | nge in households, 200 | 1-2002        |     |       |
|------------|---------|-------------|-----|------------------------|---------------|-----|-------|
|            | Cost bı | ırden 40-49 | )%  | - (                    | Cost burden 5 | 0%  |       |
|            | Hou     | sehold size |     |                        | Household si  | ize |       |
| County     | 1-2     | 3-4         | 5+  | 1-2                    | 2 3-4         | 5+  | Total |
| Monroe     | 1       | 0           | 0   |                        | 3 1           | 0   | 10    |
| Nassau     | 5       | 2           | 0   | 2                      | 2 1           | 2   | 12    |
| Okaloosa   | 13      | 8           | 3   | 27                     | 7             | 7   | 65    |
| Okeechobee | 1       | 0           | 1   | 2                      | 2 0           | 0   | 4     |
| Orange     | 126     | 35          | 9   | 230                    | ) 55          | 8   | 463   |
| Osceola    | 21      | 6           | 5   | 50                     | ) 18          | 2   | 102   |
| Palm Beach | 77      | 18          | 7   | 184                    | 33            | 11  | 330   |
| Pasco      | 16      | 2           | 1   | 35                     | 5 7           | 1   | 62    |
| Pinellas   | 38      | 0           | 0   | 71                     | . 1           | -1  | 109   |
| Polk       | 25      | 4           | 1   | 67                     | 5             | 1   | 103   |
| Putnam     | 3       | 1           | 1   |                        | 6 0           | 0   | 8     |
| St. Johns  | 6       | 5           | 0   | 23                     | 6 6           | 2   | 42    |
| St. Lucie  | 11      | 5           | 7   | 25                     | 6 6           | 5   | 59    |
| Santa Rosa | 6       | 2           | 0   | 15                     | 5 2           | 0   | 25    |
| Sarasota   | 18      | 1           | 1   | 46                     | 5 3           | 1   | 70    |
| Seminole   | 30      | 7           | 1   | 88                     | 3 7           | 1   | 134   |
| Sumter     | 1       | 1           | 1   | 11                     | . 1           | 1   | 16    |
| Suwannee   | 4       | 0           | 0   | Δ                      | 1             | 0   | 9     |
| Taylor     | 2       | 0           | 0   | 2                      | 2 0           | 0   | 4     |
| Union      | 1       | 0           | 0   | 1                      | . 0           | 0   | 2     |
| Volusia    | 23      | 5           | 2   | 68                     | 8 14          | 4   | 116   |
| Wakulla    | 0       | 0           | 0   | 6                      | 5 1           | 0   | 7     |
| Walton     | 3       | 1           | 0   | 7                      | 2             | 0   | 13    |
| Washington | 0       | 1           | 0   | 3                      | 8 0           | 0   | 4     |
| Florida    | 1,038   | 268         | 104 | 2,488                  | 3 448         | 128 | 4,474 |

### Table III-5b. All cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|                  |              | Change in households, 2002-2007 |            |                           |                 |              |       |  |
|------------------|--------------|---------------------------------|------------|---------------------------|-----------------|--------------|-------|--|
|                  | Cost         | t burden 40-49                  | 9%         | C                         | Cost burden 50% |              |       |  |
|                  | Н            | ousehold size                   | •          | ]                         | Household si    | ze           |       |  |
| County           | 1-2          | 3-4                             | 5+         | 1-2                       | 3-4             | 5+           | Total |  |
|                  |              |                                 |            |                           |                 |              |       |  |
| Alachua          | 92           | 14                              | 4          | 201                       | 19              | 2            | 332   |  |
| Baker            | 6            | 1                               | 0          | 13                        | 1               | 4            | 25    |  |
| Bay              | 58           | 7                               | 2          | 97                        | 20              | 2            | 186   |  |
| Bradford         | 6            | 0                               | 0          | 7                         | 0               | 0            | 13    |  |
| Brevard          | 140          | 34                              | 13         | 335                       | 50              | 15           | 587   |  |
| Broward          | 582          | 136                             | 52         | 1,453                     | 243             | 74           | 2,540 |  |
| Calhoun          | 3            | 1                               | 0          | 7                         | 1               | 0            | 12    |  |
| Charlotte        | 47           | 15                              | 4          | 79                        | 9               | 7            | 161   |  |
| Citrus           | 17           | 4                               | 1          | 95                        | 8               | 3            | 128   |  |
| Clay             | 76           | 14                              | 3          | 81                        | 21              | 9            | 204   |  |
| Collier          | 76           | 22                              | 3          | 252                       | 44              | 17           | 414   |  |
| Columbia         | 23           | 6                               | 1          | 32                        | 3               | 1            | 66    |  |
| DeSoto           | 3            | 1                               | 1          | 7                         | 2               | 0            | 14    |  |
| Dixie            | 2            | 0                               | 1          | 1                         | 1               | 0            | 5     |  |
| Duval            | 226          | 62                              | 12         | 443                       | 54              | 14           | 811   |  |
| Escambia         | 65           | 18                              | 1          | 169                       | 18              | 5            | 276   |  |
| Flagler          | 23           | 9                               | 0          | 51                        | 11              | 8            | 102   |  |
| Franklin         | 5            | 1                               | 0          | 5                         | 0               | 0            | 11    |  |
| Gadsden          | 13           | 4                               | 1          | 13                        | 1               | 0            | 32    |  |
| Gilchrist        | 4            | 2                               | 1          | 3                         | 1               | 1            | 12    |  |
| Glades           | 1            | 2                               | 1          | 4                         | 1               | 0            | 9     |  |
| Gulf             | 0            | 1                               | 0          | 4                         | 0               | 0            | 5     |  |
| Hamilton         | 7            | 1                               | 0          | 6                         | 0               | 1            | 15    |  |
| Hardee           | 2            | 0                               | 0          | 3                         | 0               | 0            | 5     |  |
| Hendry           | 4            | 3                               | 2          | 8                         | 3               | 1            | 21    |  |
| Hernando         | 31           | 16                              | 4          | 129                       | 10              | 2            | 192   |  |
| Highlands        | 18           | 5                               | 3          | 32                        | 5               | 2            | 65    |  |
| Hillsborough     | 413          | 52                              | 22         | 925                       | 107             | 22           | 1,541 |  |
| Holmes           | 5            | 0                               | 0          | 1                         | 0               | 0            | 6     |  |
| Indian River     | 33           | 9                               | 3          | 91                        | 19              | 6            | 161   |  |
| Jackson          | 7            | 1                               | 0          | 11                        | 2               | 0            | 21    |  |
| Jefferson        | 3            | 0                               | 0          | 6                         | 1               | 0            | 10    |  |
| Lafavette        | 2            | 0                               | 0          | 3                         | 1               | 0            | 6     |  |
| Lake             | 87           | 28                              | 3          | 110                       | 7               | 2            | 237   |  |
| Lee              | 146          | 41                              | 13         | 374                       | 77              | 19           | 670   |  |
| Leon             | 112          | 19                              | 5          | 272                       | 27              | 3            | 438   |  |
| Levv             | 2            | 3                               | 1          | 27                        | 0               | 0            | 33    |  |
| Liberty          | 1            | 1                               | 0          | 1                         | 2               | 0            | 5     |  |
| Madison          | 4            | 0                               | 1          | 2                         | 0               | 1            | 8     |  |
| Manatee          | 92           | 28                              | 8          | 179                       | 35              | 16           | 358   |  |
| Marion           | 78           | 23                              | 8          | 208                       | 40              | 9            | 366   |  |
| Martin           | 29           | 13                              | 2          | 97                        | .0              | 6            | 155   |  |
| Miami-Dade       | 555          | 242                             | 100        | 2.087                     | 451             | 189          | 3 624 |  |
| *Natar Cast hund | lanad havaah | alda ara thaga                  | with a hou | aing hurden of 40 percent | t or more of    | income and h | 2,021 |  |

### Table III-5c. All cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|            |        |              | Cha | nge in households, 2002 | ouseholds, 2002-2007 |     |        |  |
|------------|--------|--------------|-----|-------------------------|----------------------|-----|--------|--|
|            | Cost b | ourden 40-49 | %   | 0                       | Cost burden 5        | 0%  |        |  |
|            | Hoi    | usehold size |     |                         | Household si         | ze  |        |  |
| County     | 1-2    | 3-4          | 5+  | 1-2                     | 3-4                  | 5+  | Total  |  |
| Monroe     | 15     | 3            | 1   | 39                      | 9                    | 4   | 71     |  |
| Nassau     | 22     | 8            | 2   | 23                      | 8                    | 2   | 65     |  |
| Okaloosa   | 60     | 24           | 4   | 134                     | 30                   | 13  | 265    |  |
| Okeechobee | 4      | 3            | 0   | 17                      | 7                    | 0   | 31     |  |
| Orange     | 633    | 171          | 52  | 1,192                   | 269                  | 51  | 2,368  |  |
| Osceola    | 116    | 27           | 17  | 269                     | 66                   | 6   | 501    |  |
| Palm Beach | 388    | 82           | 34  | 939                     | 142                  | 40  | 1,625  |  |
| Pasco      | 97     | 23           | 7   | 185                     | 26                   | 5   | 343    |  |
| Pinellas   | 166    | 3            | -2  | 374                     | -4                   | 1   | 538    |  |
| Polk       | 137    | 24           | 5   | 320                     | 39                   | 7   | 532    |  |
| Putnam     | 15     | 1            | 0   | 16                      | 0                    | 2   | 34     |  |
| St. Johns  | 37     | 20           | 0   | 113                     | 25                   | 7   | 202    |  |
| St. Lucie  | 39     | 14           | 20  | 119                     | 33                   | 12  | 237    |  |
| Santa Rosa | 39     | 18           | 2   | 102                     | 20                   | 7   | 188    |  |
| Sarasota   | 97     | 3            | 3   | 222                     | 19                   | 5   | 349    |  |
| Seminole   | 158    | 25           | 6   | 444                     | 43                   | 19  | 695    |  |
| Sumter     | 8      | 2            | 1   | 51                      | 2                    | 1   | 65     |  |
| Suwannee   | 15     | 5            | 1   | 19                      | 1                    | 0   | 41     |  |
| Taylor     | 4      | 0            | 0   | 0                       | 0                    | 0   | 4      |  |
| Union      | 9      | 1            | 0   | 4                       | 0                    | 0   | 14     |  |
| Volusia    | 141    | 17           | 11  | 344                     | 68                   | 13  | 594    |  |
| Wakulla    | 4      | 2            | 0   | 12                      | 2                    | 0   | 20     |  |
| Walton     | 21     | 4            | 1   | 24                      | 11                   | 2   | 63     |  |
| Washington | 2      | 3            | 0   | 7                       | 6                    | 0   | 18     |  |
| Florida    | 5,326  | 1,322        | 441 | 12,893                  | 2,125                | 638 | 22,745 |  |

# Table III-5c. All cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

\*Note: Cost burdened households are those with a housing burden of 40 percent or more of income and household income between 20 percent and 60 percent of adjusted area median.

Chart III-6 shows the statewide distribution of cost burdened households by percentage of income spent on rent and household size.





As Table III-5 and Chart III-6 indicate, 1-2 person households make up the bulk of renters with cost burdens. For all renters in 2001, a total of 217,951 1-2 person households had a cost burden, comprising over 68 percent of the cost burdened households. In comparison, the 2000 Census reported that 63 percent of Florida's renter households were composed of 1-2 person households. These 1-2 person households also comprise the largest share of severely burdened renter households, with 149,273 facing a cost burden of 50 percent or more. An additional 73,528 3-4 person households were cost burdened, as were 25,720 households of 5-ormore persons. The latter group (5-or-more person households) comprises about 8 percent of the total cost burdened households.

The predominance of 1-2 person households is even more pronounced among multifamily renter households. Table III-6 on the following pages shows the number of cost burdened multi-family renter households by cost burden and household size.

## Table III-6a. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size\*

|              | Households, 2001 |                |     |            |         |              |       |        |
|--------------|------------------|----------------|-----|------------|---------|--------------|-------|--------|
|              | Cos              | t burden 40-49 | 9%  |            |         |              |       |        |
|              | Н                | lousehold size |     |            | I       | Household si | ze    |        |
| County       | 1-2              | 3-4            | 5+  |            | 1-2     | 3-4          | 5+    | Total  |
|              |                  |                |     |            | 1 100   |              |       |        |
| Alachua      | 927              | 92             | 0   |            | 1,482   | 75           | 0     | 2,576  |
| Baker        | 3                | 0              | 0   |            | 7       | 1            | 0     | 11     |
| Bay          | 312              | 68             | 25  |            | 516     | 94           | 0     | 1,015  |
| Bradford     | 16               | 17             | 0   |            | 29      | 0            | 0     | 62     |
| Brevard      | 758              | 250            | 0   |            | 2,141   | 285          | 20    | 3,454  |
| Broward      | 4,850            | 1,675          | 317 | 1          | 1,553   | 2,043        | 480   | 20,918 |
| Calhoun      | 5                | 0              | 0   |            | 4       | 0            | 0     | 9      |
| Charlotte    | 18               | 62             | 0   |            | 111     | 0            | 0     | 191    |
| Citrus       | 0                | 0              | 0   |            | 155     | 0            | 0     | 155    |
| Clay         | 333              | 37             | 0   |            | 254     | 112          | 43    | 779    |
| Collier      | 338              | 80             | 0   |            | 836     | 172          | 64    | 1,490  |
| Columbia     | 38               | 45             | 0   |            | 74      | 0            | 0     | 157    |
| DeSoto       | 5                | 0              | 0   |            | 30      | 31           | 0     | 66     |
| Dixie        | 1                | 1              | 0   |            | 1       | 0            | 0     | 3      |
| Duval        | 2,787            | 1,138          | 104 |            | 4,897   | 826          | 133   | 9,885  |
| Escambia     | 520              | 156            | 0   |            | 1,155   | 89           | 0     | 1,920  |
| Flagler      | 4                | 3              | 0   |            | 16      | 6            | 1     | 30     |
| Franklin     | 4                | 0              | 0   |            | 4       | 0            | 0     | 8      |
| Gadsden      | 23               | 0              | 0   |            | 21      | 0            | 0     | 44     |
| Gilchrist    | 2                | 2              | 0   |            | 2       | 0            | 0     | 6      |
| Glades       | 0                | 0              | 0   |            | 3       | 2            | 0     | 5      |
| Gulf         | 12               | 0              | 0   |            | 5       | 0            | 0     | 17     |
| Hamilton     | 5                | 5              | 0   |            | 5       | 0            | 0     | 15     |
| Hardee       | 5                | 0              | 0   |            | 26      | 27           | 0     | 58     |
| Hendry       | 5                | 0              | 0   |            | 30      | 31           | 0     | 66     |
| Hernando     | 26               | 65             | 0   |            | 117     | 0            | 0     | 208    |
| Highlands    | 42               | 0              | 0   |            | 139     | 50           | 0     | 231    |
| Hillsborough | 4,614            | 604            | 161 |            | 8,146   | 1,269        | 341   | 15,135 |
| Holmes       | 4                | 4              | 0   |            | 5       | 0            | 0     | 13     |
| Indian River | 71               | 24             | 3   |            | 252     | 35           | 3     | 388    |
| Jackson      | 55               | 0              | 0   |            | 25      | 0            | 0     | 80     |
| Jefferson    | 15               | 0              | 0   |            | 13      | 0            | 0     | 28     |
| Lafavette    | 1                | 1              | 0   |            | 3       | 0            | 0     | 5      |
| Lake         | 345              | 58             | 0   |            | 342     | 0            | 0     | 745    |
| Lee          | 381              | 148            | 20  |            | 1.409   | 228          | 22    | 2.208  |
| Leon         | 844              | 83             | 0   |            | 1.341   | 69           | 0     | 2.337  |
| Levy         | 0                | 0              | 0   |            | 60      | 0            | 0     | 60     |
| Liberty      | 0                | 0              | 0   |            | 0       | 0            | 0     | 0      |
| Madison      | 13               | 13             | 0   |            | 15      | 0            | 0     | 41     |
| Manatee      | 587              | 126            | 0   |            | 1 1 2 5 | 71           | 0     | 1 909  |
| Marion       | 129              | 104            | 0   |            | 473     | , 1          | 50    | 756    |
| Martin       | 133              | 24             | 0   |            | 363     | 0            | 0     | 520    |
| Miami-Dade   | 5 656            | 3 000          | 935 | 1          | 8 348   | 5 609        | 1 421 | 34 969 |
|              | 1 11 1           | 11 11          |     | · 1 1 0.40 | 3,540   | 5,007        | 1,721 | 1 1 1  |

|            |        | Households, 2001 |       |        |                 |       |         |  |
|------------|--------|------------------|-------|--------|-----------------|-------|---------|--|
|            | Cost   | t burden 40-49   | 9%    | (      | Cost burden 50% |       |         |  |
|            | Н      | ousehold size    |       |        | Household si    | ze    |         |  |
| County     | 1-2    | 3-4              | 5+    | 1-2    | 3-4             | 5+    | Total   |  |
| Monroe     | 68     | 16               | 0     | 152    | 35              | 13    | 284     |  |
| Nassau     | 58     | 5                | 0     | 48     | 17              | 6     | 134     |  |
| Okaloosa   | 193    | 33               | 0     | 386    | 29              | 15    | 656     |  |
| Okeechobee | 3      | 1                | 0     | 4      | 0               | 0     | 8       |  |
| Orange     | 5,214  | 1,293            | 317   | 7,530  | 1,936           | 284   | 16,574  |  |
| Osceola    | 436    | 0                | 0     | 1,152  | 184             | 0     | 1,772   |  |
| Palm Beach | 2,423  | 576              | 109   | 5,136  | 934             | 141   | 9,319   |  |
| Pasco      | 459    | 184              | 0     | 688    | 89              | 0     | 1,420   |  |
| Pinellas   | 2,963  | 677              | 111   | 5,920  | 664             | 0     | 10,335  |  |
| Polk       | 633    | 114              | 0     | 1,611  | 161             | 14    | 2,533   |  |
| Putnam     | 39     | 41               | 0     | 74     | 0               | 0     | 154     |  |
| St. Johns  | 87     | 67               | 0     | 249    | 106             | 28    | 537     |  |
| St. Lucie  | 184    | 27               | 0     | 109    | 60              | 0     | 380     |  |
| Santa Rosa | 75     | 22               | 0     | 165    | 12              | 0     | 274     |  |
| Sarasota   | 553    | 0                | 9     | 1,167  | 126             | 15    | 1,870   |  |
| Seminole   | 1,110  | 204              | 0     | 2,502  | 247             | 91    | 4,154   |  |
| Sumter     | 0      | 0                | 0     | 91     | 0               | 0     | 91      |  |
| Suwannee   | 15     | 14               | 0     | 28     | 0               | 0     | 57      |  |
| Taylor     | 10     | 11               | 0     | 19     | 0               | 0     | 40      |  |
| Union      | 3      | 3                | 0     | 5      | 0               | 0     | 11      |  |
| Volusia    | 726    | 144              | 0     | 2,246  | 163             | 0     | 3,279   |  |
| Wakulla    | 5      | 0                | 0     | 8      | 0               | 0     | 13      |  |
| Walton     | 23     | 4                | 2     | 38     | 7               | 0     | 74      |  |
| Washington | 3      | 1                | 0     | 4      | 0               | 0     | 8       |  |
| Florida    | 39,170 | 11,322           | 2,113 | 84,865 | 15,895          | 3,185 | 156,550 |  |

## Table III-6a. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|   |              |      | Change in households, 2001-2002 |    |  |                 |              |    |       |
|---|--------------|------|---------------------------------|----|--|-----------------|--------------|----|-------|
| Household size   Household size   Total     County   1-2   3-4   5+   1-2   3-4   5+     Alachua   14   1   0   22   1   0   38     Baker   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   38     Bradford   0 <td< th=""><th></th><th>Cost</th><th>burden 40-49</th><th>9%</th><th></th><th colspan="3">Cost burden 50%</th><th></th></td<> |              | Cost | burden 40-49                    | 9% |  | Cost burden 50% |              |    |       |
| County   1-2   3-4   5+   1-2   3-4   5+   Total     Alachua   14   0   22   1   0   38     Baker   0   0   0   0   0   0   38     Baker   10   2   0   38   5   0   55     Broward   66   14   0   179   16   2   277     Calboun   0   0   0   0   0   0   7     Clarus   0   0   0   11   0   277   7     Calboun   0   0   0   11   0   273   27     Calumbia   2   0   0   11   0   23   23     Collier   6   0   0   1   0   0   12   29     Columbia   2   0   0   1   0   0   14     Dasite   0   |              | Н    | ousehold size                   |    |  | ]               | Household si | ze |       |
| Alachua   14   1   0   22   1   0   38     Baker   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0     Bradford   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0     Bradford   0  | County       | 1-2  | 3-4                             | 5+ |  | 1-2             | 3-4          | 5+ | Total |
| Alachua   14   1   0   22   1   0   38     Baker   0  |              |      |                                 |    |  |                 |              |    |       |
| Baker   0 <td>Alachua</td> <td>14</td> <td>1</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td>22</td> <td>1</td> <td>0</td> <td>38</td>  | Alachua      | 14   | 1                               | 0  |  | 22              | 1            | 0  | 38    |
| Bay6118000Bradford000000Brevard10203850Broward66140179162277Calhoun0000000Calhoun000307Citrus000111023Columbia200202129Columbia2001001Desoto1001002Dixie0001001Duval3151526398Escambia40010001Ipaler00000000Gadsen00000000Galdes00000000Galdes00000001Hendrod00000000Glacks00000000Glacks00000000Hamilton0000000<   | Baker        | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 0     |
| Bradford   0   0   0   38   5   0   55     Broward   66   14   0   179   16   2   277     Calhoun   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0     Charlotte   1   2   0   4   0   0   7     Citrus   0   0   0   3   0   0   3     Collier   6   0   0   2   0   0   4     Collier   6   0   0   2   0   0   4     Dixie   0   0   0   1   0   0   1   1     Duval   31   5   1   52   6   3   98     Escambia   4   0   0   10   0   0   1   1     Prankin   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   | Bay          | 6    | 1                               | 1  |  | 8               | 0            | 0  | 16    |
| Brevard   10   2   0   38   5   0   55     Broward   66   14   0   179   16   2   275     Calhoun   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0     Charlotte   1   2   0   44   0   0   73     Citrus   0   0   0   3   0   0   33     Collier   6   0   0   20   2   1   29     Collier   6   0   0   21   0   0   44     DeSoto   1   0   0   1   0   0   14     Duval   31   5   1   55   6   3   98     Scambia   4   0   0   10   0   0   10     Gadsden   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0  | Bradford     | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 0     |
| Broward   66   14   0   179   16   2   277     Calhoun   0  | Brevard      | 10   | 2                               | 0  |  | 38              | 5            | 0  | 55    |
| Calhoun   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   7     Clay   11   0   0   0   11   1   0   23     Colier   6   0   0   20   2   1   29     Columbia   2   0   0   2   0   0   4     Desoto   1   0   0   1   0   0   2     Dixie   0   0   0   1   0   0   1   0   0   1     Duval   31   5   1   52   6   3   98     Escambia   4   0   0   0   0   0   1   1   1   1     Franklin   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   | Broward      | 66   | 14                              | 0  |  | 179             | 16           | 2  | 277   |
| Charlotte   1   2   0   4   0   0   7     Citrus   0   0   0   3   0   0   3     Coluy   11   0   0   11   1   0   23     Columbia   2   0   0   2   1   29     Columbia   2   0   0   1   0   0   4     Desoto   1   0   0   1   0   0   2     Dixie   0   0   0   1   0   0   1     Duval   31   5   1   52   6   3   98     Escambia   4   0   0   10   0   0   14     Flagler   0 <td< td=""><td>Calhoun</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td></td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td></td<>                        | Calhoun      | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 0     |
| Cirrus   0   0   3   0   0   3     Clay   11   0   0   11   1   0   23     Colurnbia   2   0   0   20   2   1   29     Columbia   2   0   0   1   0   0   4     DeSoto   1   0   0   1   0   0   1     Dixie   0   0   0   1   0   0   1     Duval   31   5   1   52   6   3   98     Escambia   4   0   0   10   0   0   11     Franklin   0 <td>Charlotte</td> <td>1</td> <td>2</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td>4</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>7</td>                               | Charlotte    | 1    | 2                               | 0  |  | 4               | 0            | 0  | 7     |
| $\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $  | Citrus       | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 3               | 0            | 0  | 3     |
| Collier   6   0   20   2   1   29     Columbia   2   0   0   2   0   0   4     DeSoto   1   0   0   1   0   0   2     Dixie   0   0   0   1   0   0   1     Duval   31   5   1   52   6   3   98     Escambia   4   0   0   1   0   0   14     Flagler   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0     Galden   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0     Glades   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0     Glades   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0 <td>Clay</td> <td>11</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td>11</td> <td>1</td> <td>0</td> <td>23</td>                                   | Clay         | 11   | 0                               | 0  |  | 11              | 1            | 0  | 23    |
| Columbia2002004DeSoto1001002Dixie0001001Duval3151526398Escambia400100014Flagler0000000Gadsden0000000Gadsden0000000Gadsden0000000Gades0000000Gulf0000000Harniton0000000Hernando2100100Hernando2100100Highlands2002103201Highlands2002103201Idian River20000000Jackson20000000Idians00000000Idians00000000Idians0000000<  | Collier      | 6    | 0                               | 0  |  | 20              | 2            | 1  | 29    |
| DeSoto1001002Dixie0001001Duval3151526398Escambia400100014Flagler00010014Fagler0000000Gadsden0000000Gilchrist0000000Gildes0000000Gulf0000000Harniton000100Hernando210010Hernando2103201Highlands2002103Hernando210000Highlands01000Indian River20000Jackson20000Idages00000Idages00000Idages01000Idages01000Idages01000Idages0000 <th< td=""><td>Columbia</td><td>2</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td></td><td>2</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>4</td></th<>  | Columbia     | 2    | 0                               | 0  |  | 2               | 0            | 0  | 4     |
| Dixie001001Duval3151526398Escambia400100014Hagler0000000Gadsden0000000Gadsden0000000Gilchrist0000000Gadsde0000000Gadsde0000000Gilchrist0000000Galdes0000000Gulf0000000Gulf0000000Hendry1001103Hernando2104007Highlands2002103201Holmes01000000Jackson2000000Jackson2000000Jackson2000000Jackson0000000Leon142   | DeSoto       | 1    | 0                               | 0  |  | 1               | 0            | 0  | 2     |
| Duval   31   5   1   52   6   3   98     Escambia   4   0   0   10   0   0   14     Flagler   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   1     Franklin   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0     Gadsden   0  | Dixie        | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 1               | 0            | 0  | 1     |
| Escambia400100014Flagler0001001Franklin0000000Gadsden0000000Gilchrist0000000Gildes0000000Gulf0000000Gulf0000000Hamilton0001000Hardee0001103Hernando2104007Highlands2002103Holmes0100001Indian River2002105Jackson2000000Lake81080171Lee1030315049Leon1420291046Levy00000000Marion630130123Martin510100016Martin6<   | Duval        | 31   | 5                               | 1  |  | 52              | 6            | 3  | 98    |
| Flagler   0   0   1   0   0   1     Franklin   0  | Escambia     | 4    | 0                               | 0  |  | 10              | 0            | 0  | 14    |
| Franklin0000000Gadsen0000000Gilchrist0000000Glades0000000Gulf0000000Hamilton0000000Hardee0001001Hendry1001103Hernando2104007Highlands2002004Hilbsbrough5552126103201Holmes01000000Jackson20000000Lee1030315049Leon1420291046Levy00000000Mation01000001Mation630130123Marion630130123Marion630130113Marin510100016   | Flagler      | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 1               | 0            | 0  | 1     |
| Gadsden0000000Gilchrist0000000Glades0000000Gulf0000000Hamilton0000000Hardee0001000Hardee0001103Hernando2104007Highlands2002004Holmes0100011Idaa River2002105Jackson20000000Lee1030315049Leon1420291046Levy00000000Marion630130123Martin510100029Marion630130123Martin510100016Martin510100016   | Franklin     | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 0     |
| Gilchrist   0   1   0   0   0   1   1   0   0   0   1   1   0   0   1   1   0   3   1   1   0   3   2   1   0   0   1   1   0   3   2   1   0   3   2   1   1   1   0   3   2   1   1   1   0   3   2   1   | Gadsden      | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 0     |
| Glades   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   1   0   0   1   1   0   0   1   1   0   0   0   1   1   0   0   0   1   1   0   0   1   1   0   0   1   1   0   3   1   1   0   3   1   1   0   3   1   1   0   3   1   1   0   3   1   1   0   3   1 <td>Gilchrist</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td>  | Gilchrist    | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 0     |
| Gulf   0   0   1   0   0   1     Hamilton   0 <td< td=""><td>Glades</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td></td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td></td<>   | Glades       | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 0     |
| Hamilton 0 0 0 0 0 0 0   Hardee 0 0 0 1 0 0 1   Hendry 1 0 0 1 1 0 3   Hernando 2 1 0 4 0 0 7   Highlands 2 0 0 2 0 0 4   Holmes 0 1 0 3 201 3 201   Holmes 0 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 3 201   Holmes 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 5 3 201 1 0 5 3 201 1 1 0 3 201 1 1 1 0 3 201 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1<   | Gulf         | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 1               | 0            | 0  | 1     |
| Hardee   0   0   1   0   0   1     Hendry   1   0   0   1   1   0   3     Hernando   2   1   0   4   0   0   7     Highlands   2   0   0   2   0   0   4     Hillsborough   55   5   2   126   10   3   201     Holmes   0   1   0   0   0   0   1   0   5     Jackson   2   0   0   0   0   0   2   2   0   0   0   0   2   2   1   0   5   5   5   2   126   10   3   201   1   0   5   5   2   126   10   0   0   0   0   2   1   0   1   1   0   0   0   0   0   1   1   1 <td>Hamilton</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td>                           | Hamilton     | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 0     |
| Hendry1001103Hernando2104007Highlands2002004Hillsborough5552126103201Holmes0100001Indian River2002105Jackson2000002Jefferson0000000Lake81080017Lee1030315049Leon1420291046Levy00000000Matison01000000Martin510130123Martin510100016   | Hardee       | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 1               | 0            | 0  | 1     |
| Hernando   2   1   0   4   0   0   7     Highlands   2   0   0   2   0   0   4     Hillsborough   55   5   2   126   10   3   201     Holmes   0   1   0   0   0   0   1     Indian River   2   0   0   2   1   0   5     Jackson   2   0   0   0   0   0   2     Jefferson   0   0   0   0   0   0   0     Lake   8   1   0   8   0   0   17     Lee   10   3   0   31   5   0   49     Leon   14   2   0   29   1   0   46     Levy   0   0   0   0   0   0   1     Matison   0   0 <td< td=""><td>Hendry</td><td>1</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td></td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>0</td><td>3</td></td<>             | Hendry       | 1    | 0                               | 0  |  | 1               | 1            | 0  | 3     |
| Highlands   2   0   0   2   0   0   4     Hillsborough   55   5   2   126   10   3   201     Holmes   0   1   0   0   0   0   1     Indian River   2   0   0   2   1   0   5     Jackson   2   0   0   0   0   0   2     Jefferson   0   0   0   0   0   0   0     Lafayette   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0     Lee   10   3   0   31   5   0   49     Leon   14   2   0   29   1   0   46     Levy   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   1     Matison   0   1   0   0   0   0   0   1<   | Hernando     | 2    | 1                               | 0  |  | 4               | 0            | 0  | 7     |
| Hillsborough   55   5   2   126   10   3   201     Holmes   0   1   0   0   0   0   1     Indian River   2   0   0   2   1   0   5     Jackson   2   0   0   0   0   0   2     Jefferson   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   2     Lafayette   0  | Highlands    | 2    | 0                               | 0  |  | 2               | 0            | 0  | 4     |
| Holmes   0   1   0   0   0   0   1     Indian River   2   0   0   2   1   0   5     Jackson   2   0   0   0   0   0   2     Jefferson   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   2     Jackson   2   0   0   0   0   0   2   2     Jefferson   0 </td <td>Hillsborough</td> <td>55</td> <td>5</td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td>126</td> <td>10</td> <td>3</td> <td>201</td>                       | Hillsborough | 55   | 5                               | 2  |  | 126             | 10           | 3  | 201   |
| Indian River   2   0   0   2   1   0   5     Jackson   2   0   0   0   0   0   2     Jefferson   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   2     Jefferson   0   17   Lee   10   3   0   31   5   0   449   Leon   14   2   0   29   1   0   46   Levy   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   1 <t< td=""><td>Holmes</td><td>0</td><td>1</td><td>0</td><td></td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>1</td></t<>                            | Holmes       | 0    | 1                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 1     |
| Jackson   2   0   0   0   0   2     Jefferson   0   | Indian River | 2    | 0                               | 0  |  | 2               | 1            | 0  | 5     |
| Jefferson   0   17   Lee   10   3   0   31   5   0   49   Leon   14   2   0   29   1   0   46   Levy   0   1   0   1   0   1   0   1   0 <td>Jackson</td> <td>2</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>2</td>  | Jackson      | 2    | 0                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 2     |
| Lafayette   0   17   Lee   10   3   0   31   5   0   49   Leon   14   2   0   29   1   0   46   Levy   0   0   0   0   0   46   Levy   0   1   0   1   0   1   0   1   0  | Jefferson    | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 0     |
| Lake   8   1   0   8   0   0   17     Lee   10   3   0   31   5   0   49     Leon   14   2   0   29   1   0   46     Levy   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0     Liberty   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0     Madison   0   1   0   0   0   0   1   20   0   21   23     Martin   5   1   0   10   0   0   16     Miami-Dade   60   16   9   231   40   8   364   | Lafayette    | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 0     |
| Lee 10 3 0 31 5 0 49   Leon 14 2 0 29 1 0 46   Levy 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0   Liberty 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0   Madison 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1   Manatee 9 0 0 20 0 0 29   Martin 5 1 0 10 0 123   Martin 5 1 0 10 0 16   Miami-Dade 60 16 9 231 40 8 364  | Lake         | 8    | 1                               | 0  |  | 8               | 0            | 0  | 17    |
| Leon   14   2   0   29   1   0   46     Levy   0   1   0   0   0   0   1  | Lee          | 10   | 3                               | 0  |  | 31              | 5            | 0  | 49    |
| Levy   0   1   0   1  | Leon         | 14   | 2                               | 0  |  | 29              | 1            | 0  | 46    |
| Liberty   0   1   0   0   0   0   1   0   1   0   1   0   1   0   1   0   1   0   1   0   1   0   1   23   3   0   1   1   0   1   1   0   1   0   1   0   1   0   1   0   1   1   0   1   1   0   1   1   0   1   1   0   1   1   0   1   1   0   1   1   0   1   1   0   1   1   0   1   1   0   1   1   0   1   1   0   1   1   0   1<   | Levy         | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 0     |
| Madison   0   1   0   0   0   1     Manatee   9   0   0   20   0   0   29     Marion   6   3   0   13   0   1   23     Martin   5   1   0   10   0   0   16     Miami-Dade   60   16   9   231   40   8   364   | Liberty      | 0    | 0                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 0     |
| Manatee90020029Marion630130123Martin510100016Miami-Dade60169231408364   | Madison      | 0    | 1                               | 0  |  | 0               | 0            | 0  | 1     |
| Marion   6   3   0   13   0   1   23     Martin   5   1   0   10   0   0   16     Miami-Dade   60   16   9   231   40   8   364   | Manatee      | 9    | 0                               | 0  |  | 20              | 0            | 0  | 29    |
| Martin   5   1   0   10   0   0   16     Miami-Dade   60   16   9   231   40   8   364  | Marion       | 6    | 3                               | 0  |  | 13              | 0            | 1  | 23    |
| Miami-Dade 60 16 9 231 40 8 364   | Martin       | 5    | 1                               | 0  |  | 10              | 0            | 0  | 16    |
|   | Miami-Dade   | 60   | 16                              | 9  |  | 231             | 40           | 8  | 364   |

### Table III-6b. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|            |                    |               | Cha | nge in households, 200 | 1-2002        |    |       |
|------------|--------------------|---------------|-----|------------------------|---------------|----|-------|
|            | Cost burden 40-49% |               |     | (                      | Cost burden 5 | 0% |       |
|            | Нс                 | ousehold size |     |                        | Household si  | ze |       |
| County     | 1-2                | 3-4           | 5+  | 1-2                    | 3-4           | 5+ | Total |
| Monroe     | 0                  | 0             | 0   | 2                      | 0             | 0  | 2     |
| Nassau     | 2                  | 0             | 0   | 1                      | 0             | 1  | 4     |
| Okaloosa   | 4                  | 1             | 0   | 6                      | 0             | 1  | 12    |
| Okeechobee | 0                  | 0             | 0   | C                      | 0             | 0  | 0     |
| Orange     | 101                | 24            | 4   | 170                    | 33            | 4  | 336   |
| Osceola    | 14                 | 0             | 0   | 34                     | . 6           | 0  | 54    |
| Palm Beach | 43                 | 8             | 1   | 104                    | . 11          | 1  | 168   |
| Pasco      | 4                  | 0             | 0   | 13                     | 0             | 0  | 17    |
| Pinellas   | 25                 | 0             | 0   | 39                     | 0             | 0  | 64    |
| Polk       | 7                  | 2             | 0   | 28                     | 2             | 0  | 39    |
| Putnam     | 0                  | 1             | 0   | 1                      | 0             | 0  | 2     |
| St. Johns  | 2                  | 2             | 0   | 10                     | 3             | 0  | 17    |
| St. Lucie  | 5                  | 0             | 0   | 3                      | 0             | 0  | 8     |
| Santa Rosa | 1                  | 0             | 0   | 2                      | 0             | 0  | 3     |
| Sarasota   | 6                  | 0             | 0   | 16                     | 1             | 0  | 23    |
| Seminole   | 23                 | 2             | 0   | 66                     | 4             | 0  | 95    |
| Sumter     | 0                  | 0             | 0   | 2                      | 0             | 0  | 2     |
| Suwannee   | 1                  | 0             | 0   | 0                      | 0             | 0  | 1     |
| Taylor     | 0                  | 0             | 0   | 0                      | 0             | 0  | 0     |
| Union      | 0                  | 0             | 0   | 0                      | 0             | 0  | 0     |
| Volusia    | 10                 | 1             | 0   | 30                     | 1             | 0  | 42    |
| Wakulla    | 0                  | 0             | 0   | 0                      | 0             | 0  | 0     |
| Walton     | 0                  | 0             | 0   | 4                      | . 0           | 0  | 4     |
| Washington | 0                  | 0             | 0   | C                      | 0             | 0  | 0     |
| Florida    | 576                | 100           | 18  | 1,362                  | 150           | 25 | 2,231 |

## Table III-6b. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|                  |               |                 | 02-2007     |                         |                |              |          |
|------------------|---------------|-----------------|-------------|-------------------------|----------------|--------------|----------|
|                  | Cost          | burden 40-49%   | /o          |                         | Cost burden 5  | 50%          |          |
|                  | Но            | ousehold size   |             |                         | Household s    | ize          |          |
| County           | 1-2           | 3-4             | 5+          | 1-                      | 2 3-4          | 5+           | Total    |
|                  |               |                 |             |                         |                |              |          |
| Alachua          | 72            | 7               | 0           | 13                      | 6 6            | 0            | 221      |
| Baker            | 1             | 0               | 0           |                         | 4 0            | 0            | 5        |
| Bay              | 16            | 2               | 0           | 4                       | 3 4            | 0            | 65       |
| Bradford         | 1             | 0               | 0           |                         | 3 0            | 0            | 4        |
| Brevard          | 63            | 14              | 0           | 18                      | 3 11           | 1            | 272      |
| Broward          | 334           | 65              | 14          | 94                      | 3 86           | 18           | 1,460    |
| Calhoun          | 0             | 0               | 0           |                         | 0 0            | 0            | 0        |
| Charlotte        | 2             | 3               | 0           | 1                       | 1 0            | 0            | 16       |
| Citrus           | 0             | 0               | 0           | 1                       | 5 0            | 0            | 15       |
| Clay             | 54            | 3               | 0           | 5                       | 4 9            | 3            | 123      |
| Collier          | 28            | 7               | 0           | 11                      | 6 13           | 5            | 169      |
| Columbia         | 5             | 3               | 0           | 1                       | 1 0            | 0            | 19       |
| DeSoto           | 1             | 0               | 0           |                         | 1 1            | 0            | 3        |
| Dixie            | 0             | 0               | 0           |                         | 0 0            | 0            | 0        |
| Duval            | 142           | 33              | 3           | 27                      | 3 24           | 2            | 477      |
| Escambia         | 23            | 4               | 0           | 5                       | 4 4            | 0            | 85       |
| Flagler          | 1             | 1               | 0           |                         | 3 1            | 1            | 7        |
| Franklin         | 0             | 0               | 0           |                         | 0 0            | 0            | 0        |
| Gadsden          | 1             | 0               | 0           |                         | 1 0            | 0            | 2        |
| Gilchrist        | 1             | 0               | 0           |                         | 1 0            | 0            | 2        |
| Glades           | 0             | 0               | 0           |                         | 1 0            | 0            | 1        |
| Gulf             | 0             | 0               | 0           |                         | 0 0            | 0            | 0        |
| Hamilton         | 2             | 1               | 0           |                         | 3 0            | 0            | 6        |
| Hardee           | 1             | 0               | 0           |                         | 1 0            | 0            | 2        |
| Hendry           | 1             | 0               | 0           |                         | 1 1            | 0            | 3        |
| Hernando         | 4             | 5               | 0           | 1                       | 5 0            | 0            | 24       |
| Highlands        | 5             | 0               | 0           | 1                       | 2 2            | 0            | 19       |
| Hillsborough     | 296           | 18              | 8           | 66                      | 5 43           | 9            | 1,039    |
| Holmes           | 0             | 0               | 0           |                         | 0 0            | 0            | 0        |
| Indian River     | 5             | 0               | 0           | 2                       | 4 1            | 1            | 31       |
| Jackson          | 0             | 0               | 0           |                         | 1 0            | 0            | 1        |
| Jefferson        | 0             | 0               | 0           |                         | 1 0            | 0            | 1        |
| Lafayette        | 0             | 0               | 0           |                         | 0 0            | 0            | 0        |
| Lake             | 40            | 4               | 0           | 4                       | 5 0            | 0            | 89       |
| Lee              | 47            | 9               | 1           | 15                      | 0 10           | 2            | 219      |
| Leon             | 74            | 7               | 0           | 15                      | 4 6            | 0            | 241      |
| Levy             | 0             | 0               | 0           |                         | 5 0            | 0            | 5        |
| Liberty          | 0             | 0               | 0           |                         | 0 0            | 0            | 0        |
| Madison          | 0             | 0               | 0           |                         | 0 0            | 0            | 0        |
| Manatee          | 47            | 5               | 0           | 9                       | 3 3            | 0            | 148      |
| Marion           | 20            | 8               | 0           | 5                       | 3 0            | 2            | 83       |
| Martin           | 19            | 1               | 0           | 3                       | 7 0            | 0            | 57       |
| Miami-Dade       | 322           | 105             | 28          | 1,22                    | 2 174          | 39           | 1,890    |
| *Note: Cost burg | lened househo | lds are those w | with a hour | sing burden of 40 perce | ent or more of | income and h | ousebold |

# Table III-6c. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|            |       |               | Cha | nge in households, 200 | ouseholds, 2002-2007 |     |        |  |
|------------|-------|---------------|-----|------------------------|----------------------|-----|--------|--|
|            | Cost  | burden 40-49  | %   | C                      | ost burden 5         | 0%  |        |  |
|            | Н     | ousehold size |     | ]                      | Household si         | ze  |        |  |
| County     | 1-2   | 3-4           | 5+  | 1-2                    | 3-4                  | 5+  | Total  |  |
| Monroe     | 1     | 0             | 0   | 5                      | 0                    | 0   | 6      |  |
| Nassau     | 9     | 1             | 0   | 9                      | 1                    | 0   | 20     |  |
| Okaloosa   | 16    | 1             | 0   | 42                     | 4                    | 0   | 63     |  |
| Okeechobee | 0     | 0             | 0   | 0                      | 0                    | 0   | 0      |  |
| Orange     | 511   | 111           | 23  | 866                    | 164                  | 20  | 1,695  |  |
| Osceola    | 65    | 0             | 0   | 168                    | 30                   | 0   | 263    |  |
| Palm Beach | 211   | 28            | 4   | 521                    | 44                   | 6   | 814    |  |
| Pasco      | 37    | 7             | 0   | 71                     | 4                    | 0   | 119    |  |
| Pinellas   | 110   | -2            | 0   | 210                    | -2                   | 0   | 316    |  |
| Polk       | 37    | 5             | 0   | 126                    | 5                    | 0   | 173    |  |
| Putnam     | 4     | 1             | 0   | 4                      | 0                    | 0   | 9      |  |
| St. Johns  | 7     | 9             | 0   | 38                     | 9                    | 2   | 65     |  |
| St. Lucie  | 22    | 2             | 0   | 9                      | 4                    | 0   | 37     |  |
| Santa Rosa | 7     | 3             | 0   | 21                     | 3                    | 0   | 34     |  |
| Sarasota   | 29    | 0             | 0   | 76                     | 3                    | 0   | 108    |  |
| Seminole   | 121   | 13            | 0   | 335                    | 20                   | 6   | 495    |  |
| Sumter     | 0     | 0             | 0   | 14                     | 0                    | 0   | 14     |  |
| Suwannee   | 2     | 2             | 0   | 6                      | 0                    | 0   | 10     |  |
| Taylor     | 1     | 0             | 0   | 0                      | 0                    | 0   | 1      |  |
| Union      | 1     | 0             | 0   | 0                      | 0                    | 0   | 1      |  |
| Volusia    | 58    | 5             | 0   | 164                    | 8                    | 0   | 235    |  |
| Wakulla    | 0     | 1             | 0   | 1                      | 0                    | 0   | 2      |  |
| Walton     | 2     | 1             | 0   | 4                      | 0                    | 0   | 7      |  |
| Washington | 0     | 0             | 0   | 0                      | 0                    | 0   | 0      |  |
| Florida    | 2,879 | 493           | 81  | 7,025                  | 696                  | 117 | 11,291 |  |

### Table III-6c. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

household income between 20 percent and 60 percent of adjusted area median.

Chart III-7 shows the statewide distribution of multi-family renter households by household size and percentage of income spent for rent.



Chart III-7. Distribution of multi-family renter households by household size and cost burden

Among the specifically multi-family renter group, 79 percent of the cost burdened households are estimated to be 1-2 person households. More than two-thirds of this group has a cost burden that is greater than or equal to 50 percent. Only about 3 percent of the cost burdened households are households of 5-or-more persons. Clearly, the greatest need is for rental units suitable for 1-2 households.

For multi-family renter households in 2001, of the statewide total of 5,298 households of 5-or-more persons with cost burdens, 2,356 or 45 percent reside in Miami-Dade County. Adding Broward (797 households), Hillsborough (502), and Orange (601) results in four counties having over 80 percent of the cost burdened 5-or-more person households in the state. Approximately 1,000 large cost burdened households are distributed across the remainder of the state. Counties with a large share (more than 30 percent) of their cost burdened households in the 3-4 person household size category include Charlotte, DeSoto, Hardee, Hendry, Hernando, and St. Johns. Many of the counties with larger shares of 3-4 persons are small counties.

A number of counties have no 5-or-more person cost burdened households. Table IV-3 in the Cost Burden Appendix following this section demonstrates this concentration of households in 1-2 and 3-4 person households; it shows the percentage of all cost burdened renter households that fall within each household size category by county.

The large share of households with cost burden in the 1-2 person size category reflects, in part, the age structure of the Florida population; older householders tend to have fewer people living in the household.

**Age**: The analysis of cost burden by age of householder includes two age categories: 15-54 and 55-and-over. For all renter households in 2001, 68 percent of total cost burdened households (215,107 households) fall within the 15-54 age category. As persons in this age group represent a larger portion of the population, the result is not surprising.

Table III-7 on the following pages shows the number of cost burdened households in each age group and cost burden category by county.

|                  |                    |                    | Households, 2001        |                  |              |  |  |
|------------------|--------------------|--------------------|-------------------------|------------------|--------------|--|--|
|                  | Age 1              | 5-54               | Age                     | Age 55+          |              |  |  |
|                  | Cost b             | urden              | Cost b                  | urden            |              |  |  |
| County           | 40-49%             | 50% +              | 40-49%                  | 50% +            | Total        |  |  |
| Alachua          | 1,266              | 1,802              | 115                     | 613              | 3,796        |  |  |
| Baker            | 56                 | 85                 | 20                      | 43               | 204          |  |  |
| Bay              | 760                | 1,099              | 262                     | 492              | 2,613        |  |  |
| Bradford         | 61                 | 77                 | 47                      | 46               | 231          |  |  |
| Brevard          | 1,959              | 3,561              | 600                     | 1,556            | 7,676        |  |  |
| Broward          | 9,245              | 16,625             | 3,149                   | 8,549            | 37,568       |  |  |
| Calhoun          | 26                 | 31                 | 18                      | 16               | 91           |  |  |
| Charlotte        | 232                | 564                | 366                     | 432              | 1,594        |  |  |
| Citrus           | 179                | 364                | 93                      | 534              | 1,170        |  |  |
| Clay             | 518                | 546                | 199                     | 240              | 1,503        |  |  |
| Collier          | 784                | 1,872              | 173                     | 716              | 3,545        |  |  |
| Columbia         | 167                | 208                | 121                     | 124              | 620          |  |  |
| DeSoto           | 143                | 156                | 25                      | 50               | 374          |  |  |
| Dixie            | 16                 | 13                 | 18                      | 6                | 53           |  |  |
| Duval            | 5,570              | 7,051              | 1,098                   | 2,262            | 15,981       |  |  |
| Escambia         | 1,613              | 2,714              | 433                     | 1,129            | 5,889        |  |  |
| Flagler          | 115                | 162                | 53                      | 169              | 499          |  |  |
| Franklin         | 25                 | 31                 | 16                      | 15               | 87           |  |  |
| Gadsden          | 91                 | 115                | 59                      | 41               | 306          |  |  |
| Gilchrist        | 20                 | 24                 | 13                      | 11               | 68           |  |  |
| Glades           | 40                 | 33                 | 6                       | 13               | 92           |  |  |
| Gulf             | 36                 | 42                 | 15                      | 19               | 112          |  |  |
| Hamilton         | 27                 | 22                 | 22                      | 12               | 83           |  |  |
| Hardee           | 106                | 133                | 22                      | 43               | 304          |  |  |
| Hendry           | 162                | 164                | 27                      | 56               | 409          |  |  |
| Hernando         | 303                | 444                | 158                     | 636              | 1,541        |  |  |
| Highlands        | 326                | 336                | 124                     | 227              | 1,013        |  |  |
| Hillsborough     | 6,631              | 10,116             | 1,713                   | 4,410            | 22,870       |  |  |
| Holmes           | 38                 | 44                 | 31                      | 25               | 138          |  |  |
| Indian River     | 364                | 643                | 225                     | 574              | 1,806        |  |  |
| Jackson          | 144                | 160                | 56                      | 65               | 425          |  |  |
| Jefferson        | 37                 | 39                 | 14                      | 22               | 112          |  |  |
| Lafavette        | 13                 | 19                 | 8                       | 7                | 47           |  |  |
| Lake             | 691                | 490                | 416                     | 495              | 2,092        |  |  |
| Lee              | 1,504              | 2,853              | 712                     | 1,852            | 6,921        |  |  |
| Leon             | 1,276              | 1,892              | 132                     | 658              | 3,958        |  |  |
| Levy             | 63                 | 124                | 22                      | 123              | 332          |  |  |
| Liberty          | 12                 | 22                 | 8                       | 10               | 52           |  |  |
| Madison          | 44                 | 42                 | 40                      | 27               | 153          |  |  |
| Manatee          | 1.317              | 2,195              | 529                     | 1.069            | 5.110        |  |  |
| Marion           | 812                | 1.215              | 355                     | 989              | 3.371        |  |  |
| Martin           | 462                | 679                | 120                     | 493              | 1.754        |  |  |
| Miami-Dade       | 13.282             | 28,555             | 5,554                   | 19,516           | 66,907       |  |  |
| *Note: Cost burd | ened households a  | are those with a h | ousing burden of 40 pe  | ercent or more o | f income and |  |  |
| household income | e between 20 perce | ent and 60 percer  | it of adjusted area med | ian.             |              |  |  |

Table III-7a. All cost burdened, renter households by age of householder and cost burden\*

|            |            | F       | louseholds, 2001 | useholds, 2001 |         |  |  |
|------------|------------|---------|------------------|----------------|---------|--|--|
|            | Age 15-5   | 4       | Age 55           | +              |         |  |  |
|            | Cost burde | en      | Cost burc        | len            |         |  |  |
| County     | 40-49%     | 50% +   | 40-49%           | 50% +          | Total   |  |  |
|            |            |         |                  |                |         |  |  |
| Monroe     | 380        | 1,020   | 88               | 266            | 1,754   |  |  |
| Nassau     | 183        | 194     | 73               | 92             | 542     |  |  |
| Okaloosa   | 1,031      | 1,543   | 214              | 512            | 3,300   |  |  |
| Okeechobee | 163        | 177     | 18               | 109            | 467     |  |  |
| Orange     | 7,793      | 10,826  | 1,404            | 3,411          | 23,434  |  |  |
| Osceola    | 862        | 1,645   | 277              | 696            | 3,480   |  |  |
| Palm Beach | 4,665      | 7,994   | 1,925            | 5,029          | 19,613  |  |  |
| Pasco      | 1,194      | 1,204   | 734              | 1,461          | 4,593   |  |  |
| Pinellas   | 4,805      | 7,642   | 2,452            | 5,311          | 20,210  |  |  |
| Polk       | 1,950      | 3,236   | 783              | 1,947          | 7,916   |  |  |
| Putnam     | 177        | 198     | 150              | 147            | 672     |  |  |
| St. Johns  | 417        | 612     | 114              | 438            | 1,581   |  |  |
| St. Lucie  | 846        | 1,125   | 121              | 473            | 2,565   |  |  |
| Santa Rosa | 413        | 695     | 103              | 266            | 1,477   |  |  |
| Sarasota   | 1,160      | 2,072   | 655              | 1,676          | 5,563   |  |  |
| Seminole   | 1,529      | 2,736   | 431              | 1,481          | 6,177   |  |  |
| Sumter     | 66         | 156     | 30               | 192            | 444     |  |  |
| Suwannee   | 77         | 88      | 80               | 72             | 317     |  |  |
| Taylor     | 46         | 54      | 39               | 37             | 176     |  |  |
| Union      | 26         | 41      | 19               | 19             | 105     |  |  |
| Volusia    | 1,719      | 3,888   | 763              | 2,135          | 8,505   |  |  |
| Wakulla    | 38         | 75      | 11               | 38             | 162     |  |  |
| Walton     | 115        | 188     | 64               | 97             | 464     |  |  |
| Washington | 70         | 75      | 10               | 57             | 212     |  |  |
| Florida    | 80,261     | 134,846 | 27,745           | 74,347         | 317,199 |  |  |

### Table III-7a. All cost burdened, renter households by age of householder and cost burden (continued)\*

|                   |                    | Change in households, 2001-2002 |           |                 |                    |                   |  |  |  |
|-------------------|--------------------|---------------------------------|-----------|-----------------|--------------------|-------------------|--|--|--|
|                   | Age                | 15-54                           |           | Age             |                    |                   |  |  |  |
|                   | Cost b             | ourden                          |           | Cost            | burden             |                   |  |  |  |
| County            | 40-49%             | 50% +                           |           | 40-49%          | 50% +              | Total             |  |  |  |
| Alachua           | 17                 | 21                              |           | 2               | 17                 | 57                |  |  |  |
| Baker             | 0                  | 1                               |           | 0               | 2                  | 3                 |  |  |  |
| Bav               | 8                  | 5                               |           | 9               | 15                 | 37                |  |  |  |
| Bradford          | 2                  | 0                               |           | 0               | 0                  | 2                 |  |  |  |
| Brevard           | 13                 | 37                              |           | 17              | 46                 | 113               |  |  |  |
| Broward           | 66                 | 134                             |           | 80              | 214                | 494               |  |  |  |
| Calhoun           | 2                  | 0                               |           | 0               | 0                  | 2                 |  |  |  |
| Charlotte         | 7                  | 11                              |           | 9               | 11                 | 38                |  |  |  |
| Citrus            | 5                  | 2                               |           | 2               | 14                 | 23                |  |  |  |
| Clav              | 11                 | 7                               |           | 11              | 15                 | 44                |  |  |  |
| Collier           | 11                 | 29                              |           | 8               | 29                 | 77                |  |  |  |
| Columbia          | 3                  | 5                               |           | 6               | 5                  | 19                |  |  |  |
| DeSoto            | 2                  | 0                               |           | 2               | 1                  | 5                 |  |  |  |
| Dixie             | 0                  | 1                               |           | 0               | 0                  | 1                 |  |  |  |
| Duval             | 34                 | 40                              |           | 28              | 62                 | 164               |  |  |  |
| Escambia          | 5                  | 10                              |           | 9               | 26                 | 50                |  |  |  |
| Flagler           | 2                  | 1                               |           | 3               | 11                 | 17                |  |  |  |
| Franklin          | 0                  | 0                               |           | 0               | 1                  | 1                 |  |  |  |
| Gadsden           | 0                  | 2                               |           | 3               | 2                  | 7                 |  |  |  |
| Gilchrist         | 1                  | 1                               |           | 0               | 0                  | 2                 |  |  |  |
| Glades            | 0                  | 0                               |           | 0               | 0                  | 0                 |  |  |  |
| Gulf              | 0                  | 1                               |           | 2               | 0                  | 3                 |  |  |  |
| Hamilton          | 2                  | 0                               |           | 0               | 1                  | 3                 |  |  |  |
| Hardee            | 0                  | 0                               |           | 0               | 1                  | 1                 |  |  |  |
| Hendry            | 3                  | 4                               |           | 2               | 1                  | 10                |  |  |  |
| Hernando          | 2                  | 6                               |           | 8               | 22                 | 38                |  |  |  |
| Highlands         | 2                  | 1                               |           | 6               | 7                  | 16                |  |  |  |
| Hillsborough      | 38                 | 60                              |           | 52              | 136                | 286               |  |  |  |
| Holmes            | 0                  | 0                               |           | 1               | 3                  | 4                 |  |  |  |
| Indian River      | 1                  | 5                               |           | 8               | 14                 | 28                |  |  |  |
| Jackson           | 2                  | 3                               |           | 2               | 2                  | 9                 |  |  |  |
| Jefferson         | 0                  | 0                               |           | 0               | 0                  | 0                 |  |  |  |
| Lafavette         | 0                  | 0                               |           | 0               | 2                  | 2                 |  |  |  |
| Lake              | 11                 | 9                               |           | 13              | 15                 | 48                |  |  |  |
| Lee               | 20                 | 41                              |           | 24              | 56                 | 141               |  |  |  |
| Leon              | 20                 | 34                              |           | 5               | 24                 | 83                |  |  |  |
| Levv              | 0                  | 1                               |           | 2               | 4                  | 7                 |  |  |  |
| Libertv           | 0                  | 0                               |           | 0               | 0                  | 0                 |  |  |  |
| Madison           | 1                  | 0                               |           | 1               | 0                  | 2                 |  |  |  |
| Manatee           | 10                 | 19                              |           | 15              | 31                 | 75                |  |  |  |
| Marion            | 10                 | 14                              |           | 13              | 34                 | 71                |  |  |  |
| Martin            | 3                  | 7                               |           | 5               | 13                 | 28                |  |  |  |
| Miami-Dade        | 65                 | 145                             |           | 108             | 376                | 694               |  |  |  |
| *Note: Cost burde | ened households an | e those with a hou              | using bur | den of 40 perce | ent or more of inc | ome and household |  |  |  |
| income between 2  | 0 percent and 60 p | ercent of adjusted              | area me   | dian.           |                    |                   |  |  |  |

### Table III-7b. All cost burdened, renter households by age of householder and cost burden (continued)\*

|            | Change in households, 2001-2002 |       |            |       |       |  |  |  |  |  |
|------------|---------------------------------|-------|------------|-------|-------|--|--|--|--|--|
|            | Age 15-5                        | 4     | Age 55+    | F     |       |  |  |  |  |  |
|            | Cost burde                      | n     | Cost burd  | en    |       |  |  |  |  |  |
| County     | 40-49%                          | 50% + | 40-49%     | 50% + | Tota  |  |  |  |  |  |
|            |                                 |       | _ <b> </b> |       |       |  |  |  |  |  |
| Monroe     | 0                               | 1     | 1          | 8     | 10    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Nassau     | 2                               | 2     | 5          | 3     | 12    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Okaloosa   | 17                              | 23    | 7          | 18    | 65    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Okeechobee | 1                               | 0     | 1          | 2     | 4     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Orange     | 112                             | 156   | 58         | 137   | 463   |  |  |  |  |  |
| Osceola    | 20                              | 38    | 12         | 32    | 102   |  |  |  |  |  |
| Palm Beach | 48                              | 83    | 54         | 145   | 330   |  |  |  |  |  |
| Pasco      | 5                               | 11    | 14         | 32    | 62    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Pinellas   | 0                               | -3    | 38         | 74    | 109   |  |  |  |  |  |
| Polk       | 9                               | 17    | 21         | 56    | 103   |  |  |  |  |  |
| Putnam     | 2                               | 0     | 3          | 3     |       |  |  |  |  |  |
| St. Johns  | 6                               | 13    | 5          | 18    | 42    |  |  |  |  |  |
| St. Lucie  | 19                              | 19    | 4          | 17    | 59    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Santa Rosa | 3                               | 7     | 5          | 10    | 25    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Sarasota   | 5                               | 10    | 15         | 40    | 7(    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Seminole   | 20                              | 31    | 18         | 65    | 134   |  |  |  |  |  |
| Sumter     | 2                               | 2     | 1          | 11    | 16    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Suwannee   | 0                               | 2     | 4          | 3     | Ģ     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Taylor     | 0                               | 0     | 2          | 2     |       |  |  |  |  |  |
| Union      | 1                               | 0     | 0          | 1     | 2     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Volusia    | 15                              | 35    | 15         | 51    | 116   |  |  |  |  |  |
| Wakulla    | 0                               | 3     | 0          | 4     |       |  |  |  |  |  |
| Walton     | 2                               | 3     | 2          | 6     | 13    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Washington | 1                               | 1     | 0          | 2     | 2     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Florida    | 669                             | 1,111 | 741        | 1,953 | 4,474 |  |  |  |  |  |

# Table III-7b. All cost burdened, renter households by age of householder and cost burden (continued)\*

|                  | Change in households, 2002-2007 |                  |                        |                   |              |  |  |  |  |  |
|------------------|---------------------------------|------------------|------------------------|-------------------|--------------|--|--|--|--|--|
|                  | Age                             | 15-54            | Ag                     | Age 55+           |              |  |  |  |  |  |
|                  | Cost b                          | ourden           | Cost                   | burden            |              |  |  |  |  |  |
| County           | 40-49%                          | 50% +            | 40-49%                 | 50% +             | Total        |  |  |  |  |  |
| Alachua          | 92                              | 131              | 18                     | 91                | 332          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Baker            | 3                               | 11               | 4                      | 7                 | 25           |  |  |  |  |  |
| Bav              | 25                              | 36               | 42                     | 83                | 186          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Bradford         | 1                               | 0                | 5                      | 7                 | 13           |  |  |  |  |  |
| Brevard          | 89                              | 150              | 98                     | 250               | 587          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Broward          | 339                             | 597              | 431                    | 1.173             | 2.540        |  |  |  |  |  |
| Calhoun          | 0                               | 3                | 4                      | 5                 | 12           |  |  |  |  |  |
| Charlotte        | 13                              | 37               | 53                     | 58                | 161          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Citrus           | 6                               | 19               | 16                     | 87                | 128          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Clav             | 36                              | 42               | 57                     | 69                | 204          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Collier          | 62                              | 144              | 39                     | 169               | 414          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Columbia         | 8                               | 11               | 22                     | 25                | 66           |  |  |  |  |  |
| DeSoto           | 2                               | 2                | 3                      | 7                 | 14           |  |  |  |  |  |
| Dixie            | 1                               | 2                | 2                      | 0                 | 5            |  |  |  |  |  |
| Duval            | 144                             | 183              | 156                    | 328               | 811          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Escambia         | 32                              | 52               | 52                     | 140               | 276          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Flagler          | 15                              | 21               | 17                     | 49                | 102          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Franklin         | 0                               | 0                | 6                      | 5                 | 11           |  |  |  |  |  |
| Gadsden          | 5                               | 5                | 13                     | 9                 | 32           |  |  |  |  |  |
| Gilchrist        | 2                               | 3                | 5                      | 2                 | 12           |  |  |  |  |  |
| Glades           | 4                               | 2                | 0                      | 3                 | 9            |  |  |  |  |  |
| Gulf             | 0                               | 1                | 1                      | 3                 | 5            |  |  |  |  |  |
| Hamilton         | 2                               | 3                | 6                      | 4                 | 15           |  |  |  |  |  |
| Hardee           | 0                               | 0                | 2                      | 3                 | 5            |  |  |  |  |  |
| Hendrv           | 6                               | 5                | 3                      | 7                 | 21           |  |  |  |  |  |
| Hernando         | 25                              | 32               | 26                     | 109               | 192          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Highlands        | 9                               | 8                | 17                     | 31                | 65           |  |  |  |  |  |
| Hillsborough     | 188                             | 294              | 299                    | 760               | 1,541        |  |  |  |  |  |
| Holmes           | 0                               | 0                | 5                      | 1                 | 6            |  |  |  |  |  |
| Indian River     | 16                              | 32               | 29                     | 84                | 161          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Jackson          | 2                               | 4                | 6                      | 9                 | 21           |  |  |  |  |  |
| Jefferson        | 0                               | 3                | 3                      | 4                 | 10           |  |  |  |  |  |
| Lafavette        | 0                               | 2                | 2                      | 2                 | 6            |  |  |  |  |  |
| Lake             | 41                              | 28               | 77                     | 91                | 237          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Lee              | 81                              | 156              | 119                    | 314               | 670          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Leon             | 105                             | 155              | 31                     | 147               | 438          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Levv             | 4                               | 3                | 2                      | 24                | 33           |  |  |  |  |  |
| Libertv          | 2                               | 2                | 0                      | 1                 | 5            |  |  |  |  |  |
| Madison          | 2                               | 2                | 3                      | 1                 | 8            |  |  |  |  |  |
| Manatee          | 54                              | 86               | 74                     | 144               | 358          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Marion           | 40                              | 65               | 69                     | 192               | 366          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Martin           | 24                              | 32               | 20                     | 79                | 155          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Miami-Dade       | 300                             | 646              | 597                    | 2.081             | 3.624        |  |  |  |  |  |
| *Note: Cost burd | ened households                 | are those with a | housing burden of 40 p | percent or more o | f income and |  |  |  |  |  |
| household income | e between 20 perc               | ent and 60 perce | nt of adjusted area me | dian.             |              |  |  |  |  |  |

### Table III-7c. All cost burdened, renter households by age of householder and cost burden (continued)\*

|            | Change in households, 2002-2007 |       |        |        |        |  |  |  |  |  |
|------------|---------------------------------|-------|--------|--------|--------|--|--|--|--|--|
|            | Age 15-5                        | 54    | Ag     | e 55+  |        |  |  |  |  |  |
|            | Cost burd                       | en    | Cost   | burden |        |  |  |  |  |  |
| County     | 40-49%                          | 50% + | 40-49% | 50% +  | Total  |  |  |  |  |  |
|            |                                 |       |        |        |        |  |  |  |  |  |
| Monroe     | 7                               | 21    | 12     | 31     | 71     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Nassau     | 14                              | 11    | 18     | 22     | 65     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Okaloosa   | 50                              | 82    | 38     | 95     | 265    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Okeechobee | 4                               | 4     | 3      | 20     | 31     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Orange     | 554                             | 764   | 302    | 748    | 2,368  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Osceola    | 89                              | 164   | 71     | 177    | 501    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Palm Beach | 214                             | 357   | 290    | 764    | 1,625  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Pasco      | 41                              | 42    | 86     | 174    | 343    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Pinellas   | -18                             | -35   | 185    | 406    | 538    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Polk       | 50                              | 86    | 116    | 280    | 532    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Putnam     | 2                               | 3     | 14     | 15     | 34     |  |  |  |  |  |
| St. Johns  | 30                              | 45    | 27     | 100    | 202    |  |  |  |  |  |
| St. Lucie  | 49                              | 69    | 24     | 95     | 237    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Santa Rosa | 33                              | 57    | 26     | 72     | 188    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Sarasota   | 19                              | 32    | 84     | 214    | 349    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Seminole   | 89                              | 163   | 100    | 343    | 695    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Sumter     | 3                               | 10    | 8      | 44     | 65     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Suwannee   | 4                               | 5     | 17     | 15     | 41     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Taylor     | 0                               | 0     | 4      | 0      | 4      |  |  |  |  |  |
| Union      | 4                               | 1     | 6      | 3      | 14     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Volusia    | 70                              | 149   | 99     | 276    | 594    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Wakulla    | 4                               | 5     | 2      | 9      | 20     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Walton     | 11                              | 15    | 15     | 22     | 63     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Washington | 5                               | 4     | 0      | 9      | 18     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Florida    | 3,108                           | 5,064 | 3,981  | 10,592 | 22,745 |  |  |  |  |  |

# Table III-7c. All cost burdened, renter households by age of householder and cost burden (continued)\*

\*Note: Cost burdened households are those with a housing burden of 40 percent or more of income and household income between 20 percent and 60 percent of adjusted area median.

Chart III-8 shows the statewide distribution of cost burdened households by age and percentage of income spent for rent.



Chart III-8. Distribution of cost burdened households by age and cost burden

In both age groups, a substantial number of households pay 50 percent or more of income toward housing costs, but this is particularly true for the older households. Of the 102,092 cost burdened households with householders aged 55-and-over, 74,347 or 73 percent are paying 50 percent or more of their income toward housing costs. About 63 percent of the cost burdened renter households in the age 15-54 category face this severe cost burden.

For the specifically multi-family renters, the distribution of cost burden by age is comparable to that for all renters. The numbers indicate substantial multi-family rental housing needs for both age groups. Table III-8 on the following pages shows the number of cost burdened multi-family renter households in each cost burden and age category.

|                      |                           |                  | He | useholds, 2001     |                  |             |  |
|----------------------|---------------------------|------------------|----|--------------------|------------------|-------------|--|
|                      | Age 1                     | 5-54             |    | Age 55+            |                  |             |  |
|                      | Cost bu                   | rden             |    | Cost bu            | ırden            |             |  |
| County               | 40-49%                    | 50% +            |    | 40-49%             | 50% +            | Total       |  |
| Alachua              | 978                       | 1,211            |    | 41                 | 346              | 2,576       |  |
| Baker                | 3                         | 5                |    | 0                  | 3                | 11          |  |
| Bay                  | 360                       | 413              |    | 45                 | 197              | 1,015       |  |
| Bradford             | 20                        | 14               |    | 13                 | 15               | 62          |  |
| Brevard              | 746                       | 1,655            |    | 262                | 791              | 3,454       |  |
| Broward              | 5,214                     | 8,761            |    | 1,628              | 5,315            | 20,918      |  |
| Calhoun              | 5                         | 4                |    | 0                  | 0                | 9           |  |
| Charlotte            | 62                        | 36               |    | 18                 | 75               | 191         |  |
| Citrus               | 0                         | 88               |    | 0                  | 67               | 155         |  |
| Clay                 | 233                       | 248              |    | 137                | 161              | 779         |  |
| Collier              | 402                       | 762              |    | 16                 | 310              | 1,490       |  |
| Columbia             | 52                        | 34               |    | 31                 | 40               | 157         |  |
| DeSoto               | 0                         | 50               |    | 5                  | 11               | 66          |  |
| Dixie                | 1                         | 0                |    | 1                  | 1                | 3           |  |
| Duval                | 3,403                     | 4,606            |    | 626                | 1,250            | 9,885       |  |
| Escambia             | 544                       | 911              |    | 132                | 333              | 1,920       |  |
| Flagler              | 6                         | 12               |    | 1                  | 11               | 30          |  |
| Franklin             | 4                         | 4                |    | 0                  | 0                | 8           |  |
| Gadsden              | 23                        | 21               |    | 0                  | 0                | 44          |  |
| Gilchrist            | 3                         | 1                |    | 1                  | 1                | 6           |  |
| Glades               | 0                         | 4                |    | 0                  | 1                | 5           |  |
| Gulf                 | 12                        | 5                |    | 0                  | 0                | 17          |  |
| Hamilton             | 7                         | 2                |    | 3                  | 3                | 15          |  |
| Hardee               | 0                         | 43               |    | 5                  | 10               | 58          |  |
| Hendry               | 0                         | 50               |    | 5                  | 11               | 66          |  |
| Hernando             | 65                        | 36               |    | 26                 | 81               | 208         |  |
| Highlands            | 0                         | 121              |    | 42                 | 68               | 231         |  |
| Hillsborough         | 4,225                     | 6,696            |    | 1,154              | 3,060            | 15,135      |  |
| Holmes               | 5                         | 2                |    | 3                  | 3                | 13          |  |
| Indian River         | 51                        | 155              |    | 47                 | 135              | 388         |  |
| Jackson              | 55                        | 25               |    | 0                  | 0                | 80          |  |
| Jefferson            | 15                        | 7                |    | 0                  | 6                | 28          |  |
| Lafayette            | 1                         | 2                |    | 1                  | 1                | 5           |  |
| Lake                 | 234                       | 143              |    | 169                | 199              | 745         |  |
| Lee                  | 326                       | 1,015            |    | 223                | 644              | 2,208       |  |
| Leon                 | 891                       | 1,102            |    | 36                 | 308              | 2,337       |  |
| Levy                 | 0                         | 43               |    | 0                  | 17               | 60          |  |
| Liberty              | 0                         | 0                |    | 0                  | 0                | 0           |  |
| Madison              | 15                        | 5                |    | 11                 | 10               | 41          |  |
| Manatee              | 483                       | 684              |    | 230                | 512              | 1,909       |  |
| Marion               | 113                       | 308              |    | 120                | 215              | 756         |  |
| Martin               | 47                        | 158              |    | 110                | 205              | 520         |  |
| Miami-Dade           | 6,823                     | 15,112           |    | 2,768              | 10,266           | 34,969      |  |
| *Note: Cost burdened | households are those with | h a housing burd | en | of 40 percent or m | ore of income an | d household |  |

### Table III-8a. Multi-family renter households by age of householder and cost burden\*

|            |            | Households, 2001 |   |            |        |        |  |  |  |
|------------|------------|------------------|---|------------|--------|--------|--|--|--|
|            | Age 15-5   | 54               |   | Age 55+    |        |        |  |  |  |
|            | Cost burde | en               |   | Cost burde | n      |        |  |  |  |
| County     | 40-49%     | 50% +            | Ţ | 40-49%     | 50%+   | Tota   |  |  |  |
|            |            |                  |   |            |        |        |  |  |  |
| Monroe     | 82         | 156              |   | 2          | 44     | 284    |  |  |  |
| Nassau     | 35         | 37               |   | 28         | 34     | 134    |  |  |  |
| Okaloosa   | 182        | 278              | _ | 44         | 152    | 656    |  |  |  |
| Okeechobee | 3          | 1                |   | 1          | 3      | 8      |  |  |  |
| Orange     | 5,708      | 7,289            |   | 1,116      | 2,461  | 16,574 |  |  |  |
| Osceola    | 300        | 934              |   | 136        | 402    | 1,772  |  |  |  |
| Palm Beach | 2,126      | 3,484            |   | 982        | 2,727  | 9,319  |  |  |  |
| Pasco      | 406        | 230              |   | 237        | 547    | 1,420  |  |  |  |
| Pinellas   | 2,203      | 3,630            |   | 1,548      | 2,954  | 10,335 |  |  |  |
| Polk       | 555        | 1,053            |   | 192        | 733    | 2,533  |  |  |  |
| Putnam     | 47         | 32               |   | 33         | 42     | 154    |  |  |  |
| St. Johns  | 131        | 225              |   | 23         | 158    | 537    |  |  |  |
| St. Lucie  | 134        | 150              |   | 77         | 19     | 380    |  |  |  |
| Santa Rosa | 79         | 133              |   | 18         | 44     | 274    |  |  |  |
| Sarasota   | 400        | 789              |   | 162        | 519    | 1,870  |  |  |  |
| Seminole   | 1,001      | 1,741            |   | 313        | 1,099  | 4,154  |  |  |  |
| Sumter     | 0          | 50               |   | 0          | 41     | 91     |  |  |  |
| Suwannee   | 16         | 10               |   | 13         | 18     | 57     |  |  |  |
| Taylor     | 13         | 8                |   | 8          | 11     | 4(     |  |  |  |
| Union      | 4          | 2                |   | 2          | 3      | 11     |  |  |  |
| Volusia    | 551        | 1,594            |   | 319        | 815    | 3,279  |  |  |  |
| Wakulla    | 5          | 6                |   | 0          | 2      | 13     |  |  |  |
| Walton     | 25         | 30               |   | 4          | 15     | 74     |  |  |  |
| Washington | 3          | 1                |   | 1          | 3      | 8      |  |  |  |
| Florida    | 39,436     | 66,417           |   | 13,169     | 37,528 | 156,55 |  |  |  |

# Table III-8a. Multi-family renter households by age of householder and cost burden (continued)\*

|                              |                            | Change             | in households, 2001-20   | 002                 |               |
|------------------------------|----------------------------|--------------------|--------------------------|---------------------|---------------|
|                              | Age 1                      | 5-54               | Age                      | 55+                 |               |
|                              | Cost bu                    | ırden              | Cost b                   | urden               |               |
| County                       | 40-49%                     | 50% +              | 40-49%                   | 50%+                | Total         |
| Alachua                      | 14                         | 14                 | 1                        | . 9                 | 38            |
| Baker                        | 0                          | 0                  | 0                        | 0                   | 0             |
| Bay                          | 6                          | 2                  | 2                        | 6                   | 16            |
| Bradford                     | 0                          | 0                  | 0                        | 0                   | 0             |
| Brevard                      | 5                          | 19                 | 7                        | 24                  | 55            |
| Broward                      | 38                         | 66                 | 42                       | 131                 | 277           |
| Calhoun                      | 0                          | 0                  | 0                        | 0 0                 | 0             |
| Charlotte                    | 2                          | 1                  | 1                        | 3                   | 7             |
| Citrus                       | 0                          | 1                  | 0                        | 2                   | 3             |
| Clay                         | 3                          | 3                  | 8                        | 3 9                 | 23            |
| Collier                      | 5                          | 11                 | 1                        | 12                  | 29            |
| Columbia                     | 0                          | 0                  | 2                        | 2 2                 | 4             |
| DeSoto                       | 0                          | 0                  | 1                        | . 1                 | 2             |
| Dixie                        | 0                          | 1                  | (                        | ) 0                 | 1             |
| Duval                        | 19                         | 27                 | 18                       | 3 34                | 98            |
| Escambia                     | 1                          | 3                  | 3                        | 3 7                 | 14            |
| Flagler                      | 0                          | 0                  | (                        | ) 1                 | 1             |
| Franklin                     | 0                          | 0                  | (                        | ) 0                 | 0             |
| Gadsden                      | 0                          | 0                  | (                        | ) 0                 | 0             |
| Gilchrist                    | 0                          | 0                  | 0                        | ) 0                 | 0             |
| Glades                       | 0                          | 0                  | (                        | ) 0                 | 0             |
| Gulf                         | 0                          | 1                  | (                        | ) 0                 | 1             |
| Hamilton                     | 0                          | 0                  | (                        | ) 0                 | 0             |
| Hardee                       | 0                          | 0                  | (                        | ) 1                 | 1             |
| Hendry                       | 0                          | 1                  | 1                        | 1                   | 3             |
| Hernando                     | 1                          | 0                  | 2                        | 2 4                 | 7             |
| Highlands                    | 0                          | 0                  | 2                        | 2 2                 | 4             |
| Hillsborough                 | 26                         | 42                 | 36                       | 5 97                | 201           |
| Holmes                       | 0                          | 0                  | 1                        | 0                   | 1             |
| Indian River                 | 0                          | 1                  | 2                        | 2 2                 | 5             |
| Jackson                      | 2                          | 0                  | (                        | ) 0                 | 2             |
| Jefferson                    | 0                          | 0                  | (                        | ) 0                 | 0             |
| Lafayette                    | 0                          | 0                  | (                        | ) 0                 | 0             |
| Lake                         | 4                          | 2                  | 5                        | 5 6                 | 17            |
| Lee                          | 5                          | 17                 | 8                        | 8 19                | 49            |
| Leon                         | 14                         | 19                 | 2                        | 2 11                | 46            |
| Levy                         | 0                          | 0                  | (                        | ) 0                 | 0             |
| Liberty                      | 0                          | 0                  | (                        | ) 0                 | 0             |
| Madison                      | 1                          | 0                  | (                        | ) 0                 | 1             |
| Manatee                      | 3                          | 5                  | 6                        | 5 15                | 29            |
| Marion                       | 3                          | 5                  | 6                        | 5 9                 | 23            |
| Martin                       | 1                          | 4                  | 5                        | 6                   | 16            |
| Miami-Dade                   | 33                         | 80                 | 52                       | 199                 | 364           |
| *Note: Cost burdened house   | holds are those with a hou | using burden of 40 | percent or more of incon | ne and household ir | icome between |
| 20 and 60 percent of adjuste | d area median.             | C I                | •                        |                     |               |

# Table III-8b. Multi-family renter households by age of householder and cost burden (continued)\*

|            |         | Change | ouseholds, 2001-20 | ıseholds, 2001-2002 |       |       |
|------------|---------|--------|--------------------|---------------------|-------|-------|
|            | Age 15  | 5-54   |                    | Age 5               | 5+    |       |
|            | Cost bu | rden   |                    | Cost bu             | rden  |       |
| County     | 40-49%  | 50% +  |                    | 40-49%              | 50% + | Total |
| Monroe     | 0       | 0      | _                  | 0                   | 2     | 2     |
| Nassau     | 0       | 1      |                    | 2                   | 1     | 4     |
| Okaloosa   | 3       | 3      |                    | 2                   | 4     | 12    |
| Okeechobee | 0       | 0      |                    | 0                   | 0     | 0     |
| Orange     | 83      | 107    |                    | 46                  | 100   | 336   |
| Osceola    | 7       | 19     |                    | 7                   | 21    | 54    |
| Palm Beach | 23      | 36     |                    | 29                  | 80    | 168   |
| Pasco      | 0       | 0      |                    | 4                   | 13    | 17    |
| Pinellas   | 0       | -1     |                    | 25                  | 40    | 64    |
| Polk       | 6       | 8      |                    | 3                   | 22    | 39    |
| Putnam     | 1       | 0      |                    | 0                   | 1     | 2     |
| St. Johns  | 2       | 5      |                    | 2                   | 8     | 17    |
| St. Lucie  | 3       | 2      |                    | 2                   | 1     | 8     |
| Santa Rosa | 0       | 1      |                    | 1                   | 1     | 3     |
| Sarasota   | 2       | 5      |                    | 4                   | 12    | 23    |
| Seminole   | 11      | 22     |                    | 14                  | 48    | 95    |
| Sumter     | 0       | 1      |                    | 0                   | 1     | 2     |
| Suwannee   | 0       | 0      |                    | 1                   | 0     | 1     |
| Taylor     | 0       | 0      |                    | 0                   | 0     | 0     |
| Union      | 0       | 0      |                    | 0                   | 0     | 0     |
| Volusia    | 5       | 11     |                    | 6                   | 20    | 42    |
| Wakulla    | 0       | 0      |                    | 0                   | 0     | 0     |
| Walton     | 0       | 1      |                    | 0                   | 3     | 4     |
| Washington | 0       | 0      |                    | 0                   | 0     | 0     |
| Florida    | 332     | 546    |                    | 362                 | 991   | 2,231 |

### Table III-8b. Multi-family renter households by age of householder and cost burden (continued)\*

|                               |                           | Change             | in households, 2002-20   | 07                  |       |  |
|-------------------------------|---------------------------|--------------------|--------------------------|---------------------|-------|--|
|                               | Age 15                    | 5-54               | Age 55+                  |                     |       |  |
|                               | Cost bu                   | rden               | Cost bu                  | ırden               |       |  |
| County                        | 40-49%                    | 50% +              | 40-49%                   | 50% +               | Total |  |
| Alachua                       | 73                        | 90                 | 6                        | 52                  | 221   |  |
| Baker                         | 1                         | 2                  | 0                        | 2                   | 5     |  |
| Bay                           | 11                        | 13                 | 7                        | 34                  | 65    |  |
| Bradford                      | 0                         | 0                  | 1                        | 3                   | 4     |  |
| Brevard                       | 35                        | 68                 | 42                       | 127                 | 272   |  |
| Broward                       | 191                       | 315                | 222                      | 732                 | 1,460 |  |
| Calhoun                       | 0                         | 0                  | 0                        | 0                   | 0     |  |
| Charlotte                     | 3                         | 2                  | 2                        | 9                   | 16    |  |
| Citrus                        | 0                         | 4                  | 0                        | 11                  | 15    |  |
| Clay                          | 18                        | 18                 | 39                       | 48                  | 123   |  |
| Collier                       | 32                        | 59                 | 3                        | 75                  | 169   |  |
| Columbia                      | 3                         | 2                  | 5                        | 9                   | 19    |  |
| DeSoto                        | 0                         | 1                  | 1                        | 1                   | 3     |  |
| Dixie                         | 0                         | 0                  | 0                        | 0                   | 0     |  |
| Duval                         | 90                        | 120                | 88                       | 179                 | 477   |  |
| Escambia                      | 11                        | 16                 | 16                       | 42                  | 85    |  |
| Flagler                       | 1                         | 1                  | 1                        | 4                   | 7     |  |
| Franklin                      | 0                         | 0                  | 0                        | 0                   | 0     |  |
| Gadsden                       | 1                         | 1                  | 0                        | 0                   | 2     |  |
| Gilchrist                     | 0                         | 0                  | 1                        | 1                   | 2     |  |
| Glades                        | 0                         | 1                  | 0                        | 0                   | 1     |  |
| Gulf                          | 0                         | 0                  | 0                        | 0                   | 0     |  |
| Hamilton                      | 1                         | 1                  | 2                        | 2                   | 6     |  |
| Hardee                        | 0                         | 0                  | 1                        | 1                   | 2     |  |
| Hendry                        | 0                         | 1                  | 1                        | 1                   | 3     |  |
| Hernando                      | 5                         | 2                  | 4                        | 13                  | 24    |  |
| Highlands                     | 0                         | 4                  | 5                        | 10                  | 19    |  |
| Hillsborough                  | 123                       | 192                | 199                      | 525                 | 1,039 |  |
| Holmes                        | 0                         | 0                  | 0                        | 0                   | 0     |  |
| Indian River                  | 0                         | 7                  | 5                        | 19                  | 31    |  |
| Jackson                       | 0                         | 1                  | 0                        | 0                   | 1     |  |
| Jefferson                     | 0                         | 0                  | 0                        | 1                   | 1     |  |
| Lafayette                     | 0                         | 0                  | 0                        | 0                   | 0     |  |
| Lake                          | 13                        | 8                  | 31                       | 37                  | 89    |  |
| Lee                           | 18                        | 52                 | 39                       | 110                 | 219   |  |
| Leon                          | 73                        | 91                 | 8                        | 69                  | 241   |  |
| Levy                          | 0                         | 2                  | 0                        | 3                   | 5     |  |
| Liberty                       | 0                         | 0                  | 0                        | 0                   | 0     |  |
| Madison                       | 0                         | 0                  | 0                        | 0                   | 0     |  |
| Manatee                       | 20                        | 27                 | 32                       | 69                  | 148   |  |
| Marion                        | 5                         | 15                 | 23                       | 40                  | 83    |  |
| Martin                        | 2                         | 5                  | 18                       | 32                  | 57    |  |
| Miami-Dade                    | 158                       | 340                | 297                      | 1,095               | 1,890 |  |
| *Note: Cost burdened househ   | olds are those with a hou | using burden of 40 | percent or more of incon | ne and household in | ncome |  |
| between 20 percent and 60 per | cent of adjusted area me  | dian.              |                          |                     |       |  |

# Table III-8c. Multi-family renter households by age of householder and cost burden (continued)\*

|            |           | Change in | n households, 2002-2 | 007   |        |
|------------|-----------|-----------|----------------------|-------|--------|
|            | Age 15-5  | 54        | Age 5                | 5+    |        |
|            | Cost burd | len       | Cost bu              |       |        |
| County     | 40-49%    | 50% +     | 40-49%               | 50% + | Total  |
|            |           |           |                      |       |        |
| Monroe     | 0         | 1         | 1                    | 4     | 6      |
| Nassau     | 2         | 2         | 8                    | 8     | 20     |
| Okaloosa   | 9         | 17        | 8                    | 29    | 63     |
| Okeechobee | 0         | 0         | 0                    | 0     | 0      |
| Orange     | 404       | 513       | 241                  | 537   | 1,695  |
| Osceola    | 30        | 96        | 35                   | 102   | 263    |
| Palm Beach | 95        | 156       | 148                  | 415   | 814    |
| Pasco      | 16        | 10        | 28                   | 65    | 119    |
| Pinellas   | -8        | -20       | 116                  | 228   | 316    |
| Polk       | 13        | 27        | 29                   | 104   | 173    |
| Putnam     | 1         | 0         | 4                    | 4     | 9      |
| St. Johns  | 10        | 14        | 6                    | 35    | 65     |
| St. Lucie  | 8         | 9         | 16                   | 4     | 37     |
| Santa Rosa | 7         | 12        | 3                    | 12    | 34     |
| Sarasota   | 8         | 12        | 21                   | 67    | 108    |
| Seminole   | 61        | 104       | 73                   | 257   | 495    |
| Sumter     | 0         | 4         | 0                    | 10    | 14     |
| Suwannee   | 1         | 2         | 3                    | 4     | 10     |
| Taylor     | 0         | 0         | 1                    | 0     | 1      |
| Union      | 0         | 0         | 1                    | 0     | 1      |
| Volusia    | 22        | 65        | 41                   | 107   | 235    |
| Wakulla    | 1         | 1         | 0                    | 0     | 2      |
| Walton     | 2         | 1         | 1                    | 3     | 7      |
| Washington | 0         | 0         | 0                    | 0     | 0      |
| Florida    | 1,570     | 2,487     | 1,883                | 5,351 | 11,291 |

### Table III-8c. Multi-family renter households by age of householder and cost burden (continued)\*

\*Note: Cost burdened households are those with a housing burden of 40 percent or more of income and household income between 20 percent and 60 percent of adjusted area median.

The older households are highly concentrated within a few Florida counties. Over 25 percent of the state's cost burdened multi-family renter households age 55-and-over are found in Miami-Dade County, almost 14 percent in Broward, over 8 percent each in Hillsborough and Pinellas, and over 7 percent each in Orange and Palm Beach. Together, these six counties contain 70 percent of the cost burdened 55-and-over population.

However, in a number of different counties of varying sizes, older households make up a disproportionately large share of multi-family cost burdened households. To place the relative relationship of the two age groups in perspective, less than one-quarter of Florida's renter householders were over 54 in the 2000 Census. In 2001 state-wide, 32 percent of multi-family households were over 54. Thus, counties with more than 40 percent of their estimated multi-family cost burdened households in the 55 and over category are above the state's average

composition of a renter or multi-family household. These counties include Charlotte, Citrus, Columbia, Flagler, Highlands, Indian River, Lake, Marion, Martin, Nassau, Pasco, Pinellas, Putnam, and Sumter.

This trend is likely to continue. As Florida's population ages, increases in cost burdened, multi-family households from 2002 through the year 2007 are projected to be higher in the age 55-and-over category than in the 15-54 category. Of the total projected increase in cost burdened households, 64 percent of households are projected to fall within the aged 55-and-over category. Following current population and projected growth, the largest increases in aged 55-and-over households are projected to be in Broward, Hillsborough, Miami-Dade, Orange, and Palm Beach Counties.

#### Summary: Need as Indicated by Cost Burden

While cost burden may not be a direct measure of the number of households that would move into housing provided through FHFC programs, it does indicate the nature and location of the need. It is apparent from the estimates and projections of cost burden for multi-family rental households that the greatest number of cost burdened households in 2001 are located in the largest counties. Each of those counties has a cost burden number that exceeds 9,000. The numbers in Miami-Dade (34,969), Broward (20,918), Orange (16,574), and Hillsborough (15,135) are the largest. Those four counties are also expected to have the greatest growth in cost burdened households in 2001, with Volusia, Brevard, and Seminole Counties exceeding 3,000 households. Among the medium counties, the greatest growth in cost burdened households through the year 2007 is projected for Seminole, Brevard and Osceola.

Those with the lowest incomes face the most severe housing needs. Statewide, over 62 percent of all cost burdened multi-family renters have incomes between 20 and 39 percent AMI. Of the large counties. Miami-Dade and Pinellas exceed that state average. Moreover, a number of medium and small counties have in excess of 70 percent of their cost burdened households in this income range. The next most significant amount of need is in the 40-49 percent income category. These counties may require special efforts to provide housing for those at the lowest income levels.

The distribution of multi-family cost burden by size of household indicates that the bulk of cost burdened households are in the 1-2 person category. Conversely, there are substantially fewer cost burdened households with 5 or more members. Almost one-half of the cost burdened households with 5 or more persons are in Miami-Dade County (2,356 of 5,298 in 2001). There may not be sufficient demand for a substantial number of units for this size household in counties other than Miami-Dade, Broward, Hillsborough, and Orange; all of these counties contain more than 500 such households.

In 2001, 70 percent of the state's cost burdened multi-family households aged 55 and over in 2001 are located in six large counties: Miami-Dade, Broward, Hillsborough, Orange, Palm Beach and Pinellas. Other counties with more than 1,000 cost burdened multi-family

households over 54 include Brevard, Duval, Seminole, and Volusia. These counties will demonstrate a substantial and growing demand for projects targeted to elders over the next several years; almost 64 percent of the growth of cost burdened multi-family households through 2007 will take place in the over 54 age group.

### **IV. Cost Burden Appendix**

The following tables and maps supplement the text, tables, and charts found in the previous section. The maps show the numbers of all cost burdened and multi-family cost burdened households by Florida county in 2001 and the projected growth of each over the 2001-2007 period. Most of the tables below elaborate on the data presented earlier by showing the percentage of a county's total cost burdened households contained in a particular income, household size, or age category. The final two tables show the percentage of the state's share of multi-family households in 2001 and the projected growth in households from 2001 to 2007 contained in each county.

Map IV-1. All cost burdened renter households by county, 2001\*



Map IV-2. Multi-family cost burdened renter households by county, 2001\*



Map IV-3. Growth in all cost burdened renter households, 2001-2007\*





Map IV-4. Growth in multi-family cost burdened renter households, 2001-2007\*

|              | Households, 2001 |                    |           |          |                 |        |              |            |          |        |  |  |
|--------------|------------------|--------------------|-----------|----------|-----------------|--------|--------------|------------|----------|--------|--|--|
|              | (                | Cost burde         | en 40-49% |          |                 |        | Cost burde   | en 50+ %   |          |        |  |  |
|              | Perce            | nt of area         | median in | come     | F               | Percei | nt of area i | nedian inc | come     |        |  |  |
| County       | 20-39%           | 40-49%             | 50-60%    | Subtotal | 20-             | 39%    | 40-49%       | 50-60%     | Subtotal | Total  |  |  |
|              |                  |                    |           |          |                 |        |              |            |          |        |  |  |
| Alachua      | 16.83            | 12.36              | 7.19      | 36.38    | 4               | 55.45  | 4.40         | 3.77       | 63.62    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Baker        | 18.14            | 11.27              | 7.84      | 37.25    | 4               | 55.88  | 4.41         | 2.45       | 62.75    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Bay          | 16.42            | 12.09              | 10.60     | 39.11    | 2               | 46.38  | 10.03        | 4.48       | 60.89    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Bradford     | 28.14            | 12.12              | 6.49      | 46.75    | 2               | 49.35  | 3.03         | 0.87       | 53.25    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Brevard      | 13.65            | 11.89              | 7.79      | 33.34    |                 | 55.69  | 8.56         | 2.41       | 66.66    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Broward      | 11.07            | 11.21              | 10.71     | 32.99    | 2               | 48.60  | 11.77        | 6.64       | 67.01    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Calhoun      | 41.76            | 2.20               | 4.40      | 48.35    | 4               | 42.86  | 8.79         | 0.00       | 51.65    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Charlotte    | 8.09             | 14.62              | 14.81     | 37.52    | 3               | 37.20  | 21.71        | 3.58       | 62.48    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Citrus       | 7.35             | 8.12               | 7.78      | 23.25    |                 | 53.25  | 10.68        | 2.82       | 76.75    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Clay         | 21.29            | 9.91               | 16.50     | 47.70    | 4               | 40.72  | 9.71         | 1.86       | 52.30    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Collier      | 4.60             | 10.94              | 11.45     | 27.00    | 2               | 47.39  | 17.43        | 8.18       | 73.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Columbia     | 28.06            | 12.10              | 6.29      | 46.45    | 2               | 49.52  | 3.23         | 0.81       | 53.55    | 100.00 |  |  |
| DeSoto       | 21.93            | 10.70              | 12.30     | 44.92    | 4               | 45.72  | 7.75         | 1.60       | 55.08    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Dixie        | 52.83            | 11.32              | 0.00      | 64.15    | 3               | 35.85  | 0.00         | 0.00       | 35.85    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Duval        | 19.51            | 13.12              | 9.09      | 41.72    | 2               | 45.35  | 9.49         | 3.44       | 58.28    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Escambia     | 17.69            | 10.71              | 6.33      | 34.74    | 4               | 55.87  | 7.44         | 1.95       | 65.26    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Flagler      | 11.62            | 10.42              | 11.62     | 33.67    | 3               | 39.68  | 16.03        | 10.62      | 66.33    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Franklin     | 41.38            | 0.00               | 5.75      | 47.13    | 2               | 43.68  | 9.20         | 0.00       | 52.87    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Gadsden      | 40.20            | 1.96               | 6.86      | 49.02    | 4               | 43.14  | 7.84         | 0.00       | 50.98    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Gilchrist    | 35.29            | 5.88               | 7.35      | 48.53    | 4               | 50.00  | 1.47         | 0.00       | 51.47    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Glades       | 29.35            | 13.04              | 7.61      | 50.00    | 4               | 44.57  | 3.26         | 2.17       | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Gulf         | 37.50            | 6.25               | 1.79      | 45.54    | 4               | 41.07  | 6.25         | 7.14       | 54.46    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hamilton     | 48.19            | 9.64               | 1.20      | 59.04    |                 | 39.76  | 1.20         | 0.00       | 40.96    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hardee       | 20.07            | 9.21               | 12.83     | 42.11    | 4               | 48.68  | 7.24         | 1.97       | 57.89    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hendry       | 22.25            | 13.20              | 10.76     | 46.21    | 2               | 47.43  | 4.89         | 1.47       | 53.79    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hernando     | 12.98            | 12.85              | 4.09      | 29.92    |                 | 50.03  | 12.85        | 7.20       | 70.08    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Highlands    | 26.85            | 9.87               | 7.70      | 44.42    |                 | 50.44  | 3.85         | 1.28       | 55.58    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hillsborough | 11.25            | 14.30              | 10.93     | 36.48    | 4               | 49.72  | 10.06        | 3.73       | 63.52    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Holmes       | 37.68            | 5.07               | 7.25      | 50.00    | 2               | 48.55  | 1.45         | 0.00       | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Indian River | 10.47            | 11.35              | 10.80     | 32.61    |                 | 50.00  | 10.85        | 6.53       | 67.39    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Jackson      | 41.88            | 3.29               | 1.88      | 47.06    | 2               | 40.94  | 6.35         | 5.65       | 52.94    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Jefferson    | 33.04            | 10.71              | 1.79      | 45.54    |                 | 14.64  | 5.36         | 4.46       | 54.46    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Lafayette    | 29.79            | 10.64              | 4.26      | 44.68    |                 | 53.19  | 0.00         | 2.13       | 55.32    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Lake         | 37.95            | 11.90              | 3.06      | 52.92    |                 | 39.53  | 5.83         | 1.72       | 47.08    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Lee          | 9.68             | 11.37              | 10.97     | 32.02    |                 | 49.62  | 11.10        | 7.27       | 67.98    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Leon         | 16.47            | 12.73              | 6.37      | 35.57    |                 | 55.76  | 4.52         | 4.14       | 64.43    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Levy         | 12.05            | 7.83               | 5.72      | 25.60    |                 | 58.07  | 6.02         | 0.30       | /4.40    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Liberty      | 25.00            | 11.54              | 1.92      | 38.46    |                 | 44.23  | 9.62         | 7.69       | 61.54    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Madison      | 45.10            | 7.84               | 1.96      | 54.90    | 2               | 13.79  | 1.31         | 0.00       | 45.10    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Manatee      | 13.95            | 13.35              | 8.83      | 36.13    |                 | 50.31  | 9.92         | 3.64       | 63.87    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Marion       | 12.13            | 14.54              | 7.95      | 34.62    |                 | 50.28  | 8.45         | 6.64       | 65.38    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Martin       | 8.61             | 11.12              | 13.45     | 33.18    |                 | +0.59  | 23.49        | 2.74       | 66.82    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Witami-Dade  | 11.36            | 9.15<br>usebolda a | 7.65      | 28.15    | ing hurden of 4 | 0.05   | 11.83        | 5.9'       | /1.85    | 100.00 |  |  |

### Table IV-1a. All cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and percent of income\*

|               | Households, 2001 |            |            |            |           |              |              |            |            |        |  |
|---------------|------------------|------------|------------|------------|-----------|--------------|--------------|------------|------------|--------|--|
|               | (                | Cost burde | en 40-49%  | )          |           |              | Cost burde   | n 50+ %    |            |        |  |
|               | Perce            | nt of area | median in  | come       |           | Perce        | nt of area n | nedian inc | ome        |        |  |
| County        | 20-39%           | 40-49%     | 50-60%     | Subtotal   |           | 20-39%       | 40-49%       | 50-60%     | Subtotal   | Total  |  |
|               |                  |            |            |            |           |              |              |            |            |        |  |
| Monroe        | 4.68             | 11.80      | 10.21      | 26.68      |           | 48.18        | 16.93        | 8.21       | 73.32      | 100.00 |  |
| Nassau        | 25.65            | 8.86       | 12.73      | 47.23      |           | 38.93        | 10.89        | 2.95       | 52.77      | 100.00 |  |
| Okaloosa      | 18.70            | 9.58       | 9.45       | 37.73      |           | 52.18        | 5.79         | 4.30       | 62.27      | 100.00 |  |
| Okeechobee    | 24.20            | 11.56      | 3.00       | 38.76      |           | 53.96        | 5.57         | 1.71       | 61.24      | 100.00 |  |
| Orange        | 9.39             | 16.06      | 13.80      | 39.25      |           | 43.69        | 12.70        | 4.37       | 60.75      | 100.00 |  |
| Osceola       | 4.68             | 19.28      | 8.76       | 32.73      |           | 45.37        | 18.25        | 3.65       | 67.27      | 100.00 |  |
| Palm Beach    | 12.84            | 10.75      | 10.01      | 33.60      |           | 46.43        | 12.72        | 7.25       | 66.40      | 100.00 |  |
| Pasco         | 19.81            | 13.22      | 8.95       | 41.98      |           | 47.16        | 9.49         | 1.37       | 58.02      | 100.00 |  |
| Pinellas      | 12.25            | 13.38      | 10.27      | 35.91      |           | 48.63        | 11.28        | 4.18       | 64.09      | 100.00 |  |
| Polk          | 16.51            | 10.18      | 7.83       | 34.53      |           | 54.89        | 7.05         | 3.54       | 65.47      | 100.00 |  |
| Putnam        | 36.76            | 5.36       | 6.55       | 48.66      |           | 49.70        | 1.64         | 0.00       | 51.34      | 100.00 |  |
| St. Johns     | 11.01            | 11.07      | 11.51      | 33.59      |           | 43.58        | 13.35        | 9.49       | 66.41      | 100.00 |  |
| St. Lucie     | 12.28            | 15.98      | 9.43       | 37.70      |           | 44.87        | 15.59        | 1.83       | 62.30      | 100.00 |  |
| Santa Rosa    | 19.09            | 10.16      | 5.69       | 34.94      |           | 56.40        | 6.57         | 2.10       | 65.06      | 100.00 |  |
| Sarasota      | 9.94             | 11.22      | 11.47      | 32.63      |           | 43.61        | 17.89        | 5.88       | 67.37      | 100.00 |  |
| Seminole      | 9.32             | 15.19      | 7.22       | 31.73      |           | 46.85        | 18.03        | 3.38       | 68.27      | 100.00 |  |
| Sumter        | 6.31             | 7.43       | 7.88       | 21.62      |           | 62.84        | 12.61        | 2.93       | 78.38      | 100.00 |  |
| Suwannee      | 36.59            | 5.99       | 6.94       | 49.53      |           | 49.53        | 0.95         | 0.00       | 50.47      | 100.00 |  |
| Taylor        | 32.39            | 9.09       | 6.82       | 48.30      |           | 49.43        | 1.14         | 1.14       | 51.70      | 100.00 |  |
| Union         | 26.67            | 10.48      | 5.71       | 42.86      |           | 53.33        | 2.86         | 0.95       | 57.14      | 100.00 |  |
| Volusia       | 7.33             | 11.31      | 10.55      | 29.18      |           | 52.76        | 11.58        | 6.48       | 70.82      | 100.00 |  |
| Wakulla       | 14.20            | 14.81      | 1.23       | 30.25      |           | 59.26        | 4.94         | 5.56       | 69.75      | 100.00 |  |
| Walton        | 17.67            | 12.50      | 8.41       | 38.58      |           | 48.28        | 10.78        | 2.37       | 61.42      | 100.00 |  |
| Washington    | 18.87            | 15.09      | 3.77       | 37.74      |           | 50.94        | 8.49         | 2.83       | 62.26      | 100.00 |  |
| <b>F</b> 1    | 10.70            | 11.02      | 0.51       | 24.05      |           | 40.77        | 11.20        | 4.00       | (5.05      | 100.00 |  |
| Florida       | 12.72            | 11.82      | 9.51       | 34.05      | • 1 1     | 49.67        | 11.29        | 4.99       | 65.95      | 100.00 |  |
| "Note: Cost b | urdened ho       | useholds a | re those w | odiusted a | ing burde | en of 40 per | cent or mor  | e of incon | ne and hou | sehold |  |
| meome betwee  | n zo percer      | n and ou p | Jercent 01 | aujusted a | rea media | a11.         |              |            |            |        |  |

### Table IV-1a. All cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|                | Change in households, 2001-2002 |            |            |             |                        |               |            |            |         |
|----------------|---------------------------------|------------|------------|-------------|------------------------|---------------|------------|------------|---------|
|                |                                 | Cost burde | en 40-49%  |             |                        | Cost b        | urden 50+  | - %        |         |
|                | Perce                           | nt of area | median in  | come        | Perce                  | ent of area n | nedian inc | ome        |         |
| County         | 20-39%                          | 40-49%     | 50-60%     | Subtotal    | 20-39%                 | 40-49%        | 50-60%     | Subtotal   | Total   |
|                |                                 |            |            |             |                        |               |            |            |         |
| Alachua        | 15.79                           | 10.53      | 7.02       | 33.33       | 59.65                  | 1.75          | 5.26       | 66.67      | 100.00  |
| Baker          | 0.00                            | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00        | 100.00                 | 0.00          | 0.00       | 100.00     | 100.00  |
| Bay            | 21.62                           | 16.22      | 8.11       | 45.95       | 40.54                  | 8.11          | 5.41       | 54.05      | 100.00  |
| Bradford       | 50.00                           | 0.00       | 50.00      | 100.00      | 0.00                   | 0.00          | 0.00       | 0.00       | 100.00  |
| Brevard        | 11.50                           | 8.85       | 6.19       | 26.55       | 61.06                  | 9.73          | 2.65       | 73.45      | 100.00  |
| Broward        | 10.93                           | 9.31       | 9.31       | 29.55       | 51.42                  | 11.74         | 7.29       | 70.45      | 100.00  |
| Calhoun        | 100.00                          | 0.00       | 0.00       | 100.00      | 0.00                   | 0.00          | 0.00       | 0.00       | 100.00  |
| Charlotte      | 10.53                           | 18.42      | 13.16      | 42.11       | 28.95                  | 23.68         | 5.26       | 57.89      | 100.00  |
| Citrus         | 4.35                            | 17.39      | 8.70       | 30.43       | 56.52                  | 13.04         | 0.00       | 69.57      | 100.00  |
| Clay           | 27.27                           | 9.09       | 13.64      | 50.00       | 34.09                  | 15.91         | 0.00       | 50.00      | 100.00  |
| Collier        | 2.60                            | 11.69      | 10.39      | 24.68       | 50.65                  | 18.18         | 6.49       | 75.32      | 100.00  |
| Columbia       | 42.11                           | 0.00       | 5.26       | 47.37       | 52.63                  | 0.00          | 0.00       | 52.63      | 100.00  |
| DeSoto         | 20.00                           | 20.00      | 40.00      | 80.00       | 0.00                   | 20.00         | 0.00       | 20.00      | 100.00  |
| Dixie          | 0.00                            | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00        | 100.00                 | 0.00          | 0.00       | 100.00     | 100.00  |
| Duval          | 20.12                           | 8.54       | 9.15       | 37.80       | 52.44                  | 6.71          | 3.05       | 62.20      | 100.00  |
| Escambia       | 12.00                           | 14.00      | 2.00       | 28.00       | 60.00                  | 8.00          | 4.00       | 72.00      | 100.00  |
| Flagler        | 5.88                            | 11.76      | 11.76      | 29.41       | 47.06                  | 17.65         | 5.88       | 70.59      | 100.00  |
| Franklin       | 0.00                            | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00        | 100.00                 | 0.00          | 0.00       | 100.00     | 100.00  |
| Gadsden        | 28.57                           | 14.29      | 0.00       | 42.86       | 42.86                  | 14.29         | 0.00       | 57.14      | 100.00  |
| Gilchrist      | 50.00                           | 0.00       | 0.00       | 50.00       | 50.00                  | 0.00          | 0.00       | 50.00      | 100.00  |
| Glades         | na                              | na         | na         | na          | na                     | na            | na         | na         | na      |
| Gulf           | 66.67                           | 0.00       | 0.00       | 66.67       | 33.33                  | 0.00          | 0.00       | 33.33      | 100.00  |
| Hamilton       | 33.33                           | 33.33      | 0.00       | 66.67       | 33.33                  | 0.00          | 0.00       | 33.33      | 100.00  |
| Hardee         | 0.00                            | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00        | 0.00                   | 0.00          | 100.00     | 100.00     | 100.00  |
| Hendry         | 20.00                           | 10.00      | 20.00      | 50.00       | 30.00                  | 10.00         | 10.00      | 50.00      | 100.00  |
| Hernando       | 7.89                            | 10.53      | 7.89       | 26.32       | 50.00                  | 15.79         | 7.89       | 73.68      | 100.00  |
| Highlands      | 31.25                           | 6.25       | 12.50      | 50.00       | 43.75                  | 6.25          | 0.00       | 50.00      | 100.00  |
| Hillsborough   | 11.89                           | 11.19      | 8.39       | 31.47       | 56.64                  | 9.09          | 2.80       | 68.53      | 100.00  |
| Holmes         | 25.00                           | 0.00       | 0.00       | 25.00       | 75.00                  | 0.00          | 0.00       | 75.00      | 100.00  |
| Indian River   | 14.29                           | 10.71      | 7.14       | 32.14       | 50.00                  | 14.29         | 3.57       | 67.86      | 100.00  |
| Jackson        | 44.44                           | 0.00       | 0.00       | 44.44       | 33.33                  | 0.00          | 22.22      | 55.56      | 100.00  |
| Jefferson      | NA                              | NA         | NA         | NA          | NA                     | NA            | NA         | NA         | NA      |
| Lafayette      | 0.00                            | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00        | 100.00                 | 0.00          | 0.00       | 100.00     | 100.00  |
| Lake           | 37.50                           | 8.33       | 4.17       | 50.00       | 39.58                  | 8.33          | 2.08       | 50.00      | 100.00  |
| Lee            | 9.93                            | 12.77      | 8.51       | 31.21       | 50.35                  | 11.35         | 7.09       | 68.79      | 100.00  |
| Leon           | 13.25                           | 10.84      | 6.02       | 30.12       | 59.04                  | 4.82          | 6.02       | 69.88      | 100.00  |
| Levy           | 14.29                           | 14.29      | 0.00       | 28.57       | 57.14                  | 0.00          | 14.29      | 71.43      | 100.00  |
| Liberty        | NA                              | NA         | NA         | NA          | NA                     | NA            | NA         | NA         | NA      |
| Madison        | 100.00                          | 0.00       | 0.00       | 100.00      | 0.00                   | 0.00          | 0.00       | 0.00       | 100.00  |
| Manatee        | 10.67                           | 13.33      | 9.33       | 33.33       | 48.00                  | 13.33         | 5.33       | 66.67      | 100.00  |
| Marion         | 12.68                           | 11.27      | 8.45       | 32.39       | 53.52                  | 8.45          | 5.63       | 67.61      | 100.00  |
| Martin         | 10.71                           | 7.14       | 10.71      | 28.57       | 50.00                  | 21.43         | 0.00       | 71.43      | 100.00  |
| Miami-Dade     | 10.95                           | 7.06       | 6.92       | 24.93       | 57.78                  | 11.24         | 6.05       | 75.07      | 100.00  |
| *Note: Cost hu | irdened ho                      | useholds a | re those w | rith a hous | ing burden of $40$ per | cent or mor   | e of incon | ne and hou | isehold |

# Table IV-1b. All cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|            | Change in households, 2001-2002 |        |        |          |  |                               |        |        |          |        |
|------------|---------------------------------|--------|--------|----------|--|-------------------------------|--------|--------|----------|--------|
|            | Cost burden 40-49%              |        |        |          |  | Cost burden 50+ %             |        |        |          |        |
|            | Percent of area median income   |        |        |          |  | Percent of area median income |        |        |          |        |
| County     | 20-39%                          | 40-49% | 50-60% | Subtotal |  | 20-39%                        | 40-49% | 50-60% | Subtotal | Total  |
|            |                                 |        |        |          |  |                               |        |        |          |        |
| Monroe     | 0.00                            | 10.00  | 0.00   | 10.00    |  | 60.00                         | 30.00  | 0.00   | 90.00    | 100.00 |
| Nassau     | 25.00                           | 8.33   | 25.00  | 58.33    |  | 33.33                         | 0.00   | 8.33   | 41.67    | 100.00 |
| Okaloosa   | 13.85                           | 16.92  | 6.15   | 36.92    |  | 49.23                         | 9.23   | 4.62   | 63.08    | 100.00 |
| Okeechobee | 0.00                            | 25.00  | 25.00  | 50.00    |  | 50.00                         | 0.00   | 0.00   | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Orange     | 9.29                            | 15.77  | 11.66  | 36.72    |  | 44.49                         | 13.17  | 5.62   | 63.28    | 100.00 |
| Osceola    | 4.90                            | 16.67  | 9.80   | 31.37    |  | 49.02                         | 14.71  | 4.90   | 68.63    | 100.00 |
| Palm Beach | 11.21                           | 10.00  | 9.70   | 30.91    |  | 48.79                         | 12.42  | 7.88   | 69.09    | 100.00 |
| Pasco      | 9.68                            | 11.29  | 9.68   | 30.65    |  | 50.00                         | 19.35  | 0.00   | 69.35    | 100.00 |
| Pinellas   | 17.43                           | 10.09  | 7.34   | 34.86    |  | 49.54                         | 11.01  | 4.59   | 65.14    | 100.00 |
| Polk       | 17.48                           | 6.80   | 4.85   | 29.13    |  | 56.31                         | 10.68  | 3.88   | 70.87    | 100.00 |
| Putnam     | 50.00                           | 12.50  | 0.00   | 62.50    |  | 37.50                         | 0.00   | 0.00   | 37.50    | 100.00 |
| St. Johns  | 11.90                           | 4.76   | 9.52   | 26.19    |  | 50.00                         | 16.67  | 7.14   | 73.81    | 100.00 |
| St. Lucie  | 13.56                           | 16.95  | 8.47   | 38.98    |  | 45.76                         | 13.56  | 1.69   | 61.02    | 100.00 |
| Santa Rosa | 12.00                           | 16.00  | 4.00   | 32.00    |  | 60.00                         | 4.00   | 4.00   | 68.00    | 100.00 |
| Sarasota   | 12.86                           | 7.14   | 8.57   | 28.57    |  | 45.71                         | 21.43  | 4.29   | 71.43    | 100.00 |
| Seminole   | 8.96                            | 11.94  | 7.46   | 28.36    |  | 47.01                         | 20.90  | 3.73   | 71.64    | 100.00 |
| Sumter     | 12.50                           | 0.00   | 6.25   | 18.75    |  | 62.50                         | 12.50  | 6.25   | 81.25    | 100.00 |
| Suwannee   | 44.44                           | 0.00   | 0.00   | 44.44    |  | 55.56                         | 0.00   | 0.00   | 55.56    | 100.00 |
| Taylor     | 25.00                           | 25.00  | 0.00   | 50.00    |  | 50.00                         | 0.00   | 0.00   | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Union      | 50.00                           | 0.00   | 0.00   | 50.00    |  | 50.00                         | 0.00   | 0.00   | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Volusia    | 6.90                            | 9.48   | 9.48   | 25.86    |  | 53.45                         | 12.07  | 8.62   | 74.14    | 100.00 |
| Wakulla    | 0.00                            | 0.00   | 0.00   | 0.00     |  | 100.00                        | 0.00   | 0.00   | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Walton     | 23.08                           | 7.69   | 0.00   | 30.77    |  | 61.54                         | 0.00   | 7.69   | 69.23    | 100.00 |
| Washington | 25.00                           | 0.00   | 0.00   | 25.00    |  | 75.00                         | 0.00   | 0.00   | 75.00    | 100.00 |
| Florida    | 12.45                           | 10.57  | 8.49   | 31.52    |  | 51.48                         | 11.71  | 5.30   | 68.48    | 100.00 |
|            | 12.13                           | 10.07  | 0.17   | 51.02    |  | 21.10                         | 11./1  | 2.50   | 00.10    | 100.00 |

### Table IV-1b. All cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*
|              | (      | Cost burde | en 40-49% |          |       | Cost burde     | en 50+ %   |          |        |
|--------------|--------|------------|-----------|----------|-------|----------------|------------|----------|--------|
|              | Perce  | nt of area | median in | come     | Pe    | cent of area 1 | nedian inc | ome      |        |
| County       | 20-39% | 40-49%     | 50-60%    | Subtotal | 20-39 | % 40-49%       | 50-60%     | Subtotal | Total  |
|              |        |            |           |          |       |                |            |          |        |
| Alachua      | 14.46  | 11.75      | 6.93      | 33.13    | 58.   | 13 4.52        | 4.22       | 66.87    | 100.00 |
| Baker        | 16.00  | 8.00       | 4.00      | 28.00    | 56.   | 00 12.00       | 4.00       | 72.00    | 100.00 |
| Bay          | 18.82  | 10.75      | 6.45      | 36.02    | 52.   | 69 7.53        | 3.76       | 63.98    | 100.00 |
| Bradford     | 38.46  | 7.69       | 0.00      | 46.15    | 46.   | 15 7.69        | 0.00       | 53.85    | 100.00 |
| Brevard      | 13.12  | 11.41      | 7.33      | 31.86    | 54.   | 68 9.54        | 3.92       | 68.14    | 100.00 |
| Broward      | 11.50  | 9.09       | 9.72      | 30.31    | 51.   | 34 11.57       | 6.77       | 69.69    | 100.00 |
| Calhoun      | 33.33  | 0.00       | 0.00      | 33.33    | 58.   | 33 8.33        | 0.00       | 66.67    | 100.00 |
| Charlotte    | 9.94   | 16.15      | 14.91     | 40.99    | 29.   | 81 24.84       | 4.35       | 59.01    | 100.00 |
| Citrus       | 3.13   | 7.81       | 6.25      | 17.19    | 66.   | 41 14.84       | 1.56       | 82.81    | 100.00 |
| Clay         | 25.98  | 6.37       | 13.24     | 45.59    | 36.   | 27 15.69       | 2.45       | 54.41    | 100.00 |
| Collier      | 5.56   | 10.14      | 8.70      | 24.40    | 50.   | 00 19.08       | 6.52       | 75.60    | 100.00 |
| Columbia     | 25.76  | 12.12      | 7.58      | 45.45    | 48.   | 48 4.55        | 1.52       | 54.55    | 100.00 |
| DeSoto       | 21.43  | 0.00       | 14.29     | 35.71    | 57.   | 14 7.14        | 0.00       | 64.29    | 100.00 |
| Dixie        | 60.00  | 0.00       | 0.00      | 60.00    | 40.   | 0.00           | 0.00       | 40.00    | 100.00 |
| Duval        | 18.25  | 10.23      | 8.51      | 36.99    | 53.   | 14 7.03        | 2.84       | 63.01    | 100.00 |
| Escambia     | 14.49  | 9.78       | 6.16      | 30.43    | 58.   | 33 8.70        | 2.54       | 69.57    | 100.00 |
| Flagler      | 13.73  | 9.80       | 7.84      | 31.37    | 43.   | 14 13.73       | 11.76      | 68.63    | 100.00 |
| Franklin     | 45.45  | 0.00       | 9.09      | 54.55    | 36.   | 36 9.09        | 0.00       | 45.45    | 100.00 |
| Gadsden      | 40.63  | 3.13       | 12.50     | 56.25    | 37.   | 50 6.25        | 0.00       | 43.75    | 100.00 |
| Gilchrist    | 41.67  | 8.33       | 8.33      | 58.33    | 41.   | 67 0.00        | 0.00       | 41.67    | 100.00 |
| Glades       | 44.44  | 0.00       | 0.00      | 44.44    | 55.   | 56 0.00        | 0.00       | 55.56    | 100.00 |
| Gulf         | 0.00   | 20.00      | 0.00      | 20.00    | 60.   | 00 20.00       | 0.00       | 80.00    | 100.00 |
| Hamilton     | 46.67  | 6.67       | 0.00      | 53.33    | 46.   | 67 0.00        | 0.00       | 46.67    | 100.00 |
| Hardee       | 20.00  | 0.00       | 20.00     | 40.00    | 40.   | 00 20.00       | 0.00       | 60.00    | 100.00 |
| Hendry       | 19.05  | 9.52       | 14.29     | 42.86    | 57.   | 14 0.00        | 0.00       | 57.14    | 100.00 |
| Hernando     | 9.38   | 11.46      | 5.73      | 26.56    | 48.   | 44 15.10       | 9.90       | 73.44    | 100.00 |
| Highlands    | 26.15  | 7.69       | 6.15      | 40.00    | 52.   | 31 7.69        | 0.00       | 60.00    | 100.00 |
| Hillsborough | 12.65  | 11.36      | 7.59      | 31.60    | 56.   | 46 8.50        | 3.44       | 68.40    | 100.00 |
| Holmes       | 50.00  | 16.67      | 16.67     | 83.33    | 16.   | 67 0.00        | 0.00       | 16.67    | 100.00 |
| Indian River | 9.94   | 9.94       | 8.07      | 27.95    | 53.   | 42 12.42       | 6.21       | 72.05    | 100.00 |
| Jackson      | 28.57  | 4.76       | 4.76      | 38.10    | 52.   | 38 4.76        | 4.76       | 61.90    | 100.00 |
| Jefferson    | 30.00  | 0.00       | 0.00      | 30.00    | 40.   | 00 10.00       | 20.00      | 70.00    | 100.00 |
| Lafayette    | 16.67  | 0.00       | 16.67     | 33.33    | 66.   | 67 0.00        | 0.00       | 66.67    | 100.00 |
| Lake         | 38.40  | 10.13      | 1.27      | 49.79    | 40.   | 08 7.17        | 2.95       | 50.21    | 100.00 |
| Lee          | 9.85   | 10.15      | 9.85      | 29.85    | 51.   | 64 11.49       | 7.01       | 70.15    | 100.00 |
| Leon         | 12.79  | 12.33      | 5.94      | 31.05    | 60.   | 05 4.11        | 4.79       | 68.95    | 100.00 |
| Levy         | 6.06   | 6.06       | 6.06      | 18.18    | 75.   | 6.06           | 0.00       | 81.82    | 100.00 |
| Liberty      | 0.00   | 40.00      | 0.00      | 40.00    | 60.   | 0.00           | 0.00       | 60.00    | 100.00 |
| Madison      | 37.50  | 25.00      | 0.00      | 62.50    | 37.   | 50 0.00        | 0.00       | 37.50    | 100.00 |
| Manatee      | 14.25  | 14.53      | 6.98      | 35.75    | 48.   | 32 10.61       | 5.31       | 64.25    | 100.00 |
| Marion       | 13.11  | 10.93      | 5.74      | 29.78    | 55.   | 46 9.02        | 5.74       | 70.22    | 100.00 |
| Martin       | 9.03   | 8.39       | 10.97     | 28.39    | 45.   | 16 24.52       | 1.94       | 71.61    | 100.00 |
| Miami-Dade   | 10.82  | 6.84       | 7.09      | 24.75    | 58.   | 77 10.93       | 5.55       | 75.25    | 100.00 |

#### Table IV-1c. All cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|            |        |            |           | Change   | ige in households, 2002-2007 |        |              |            |          |        |
|------------|--------|------------|-----------|----------|------------------------------|--------|--------------|------------|----------|--------|
|            | (      | Cost burde | en 40-49% |          |                              |        | Cost burder  | n 50+ %    |          |        |
|            | Perce  | nt of area | median in | come     |                              | Perce  | nt of area m | nedian inc | ome      |        |
| County     | 20-39% | 40-49%     | 50-60%    | Subtotal |                              | 20-39% | 40-49%       | 50-60%     | Subtotal | Total  |
|            |        |            |           |          |                              |        |              |            |          |        |
| Monroe     | 8.45   | 12.68      | 5.63      | 26.76    |                              | 46.48  | 22.54        | 4.23       | 73.24    | 100.00 |
| Nassau     | 29.23  | 9.23       | 10.77     | 49.23    |                              | 33.85  | 13.85        | 3.08       | 50.77    | 100.00 |
| Okaloosa   | 15.09  | 10.19      | 7.92      | 33.21    |                              | 56.23  | 7.17         | 3.40       | 66.79    | 100.00 |
| Okeechobee | 6.45   | 12.90      | 3.23      | 22.58    |                              | 64.52  | 9.68         | 3.23       | 77.42    | 100.00 |
| Orange     | 9.46   | 14.99      | 11.70     | 36.15    |                              | 45.78  | 12.50        | 5.57       | 63.85    | 100.00 |
| Osceola    | 3.99   | 16.57      | 11.38     | 31.94    |                              | 46.51  | 16.57        | 4.99       | 68.06    | 100.00 |
| Palm Beach | 12.68  | 9.60       | 8.74      | 31.02    |                              | 48.80  | 12.68        | 7.51       | 68.98    | 100.00 |
| Pasco      | 16.03  | 12.54      | 8.45      | 37.03    |                              | 50.73  | 11.08        | 1.17       | 62.97    | 100.00 |
| Pinellas   | 15.61  | 8.74       | 6.69      | 31.04    |                              | 52.23  | 10.97        | 5.76       | 68.96    | 100.00 |
| Polk       | 15.98  | 8.46       | 6.77      | 31.20    |                              | 56.77  | 8.46         | 3.57       | 68.80    | 100.00 |
| Putnam     | 35.29  | 5.88       | 5.88      | 47.06    |                              | 52.94  | 0.00         | 0.00       | 52.94    | 100.00 |
| St. Johns  | 10.89  | 9.90       | 7.43      | 28.22    |                              | 47.03  | 13.86        | 10.89      | 71.78    | 100.00 |
| St. Lucie  | 10.55  | 14.35      | 5.91      | 30.80    |                              | 50.63  | 17.30        | 1.27       | 69.20    | 100.00 |
| Santa Rosa | 16.49  | 9.57       | 5.32      | 31.38    |                              | 59.57  | 7.45         | 1.60       | 68.62    | 100.00 |
| Sarasota   | 10.89  | 8.31       | 10.32     | 29.51    |                              | 46.42  | 20.92        | 3.15       | 70.49    | 100.00 |
| Seminole   | 7.48   | 13.96      | 5.76      | 27.19    |                              | 49.50  | 20.58        | 2.73       | 72.81    | 100.00 |
| Sumter     | 3.08   | 7.69       | 6.15      | 16.92    |                              | 61.54  | 20.00        | 1.54       | 83.08    | 100.00 |
| Suwannee   | 36.59  | 4.88       | 9.76      | 51.22    |                              | 48.78  | 0.00         | 0.00       | 48.78    | 100.00 |
| Taylor     | 50.00  | 25.00      | 25.00     | 100.00   |                              | 0.00   | 0.00         | 0.00       | 0.00     | 100.00 |
| Union      | 57.14  | 0.00       | 14.29     | 71.43    |                              | 28.57  | 0.00         | 0.00       | 28.57    | 100.00 |
| Volusia    | 8.25   | 10.27      | 9.93      | 28.45    |                              | 54.71  | 10.27        | 6.57       | 71.55    | 100.00 |
| Wakulla    | 10.00  | 20.00      | 0.00      | 30.00    |                              | 60.00  | 0.00         | 10.00      | 70.00    | 100.00 |
| Walton     | 19.05  | 14.29      | 7.94      | 41.27    |                              | 46.03  | 9.52         | 3.17       | 58.73    | 100.00 |
| Washington | 11.11  | 16.67      | 0.00      | 27.78    |                              | 50.00  | 16.67        | 5.56       | 72.22    | 100.00 |
| Florida    | 12.40  | 10.42      | 8.35      | 31.17    |                              | 52.23  | 11.52        | 5.08       | 68.83    | 100.00 |
|            |        |            |           |          |                              |        |              |            |          |        |

#### Table IV-1c. All cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|                |            |            |            |            | Households, 2001     |              |            |           |         |
|----------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|----------------------|--------------|------------|-----------|---------|
|                | (          | Cost burde | en 40-49%  |            |                      | Cost burde   | en 50+ %   |           |         |
|                | Perce      | nt of area | median ind | come       | Percer               | nt of area 1 | nedian inc | come      |         |
| County         | 20-39%     | 40-49%     | 50-60%     | Subtotal   | 20-39%               | 40-49%       | 50-60%     | Subtotal  | Total   |
|                |            |            |            |            |                      |              |            |           |         |
| Alachua        | 18.40      | 10.99      | 10.17      | 39.56      | 54.15                | 3.96         | 2.33       | 60.44     | 100.00  |
| Baker          | 9.09       | 0.00       | 18.18      | 27.27      | 72.73                | 0.00         | 0.00       | 72.73     | 100.00  |
| Bay            | 13.00      | 10.64      | 16.26      | 39.90      | 41.67                | 8.67         | 9.75       | 60.10     | 100.00  |
| Bradford       | 22.58      | 22.58      | 8.06       | 53.23      | 45.16                | 1.61         | 0.00       | 46.77     | 100.00  |
| Brevard        | 12.04      | 9.18       | 7.96       | 29.18      | 61.90                | 7.56         | 1.36       | 70.82     | 100.00  |
| Broward        | 8.64       | 11.84      | 12.23      | 32.71      | 47.97                | 12.50        | 6.82       | 67.29     | 100.00  |
| Calhoun        | 55.56      | 0.00       | 0.00       | 55.56      | 44.44                | 0.00         | 0.00       | 44.44     | 100.00  |
| Charlotte      | 12.04      | 13.09      | 16.75      | 41.88      | 38.22                | 14.14        | 5.76       | 58.12     | 100.00  |
| Citrus         | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00       | 91.61                | 8.39         | 0.00       | 100.00    | 100.00  |
| Clay           | 14.12      | 11.30      | 22.08      | 47.50      | 42.88                | 9.63         | 0.00       | 52.50     | 100.00  |
| Collier        | 3.62       | 8.99       | 15.44      | 28.05      | 45.77                | 16.78        | 9.40       | 71.95     | 100.00  |
| Columbia       | 22.29      | 22.93      | 7.64       | 52.87      | 44.59                | 2.55         | 0.00       | 47.13     | 100.00  |
| DeSoto         | 6.06       | 0.00       | 1.52       | 7.58       | 83.33                | 7.58         | 1.52       | 92.42     | 100.00  |
| Dixie          | 66.67      | 0.00       | 0.00       | 66.67      | 33.33                | 0.00         | 0.00       | 33.33     | 100.00  |
| Duval          | 16.86      | 14.20      | 9.69       | 40.76      | 44.32                | 11.06        | 3.86       | 59.24     | 100.00  |
| Escambia       | 12.14      | 13.33      | 9.74       | 35.21      | 51.88                | 11.51        | 1.41       | 64.79     | 100.00  |
| Flagler        | 6.67       | 10.00      | 6.67       | 23.33      | 60.00                | 6.67         | 10.00      | 76.67     | 100.00  |
| Franklin       | 50.00      | 0.00       | 0.00       | 50.00      | 50.00                | 0.00         | 0.00       | 50.00     | 100.00  |
| Gadsden        | 52.27      | 0.00       | 0.00       | 52.27      | 47.73                | 0.00         | 0.00       | 47.73     | 100.00  |
| Gilchrist      | 50.00      | 0.00       | 16.67      | 66.67      | 33.33                | 0.00         | 0.00       | 33.33     | 100.00  |
| Glades         | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00       | 80.00                | 20.00        | 0.00       | 100.00    | 100.00  |
| Gulf           | 64.71      | 5.88       | 0.00       | 70.59      | 29.41                | 0.00         | 0.00       | 29.41     | 100.00  |
| Hamilton       | 53.33      | 13.33      | 0.00       | 66.67      | 33.33                | 0.00         | 0.00       | 33.33     | 100.00  |
| Hardee         | 6.90       | 0.00       | 1.72       | 8.62       | 82.76                | 5.17         | 3.45       | 91.38     | 100.00  |
| Hendry         | 6.06       | 1.52       | 0.00       | 7.58       | 83.33                | 7.58         | 1.52       | 92.42     | 100.00  |
| Hernando       | 12.02      | 31.73      | 0.00       | 43.75      | 37.98                | 8.17         | 10.10      | 56.25     | 100.00  |
| Highlands      | 13.42      | 4.76       | 0.00       | 18.18      | 67.53                | 14.29        | 0.00       | 81.82     | 100.00  |
| Hillsborough   | 8.97       | 16.19      | 10.37      | 35.54      | 51.18                | 10.04        | 3.24       | 64.46     | 100.00  |
| Holmes         | 53.85      | 0.00       | 7.69       | 61.54      | 38.46                | 0.00         | 0.00       | 38.46     | 100.00  |
| Indian River   | 5.15       | 10.05      | 10.05      | 25.26      | 49.74                | 12.89        | 12.11      | 74.74     | 100.00  |
| Jackson        | 62.50      | 6.25       | 0.00       | 68.75      | 31.25                | 0.00         | 0.00       | 31.25     | 100.00  |
| Jefferson      | 50.00      | 3.57       | 0.00       | 53.57      | 46.43                | 0.00         | 0.00       | 46.43     | 100.00  |
| Lafayette      | 20.00      | 20.00      | 0.00       | 40.00      | 60.00                | 0.00         | 0.00       | 60.00     | 100.00  |
| Lake           | 46.31      | 7.79       | 0.00       | 54.09      | 41.74                | 0.00         | 4.16       | 45.91     | 100.00  |
| Lee            | 4.21       | 10.19      | 10.46      | 24.86      | 49.64                | 13.00        | 12.50      | 75.14     | 100.00  |
| Leon           | 18.49      | 11.04      | 10.14      | 39.67      | 54.13                | 3.94         | 2.27       | 60.33     | 100.00  |
| Levy           | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00       | 100.00               | 0.00         | 0.00       | 100.00    | 100.00  |
| Liberty        | NA         | NA         | NA         | NA         | NA                   | NA           | NA         | NA        | NA      |
| Madison        | 53.66      | 9.76       | 0.00       | 63.41      | 36.59                | 0.00         | 0.00       | 36.59     | 100.00  |
| Manatee        | 8.70       | 13.88      | 14.77      | 37.35      | 47.62                | 10.32        | 4.71       | 62.65     | 100.00  |
| Marion         | 13.36      | 3.44       | 14.02      | 30.82      | 44.44                | 8.99         | 15.74      | 69.18     | 100.00  |
| Martin         | 14.62      | 4.04       | 11.54      | 30.19      | 46.73                | 23.08        | 0.00       | 69.81     | 100.00  |
| Miami-Dade     | 11.95      | 8.47       | 7.00       | 27.43      | 54.42                | 12.46        | 5.69       | 72.57     | 100.00  |
| *Note: Cost bu | irdened ho | useholds a | re those w | ith a hous | ing burden of 40 per | cent or mo   | re of inco | me and ho | usehold |

#### Table IV-2a. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and percent of income\*

|                | (          | Cost burde | en 40-49%  |            |           |               | Cost burder  | n 50+ %     |           |        |
|----------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|-----------|---------------|--------------|-------------|-----------|--------|
|                | Perce      | nt of area | median in  | come       |           | Percei        | nt of area m | nedian inco | ome       |        |
| County         | 20-39%     | 40-49%     | 50-60%     | Subtotal   |           | 20-39%        | 40-49%       | 50-60%      | Subtotal  | Total  |
|                |            |            |            |            |           |               |              |             |           |        |
| Monroe         | 3.87       | 9.86       | 15.85      | 29.58      |           | 45.07         | 16.20        | 9.15        | 70.42     | 100.00 |
| Nassau         | 16.42      | 9.70       | 20.90      | 47.01      |           | 41.04         | 11.94        | 0.00        | 52.99     | 100.00 |
| Okaloosa       | 18.14      | 11.89      | 4.42       | 34.45      |           | 54.27         | 7.47         | 3.81        | 65.55     | 100.00 |
| Okeechobee     | 25.00      | 25.00      | 0.00       | 50.00      |           | 50.00         | 0.00         | 0.00        | 50.00     | 100.00 |
| Orange         | 8.77       | 17.67      | 14.73      | 41.17      |           | 41.54         | 13.22        | 4.07        | 58.83     | 100.00 |
| Osceola        | 0.00       | 16.93      | 7.67       | 24.60      |           | 43.91         | 27.43        | 4.06        | 75.40     | 100.00 |
| Palm Beach     | 12.00      | 10.34      | 11.01      | 33.35      |           | 43.85         | 13.74        | 9.07        | 66.65     | 100.00 |
| Pasco          | 16.97      | 16.69      | 11.62      | 45.28      |           | 50.35         | 2.46         | 1.90        | 54.72     | 100.00 |
| Pinellas       | 11.86      | 13.82      | 10.61      | 36.29      |           | 50.76         | 9.21         | 3.73        | 63.71     | 100.00 |
| Polk           | 12.20      | 7.54       | 9.75       | 29.49      |           | 51.91         | 12.16        | 6.44        | 70.51     | 100.00 |
| Putnam         | 44.81      | 0.00       | 7.14       | 51.95      |           | 46.10         | 1.95         | 0.00        | 48.05     | 100.00 |
| St. Johns      | 8.57       | 12.29      | 7.82       | 28.68      |           | 57.17         | 5.40         | 8.75        | 71.32     | 100.00 |
| St. Lucie      | 25.79      | 22.63      | 7.11       | 55.53      |           | 27.37         | 17.11        | 0.00        | 44.47     | 100.00 |
| Santa Rosa     | 12.41      | 13.50      | 9.49       | 35.40      |           | 51.82         | 11.31        | 1.46        | 64.60     | 100.00 |
| Sarasota       | 5.13       | 13.10      | 11.82      | 30.05      |           | 50.37         | 14.71        | 4.87        | 69.95     | 100.00 |
| Seminole       | 6.79       | 18.54      | 6.31       | 31.63      |           | 45.57         | 19.79        | 3.01        | 68.37     | 100.00 |
| Sumter         | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00       |           | 92.31         | 7.69         | 0.00        | 100.00    | 100.00 |
| Suwannee       | 43.86      | 0.00       | 7.02       | 50.88      |           | 49.12         | 0.00         | 0.00        | 49.12     | 100.00 |
| Taylor         | 37.50      | 7.50       | 7.50       | 52.50      |           | 45.00         | 2.50         | 0.00        | 47.50     | 100.00 |
| Union          | 18.18      | 27.27      | 9.09       | 54.55      |           | 45.45         | 0.00         | 0.00        | 45.45     | 100.00 |
| Volusia        | 8.02       | 9.91       | 8.60       | 26.53      |           | 55.47         | 12.20        | 5.79        | 73.47     | 100.00 |
| Wakulla        | 23.08      | 7.69       | 7.69       | 38.46      |           | 61.54         | 0.00         | 0.00        | 61.54     | 100.00 |
| Walton         | 13.51      | 9.46       | 16.22      | 39.19      |           | 41.89         | 9.46         | 9.46        | 60.81     | 100.00 |
| Washington     | 25.00      | 12.50      | 12.50      | 50.00      |           | 37.50         | 12.50        | 0.00        | 50.00     | 100.00 |
|                |            |            |            |            |           |               |              |             |           |        |
| Florida        | 11.12      | 12.30      | 10.19      | 33.60      |           | 49.46         | 11.82        | 5.11        | 66.40     | 100.00 |
| *Note: Cost bu | rdened hou | iseholds a | re those w | ith a hous | ing burde | en of 40 perc | cent or mor  | e of incom  | e and hou | sehold |

#### Table IV-2a. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|                | Change in households, 2001-2002 |            |            |          |                    |               |            |           |        |
|----------------|---------------------------------|------------|------------|----------|--------------------|---------------|------------|-----------|--------|
|                | (                               | Cost burde | en 40-49%  |          |                    | Cost b        | urden 50+  | %         |        |
|                | Perce                           | nt of area | median in  | come     | Perc               | ent of area n | nedian inc | ome       |        |
| County         | 20-39%                          | 40-49%     | 50-60%     | Subtotal | 20-39%             | 6 40-49%      | 50-60%     | Subtotal  | Total  |
|                |                                 |            |            |          |                    |               |            |           |        |
| Alachua        | 18.42                           | 10.53      | 10.53      | 39.47    | 55.2               | 6 2.63        | 2.63       | 60.53     | 100.00 |
| Baker          | NA                              | NA         | NA         | NA       | NA                 | A NA          | NA         | NA        | NA     |
| Bay            | 25.00                           | 12.50      | 12.50      | 50.00    | 31.2               | 5 6.25        | 12.50      | 50.00     | 100.00 |
| Bradford       | NA                              | NA         | NA         | NA       | NA                 | A NA          | NA         | NA        | NA     |
| Brevard        | 10.91                           | 3.64       | 7.27       | 21.82    | 67.2               | 7 9.09        | 1.82       | 78.18     | 100.00 |
| Broward        | 8.66                            | 9.75       | 10.47      | 28.88    | 50.5               | 4 13.36       | 7.22       | 71.12     | 100.00 |
| Calhoun        | NA                              | NA         | NA         | NA       | NA                 | A NA          | NA         | NA        | NA     |
| Charlotte      | 28.57                           | 14.29      | 0.00       | 42.86    | 28.5               | 7 14.29       | 14.29      | 57.14     | 100.00 |
| Citrus         | 0.00                            | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00     | 66.6               | 7 33.33       | 0.00       | 100.00    | 100.00 |
| Clay           | 26.09                           | 8.70       | 13.04      | 47.83    | 34.7               | 8 17.39       | 0.00       | 52.17     | 100.00 |
| Collier        | 0.00                            | 6.90       | 13.79      | 20.69    | 55.1               | 7 17.24       | 6.90       | 79.31     | 100.00 |
| Columbia       | 50.00                           | 0.00       | 0.00       | 50.00    | 50.0               | 0.00          | 0.00       | 50.00     | 100.00 |
| DeSoto         | 0.00                            | 0.00       | 50.00      | 50.00    | 0.0                | 0 50.00       | 0.00       | 50.00     | 100.00 |
| Dixie          | 0.00                            | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00     | 100.0              | 0.00          | 0.00       | 100.00    | 100.00 |
| Duval          | 17.35                           | 11.22      | 9.18       | 37.76    | 51.0               | 2 8.16        | 3.06       | 62.24     | 100.00 |
| Escambia       | 7.14                            | 14.29      | 7.14       | 28.57    | 50.0               | 0 14.29       | 7.14       | 71.43     | 100.00 |
| Flagler        | 0.00                            | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00     | 100.0              | 0.00          | 0.00       | 100.00    | 100.00 |
| Franklin       | NA                              | NA         | NA         | NA       | NA                 | A NA          | NA         | NA        | NA     |
| Gadsden        | NA                              | NA         | NA         | NA       | NA                 | A NA          | NA         | NA        | NA     |
| Gilchrist      | NA                              | NA         | NA         | NA       | NA                 | A NA          | NA         | NA        | NA     |
| Glades         | NA                              | NA         | NA         | NA       | NA                 | A NA          | NA         | NA        | NA     |
| Gulf           | 0.00                            | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00     | 100.0              | 0.00          | 0.00       | 100.00    | 100.00 |
| Hamilton       | NA                              | NA         | NA         | NA       | NA                 | A NA          | NA         | NA        | NA     |
| Hardee         | 0.00                            | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00     | 0.0                | 0.00          | 100.00     | 100.00    | 100.00 |
| Hendry         | 0.00                            | 33.33      | 0.00       | 33.33    | 33.3               | 3 33.33       | 0.00       | 66.67     | 100.00 |
| Hernando       | 0.00                            | 42.86      | 0.00       | 42.86    | 42.8               | 6 14.29       | 0.00       | 57.14     | 100.00 |
| Highlands      | 25.00                           | 25.00      | 0.00       | 50.00    | 25.0               | 0 25.00       | 0.00       | 50.00     | 100.00 |
| Hillsborough   | 11.44                           | 11.94      | 7.46       | 30.85    | 57.2               | 1 9.45        | 2.49       | 69.15     | 100.00 |
| Holmes         | 100.00                          | 0.00       | 0.00       | 100.00   | 0.0                | 0.00          | 0.00       | 0.00      | 100.00 |
| Indian River   | 20.00                           | 20.00      | 0.00       | 40.00    | 40.0               | 0 20.00       | 0.00       | 60.00     | 100.00 |
| Jackson        | 100.00                          | 0.00       | 0.00       | 100.00   | 0.0                | 0.00          | 0.00       | 0.00      | 100.00 |
| Jefferson      | NA                              | NA         | NA         | NA       | NA                 | A NA          | NA         | NA        | NA     |
| Lafayette      | NA                              | NA         | NA         | NA       | NA                 | A NA          | NA         | NA        | NA     |
| Lake           | 47.06                           | 5.88       | 0.00       | 52.94    | 41.1               | 8 0.00        | 5.88       | 47.06     | 100.00 |
| Lee            | 8.16                            | 10.20      | 8.16       | 26.53    | 51.0               | 2 12.24       | 10.20      | 73.47     | 100.00 |
| Leon           | 17.39                           | 6.52       | 10.87      | 34.78    | 56.5               | 2 4.35        | 4.35       | 65.22     | 100.00 |
| Levy           | NA                              | NA         | NA         | NA       | NA                 | A NA          | NA         | NA        | NA     |
| Liberty        | NA                              | NA         | NA         | NA       | NA                 | A NA          | NA         | NA        | NA     |
| Madison        | 100.00                          | 0.00       | 0.00       | 100.00   | 0.0                | 0.00          | 0.00       | 0.00      | 100.00 |
| Manatee        | 6.90                            | 10.34      | 13.79      | 31.03    | 48.2               | 8 10.34       | 10.34      | 68.97     | 100.00 |
| Marion         | 17.39                           | 4.35       | 17.39      | 39.13    | 39.1               | 3 8.70        | 13.04      | 60.87     | 100.00 |
| Martin         | 18.75                           | 6.25       | 12.50      | 37.50    | 43.7               | 5 18.75       | 0.00       | 62.50     | 100.00 |
| Miami-Dade     | 11.81                           | 5.77       | 5.77       | 23.35    | 58.2               | 4 12.36       | 6.04       | 76.65     | 100.00 |
| *Note: Cost bu | rdanad har                      | ugahalda a | ra thaga w |          | ing hurden of 40 m |               | o.ori      | a and how | achold |

#### Table IV-2b. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|            |        |            |           | Change   | e in households, 2001-2002 |        |              |             |          |        |
|------------|--------|------------|-----------|----------|----------------------------|--------|--------------|-------------|----------|--------|
|            | (      | Cost burde | n 40-49%  |          |                            |        | Cost burde   | n 50+ %     |          |        |
|            | Perce  | nt of area | median in | come     |                            | Perce  | nt of area n | nedian inco | ome      |        |
| County     | 20-39% | 40-49%     | 50-60%    | Subtotal |                            | 20-39% | 40-49%       | 50-60%      | Subtotal | Total  |
|            |        |            |           |          |                            |        |              |             |          |        |
| Monroe     | 0.00   | 0.00       | 0.00      | 0.00     |                            | 50.00  | 50.00        | 0.00        | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Nassau     | 25.00  | 0.00       | 25.00     | 50.00    |                            | 50.00  | 0.00         | 0.00        | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Okaloosa   | 16.67  | 25.00      | 0.00      | 41.67    |                            | 41.67  | 8.33         | 8.33        | 58.33    | 100.00 |
| Okeechobee | NA     | NA         | NA        | NA       |                            | NA     | NA           | NA          | NA       | NA     |
| Orange     | 8.33   | 17.26      | 12.80     | 38.39    |                            | 41.67  | 14.29        | 5.65        | 61.61    | 100.00 |
| Osceola    | 0.00   | 12.96      | 12.96     | 25.93    |                            | 46.30  | 20.37        | 7.41        | 74.07    | 100.00 |
| Palm Beach | 10.12  | 10.12      | 10.71     | 30.95    |                            | 45.24  | 13.69        | 10.12       | 69.05    | 100.00 |
| Pasco      | 0.00   | 11.76      | 11.76     | 23.53    |                            | 70.59  | 5.88         | 0.00        | 76.47    | 100.00 |
| Pinellas   | 17.19  | 12.50      | 9.38      | 39.06    |                            | 48.44  | 7.81         | 4.69        | 60.94    | 100.00 |
| Polk       | 12.82  | 2.56       | 7.69      | 23.08    |                            | 51.28  | 17.95        | 7.69        | 76.92    | 100.00 |
| Putnam     | 50.00  | 0.00       | 0.00      | 50.00    |                            | 50.00  | 0.00         | 0.00        | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| St. Johns  | 17.65  | 0.00       | 5.88      | 23.53    |                            | 52.94  | 11.76        | 11.76       | 76.47    | 100.00 |
| St. Lucie  | 37.50  | 25.00      | 0.00      | 62.50    |                            | 25.00  | 12.50        | 0.00        | 37.50    | 100.00 |
| Santa Rosa | 0.00   | 0.00       | 33.33     | 33.33    |                            | 33.33  | 33.33        | 0.00        | 66.67    | 100.00 |
| Sarasota   | 4.35   | 13.04      | 8.70      | 26.09    |                            | 43.48  | 26.09        | 4.35        | 73.91    | 100.00 |
| Seminole   | 7.37   | 14.74      | 4.21      | 26.32    |                            | 48.42  | 23.16        | 2.11        | 73.68    | 100.00 |
| Sumter     | 0.00   | 0.00       | 0.00      | 0.00     |                            | 100.00 | 0.00         | 0.00        | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Suwannee   | 100.00 | 0.00       | 0.00      | 100.00   |                            | 0.00   | 0.00         | 0.00        | 0.00     | 100.00 |
| Taylor     | NA     | NA         | NA        | NA       |                            | NA     | NA           | NA          | NA       | NA     |
| Union      | NA     | NA         | NA        | NA       |                            | NA     | NA           | NA          | NA       | NA     |
| Volusia    | 9.52   | 9.52       | 7.14      | 26.19    |                            | 54.76  | 9.52         | 9.52        | 73.81    | 100.00 |
| Wakulla    | na     | na         | na        | na       |                            | na     | na           | na          | na       | na     |
| Walton     | 0.00   | 0.00       | 0.00      | 0.00     |                            | 75.00  | 0.00         | 25.00       | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Washington | NA     | NA         | NA        | NA       |                            | NA     | NA           | NA          | NA       | NA     |
| Florida    | 11 39  | 10.62      | 9 10      | 31 11    |                            | 50 38  | 12.68        | 5 83        | 68 89    | 100.00 |
| 1 101144   | 11.37  | 10.02      | 2.10      | 51.11    |                            | 20.50  | 12.00        | 5.05        | 00.09    | 100.00 |

#### Table IV-2b. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|   |              |        | Change in households, 2002-2007 |           |          |        |              |             |          |        |  |  |
|---|--------------|--------|---------------------------------|-----------|----------|--------|--------------|-------------|----------|--------|--|--|
| Percent of area median income         Percent of area median income         Total           County         20-39%         40-49%         50-60%         Subtotal         20-39%         40-49%         50-60%         Subtotal         Total           Alachua         16.29         9.50         9.95         35.75         55.66         4.52         4.07         64.25         100.00           Baker         0.00         20.00         0.00         25.00         55.38         6.15         10.77         72.31         100.00           Breadrof         25.00         0.00         25.00         50.00         25.00         0.00         100.00           Breward         8.29         9.52         10.48         28.29         51.58         13.15         6.99         71.71         100.00           Calhoun         NA  |              | (      | Cost burde                      | en 40-49% |          |        | Cost burde   | n 50+ %     |          |        |  |  |
| County         20-39%         40-49%         50-60%         Subtotal         20-39%         40-49%         50-60%         Subtotal         Total           Alachua         16.29         9.50         9.95         35.75         55.66         4.52         4.07         64.25         100.00           Baker         0.00         20.00         40.00         20.00         20.00         80.00         100.00           Bradford         25.00         0.00         25.00         55.38         6.15         10.77         72.31         100.00           Breward         11.40         8.09         8.82         28.31         59.93         8.82         2.94         71.69         100.00           Calhoun         NA   |              | Perce  | nt of area                      | median in | come     | Perce  | nt of area n | nedian inco | ome      |        |  |  |
| Alachua         16.29         9.50         9.57         55.66         4.52         4.07         64.25         100.00           Baker         0.00         20.00         0.00         20.00         40.00         20.00         80.00         100.00           Bay         13.85         6.15         7.69         27.69         55.38         6.15         10.77         72.31         100.00           Breward         11.40         8.09         8.82         28.21         59.93         8.82         2.94         71.69         100.00           Broward         8.29         9.52         10.48         28.29         51.58         13.15         6.625         68.75         100.00           Calboun         NA         NA <td>County</td> <td>20-39%</td> <td>40-49%</td> <td>50-60%</td> <td>Subtotal</td> <td>20-39%</td> <td>40-49%</td> <td>50-60%</td> <td>Subtotal</td> <td>Total</td>                     | County       | 20-39% | 40-49%                          | 50-60%    | Subtotal | 20-39% | 40-49%       | 50-60%      | Subtotal | Total  |  |  |
| Alachua         16.29         9.50         9.95         35.75         55.66         4.52         4.07         64.25         100.00           Baker         0.00         20.00         20.00         20.00         20.00         20.00         80.00         100.00           Bay         13.85         6.15         7.69         27.59         55.38         6.15         10.77         7.21         100.00           Broward         11.40         8.09         8.82         28.31         59.93         8.82         2.94         71.69         100.00           Calhoun         NA  |              |        |                                 |           |          |        |              |             |          |        |  |  |
| Baker         0.00         20.00         0.00         20.00         40.00         20.00         80.00         100.00           Bradford         25.00         0.00         0.00         0.00         55.38         6.15         10.77         72.31         100.00           Brevard         11.40         8.09         8.82         28.31         59.93         8.82         2.94         71.69         100.00           Broward         8.29         9.52         10.48         28.29         51.58         13.15         6.99         71.71         100.00           Calhoun         NA   | Alachua      | 16.29  | 9.50                            | 9.95      | 35.75    | 55.66  | 4.52         | 4.07        | 64.25    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Bay         13.85         6.15         7.69         27.69         55.38         6.15         10.77         72.31         100.00           Bradford         25.00         0.00         0.00         25.00         50.00         75.00         100.00           Breward         8.29         9.52         10.48         28.29         51.58         13.15         6.99         71.71         100.00           Cahoun         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA           Charlotte         6.25         12.50         12.25         12.50         31.25         43.75         18.75         6.25         65.75         100.00           Clay         24.39         4.88         17.07         46.34         34.96         18.70         0.00         53.86         100.00           Collier         2.63         10.53         5.26         42.11         47.37         10.53         8.88         79.29         100.00           Dixie         NA  | Baker        | 0.00   | 20.00                           | 0.00      | 20.00    | 40.00  | 20.00        | 20.00       | 80.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Bradford         25.00         0.00         0.00         25.00         50.00         25.00         0.00         75.00         100.00           Brevard         11.40         8.09         8.82         28.31         59.93         8.82         2.94         71.69         100.00           Calhoun         NA         NA <td< td=""><td>Bay</td><td>13.85</td><td>6.15</td><td>7.69</td><td>27.69</td><td>55.38</td><td>6.15</td><td>10.77</td><td>72.31</td><td>100.00</td></td<>  | Bay          | 13.85  | 6.15                            | 7.69      | 27.69    | 55.38  | 6.15         | 10.77       | 72.31    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Brevard         11.40         8.09         8.82         28.31         59.93         8.82         2.94         71.69         100.00           Broward         8.29         9.52         10.48         28.29         51.58         13.15         6.99         71.71         100.00           Calhoun         NA         N   | Bradford     | 25.00  | 0.00                            | 0.00      | 25.00    | 50.00  | 25.00        | 0.00        | 75.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Broward         8.29         9.52         10.48         28.29         51.58         13.15         6.99         71.71         100.00           Calhoun         NA         Statistics         66.57         10.00         0.00         66.67         100.00         0.00         66.67         100.00         0.00         66.67         100.00         0.00         66.67         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         11.33         80.66.77         100.00         10.53         66.26         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         11.33         100.00         100.00         11.33         100.00         11.33         100.00         11.   | Brevard      | 11.40  | 8.09                            | 8.82      | 28.31    | 59.93  | 8.82         | 2.94        | 71.69    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Calhoun         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA           Charlotte         6.25         12.50         12.50         31.25         43.75         18.75         6.25         68.75         100.00           Citrus         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00         86.67         13.33         0.00         100.00           Columbia         26.32         10.53         5.26         42.11         47.37         10.53         0.00         57.89         100.00           DeSoto         33.33         0.00         0.00         33.33         66.67         0.00         0.00         66.67         100.00           Dixie         NA         NA<  | Broward      | 8.29   | 9.52                            | 10.48     | 28.29    | 51.58  | 13.15        | 6.99        | 71.71    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Charlotte         6.25         12.50         12.50         31.25         43.75         18.75         6.25         68.75         100.00           Citrus         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00         86.67         13.33         0.00         100.00         100.00           Clay         24.39         4.88         17.07         46.34         34.96         18.70         0.00         53.66         100.00           Collier         2.96         6.51         11.24         20.71         52.07         18.34         8.88         79.29         100.00           Collier         2.96         6.51         11.74         9.01         37.32         51.57         7.76         3.35         62.68         100.00           Dixie         NA   | Calhoun      | NA     | NA                              | NA        | NA       | NA     | NA           | NA          | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Citrus         0.00         0.00         0.00         86.67         13.33         0.00         100.00         100.00           Clay         24.39         4.88         17.07         46.34         34.96         18.70         0.00         53.66         100.00           Collier         2.96         6.51         11.24         20.71         52.07         18.34         8.88         79.29         100.00           DeSoto         33.33         0.00         0.00         33.33         66.67         0.00         0.00         57.89         100.00           Destot         33.33         0.00         0.01         33.33         66.67         0.00         0.00         56.61         100.00           Dixie         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA           Dwal         16.56         11.74         9.01         37.32         57.14         14.29         0.00         71.43         100.00           Franklin         NA  | Charlotte    | 6.25   | 12.50                           | 12.50     | 31.25    | 43.75  | 18.75        | 6.25        | 68.75    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Clay         24.39         4.88         17.07         46.34         34.96         18.70         0.00         53.66         100.00           Collier         2.96         6.51         11.24         20.71         52.07         18.34         8.88         79.29         100.00           Columbia         26.32         10.53         5.26         42.11         47.37         10.53         0.00         57.89         100.00           DeSoto         33.33         0.00         0.00         33.33         66.67         0.00         0.00         66.67         100.00           Dixie         NA         NA <td>Citrus</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>86.67</td> <td>13.33</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>100.00</td> <td>100.00</td>                                      | Citrus       | 0.00   | 0.00                            | 0.00      | 0.00     | 86.67  | 13.33        | 0.00        | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |
| Collier2.96 $6.51$ $11.24$ $20.71$ $52.07$ $18.34$ $8.88$ $79.29$ $100.00$ Columbia $26.32$ $10.33$ $5.26$ $42.11$ $47.37$ $10.53$ $0.00$ $57.89$ $100.00$ Desoto $33.33$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $33.33$ $66.67$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $66.67$ $100.00$ DixieNANANANANANANANANANADuval $16.56$ $11.74$ $9.01$ $37.32$ $51.57$ $7.76$ $3.35$ $62.68$ $100.00$ Escambia $8.24$ $10.59$ $12.94$ $31.76$ $47.06$ $17.65$ $3.53$ $68.24$ $100.00$ FaaklinNANANANANANANANANANAGadsden $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $100.00$ Gildrist $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $100.00$ Galds $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $100.00$ Galdes $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $100.00$ Harinton $50.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $100.00$ Harinton $50.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $100.00$ Harinton $50.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ </td <td>Clay</td> <td>24.39</td> <td>4.88</td> <td>17.07</td> <td>46.34</td> <td>34.96</td> <td>18.70</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>53.66</td> <td>100.00</td>  | Clay         | 24.39  | 4.88                            | 17.07     | 46.34    | 34.96  | 18.70        | 0.00        | 53.66    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Columbia $26.32$ $10.53$ $5.26$ $42.11$ $47.37$ $10.53$ $0.00$ $57.89$ $100.00$ Desoto $33.33$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $33.33$ $66.67$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $66.67$ $100.00$ DixieNANANANANANANANANADuval $16.56$ $11.74$ $9.01$ $37.32$ $51.57$ $7.76$ $3.35$ $62.68$ $100.00$ Escambia $8.24$ $10.59$ $12.94$ $31.76$ $47.06$ $17.65$ $3.53$ $68.24$ $100.00$ FranklinNANANANANANANANANAGadsden $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $100.00$ Gilchrist $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $100.00$ Gales $0.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $100.00$ Hamilton $50.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $100.00$ Herando $8.33$ $29.17$ $0.00$ $37.50$ $8.33$ $16.67$ $62.50$ $100.00$ Herando $8.33$ $29.17$ $0.00$ $37.50$ $8.33$ $16.67$ $62.50$ $100.00$ Herando $8.33$ $29.17$ $0.00$ $37.50$ $8.33$ $16.67$ $62.50$ $100.00$ Herando $8.33$ $29.17$ $0.00$ $37.50$ <t< td=""><td>Collier</td><td>2.96</td><td>6.51</td><td>11.24</td><td>20.71</td><td>52.07</td><td>18.34</td><td>8.88</td><td>79.29</td><td>100.00</td></t<>   | Collier      | 2.96   | 6.51                            | 11.24     | 20.71    | 52.07  | 18.34        | 8.88        | 79.29    | 100.00 |  |  |
| DeSoto $33.33$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $33.33$ $66.67$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $66.67$ $100.00$ DixieNANANANANANANANANANADuval $16.56$ $11.74$ $9.01$ $37.32$ $51.57$ $7.76$ $3.35$ $62.68$ $100.00$ Escambia $8.24$ $10.59$ $12.94$ $31.76$ $47.06$ $17.65$ $3.53$ $66.24$ $100.00$ Flagler $14.29$ $14.29$ $0.00$ $28.57$ $57.14$ $14.29$ $0.00$ $71.43$ $100.00$ FranklinNANANANANANANANANAGadsden $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $100.00$ Gilchrist $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $100.00$ GulfNANANANANANANAHardee $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ Hendry $33.33$ $0.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ $0.00$ $50.00$ Hendree $0.00$ $0.00$ $52.26$ $0.00$ $26.32$ $47.37$ $26.32$ $0.00$ $73.68$ Hilsborough $11.65$ $11.84$ $7.51$ $30.99$ $57.65$ $8.28$ $30.8$ $69.01$ $100.00$ Hermando $8.33$ $29.17$ $0.00$ $26.03$ $50.68$ $16.13$ $9.68$ </td <td>Columbia</td> <td>26.32</td> <td>10.53</td> <td>5.26</td> <td>42.11</td> <td>47.37</td> <td>10.53</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>57.89</td> <td>100.00</td>  | Columbia     | 26.32  | 10.53                           | 5.26      | 42.11    | 47.37  | 10.53        | 0.00        | 57.89    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Dixie         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA           Duval         16.56         11.74         9.01         37.32         51.57         7.76         3.35         62.68         100.00           Escambia         8.24         10.59         12.94         31.76         47.06         17.65         3.53         68.24         100.00           Franklin         NA         <   | DeSoto       | 33.33  | 0.00                            | 0.00      | 33.33    | 66.67  | 0.00         | 0.00        | 66.67    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Duval         16.56         11.74         9.01         37.32         51.57         7.76         3.35         62.68         100.00           Escambia         8.24         10.59         12.94         31.76         47.06         17.65         3.33         68.24         100.00           Flagler         14.29         14.29         0.00         28.57         57.14         14.29         0.00         71.43         100.00           Granklin         NA  | Dixie        | NA     | NA                              | NA        | NA       | NA     | NA           | NA          | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Escambia         8.24         10.59         12.94         31.76         47.06         17.65         3.53         68.24         100.00           Flagler         14.29         14.29         0.00         28.57         57.14         14.29         0.00         71.43         100.00           Franklin         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA           Gadsden         50.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         100.00   | Duval        | 16.56  | 11.74                           | 9.01      | 37.32    | 51.57  | 7.76         | 3.35        | 62.68    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Flagler         14.29         14.29         0.00         28.57         57.14         14.29         0.00         71.43         100.00           Franklin         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA           Gadsden         50.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         0.00         100.00         0.00         0.00         100.00         0.00         100.00         0.00         100.00         0.00         100.00         0.00         100.  | Escambia     | 8.24   | 10.59                           | 12.94     | 31.76    | 47.06  | 17.65        | 3.53        | 68.24    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Franklin         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA           Gadsden         50.00         0.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         100.00           Gilchrist         50.00         0.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         100.00           Gades         0.00         0.00         0.00         100.00         0.00         100.00         100.00           Gulf         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA           Hamilton         50.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         100.00         100.00           Herdee         0.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         100.00         100.00           Hendry         33.33         0.00         0.00         33.33         66.67         0.00         66.67         100.00           Hendry         33.33         0.00         26.32         47.37         26.32         0.00         7.68         100.00           Highlands         21.05 <td>Flagler</td> <td>14.29</td> <td>14.29</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>28.57</td> <td>57.14</td> <td>14.29</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>71.43</td> <td>100.00</td>                                       | Flagler      | 14.29  | 14.29                           | 0.00      | 28.57    | 57.14  | 14.29        | 0.00        | 71.43    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Gadsden         50.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         100.00           Gilchrist         50.00         0.00         0.00         50.00         0.00         0.00         100.00           Glades         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00         100.00         0.00         100.00           Gulf         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA           Hamilton         50.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         100.00           Hardee         0.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         100.00           Hendry         33.33         0.00         50.00         26.32         47.37         26.32         0.00         73.68         100.00           Highands         21.05         5.26         0.00         26.32         47.37         26.32         0.00         73.68         100.00           Holmes         NA  | Franklin     | NA     | NA                              | NA        | NA       | NA     | NA           | NA          | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Gilchrist         50.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         0.00         100.00           Glades         0.00         0.00         0.00         0.00         100.00         0.00         100.00         100.00           Gulf         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA           Hamilton         50.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         100.00           Hardee         0.00         0.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         100.00           Hendry         33.33         0.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         0.00         66.67         100.00           Hernando         8.33         29.17         0.00         37.50         37.50         8.33         16.67         62.50         100.00           Highlands         21.05         5.26         0.00         26.32         47.37         26.32         0.00         73.68         100.00           Highlands         21.05         5.26         0.00         26.32         47.37         26.32         0.00         100.00         100.00         100.   | Gadsden      | 50.00  | 0.00                            | 0.00      | 50.00    | 50.00  | 0.00         | 0.00        | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Glades         0.00         0.00         0.00         100.00         0.00         100.00         100.00           Gulf         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA           Hamilton         50.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         100.00           Hardee         0.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         100.00           Hendry         33.33         0.00         0.00         37.50         8.33         16.67         62.50         100.00           Hernando         8.33         29.17         0.00         26.32         47.37         26.32         0.00         73.68         100.00           Highlands         21.05         5.26         0.00         26.32         47.37         26.32         0.00         73.68         100.00           Holmes         NA         NA <td< td=""><td>Gilchrist</td><td>50.00</td><td>0.00</td><td>0.00</td><td>50.00</td><td>50.00</td><td>0.00</td><td>0.00</td><td>50.00</td><td>100.00</td></td<>                                     | Gilchrist    | 50.00  | 0.00                            | 0.00      | 50.00    | 50.00  | 0.00         | 0.00        | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Gulf         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA         NA           Hamilton         50.00         0.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         100.00           Hardee         0.00         0.00         50.00         50.00         0.00         50.00         100.00           Herdee         33.33         0.00         0.00         33.33         66.67         0.00         0.00         66.67         100.00           Hernando         8.33         29.17         0.00         37.50         37.50         8.33         16.67         62.50         100.00           Highlands         21.05         5.26         0.00         26.32         47.37         26.32         0.00         73.68         100.00           Hillsborough         11.65         11.84         7.51         30.99         57.65         8.28         3.08         69.01         100.00           Jackson         0.00         0.00         0.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00         100.00 </td <td>Glades</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>100.00</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>0.00</td> <td>100.00</td> <td>100.00</td> | Glades       | 0.00   | 0.00                            | 0.00      | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00         | 0.00        | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hamilton50.000.0050.0050.0050.000.0050.00100.00Hardee0.000.0050.0050.000.0050.000.0050.00100.00Hendry33.330.000.0033.3366.670.000.0066.67100.00Hernando8.3329.170.0037.5037.508.3316.6762.50100.00Highlands21.055.260.0026.3247.3726.320.0073.68100.00Hillsborough11.6511.847.5130.9957.658.283.0869.01100.00HolmesNANANANANANANANAIndian River6.456.453.2316.1358.0616.139.6883.87100.00Jackson0.000.000.00100.00100.00100.00100.00100.00Jafterson0.000.000.00100.00100.00100.00100.00100.00Lee7.769.139.1326.0350.6812.7910.5073.97100.00Leon14.119.1310.3733.6156.434.984.9866.39100.00Levy0.000.000.000.00100.00100.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANANANANAMadisonNANANANANAN   | Gulf         | NA     | NA                              | NA        | NA       | NA     | NA           | NA          | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Hardee0.000.0050.0050.000.0050.000.0050.00100.00Hendry33.330.000.0033.3366.670.000.0066.67100.00Hernando8.3329.170.0037.5037.508.3316.6762.50100.00Highlands21.055.260.0026.3247.3726.320.0073.68100.00Hillsborough11.6511.847.5130.9957.658.283.0869.01100.00HolmesNANANANANANANANAIndian River6.456.453.2316.1358.0616.139.6883.87100.00Jackson0.000.000.00100.00100.000.00100.00100.00Jackson0.000.000.000.00100.00100.00100.00100.00LafayetteNANANANANANANANALake44.944.490.4043.820.006.7450.56100.00Lee7.769.139.1326.0350.6812.7910.5073.97100.00Leon14.119.1310.3733.6156.434.984.9866.39100.00Levy0.000.000.000.00100.000.000.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANA  | Hamilton     | 50.00  | 0.00                            | 0.00      | 50.00    | 50.00  | 0.00         | 0.00        | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hendry33.330.000.0033.3366.670.000.0066.67100.00Hernando8.3329.170.0037.5037.508.3316.6762.50100.00Highlands21.055.260.0026.3247.3726.320.0073.68100.00Hillsborough11.6511.847.5130.9957.658.283.0869.01100.00HolmesNANANANANANANANAIndian River6.456.453.2316.1358.0616.139.6883.87100.00Jackson0.000.000.00100.00100.000.00100.00100.00Jefferson0.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00100.00Lake44.944.490.0049.4443.820.006.7450.56100.00Lee7.769.139.1326.0350.6812.7910.5073.97100.00Leon14.119.1310.3733.6156.434.984.9866.39100.00Levy0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANANANANANAMadisonNANANANANANANAMadisonNANANANANANANA  | Hardee       | 0.00   | 0.00                            | 50.00     | 50.00    | 0.00   | 50.00        | 0.00        | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hernando8.3329.170.0037.5037.508.3316.6762.50100.00Highlands21.055.260.0026.3247.3726.320.0073.68100.00Hillsborough11.6511.847.5130.9957.658.283.0869.01100.00HolmesNANANANANANANANANAIndian River6.456.453.2316.1358.0616.139.6883.87100.00Jackson0.000.000.00100.00100.000.00100.00100.00Jefferson0.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00LafayetteNANANANANANANALake44.944.490.0049.4443.820.006.7450.56100.00Lee7.769.139.1326.0350.6812.7910.5073.97100.00Leon14.119.1310.3733.6156.434.984.9866.39100.00Levy0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANANANANANAMadisonNANANANANANANAMadisonNANANANANANANAMatisonNANA  | Hendry       | 33.33  | 0.00                            | 0.00      | 33.33    | 66.67  | 0.00         | 0.00        | 66.67    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Highlands21.055.260.0026.3247.3726.320.0073.68100.00Hillsborough11.6511.847.5130.9957.658.283.0869.01100.00HolmesNANANANANANANANANANAIndian River6.456.453.2316.1358.0616.139.6883.87100.00Jackson0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00100.00Jefferson0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00100.00LafayetteNANANANANANANANALake44.944.490.0049.4443.820.006.7450.56100.00Lee7.769.139.1326.0350.6812.7910.5073.97100.00Leon14.119.1310.3733.6156.434.984.9866.39100.00Levy0.000.000.000.00100.00100.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANANANANAMadisonNANANANANANANAMadisonNANANANANANANAMadisonNANANANANANANAManatee10.8113.51 <td< td=""><td>Hernando</td><td>8.33</td><td>29.17</td><td>0.00</td><td>37.50</td><td>37.50</td><td>8.33</td><td>16.67</td><td>62.50</td><td>100.00</td></td<>   | Hernando     | 8.33   | 29.17                           | 0.00      | 37.50    | 37.50  | 8.33         | 16.67       | 62.50    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hillsborough11.6511.847.5130.9957.658.283.0869.01100.00HolmesNANANANANANANANANANAIndian River6.456.453.2316.1358.0616.139.6883.87100.00Jackson0.000.000.000.00100.000.000.00100.00Jefferson0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00LafayetteNANANANANANANALake44.944.490.0049.4443.820.006.7450.56100.00Lee7.769.139.1326.0350.6812.7910.5073.97100.00Leon14.119.1310.3733.6156.434.984.9866.39100.00Levy0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANANANANANAMadisonNANANANANANANANAManatee10.8113.5110.8135.1447.979.467.4364.86100.00Marion16.876.0210.8433.7345.787.2313.2566.27100.00Martin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.00   | Highlands    | 21.05  | 5.26                            | 0.00      | 26.32    | 47.37  | 26.32        | 0.00        | 73.68    | 100.00 |  |  |
| HolmesNANANANANANANANAIndian River6.456.453.2316.1358.0616.139.6883.87100.00Jackson0.000.000.000.00100.000.000.00100.00100.00Jefferson0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00100.00LafayetteNANANANANANANANALake44.944.490.0049.4443.820.006.7450.56100.00Lee7.769.139.1326.0350.6812.7910.5073.97100.00Leon14.119.1310.3733.6156.434.984.9866.39100.00Levy0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANANANANAMatisonNANANANANANANAManatee10.8113.5110.8135.1447.979.467.4364.86100.00Marion16.876.0210.8433.7345.787.2313.2566.27100.00Martin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.0064.91100.00Miami-Dade11.906.036.1424.0758.6211.805.5075.9310  | Hillsborough | 11.65  | 11.84                           | 7.51      | 30.99    | 57.65  | 8.28         | 3.08        | 69.01    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Indian River6.456.453.2316.1358.0616.139.6883.87100.00Jackson0.000.000.000.00100.000.000.00100.00100.00100.00Jefferson0.000.000.000.00100.000.000.00100.00100.00100.00LafayetteNANANANANANANANANANALake44.944.490.0049.4443.820.006.7450.56100.00Lee7.769.139.1326.0350.6812.7910.5073.97100.00Leon14.119.1310.3733.6156.434.984.9866.39100.00Levy0.000.000.000.00100.00100.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANANANANAMatisonNANANANANANANAMarion16.876.0210.8433.7345.787.2313.2566.27100.00Martin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.0064.91100.00Miami-Dade11.906.036.1424.0758.6211.805.5075.93100.00   | Holmes       | NA     | NA                              | NA        | NA       | NA     | NA           | NA          | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Jackson0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00Jefferson0.000.000.000.000.000.000.00100.00100.00LafayetteNANANANANANANANANALake44.944.490.0049.4443.820.006.7450.56100.00Lee7.769.139.1326.0350.6812.7910.5073.97100.00Leon14.119.1310.3733.6156.434.984.9866.39100.00Levy0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANANANANAMatisonNANANANANANANAManatee10.8113.5110.8135.1447.979.467.4364.86100.00Martin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.0064.91100.00Miami-Dade11.906.036.1424.0758.6211.805.5075.93100.00  | Indian River | 6.45   | 6.45                            | 3.23      | 16.13    | 58.06  | 16.13        | 9.68        | 83.87    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Jefferson0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00LafayetteNANANANANANANANANALake44.944.490.0049.4443.820.006.7450.56100.00Lee7.769.139.1326.0350.6812.7910.5073.97100.00Leon14.119.1310.3733.6156.434.984.9866.39100.00Levy0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANANANANAMadisonNANANANANANANAManatee10.8113.5110.8135.1447.979.467.4364.86100.00Marin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.0064.91100.00Miami-Dade11.906.036.1424.0758.6211.805.5075.93100.00  | Jackson      | 0.00   | 0.00                            | 0.00      | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00         | 0.00        | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |
| LafayetteNANANANANANANANALake44.944.490.0049.4443.820.006.7450.56100.00Lee7.769.139.1326.0350.6812.7910.5073.97100.00Leon14.119.1310.3733.6156.434.984.9866.39100.00Levy0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANANANANAMadisonNANANANANANANAManatee10.8113.5110.8135.1447.979.467.4364.86100.00Martin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.0064.91100.00Miami-Dade11.906.036.1424.0758.6211.805.5075.93100.00  | Jefferson    | 0.00   | 0.00                            | 0.00      | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00         | 0.00        | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |
| Lake44.944.490.0049.4443.820.006.7450.56100.00Lee7.769.139.1326.0350.6812.7910.5073.97100.00Leon14.119.1310.3733.6156.434.984.9866.39100.00Levy0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANANANANAMatisonNANANANANANAManatee10.8113.5110.8135.1447.979.467.4364.86100.00Martin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.0064.91100.00Miami-Dade11.906.036.1424.0758.6211.805.5075.93100.00   | Lafayette    | NA     | NA                              | NA        | NA       | NA     | NA           | NA          | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Lee7.769.139.1326.0350.6812.7910.5073.97100.00Leon14.119.1310.3733.6156.434.984.9866.39100.00Levy0.000.000.000.00100.000.000.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANANANANANAMatisonNANANANANANANAManatee10.8113.5110.8135.1447.979.467.4364.86100.00Martin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.0064.91100.00Miami-Dade11.906.036.1424.0758.6211.805.5075.93100.00   | Lake         | 44.94  | 4.49                            | 0.00      | 49.44    | 43.82  | 0.00         | 6.74        | 50.56    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Leon14.119.1310.3733.6156.434.984.9866.39100.00Levy0.000.000.000.00100.000.000.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANANANANANAMadisonNANANANANANANAManatee10.8113.5110.8135.1447.979.467.4364.86100.00Marion16.876.0210.8433.7345.787.2313.2566.27100.00Martin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.0064.91100.00Miami-Dade11.906.036.1424.0758.6211.805.5075.93100.00   | Lee          | 7.76   | 9.13                            | 9.13      | 26.03    | 50.68  | 12.79        | 10.50       | 73.97    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Levy0.000.000.000.00100.000.00100.00100.00LibertyNANANANANANANANANAMadisonNANANANANANANANAManatee10.8113.5110.8135.1447.979.467.4364.86100.00Marion16.876.0210.8433.7345.787.2313.2566.27100.00Martin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.0064.91100.00Miami-Dade11.906.036.1424.0758.6211.805.5075.93100.00  | Leon         | 14.11  | 9.13                            | 10.37     | 33.61    | 56.43  | 4.98         | 4.98        | 66.39    | 100.00 |  |  |
| LibertyNANANANANANANANAMadisonNANANANANANANANANAManatee10.8113.5110.8135.1447.979.467.4364.86100.00Marion16.876.0210.8433.7345.787.2313.2566.27100.00Martin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.0064.91100.00Miami-Dade11.906.036.1424.0758.6211.805.5075.93100.00  | Levy         | 0.00   | 0.00                            | 0.00      | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00         | 0.00        | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |
| MadisonNANANANANANANANAManatee10.8113.5110.8135.1447.979.467.4364.86100.00Marion16.876.0210.8433.7345.787.2313.2566.27100.00Martin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.0064.91100.00Miami-Dade11.906.036.1424.0758.6211.805.5075.93100.00   | Liberty      | NA     | NA                              | NA        | NA       | NA     | NA           | NA          | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Manatee10.8113.5110.8135.1447.979.467.4364.86100.00Marion16.876.0210.8433.7345.787.2313.2566.27100.00Martin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.0064.91100.00Miami-Dade11.906.036.1424.0758.6211.805.5075.93100.00  | Madison      | NA     | NA                              | NA        | NA       | NA     | NA           | NA          | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Marion16.876.0210.8433.7345.787.2313.2566.27100.00Martin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.0064.91100.00Miami-Dade11.906.036.1424.0758.6211.805.5075.93100.00   | Manatee      | 10.81  | 13.51                           | 10.81     | 35.14    | 47.97  | 9.46         | 7.43        | 64.86    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Martin15.797.0212.2835.0943.8621.050.0064.91100.00Miami-Dade11.906.036.1424.0758.6211.805.5075.93100.00   | Marion       | 16.87  | 6.02                            | 10.84     | 33.73    | 45.78  | 7.23         | 13.25       | 66.27    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Miami-Dade         11.90         6.03         6.14         24.07         58.62         11.80         5.50         75.93         100.00  | Martin       | 15.79  | 7.02                            | 12.28     | 35.09    | 43.86  | 21.05        | 0.00        | 64.91    | 100.00 |  |  |
|   | Miami-Dade   | 11.90  | 6.03                            | 6.14      | 24.07    | 58.62  | 11.80        | 5.50        | 75.93    | 100.00 |  |  |

#### Table IV-2c. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|            |        |            |           | Change   | ge in households, 2002-2007 |        |              |             |          |        |
|------------|--------|------------|-----------|----------|-----------------------------|--------|--------------|-------------|----------|--------|
|            | (      | Cost burde | n 40-49%  | Ŭ        |                             |        | Cost burder  | n 50+ %     |          |        |
|            | Perce  | nt of area | median in | come     |                             | Perce  | nt of area m | nedian inco | ome      |        |
| County     | 20-39% | 40-49%     | 50-60%    | Subtotal |                             | 20-39% | 40-49%       | 50-60%      | Subtotal | Total  |
|            |        |            |           |          |                             |        |              |             |          |        |
| Monroe     | 0.00   | 0.00       | 16.67     | 16.67    |                             | 50.00  | 0.00         | 33.33       | 83.33    | 100.00 |
| Nassau     | 30.00  | 5.00       | 15.00     | 50.00    |                             | 30.00  | 20.00        | 0.00        | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Okaloosa   | 14.29  | 9.52       | 3.17      | 26.98    |                             | 58.73  | 11.11        | 3.17        | 73.02    | 100.00 |
| Okeechobee | NA     | NA         | NA        | NA       |                             | NA     | NA           | NA          | NA       | NA     |
| Orange     | 8.97   | 16.70      | 12.39     | 38.05    |                             | 42.60  | 13.63        | 5.72        | 61.95    | 100.00 |
| Osceola    | 0.00   | 11.41      | 13.31     | 24.71    |                             | 44.87  | 23.57        | 6.84        | 75.29    | 100.00 |
| Palm Beach | 10.81  | 9.34       | 9.71      | 29.85    |                             | 46.56  | 13.76        | 9.83        | 70.15    | 100.00 |
| Pasco      | 12.61  | 12.61      | 11.76     | 36.97    |                             | 58.82  | 3.36         | 0.84        | 63.03    | 100.00 |
| Pinellas   | 18.04  | 10.13      | 6.01      | 34.18    |                             | 52.53  | 8.23         | 5.06        | 65.82    | 100.00 |
| Polk       | 10.98  | 4.62       | 8.67      | 24.28    |                             | 50.87  | 18.50        | 6.36        | 75.72    | 100.00 |
| Putnam     | 44.44  | 0.00       | 11.11     | 55.56    |                             | 44.44  | 0.00         | 0.00        | 44.44    | 100.00 |
| St. Johns  | 12.31  | 7.69       | 4.62      | 24.62    |                             | 58.46  | 9.23         | 7.69        | 75.38    | 100.00 |
| St. Lucie  | 21.62  | 37.84      | 5.41      | 64.86    |                             | 24.32  | 10.81        | 0.00        | 35.14    | 100.00 |
| Santa Rosa | 8.82   | 11.76      | 8.82      | 29.41    |                             | 55.88  | 11.76        | 2.94        | 70.59    | 100.00 |
| Sarasota   | 6.48   | 7.41       | 12.96     | 26.85    |                             | 48.15  | 22.22        | 2.78        | 73.15    | 100.00 |
| Seminole   | 6.87   | 15.56      | 4.65      | 27.07    |                             | 48.28  | 22.02        | 2.63        | 72.93    | 100.00 |
| Sumter     | 0.00   | 0.00       | 0.00      | 0.00     |                             | 85.71  | 14.29        | 0.00        | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Suwannee   | 40.00  | 0.00       | 0.00      | 40.00    |                             | 60.00  | 0.00         | 0.00        | 60.00    | 100.00 |
| Taylor     | 100.00 | 0.00       | 0.00      | 100.00   |                             | 0.00   | 0.00         | 0.00        | 0.00     | 100.00 |
| Union      | 100.00 | 0.00       | 0.00      | 100.00   |                             | 0.00   | 0.00         | 0.00        | 0.00     | 100.00 |
| Volusia    | 10.64  | 8.09       | 8.09      | 26.81    |                             | 54.89  | 12.77        | 5.53        | 73.19    | 100.00 |
| Wakulla    | 50.00  | 0.00       | 0.00      | 50.00    |                             | 50.00  | 0.00         | 0.00        | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Walton     | 14.29  | 14.29      | 14.29     | 42.86    |                             | 28.57  | 14.29        | 14.29       | 57.14    | 100.00 |
| Washington | NA     | NA         | NA        | NA       |                             | NA     | NA           | NA          | NA       | NA     |
|            |        |            |           |          |                             |        |              |             |          |        |
| Florida    | 11.16  | 10.41      | 9.02      | 30.58    |                             | 51.45  | 12.38        | 5.59        | 69.42    | 100.00 |
|            |        |            |           |          |                             |        |              |             |          |        |

#### Table IV-2c. Multi-family cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and percent of income (continued)\*

|              |       |            |          |          | Househo | lds, 2001 |           |          |          |        |
|--------------|-------|------------|----------|----------|---------|-----------|-----------|----------|----------|--------|
|              | (     | Cost burde | n 40-49% | )        |         |           | Cost burd | en 50+ % |          |        |
|              |       | Househo    | old size |          |         |           | Househ    | old size |          |        |
| County       | 1-2   | 3-4        | 5+       | Subtotal |         | 1-2       | 3-4       | 5+       | Subtotal | Total  |
|              |       |            |          |          |         |           |           |          |          |        |
| Alachua      | 30.22 | 4.79       | 1.37     | 36.38    |         | 55.98     | 6.93      | 0.71     | 63.62    | 100.00 |
| Baker        | 23.04 | 9.80       | 4.41     | 37.25    |         | 41.67     | 16.18     | 4.90     | 62.75    | 100.00 |
| Bay          | 28.47 | 8.15       | 2.49     | 39.11    |         | 41.64     | 15.96     | 3.29     | 60.89    | 100.00 |
| Bradford     | 29.87 | 13.85      | 3.03     | 46.75    |         | 39.39     | 8.23      | 5.63     | 53.25    | 100.00 |
| Brevard      | 21.01 | 9.48       | 2.84     | 33.34    |         | 49.21     | 14.63     | 2.83     | 66.66    | 100.00 |
| Broward      | 21.45 | 8.67       | 2.87     | 32.99    |         | 47.83     | 14.22     | 4.96     | 67.01    | 100.00 |
| Calhoun      | 31.87 | 12.09      | 4.40     | 48.35    |         | 40.66     | 8.79      | 2.20     | 51.65    | 100.00 |
| Charlotte    | 21.64 | 11.04      | 4.83     | 37.52    |         | 47.93     | 8.66      | 5.90     | 62.48    | 100.00 |
| Citrus       | 10.68 | 7.09       | 5.47     | 23.25    |         | 61.03     | 11.45     | 4.27     | 76.75    | 100.00 |
| Clay         | 30.47 | 13.77      | 3.46     | 47.70    |         | 29.81     | 16.17     | 6.32     | 52.30    | 100.00 |
| Collier      | 19.32 | 6.69       | 0.99     | 27.00    |         | 51.88     | 15.15     | 5.98     | 73.00    | 100.00 |
| Columbia     | 29.84 | 13.55      | 3.06     | 46.45    |         | 39.03     | 8.39      | 6.13     | 53.55    | 100.00 |
| DeSoto       | 15.24 | 17.91      | 11.76    | 44.92    |         | 27.54     | 25.94     | 1.60     | 55.08    | 100.00 |
| Dixie        | 50.94 | 9.43       | 3.77     | 64.15    |         | 26.42     | 5.66      | 3.77     | 35.85    | 100.00 |
| Duval        | 26.37 | 12.64      | 2.72     | 41.72    |         | 44.45     | 10.90     | 2.92     | 58.28    | 100.00 |
| Escambia     | 21.74 | 11.50      | 1.51     | 34.74    |         | 47.31     | 13.50     | 4.45     | 65.26    | 100.00 |
| Flagler      | 23.05 | 10.42      | 0.20     | 33.67    |         | 44.89     | 16.63     | 4.81     | 66.33    | 100.00 |
| Franklin     | 29.89 | 12.64      | 4.60     | 47.13    |         | 41.38     | 9.20      | 2.30     | 52.87    | 100.00 |
| Gadsden      | 32.68 | 14.05      | 2.29     | 49.02    |         | 42.48     | 6.21      | 2.29     | 50.98    | 100.00 |
| Gilchrist    | 36.76 | 8.82       | 2.94     | 48.53    |         | 33.82     | 8.82      | 8.82     | 51.47    | 100.00 |
| Glades       | 16.30 | 20.65      | 13.04    | 50.00    |         | 28.26     | 19.57     | 2.17     | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Gulf         | 29.46 | 9.82       | 6.25     | 45.54    |         | 37.50     | 15.18     | 1.79     | 54.46    | 100.00 |
| Hamilton     | 42.17 | 12.05      | 4.82     | 59.04    |         | 30.12     | 4.82      | 6.02     | 40.96    | 100.00 |
| Hardee       | 15.13 | 16.12      | 10.86    | 42.11    |         | 28.95     | 26.64     | 2.30     | 57.89    | 100.00 |
| Hendry       | 15.40 | 19.07      | 11.74    | 46.21    |         | 27.63     | 24.69     | 1.47     | 53.79    | 100.00 |
| Hernando     | 15.25 | 11.42      | 3.24     | 29.92    |         | 62.75     | 5.52      | 1.82     | 70.08    | 100.00 |
| Highlands    | 19.64 | 15.10      | 9.67     | 44.42    |         | 36.43     | 17.28     | 1.88     | 55.58    | 100.00 |
| Hillsborough | 26.55 | 6.99       | 2.95     | 36.48    |         | 48.67     | 11.35     | 3.49     | 63.52    | 100.00 |
| Holmes       | 36.96 | 9.42       | 3.62     | 50.00    |         | 34.06     | 8.70      | 7.25     | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Indian River | 21.04 | 8.03       | 3.54     | 32.61    |         | 46.68     | 16.94     | 3.77     | 67.39    | 100.00 |
| Jackson      | 31.76 | 9.18       | 6.12     | 47.06    |         | 37.88     | 13.18     | 1.88     | 52.94    | 100.00 |
| Jefferson    | 31.25 | 8.93       | 5.36     | 45.54    |         | 40.18     | 13.39     | 0.89     | 54.46    | 100.00 |
| Lafayette    | 29.79 | 10.64      | 4.26     | 44.68    |         | 38.30     | 8.51      | 8.51     | 55.32    | 100.00 |
| Lake         | 35.28 | 14.91      | 2.72     | 52.92    |         | 41.25     | 3.68      | 2.15     | 47.08    | 100.00 |
| Lee          | 20.14 | 8.29       | 3.58     | 32.02    |         | 46.86     | 17.45     | 3.67     | 67.98    | 100.00 |
| Leon         | 28.70 | 5.10       | 1.77     | 35.57    |         | 55.41     | 8.11      | 0.91     | 64.43    | 100.00 |
| Levy         | 9.64  | 10.24      | 5.72     | 25.60    |         | 59.04     | 12.05     | 3.31     | 74.40    | 100.00 |
| Liberty      | 21.15 | 9.62       | 7.69     | 38.46    |         | 42.31     | 17.31     | 1.92     | 61.54    | 100.00 |
| Madison      | 39.22 | 13.07      | 2.61     | 54.90    |         | 33.99     | 5.88      | 5.23     | 45.10    | 100.00 |
| Manatee      | 21.04 | 11.04      | 4.05     | 36.13    |         | 43.37     | 14.70     | 5.81     | 63.87    | 100.00 |
| Marion       | 17.98 | 11.84      | 4.81     | 34.62    |         | 43.16     | 17.24     | 4.98     | 65.38    | 100.00 |
| Martin       | 17.39 | 13.85      | 1.94     | 33.18    |         | 49.77     | 9.01      | 8.04     | 66.82    | 100.00 |
| Miami-Dade   | 14.02 | 9.36       | 4.78     | 28.15    |         | 44.77     | 19.05     | 8.03     | 71.85    | 100.00 |

#### Table IV-3a. All cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and household size\*

|                 |       |             |          |          | Households, 2001     |           |              |          |        |
|-----------------|-------|-------------|----------|----------|----------------------|-----------|--------------|----------|--------|
|                 | (     | Cost burder | n 40-49% | 1        |                      | Cost burd | en 50+ %     |          |        |
|                 |       | Househo     | ld size  |          |                      | Househ    | old size     |          |        |
| County          | 1-2   | 3-4         | 5+       | Subtotal | 1-2                  | 3-4       | 5+           | Subtotal | Total  |
| Monroe          | 17 39 | 7 75        | 1 54     | 26.68    | 48.18                | 17.90     | 7 24         | 73 32    | 100.00 |
| Nassau          | 25.09 | 17.16       | 1.04     | 17.23    | 20.80                | 16.42     | 6.46         | 52 77    | 100.00 |
| Okaloosa        | 20.73 | 13.61       | 3 30     | 37 73    | 39.06                | 14.67     | 8 55         | 62.77    | 100.00 |
| Okeechobee      | 20.73 | 14.13       | 4 28     | 38.76    | 39.00                | 19.07     | 3.00         | 61.24    | 100.00 |
| Orange          | 20.34 | 8 55        | 3.02     | 30.70    |                      | 13.45     | 3.00         | 60.75    | 100.00 |
| Osceola         | 27.00 | 7.18        | 4 97     | 32.73    | 50.29                | 15.50     | 1.41         | 67.27    | 100.00 |
| Palm Beach      | 20.37 | 8 38        | 3 44     | 33.60    | 48.58                | 13.85     | 3 97         | 66.40    | 100.00 |
| Pasco           | 27.11 | 11 71       | 3.16     | 41 98    | 43.02                | 11.43     | 3 57         | 58.02    | 100.00 |
| Pinellas        | 27.11 | 8.03        | 2 74     | 35.91    | 52.99                | 9.20      | 1 90         | 64 09    | 100.00 |
| Polk            | 23.11 | 8.17        | 2.71     | 34 53    | 48.88                | 12.65     | 3 95         | 65.47    | 100.00 |
| Putnam          | 33.18 | 12.65       | 2.09     | 48.66    | 37.95                | 7.89      | 5.55         | 51.34    | 100.00 |
| St Johns        | 21.63 | 11.76       | 0.19     | 33 59    | 41 94                | 19.29     | 5.19         | 66 41    | 100.00 |
| St. Lucie       | 15.79 | 8.97        | 12.94    | 37.70    | 36.41                | 17.23     | 8.65         | 62.30    | 100.00 |
| Santa Rosa      | 20.65 | 12.39       | 1.90     | 34.94    | 43.74                | 15.78     | 5.55         | 65.06    | 100.00 |
| Sarasota        | 26.24 | 5.03        | 1.35     | 32.63    | 53.53                | 11.13     | 2.71         | 67.37    | 100.00 |
| Seminole        | 22.81 | 7.17        | 1.75     | 31.73    | 53.62                | 9.75      | 4.91         | 68.27    | 100.00 |
| Sumter          | 9.68  | 6.76        | 5.18     | 21.62    | 62.16                | 12.16     | 4.05         | 78.38    | 100.00 |
| Suwannee        | 35.65 | 11.04       | 2.84     | 49.53    | 37.22                | 7.57      | 5.68         | 50.47    | 100.00 |
| Taylor          | 32.95 | 12.50       | 2.84     | 48.30    | 38.64                | 7.39      | 5.68         | 51.70    | 100.00 |
| Union           | 28.57 | 9.52        | 4.76     | 42.86    | 38.10                | 11.43     | 7.62         | 57.14    | 100.00 |
| Volusia         | 21.25 | 4.97        | 2.96     | 29.18    | 53.11                | 14.38     | 3.33         | 70.82    | 100.00 |
| Wakulla         | 19.75 | 6.79        | 3.70     | 30.25    | 54.32                | 13.58     | 1.85         | 69.75    | 100.00 |
| Walton          | 28.45 | 7.76        | 2.37     | 38.58    | 39.44                | 17.67     | 4.31         | 61.42    | 100.00 |
| Washington      | 20.75 | 13.21       | 3.77     | 37.74    | 41.04                | 18.40     | 2.83         | 62.26    | 100.00 |
| Florida         | 21.65 | 8.98        | 3.42     | 34.05    | 47.06                | 14.20     | 4.69         | 65.95    | 100.00 |
| *Neter Centhern |       | halda ana 4 | h        | havain   | - hunder of 40 menes |           | - <b>f</b> : |          | مامه   |

### Table IV-3a. All cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|                  | Change in households, 2001-2002 |             |           |             |                    |             |            |            |        |  |
|------------------|---------------------------------|-------------|-----------|-------------|--------------------|-------------|------------|------------|--------|--|
|                  | (                               | Cost burder | n 40-49%  |             |                    | Cost burd   | len 50+ %  |            |        |  |
|                  |                                 | Househo     | ld size   |             |                    | Househ      | old size   |            |        |  |
| County           | 1-2                             | 3-4         | 5+        | Subtotal    | 1-2                | 3-4         | 5+         | Subtotal   | Total  |  |
|                  |                                 |             |           |             |                    |             |            |            |        |  |
| Alachua          | 29.82                           | 3.51        | 0.00      | 33.33       | 59.65              | 7.02        | 0.00       | 66.67      | 100.00 |  |
| Baker            | 0.00                            | 0.00        | 0.00      | 0.00        | 66.67              | 33.33       | 0.00       | 100.00     | 100.00 |  |
| Bay              | 40.54                           | 2.70        | 2.70      | 45.95       | 45.95              | 5.41        | 2.70       | 54.05      | 100.00 |  |
| Bradford         | 100.00                          | 0.00        | 0.00      | 100.00      | 0.00               | 0.00        | 0.00       | 0.00       | 100.00 |  |
| Brevard          | 20.35                           | 6.19        | 0.00      | 26.55       | 58.41              | 14.16       | 0.88       | 73.45      | 100.00 |  |
| Broward          | 22.47                           | 5.87        | 1.21      | 29.55       | 56.88              | 10.32       | 3.24       | 70.45      | 100.00 |  |
| Calhoun          | 100.00                          | 0.00        | 0.00      | 100.00      | 0.00               | 0.00        | 0.00       | 0.00       | 100.00 |  |
| Charlotte        | 23.68                           | 10.53       | 7.89      | 42.11       | 47.37              | 7.89        | 2.63       | 57.89      | 100.00 |  |
| Citrus           | 17.39                           | 4.35        | 8.70      | 30.43       | 69.57              | 0.00        | 0.00       | 69.57      | 100.00 |  |
| Clay             | 36.36                           | 11.36       | 2.27      | 50.00       | 38.64              | 9.09        | 2.27       | 50.00      | 100.00 |  |
| Collier          | 20.78                           | 2.60        | 1.30      | 24.68       | 59.74              | 12.99       | 2.60       | 75.32      | 100.00 |  |
| Columbia         | 36.84                           | 5.26        | 5.26      | 47.37       | 42.11              | 5.26        | 5.26       | 52.63      | 100.00 |  |
| DeSoto           | 40.00                           | 40.00       | 0.00      | 80.00       | 20.00              | 0.00        | 0.00       | 20.00      | 100.00 |  |
| Dixie            | 0.00                            | 0.00        | 0.00      | 0.00        | 100.00             | 0.00        | 0.00       | 100.00     | 100.00 |  |
| Duval            | 28.66                           | 7.32        | 1.83      | 37.80       | 53.05              | 6.71        | 2.44       | 62.20      | 100.00 |  |
| Escambia         | 20.00                           | 8.00        | 0.00      | 28.00       | 64.00              | 8.00        | 0.00       | 72.00      | 100.00 |  |
| Flagler          | 11.76                           | 17.65       | 0.00      | 29.41       | 64.71              | 5.88        | 0.00       | 70.59      | 100.00 |  |
| Franklin         | 0.00                            | 0.00        | 0.00      | 0.00        | 100.00             | 0.00        | 0.00       | 100.00     | 100.00 |  |
| Gadsden          | 42.86                           | 0.00        | 0.00      | 42.86       | 42.86              | 14.29       | 0.00       | 57.14      | 100.00 |  |
| Gilchrist        | 0.00                            | 0.00        | 50.00     | 50.00       | 50.00              | 0.00        | 0.00       | 50.00      | 100.00 |  |
| Glades           | NA                              | NA          | NA        | NA          | NA                 | NA          | NA         | NA         | NA     |  |
| Gulf             | 66.67                           | 0.00        | 0.00      | 66.67       | 33.33              | 0.00        | 0.00       | 33.33      | 100.00 |  |
| Hamilton         | 66.67                           | 0.00        | 0.00      | 66.67       | 33.33              | 0.00        | 0.00       | 33.33      | 100.00 |  |
| Hardee           | 0.00                            | 0.00        | 0.00      | 0.00        | 100.00             | 0.00        | 0.00       | 100.00     | 100.00 |  |
| Hendry           | 30.00                           | 10.00       | 10.00     | 50.00       | 30.00              | 20.00       | 0.00       | 50.00      | 100.00 |  |
| Hernando         | 18.42                           | 7.89        | 0.00      | 26.32       | 68.42              | 5.26        | 0.00       | 73.68      | 100.00 |  |
| Highlands        | 37.50                           | 0.00        | 12.50     | 50.00       | 37.50              | 6.25        | 6.25       | 50.00      | 100.00 |  |
| Hillsborough     | 25.87                           | 3.50        | 2.10      | 31.47       | 59.44              | 7.34        | 1.75       | 68.53      | 100.00 |  |
| Holmes           | 0.00                            | 25.00       | 0.00      | 25.00       | 75.00              | 0.00        | 0.00       | 75.00      | 100.00 |  |
| Indian River     | 28.57                           | 3.57        | 0.00      | 32.14       | 50.00              | 17.86       | 0.00       | 67.86      | 100.00 |  |
| Jackson          | 44.44                           | 0.00        | 0.00      | 44.44       | 33.33              | 22.22       | 0.00       | 55.56      | 100.00 |  |
| Jefferson        | NA                              | NA          | NA        | NA          | NA                 | NA          | NA         | NA         | NA     |  |
| Lafayette        | 0.00                            | 0.00        | 0.00      | 0.00        | 100.00             | 0.00        | 0.00       | 100.00     | 100.00 |  |
| Lake             | 37.50                           | 8.33        | 4.17      | 50.00       | 41.67              | 6.25        | 2.08       | 50.00      | 100.00 |  |
| Lee              | 21.99                           | 7.09        | 2.13      | 31.21       | 54.61              | 12.06       | 2.13       | 68.79      | 100.00 |  |
| Leon             | 22.89                           | 6.02        | 1.20      | 30.12       | 62.65              | 6.02        | 1.20       | 69.88      | 100.00 |  |
| Levy             | 28.57                           | 0.00        | 0.00      | 28.57       | 57.14              | 0.00        | 14.29      | 71.43      | 100.00 |  |
| Liberty          | NA                              | NA          | NA        | NA          | NA                 | NA          | NA         | NA         | NA     |  |
| Madison          | 50.00                           | 50.00       | 0.00      | 100.00      | 0.00               | 0.00        | 0.00       | 0.00       | 100.00 |  |
| Manatee          | 24.00                           | 6.67        | 2.67      | 33.33       | 53.33              | 9.33        | 4.00       | 66.67      | 100.00 |  |
| Marion           | 19.72                           | 9.86        | 2.82      | 32.39       | 53.52              | 12.68       | 1.41       | 67.61      | 100.00 |  |
| Martin           | 21.43                           | 7.14        | 0.00      | 28.57       | 64.29              | 0.00        | 7.14       | 71.43      | 100.00 |  |
| Miami-Dade       | 15.27                           | 5.91        | 3.75      | 24.93       | 56.05              | 13.54       | 5.48       | 75.07      | 100.00 |  |
| *Note: Cost burd | ened house                      | holds are t | hose with | n a housing | burden of 40 perce | ent or more | e of incom | e and hous | ehold  |  |

### Table IV-3b. All cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|                  |            |            |            | Change      | e in households, 200 |            |          |             |        |
|------------------|------------|------------|------------|-------------|----------------------|------------|----------|-------------|--------|
|                  | (          | Cost burde | n 40-49%   | ,           |                      | Cost burde | en 50+ % |             |        |
|                  |            | Househo    | old size   |             |                      | Househo    | old size |             |        |
| County           | 1-2        | 3-4        | 5+         | Subtotal    | 1-2                  | 3-4        | 5+       | Subtotal    | Total  |
|                  |            |            |            |             |                      |            |          |             |        |
| Monroe           | 10.00      | 0.00       | 0.00       | 10.00       | 80.00                | 10.00      | 0.00     | 90.00       | 100.00 |
| Nassau           | 41.67      | 16.67      | 0.00       | 58.33       | 16.67                | 8.33       | 16.67    | 41.67       | 100.00 |
| Okaloosa         | 20.00      | 12.31      | 4.62       | 36.92       | 41.54                | 10.77      | 10.77    | 63.08       | 100.00 |
| Okeechobee       | 25.00      | 0.00       | 25.00      | 50.00       | 50.00                | 0.00       | 0.00     | 50.00       | 100.00 |
| Orange           | 27.21      | 7.56       | 1.94       | 36.72       | 49.68                | 11.88      | 1.73     | 63.28       | 100.00 |
| Osceola          | 20.59      | 5.88       | 4.90       | 31.37       | 49.02                | 17.65      | 1.96     | 68.63       | 100.00 |
| Palm Beach       | 23.33      | 5.45       | 2.12       | 30.91       | 55.76                | 10.00      | 3.33     | 69.09       | 100.00 |
| Pasco            | 25.81      | 3.23       | 1.61       | 30.65       | 56.45                | 11.29      | 1.61     | 69.35       | 100.00 |
| Pinellas         | 34.86      | 0.00       | 0.00       | 34.86       | 65.14                | 0.92       | 0.92     | 65.14       | 100.00 |
| Polk             | 24.27      | 3.88       | 0.97       | 29.13       | 65.05                | 4.85       | 0.97     | 70.87       | 100.00 |
| Putnam           | 37.50      | 12.50      | 12.50      | 62.50       | 37.50                | 0.00       | 0.00     | 37.50       | 100.00 |
| St. Johns        | 14.29      | 11.90      | 0.00       | 26.19       | 54.76                | 14.29      | 4.76     | 73.81       | 100.00 |
| St. Lucie        | 18.64      | 8.47       | 11.86      | 38.98       | 42.37                | 10.17      | 8.47     | 61.02       | 100.00 |
| Santa Rosa       | 24.00      | 8.00       | 0.00       | 32.00       | 60.00                | 8.00       | 0.00     | 68.00       | 100.00 |
| Sarasota         | 25.71      | 1.43       | 1.43       | 28.57       | 65.71                | 4.29       | 1.43     | 71.43       | 100.00 |
| Seminole         | 22.39      | 5.22       | 0.75       | 28.36       | 65.67                | 5.22       | 0.75     | 71.64       | 100.00 |
| Sumter           | 6.25       | 6.25       | 6.25       | 18.75       | 68.75                | 6.25       | 6.25     | 81.25       | 100.00 |
| Suwannee         | 44.44      | 0.00       | 0.00       | 44.44       | 44.44                | 11.11      | 0.00     | 55.56       | 100.00 |
| Taylor           | 50.00      | 0.00       | 0.00       | 50.00       | 50.00                | 0.00       | 0.00     | 50.00       | 100.00 |
| Union            | 50.00      | 0.00       | 0.00       | 50.00       | 50.00                | 0.00       | 0.00     | 50.00       | 100.00 |
| Volusia          | 19.83      | 4.31       | 1.72       | 25.86       | 58.62                | 12.07      | 3.45     | 74.14       | 100.00 |
| Wakulla          | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00       | 0.00        | 85.71                | 14.29      | 0.00     | 100.00      | 100.00 |
| Walton           | 23.08      | 7.69       | 0.00       | 30.77       | 53.85                | 15.38      | 0.00     | 69.23       | 100.00 |
| Washington       | 0.00       | 25.00      | 0.00       | 25.00       | 75.00                | 0.00       | 0.00     | 75.00       | 100.00 |
| Florida          | 23.20      | 5.99       | 2.32       | 31.52       | 55.61                | 10.01      | 2.86     | 68.48       | 100.00 |
| *Note: Cost burd | anad house | holdana    | those with | h a housing | burden of 40 perce   | nt or more | ofincom  | a and house | abold  |

## Table IV-3b. All cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|                  |            |            |            | Change      | e in households, 200 | 02-2007     |            |            |        |
|------------------|------------|------------|------------|-------------|----------------------|-------------|------------|------------|--------|
|                  | (          | Cost burde | n 40-49%   |             |                      | Cost burd   | en 50+ %   |            |        |
|                  |            | Househo    | old size   |             |                      | Househ      | old size   |            |        |
| County           | 1-2        | 3-4        | 5+         | Subtotal    | 1-2                  | 3-4         | 5+         | Subtotal   | Total  |
|                  |            |            |            |             |                      |             |            |            |        |
| Alachua          | 27.71      | 4.22       | 1.20       | 33.13       | 60.54                | 5.72        | 0.60       | 66.87      | 100.00 |
| Baker            | 24.00      | 4.00       | 0.00       | 28.00       | 52.00                | 4.00        | 16.00      | 72.00      | 100.00 |
| Bay              | 31.18      | 3.76       | 1.08       | 36.02       | 52.15                | 10.75       | 1.08       | 63.98      | 100.00 |
| Bradford         | 46.15      | 0.00       | 0.00       | 46.15       | 53.85                | 0.00        | 0.00       | 53.85      | 100.00 |
| Brevard          | 23.85      | 5.79       | 2.21       | 31.86       | 57.07                | 8.52        | 2.56       | 68.14      | 100.00 |
| Broward          | 22.91      | 5.35       | 2.05       | 30.31       | 57.20                | 9.57        | 2.91       | 69.69      | 100.00 |
| Calhoun          | 25.00      | 8.33       | 0.00       | 33.33       | 58.33                | 8.33        | 0.00       | 66.67      | 100.00 |
| Charlotte        | 29.19      | 9.32       | 2.48       | 40.99       | 49.07                | 5.59        | 4.35       | 59.01      | 100.00 |
| Citrus           | 13.28      | 3.13       | 0.78       | 17.19       | 74.22                | 6.25        | 2.34       | 82.81      | 100.00 |
| Clay             | 37.25      | 6.86       | 1.47       | 45.59       | 39.71                | 10.29       | 4.41       | 54.41      | 100.00 |
| Collier          | 18.36      | 5.31       | 0.72       | 24.40       | 60.87                | 10.63       | 4.11       | 75.60      | 100.00 |
| Columbia         | 34.85      | 9.09       | 1.52       | 45.45       | 48.48                | 4.55        | 1.52       | 54.55      | 100.00 |
| DeSoto           | 21.43      | 7.14       | 7.14       | 35.71       | 50.00                | 14.29       | 0.00       | 64.29      | 100.00 |
| Dixie            | 40.00      | 0.00       | 20.00      | 60.00       | 20.00                | 20.00       | 0.00       | 40.00      | 100.00 |
| Duval            | 27.87      | 7.64       | 1.48       | 36.99       | 54.62                | 6.66        | 1.73       | 63.01      | 100.00 |
| Escambia         | 23.55      | 6.52       | 0.36       | 30.43       | 61.23                | 6.52        | 1.81       | 69.57      | 100.00 |
| Flagler          | 22.55      | 8.82       | 0.00       | 31.37       | 50.00                | 10.78       | 7.84       | 68.63      | 100.00 |
| Franklin         | 45.45      | 9.09       | 0.00       | 54.55       | 45.45                | 0.00        | 0.00       | 45.45      | 100.00 |
| Gadsden          | 40.63      | 12.50      | 3.13       | 56.25       | 40.63                | 3.13        | 0.00       | 43.75      | 100.00 |
| Gilchrist        | 33.33      | 16.67      | 8.33       | 58.33       | 25.00                | 8.33        | 8.33       | 41.67      | 100.00 |
| Glades           | 11.11      | 22.22      | 11.11      | 44.44       | 44.44                | 11.11       | 0.00       | 55.56      | 100.00 |
| Gulf             | 0.00       | 20.00      | 0.00       | 20.00       | 80.00                | 0.00        | 0.00       | 80.00      | 100.00 |
| Hamilton         | 46.67      | 6.67       | 0.00       | 53.33       | 40.00                | 0.00        | 6.67       | 46.67      | 100.00 |
| Hardee           | 40.00      | 0.00       | 0.00       | 40.00       | 60.00                | 0.00        | 0.00       | 60.00      | 100.00 |
| Hendry           | 19.05      | 14.29      | 9.52       | 42.86       | 38.10                | 14.29       | 4.76       | 57.14      | 100.00 |
| Hernando         | 16.15      | 8.33       | 2.08       | 26.56       | 67.19                | 5.21        | 1.04       | 73.44      | 100.00 |
| Highlands        | 27.69      | 7.69       | 4.62       | 40.00       | 49.23                | 7.69        | 3.08       | 60.00      | 100.00 |
| Hillsborough     | 26.80      | 3.37       | 1.43       | 31.60       | 60.03                | 6.94        | 1.43       | 68.40      | 100.00 |
| Holmes           | 83.33      | 0.00       | 0.00       | 83.33       | 16.67                | 0.00        | 0.00       | 16.67      | 100.00 |
| Indian River     | 20.50      | 5.59       | 1.86       | 27.95       | 56.52                | 11.80       | 3.73       | 72.05      | 100.00 |
| Jackson          | 33.33      | 4.76       | 0.00       | 38.10       | 52.38                | 9.52        | 0.00       | 61.90      | 100.00 |
| Jefferson        | 30.00      | 0.00       | 0.00       | 30.00       | 60.00                | 10.00       | 0.00       | 70.00      | 100.00 |
| Lafayette        | 33.33      | 0.00       | 0.00       | 33.33       | 50.00                | 16.67       | 0.00       | 66.67      | 100.00 |
| Lake             | 36.71      | 11.81      | 1.27       | 49.79       | 46.41                | 2.95        | 0.84       | 50.21      | 100.00 |
| Lee              | 21.79      | 6.12       | 1.94       | 29.85       | 55.82                | 11.49       | 2.84       | 70.15      | 100.00 |
| Leon             | 25.57      | 4.34       | 1.14       | 31.05       | 62.10                | 6.16        | 0.68       | 68.95      | 100.00 |
| Levy             | 6.06       | 9.09       | 3.03       | 18.18       | 81.82                | 0.00        | 0.00       | 81.82      | 100.00 |
| Liberty          | 20.00      | 20.00      | 0.00       | 40.00       | 20.00                | 40.00       | 0.00       | 60.00      | 100.00 |
| Madison          | 50.00      | 0.00       | 12.50      | 62.50       | 25.00                | 0.00        | 12.50      | 37.50      | 100.00 |
| Manatee          | 25.70      | 7.82       | 2.23       | 35.75       | 50.00                | 9.78        | 4.47       | 64.25      | 100.00 |
| Marion           | 21.31      | 6.28       | 2.19       | 29.78       | 56.83                | 10.93       | 2.46       | 70.22      | 100.00 |
| Martin           | 18.71      | 8.39       | 1.29       | 28.39       | 62.58                | 5.16        | 3.87       | 71.61      | 100.00 |
| Miami-Dade       | 15.31      | 6.68       | 2.76       | 24.75       | 57.59                | 12.44       | 5.22       | 75.25      | 100.00 |
| *Note: Cost burd | ened house | eholds are | those with | n a housing | p burden of 40 perce | ent or more | e of incom | e and hous | ehold  |

### Table IV-3c. All cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|                       |        |            |          | Change   | e in households, 200 | 2-2007    |            |          |        |
|-----------------------|--------|------------|----------|----------|----------------------|-----------|------------|----------|--------|
|                       | (      | Cost burde | n 40-49% |          |                      | Cost burd | en 50+ %   |          |        |
|                       |        | Househo    | old size |          |                      | Househ    | old size   |          |        |
| County                | 1-2    | 3-4        | 5+       | Subtotal | 1-2                  | 3-4       | 5+         | Subtotal | Total  |
| Monroo                | 21.12  | 4 22       | 1 /1     | 26.76    | 54.02                | 12.69     | 5.62       | 72 24    | 100.00 |
| Neggou                | 21.15  | 12.21      | 2.09     | 40.22    | 25.29                | 12.00     | 2.09       | 50.77    | 100.00 |
| Okalaasa              | 22.64  | 0.06       | 5.00     | 49.23    | 50.57                | 12.51     | 5.00       | 66 70    | 100.00 |
| Okaloosa              | 12.04  | 9.00       | 1.31     | 22.59    | 54.94                | 22.59     | 4.91       | 00.79    | 100.00 |
| Okeechobee            | 12.90  | 9.08       | 0.00     | 22.38    | 50.24                | 22.38     | 0.00       | (2.95    | 100.00 |
| Orange                | 20.73  | 7.22       | 2.20     | 21.04    | 50.34                | 11.30     | 2.15       | 03.83    | 100.00 |
| Osceola<br>Dalm Daaah | 23.15  | 5.39       | 3.39     | 31.94    | 53.09                | 13.17     | 1.20       | 68.06    | 100.00 |
| Paim Beach            | 23.88  | 5.05       | 2.09     | 31.02    | 57.78                | 8.74      | 2.46       | 68.98    | 100.00 |
| Pasco                 | 28.28  | 6./1       | 2.04     | 37.03    | 53.94                | /.58      | 1.46       | 62.97    | 100.00 |
| Pinellas              | 30.86  | 0.56       | 0.37     | 31.04    | 69.52                | 0.74      | 0.19       | 68.96    | 100.00 |
| Polk                  | 25.75  | 4.51       | 0.94     | 31.20    | 60.15                | 7.33      | 1.32       | 68.80    | 100.00 |
| Putnam                | 44.12  | 2.94       | 0.00     | 47.06    | 47.06                | 0.00      | 5.88       | 52.94    | 100.00 |
| St. Johns             | 18.32  | 9.90       | 0.00     | 28.22    | 55.94                | 12.38     | 3.47       | 71.78    | 100.00 |
| St. Lucie             | 16.46  | 5.91       | 8.44     | 30.80    | 50.21                | 13.92     | 5.06       | 69.20    | 100.00 |
| Santa Rosa            | 20.74  | 9.57       | 1.06     | 31.38    | 54.26                | 10.64     | 3.72       | 68.62    | 100.00 |
| Sarasota              | 27.79  | 0.86       | 0.86     | 29.51    | 63.61                | 5.44      | 1.43       | 70.49    | 100.00 |
| Seminole              | 22.73  | 3.60       | 0.86     | 27.19    | 63.88                | 6.19      | 2.73       | 72.81    | 100.00 |
| Sumter                | 12.31  | 3.08       | 1.54     | 16.92    | 78.46                | 3.08      | 1.54       | 83.08    | 100.00 |
| Suwannee              | 36.59  | 12.20      | 2.44     | 51.22    | 46.34                | 2.44      | 0.00       | 48.78    | 100.00 |
| Taylor                | 100.00 | 0.00       | 0.00     | 100.00   | 0.00                 | 0.00      | 0.00       | 0.00     | 100.00 |
| Union                 | 64.29  | 7.14       | 0.00     | 71.43    | 28.57                | 0.00      | 0.00       | 28.57    | 100.00 |
| Volusia               | 23.74  | 2.86       | 1.85     | 28.45    | 57.91                | 11.45     | 2.19       | 71.55    | 100.00 |
| Wakulla               | 20.00  | 10.00      | 0.00     | 30.00    | 60.00                | 10.00     | 0.00       | 70.00    | 100.00 |
| Walton                | 33.33  | 6.35       | 1.59     | 41.27    | 38.10                | 17.46     | 3.17       | 58.73    | 100.00 |
| Washington            | 11.11  | 16.67      | 0.00     | 27.78    | 38.89                | 33.33     | 0.00       | 72.22    | 100.00 |
| Florida               | 23.42  | 5.81       | 1.94     | 31.17    | 56.68                | 9.34      | 2.81       | 68.83    | 100.00 |
|                       | 1 11   | 1 11       | .1       |          | 1 1 640              |           | <u>c</u> : | 11       | 1 1 1  |

#### Table IV-3c. All cost burdened, renter households, as a percent of county by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|                    |                    | Households, 2001 |              |                     |               |             |        |  |
|--------------------|--------------------|------------------|--------------|---------------------|---------------|-------------|--------|--|
|                    | Cost bu            | rden 40-49%      |              | Cost b              | urden 50+ %   |             |        |  |
|                    | Age of househ      | older            |              | Age of househ       | older         |             |        |  |
| County             | 15-54              | 55+              | Subtotal     | 15-54               | 55+           | Subtotal    | Total  |  |
| Alachua            | 33.35              | 3.03             | 36.38        | 47.47               | 16.15         | 63.62       | 100.00 |  |
| Baker              | 27.45              | 9.80             | 37.25        | 41.67               | 21.08         | 62.75       | 100.00 |  |
| Bay                | 29.09              | 10.03            | 39.11        | 42.06               | 18.83         | 60.89       | 100.00 |  |
| Bradford           | 26.41              | 20.35            | 46.75        | 33.33               | 19.91         | 53.25       | 100.00 |  |
| Brevard            | 25.52              | 7.82             | 33.34        | 46.39               | 20.27         | 66.66       | 100.00 |  |
| Broward            | 24.61              | 8.38             | 32.99        | 44.25               | 22.76         | 67.01       | 100.00 |  |
| Calhoun            | 28.57              | 19.78            | 48.35        | 34.07               | 17.58         | 51.65       | 100.00 |  |
| Charlotte          | 14.55              | 22.96            | 37.52        | 35.38               | 27.10         | 62.48       | 100.00 |  |
| Citrus             | 15.30              | 7.95             | 23.25        | 31.11               | 45.64         | 76.75       | 100.00 |  |
| Clay               | 34.46              | 13.24            | 47.70        | 36.33               | 15.97         | 52.30       | 100.00 |  |
| Collier            | 22.12              | 4.88             | 27.00        | 52.81               | 20.20         | 73.00       | 100.00 |  |
| Columbia           | 26.94              | 19.52            | 46.45        | 33.55               | 20.00         | 53.55       | 100.00 |  |
| DeSoto             | 38.24              | 6.68             | 44.92        | 41.71               | 13.37         | 55.08       | 100.00 |  |
| Dixie              | 30.19              | 33.96            | 64.15        | 24.53               | 11.32         | 35.85       | 100.00 |  |
| Duval              | 34.85              | 6.87             | 41.72        | 44.12               | 14.15         | 58.28       | 100.00 |  |
| Escambia           | 27.39              | 7.35             | 34.74        | 46.09               | 19.17         | 65.26       | 100.00 |  |
| Flagler            | 23.05              | 10.62            | 33.67        | 32.46               | 33.87         | 66.33       | 100.00 |  |
| Franklin           | 28.74              | 18.39            | 47.13        | 35.63               | 17.24         | 52.87       | 100.00 |  |
| Gadsden            | 29.74              | 19.28            | 49.02        | 37.58               | 13.40         | 50.98       | 100.00 |  |
| Gilchrist          | 29.41              | 19.12            | 48.53        | 35.29               | 16.18         | 51.47       | 100.00 |  |
| Glades             | 43.48              | 6.52             | 50.00        | 35.87               | 14.13         | 50.00       | 100.00 |  |
| Gulf               | 32.14              | 13.39            | 45.54        | 37.50               | 16.96         | 54.46       | 100.00 |  |
| Hamilton           | 32.53              | 26.51            | 59.04        | 26.51               | 14.46         | 40.96       | 100.00 |  |
| Hardee             | 34.87              | 7.24             | 42.11        | 43.75               | 14.14         | 57.89       | 100.00 |  |
| Hendry             | 39.61              | 6.60             | 46.21        | 40.10               | 13.69         | 53.79       | 100.00 |  |
| Hernando           | 19.66              | 10.25            | 29.92        | 28.81               | 41.27         | 70.08       | 100.00 |  |
| Highlands          | 32.18              | 12.24            | 44.42        | 33.17               | 22.41         | 55.58       | 100.00 |  |
| Hillsborough       | 28.99              | 7.49             | 36.48        | 44.23               | 19.28         | 63.52       | 100.00 |  |
| Holmes             | 27.54              | 22.46            | 50.00        | 31.88               | 18.12         | 50.00       | 100.00 |  |
| Indian River       | 20.16              | 12.46            | 32.61        | 35.60               | 31.78         | 67.39       | 100.00 |  |
| Jackson            | 33.88              | 13.18            | 47.06        | 37.65               | 15.29         | 52.94       | 100.00 |  |
| Jefferson          | 33.04              | 12.50            | 45.54        | 34.82               | 19.64         | 54.46       | 100.00 |  |
| Lafayette          | 27.66              | 17.02            | 44.68        | 40.43               | 14.89         | 55.32       | 100.00 |  |
| Lake               | 33.03              | 19.89            | 52.92        | 23.42               | 23.66         | 47.08       | 100.00 |  |
| Lee                | 21.73              | 10.29            | 32.02        | 41.22               | 26.76         | 67.98       | 100.00 |  |
| Leon               | 32.24              | 3.34             | 35.57        | 47.80               | 16.62         | 64.43       | 100.00 |  |
| Levy               | 18.98              | 6.63             | 25.60        | 37.35               | 37.05         | 74.40       | 100.00 |  |
| Liberty            | 23.08              | 15.38            | 38.46        | 42.31               | 19.23         | 61.54       | 100.00 |  |
| Madison            | 28.76              | 26.14            | 54.90        | 27.45               | 17.65         | 45.10       | 100.00 |  |
| Manatee            | 25.77              | 10.35            | 36.13        | 42.95               | 20.92         | 63.87       | 100.00 |  |
| Marion             | 24.09              | 10.53            | 34.62        | 36.04               | 29.34         | 65.38       | 100.00 |  |
| Martin             | 26.34              | 6.84             | 33.18        | 38.71               | 28.11         | 66.82       | 100.00 |  |
| Miami-Dade         | 19.85              | 8.30             | 28.15        | 42.68               | 29.17         | 71.85       | 100.00 |  |
| *Note: Cost burder | ned households are | those with a     | housing burd | len of 40 percent o | r more of inc | ome and hou | sehold |  |

#### Table IV-4a. All cost burdened renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and age\*

income between 20 percent and 60 percent of adjusted area median.

|                                       |  |  | Hous                             | eholds, 2001              |              |              |        |
|---------------------------------------|--|--|----------------------------------|---------------------------|--------------|--------------|--------|
|                                       | Cost bu                                    | rden 40-49%  |                                  | Cost bı                   | urden 50+ %  |              |        |
|                                       | Age of househ                              | older  |                                  | Age of househo            | older        |              |        |
| County                                | 15-54                                      | 55+  | Subtotal                         | 15-54                     | 55+          | Subtotal     | Total  |
|                                       |  |  |                                  |                           |              |              |        |
| Monroe                                | 21.66                                      | 5.02   | 26.68                            | 58.15                     | 15.17        | 73.32        | 100.00 |
| Nassau                                | 33.76                                      | 13.47  | 47.23                            | 35.79                     | 16.97        | 52.77        | 100.00 |
| Okaloosa                              | 31.24                                      | 6.48   | 37.73                            | 46.76                     | 15.52        | 62.27        | 100.00 |
| Okeechobee                            | 34.90                                      | 3.85   | 38.76                            | 37.90                     | 23.34        | 61.24        | 100.00 |
| Orange                                | 33.26                                      | 5.99   | 39.25                            | 46.20                     | 14.56        | 60.75        | 100.00 |
| Osceola                               | 24.77                                      | 7.96   | 32.73                            | 47.27                     | 20.00        | 67.27        | 100.00 |
| Palm Beach                            | 23.79                                      | 9.81   | 33.60                            | 40.76                     | 25.64        | 66.40        | 100.00 |
| Pasco                                 | 26.00                                      | 15.98  | 41.98                            | 26.21                     | 31.81        | 58.02        | 100.00 |
| Pinellas                              | 23.78                                      | 12.13  | 35.91                            | 37.81                     | 26.28        | 64.09        | 100.00 |
| Polk                                  | 24.63                                      | 9.89   | 34.53                            | 40.88                     | 24.60        | 65.47        | 100.00 |
| Putnam                                | 26.34                                      | 22.32  | 48.66                            | 29.46                     | 21.88        | 51.34        | 100.00 |
| St. Johns                             | 26.38                                      | 7.21   | 33.59                            | 38.71                     | 27.70        | 66.41        | 100.00 |
| St. Lucie                             | 32.98                                      | 4.72   | 37.70                            | 43.86                     | 18.44        | 62.30        | 100.00 |
| Santa Rosa                            | 27.96                                      | 6.97   | 34.94                            | 47.05                     | 18.01        | 65.06        | 100.00 |
| Sarasota                              | 20.85                                      | 11.77  | 32.63                            | 37.25                     | 30.13        | 67.37        | 100.00 |
| Seminole                              | 24.75                                      | 6.98   | 31.73                            | 44.29                     | 23.98        | 68.27        | 100.00 |
| Sumter                                | 14.86                                      | 6.76   | 21.62                            | 35.14                     | 43.24        | 78.38        | 100.00 |
| Suwannee                              | 24.29                                      | 25.24  | 49.53                            | 27.76                     | 22.71        | 50.47        | 100.00 |
| Taylor                                | 26.14                                      | 22.16  | 48.30                            | 30.68                     | 21.02        | 51.70        | 100.00 |
| Union                                 | 24.76                                      | 18.10  | 42.86                            | 39.05                     | 18.10        | 57.14        | 100.00 |
| Volusia                               | 20.21                                      | 8.97   | 29.18                            | 45.71                     | 25.10        | 70.82        | 100.00 |
| Wakulla                               | 23.46                                      | 6.79   | 30.25                            | 46.30                     | 23.46        | 69.75        | 100.00 |
| Walton                                | 24.78                                      | 13.79  | 38.58                            | 40.52                     | 20.91        | 61.42        | 100.00 |
| Washington                            | 33.02                                      | 4.72   | 37.74                            | 35.38                     | 26.89        | 62.26        | 100.00 |
| Florida                               | 25.30                                      | 8.75   | 34.05                            | 42.51                     | 23.44        | 65.95        | 100.00 |
| *Note: Cost burde<br>income between 2 | ened households are<br>0 percent and 60 pe | those with a tree those with a | housing burde<br>sted area media | n of 40 percent or<br>in. | more of inco | ome and hous | sehold |

## Table IV-4a. All cost burdened renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and age (continued)\*

|              |               |             | Change in | households, 200 | 1-2002           |          |        |
|--------------|---------------|-------------|-----------|-----------------|------------------|----------|--------|
|              | Cost bu       | rden 40-49% |           | Co              | ost burden 50+ % | ,<br>D   |        |
|              | Age of househ | older       |           | Age of ho       | useholder        |          |        |
| County       | 15-54         | 55+         | Subtotal  | 15-54           | 55+              | Subtotal | Total  |
|              |               |             |           |                 |                  |          |        |
| Alachua      | 29.82         | 3.51        | 33.33     | 36.84           | 29.82            | 66.67    | 100.00 |
| Baker        | 0.00          | 0.00        | 0.00      | 33.33           | 66.67            | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Bay          | 21.62         | 24.32       | 45.95     | 13.51           | 40.54            | 54.05    | 100.00 |
| Bradford     | 100.00        | 0.00        | 100.00    | 0.00            | 0.00             | 0.00     | 100.00 |
| Brevard      | 11.50         | 15.04       | 26.55     | 32.74           | 40.71            | 73.45    | 100.00 |
| Broward      | 13.36         | 16.19       | 29.55     | 27.13           | 43.32            | 70.45    | 100.00 |
| Calhoun      | 100.00        | 0.00        | 100.00    | 0.00            | 0.00             | 0.00     | 100.00 |
| Charlotte    | 18.42         | 23.68       | 42.11     | 28.95           | 28.95            | 57.89    | 100.00 |
| Citrus       | 21.74         | 8.70        | 30.43     | 8.70            | 60.87            | 69.57    | 100.00 |
| Clay         | 25.00         | 25.00       | 50.00     | 15.91           | 34.09            | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Collier      | 14.29         | 10.39       | 24.68     | 37.66           | 37.66            | 75.32    | 100.00 |
| Columbia     | 15.79         | 31.58       | 47.37     | 26.32           | 26.32            | 52.63    | 100.00 |
| DeSoto       | 40.00         | 40.00       | 80.00     | 0.00            | 20.00            | 20.00    | 100.00 |
| Dixie        | 0.00          | 0.00        | 0.00      | 100.00          | 0.00             | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Duval        | 20.73         | 17.07       | 37.80     | 24.39           | 37.80            | 62.20    | 100.00 |
| Escambia     | 10.00         | 18.00       | 28.00     | 20.00           | 52.00            | 72.00    | 100.00 |
| Flagler      | 11.76         | 17.65       | 29.41     | 5.88            | 64.71            | 70.59    | 100.00 |
| Franklin     | 0.00          | 0.00        | 0.00      | 0.00            | 100.00           | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Gadsden      | 0.00          | 42.86       | 42.86     | 28.57           | 28.57            | 57.14    | 100.00 |
| Gilchrist    | 50.00         | 0.00        | 50.00     | 50.00           | 0.00             | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Glades       | NA            | NA          | NA        | NA              | NA               | NA       | NA     |
| Gulf         | 0.00          | 66.67       | 66.67     | 33.33           | 0.00             | 33.33    | 100.00 |
| Hamilton     | 66.67         | 0.00        | 66.67     | 0.00            | 33.33            | 33.33    | 100.00 |
| Hardee       | 0.00          | 0.00        | 0.00      | 0.00            | 100.00           | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Hendry       | 30.00         | 20.00       | 50.00     | 40.00           | 10.00            | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Hernando     | 5.26          | 21.05       | 26.32     | 15.79           | 57.89            | 73.68    | 100.00 |
| Highlands    | 12.50         | 37.50       | 50.00     | 6.25            | 43.75            | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Hillsborough | 13.29         | 18.18       | 31.47     | 20.98           | 47.55            | 68.53    | 100.00 |
| Holmes       | 0.00          | 25.00       | 25.00     | 0.00            | 75.00            | 75.00    | 100.00 |
| Indian River | 3.57          | 28.57       | 32.14     | 17.86           | 50.00            | 67.86    | 100.00 |
| Jackson      | 22.22         | 22.22       | 44.44     | 33.33           | 22.22            | 55.56    | 100.00 |
| Jefferson    | NA            | NA          | NA        | NA              | NA               | NA       | NA     |
| Lafayette    | 0.00          | 0.00        | 0.00      | 0.00            | 100.00           | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Lake         | 22.92         | 27.08       | 50.00     | 18.75           | 31.25            | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Lee          | 14.18         | 17.02       | 31.21     | 29.08           | 39.72            | 68.79    | 100.00 |
| Leon         | 24.10         | 6.02        | 30.12     | 40.96           | 28.92            | 69.88    | 100.00 |
| Levy         | 0.00          | 28.57       | 28.57     | 14.29           | 57.14            | 71.43    | 100.00 |
| Liberty      | NA            | NA          | NA        | NA              | NA               | NA       | NA     |
| Madison      | 50.00         | 50.00       | 100.00    | 0.00            | 0.00             | 0.00     | 100.00 |
| Manatee      | 13.33         | 20.00       | 33.33     | 25.33           | 41.33            | 66.67    | 100.00 |
| Marion       | 14.08         | 18.31       | 32.39     | 19.72           | 47.89            | 67.61    | 100.00 |
| Martin       | 10.71         | 17.86       | 28.57     | 25.00           | 46.43            | 71.43    | 100.00 |
| Miami-Dade   | 9.37          | 15.56       | 24.93     | 20.89           | 54.18            | 75.07    | 100.00 |

#### Table IV-4b. All cost burdened renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and age (continued)\*

|            |                |            | Change in ho | useholds, 2001-200 | 2           |          |        |
|------------|----------------|------------|--------------|--------------------|-------------|----------|--------|
|            | Cost bu        | den 40-49% |              | Cost bu            | ırden 50+ % |          |        |
|            | Age of househo | older      |              | Age of househo     | older       |          |        |
| County     | 15-54          | 55+        | Subtotal     | 15-54              | 55+         | Subtotal | Total  |
| Monroe     | 0.00           | 10.00      | 10.00        | 10.00              | 80.00       | 90.00    | 100.00 |
| Nassau     | 16.67          | 41.67      | 58.33        | 16.67              | 25.00       | 41.67    | 100.00 |
| Okaloosa   | 26.15          | 10.77      | 36.92        | 35.38              | 23.00       | 63.08    | 100.00 |
| Okaachohaa | 25.00          | 25.00      | 50.00        | 0.00               | 50.00       | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Orange     | 23.00          | 12.53      | 36.72        | 33.69              | 29.59       | 63.28    | 100.00 |
| Osceola    | 19.61          | 11.76      | 31.37        | 37.25              | 31.37       | 68.63    | 100.00 |
| Palm Beach | 14.55          | 16.36      | 30.91        | 25.15              | /3 9/       | 69.09    | 100.00 |
| Pasco      | 8.06           | 22.58      | 30.65        | 17.74              | 51.61       | 69.35    | 100.00 |
| Pinellas   | 0.00           | 34.86      | 34.86        | 2 75               | 67.89       | 65.14    | 100.00 |
| Polk       | 8 74           | 20.39      | 29.13        | 16.50              | 54 37       | 70.87    | 100.00 |
| Putnam     | 25.00          | 37.50      | 62 50        | 0.00               | 37.50       | 37.50    | 100.00 |
| St Johns   | 14 29          | 11.90      | 26.19        | 30.95              | 42.86       | 73.81    | 100.00 |
| St. Jucie  | 32.20          | 6.78       | 38.98        | 32.20              | 28.81       | 61.02    | 100.00 |
| Santa Rosa | 12.00          | 20.00      | 32.00        | 28.00              | 40.00       | 68.00    | 100.00 |
| Sarasota   | 7 14           | 20.00      | 28.57        | 14 29              | 57.14       | 71 43    | 100.00 |
| Seminole   | 14.93          | 13 43      | 28.36        | 23.13              | 48 51       | 71.13    | 100.00 |
| Sumter     | 12.50          | 6.25       | 18 75        | 12 50              | 68 75       | 81.25    | 100.00 |
| Suwannee   | 0.00           | 44 44      | 44 44        | 22.22              | 33 33       | 55.56    | 100.00 |
| Taylor     | 0.00           | 50.00      | 50.00        | 0.00               | 50.00       | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Union      | 50.00          | 0.00       | 50.00        | 0.00               | 50.00       | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Volusia    | 12.93          | 12.93      | 25.86        | 30.17              | 43.97       | 74 14    | 100.00 |
| Wakulla    | 0.00           | 0.00       | 0.00         | 42.86              | 57.14       | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Walton     | 15 38          | 15 38      | 30.77        | 23.08              | 46.15       | 69.23    | 100.00 |
| Washington | 25.00          | 0.00       | 25.00        | 25.00              | 50.00       | 75.00    | 100.00 |
| Florida    | 14.95          | 16.56      | 31.52        | 24.83              | 43.65       | 68.48    | 100.00 |

### Table IV-4b. All cost burdened renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and age (continued)\*

| County County Alachua Baker Bay Bradford Brevard Broward Calhoun Charlotte Citrus Clay Collier Columbia   | Cost bur           Age of househo           15-54           27.71           12.00           13.44           7.69           15.16           13.35           0.00           8.07           4.69           17.65           14.98 | den 40-49%           older           55+           5.42           16.00           22.58           38.46           16.70           16.97           33.33           32.92           12.50 | Subtotal<br>33.13<br>28.00<br>36.02<br>46.15<br>31.86<br>30.31<br>33.33  | Cost bu           Age of househo           15-54           39.46           44.00           19.35           0.00           25.55           23.50 | rden 50+ %<br>blder 55+<br>27.41<br>28.00<br>44.62<br>53.85<br>42.59  | Subtotal<br>66.87<br>72.00<br>63.98<br>53.85 | Total<br>100.00<br>100.00<br>100.00 |
|---|---|---|--|---|---|--|-------------------------------------|
| County         County         Alachua         Baker         Bay         Bradford         Brevard         Broward         Calhoun         Charlotte         Citrus         Clay         Collier         Columbia | Age of househo<br>15-54<br>27.71<br>12.00<br>13.44<br>7.69<br>15.16<br>13.35<br>0.00<br>8.07<br>4.69<br>17.65<br>14.98  | Sider           55+           5.42           16.00           22.58           38.46           16.70           16.97           33.33           32.92           12.50                      | Subtotal           33.13           28.00           36.02           46.15           31.86           30.31           33.33 | Age of househo<br>15-54<br>39.46<br>44.00<br>19.35<br>0.00<br>25.55<br>23.50  | Older         55+           27.41         28.00           44.62         53.85           42.59         42.59 | Subtotal<br>66.87<br>72.00<br>63.98<br>53.85 | Total<br>100.00<br>100.00<br>100.00 |
| County Alachua Baker Bay Bradford Brevard Broward Calhoun Charlotte Citrus Clay Collier Columbia  | 15-54           27.71           12.00           13.44           7.69           15.16           13.35           0.00           8.07           4.69           17.65           14.98   | 55+<br>5.42<br>16.00<br>22.58<br>38.46<br>16.70<br>16.97<br>33.33<br>32.92<br>12.50   | Subtotal           33.13           28.00           36.02           46.15           31.86           30.31           33.33 | 15-54<br>39.46<br>44.00<br>19.35<br>0.00<br>25.55<br>23.50  | 55+<br>27.41<br>28.00<br>44.62<br>53.85<br>42.59  | Subtotal<br>66.87<br>72.00<br>63.98<br>53.85 | Total<br>100.00<br>100.00<br>100.00 |
| Alachua         Baker         Bay         Bradford         Brevard         Broward         Calhoun         Charlotte         Citrus         Clay         Collier         Columbia                               | 27.71<br>12.00<br>13.44<br>7.69<br>15.16<br>13.35<br>0.00<br>8.07<br>4.69<br>17.65<br>14.98   | 5.42<br>16.00<br>22.58<br>38.46<br>16.70<br>16.97<br>33.33<br>32.92<br>12.50  | 33.13           28.00           36.02           46.15           31.86           30.31           33.33                    | 39.46<br>44.00<br>19.35<br>0.00<br>25.55<br>23.50   | 27.41<br>28.00<br>44.62<br>53.85<br>42.59   | 66.87<br>72.00<br>63.98<br>53.85             | 100.00<br>100.00<br>100.00          |
| Alachua       Baker       Bay       Bradford       Brevard       Broward       Calhoun       Charlotte       Citrus       Clay       Collier       Columbia   | 27.71<br>12.00<br>13.44<br>7.69<br>15.16<br>13.35<br>0.00<br>8.07<br>4.69<br>17.65<br>14.98   | 5.42           16.00           22.58           38.46           16.70           16.97           33.33           32.92           12.50  | 33.13       28.00       36.02       46.15       31.86       30.31       33.33  | 39.46<br>44.00<br>19.35<br>0.00<br>25.55<br>23.50   | 27.41<br>28.00<br>44.62<br>53.85<br>42.59   | 66.87<br>72.00<br>63.98<br>53.85             | 100.00<br>100.00<br>100.00          |
| Baker     Bay     Bradford     Brevard     Broward     Calhoun     Charlotte     Citrus     Clay     Collier     Columbia   | 12.00           13.44           7.69           15.16           13.35           0.00           8.07           4.69           17.65           14.98   | 16.00           22.58           38.46           16.70           16.97           33.33           32.92           12.50   | 28.00<br>36.02<br>46.15<br>31.86<br>30.31<br>33.33   | 44.00<br>19.35<br>0.00<br>25.55<br>23.50  | 28.00<br>44.62<br>53.85<br>42.59  | 72.00<br>63.98<br>53.85                      | 100.00<br>100.00                    |
| Bay Bradford Brevard Broward Calhoun Charlotte Citrus Clay Collier Columbia   | 13.44           7.69           15.16           13.35           0.00           8.07           4.69           17.65           14.98   | 22.58<br>38.46<br>16.70<br>16.97<br>33.33<br>32.92<br>12.50   | 36.02<br>46.15<br>31.86<br>30.31<br>33.33  | 19.35<br>0.00<br>25.55<br>23.50   | 44.62<br>53.85<br>42.59   | 63.98<br>53.85                               | 100.00                              |
| Bradford Brevard Broward Calhoun Charlotte Citrus Clay Collier Columbia   | 7.69<br>15.16<br>13.35<br>0.00<br>8.07<br>4.69<br>17.65<br>14.98  | 38.46<br>16.70<br>16.97<br>33.33<br>32.92<br>12.50  | 46.15<br>31.86<br>30.31<br>33.33   | 0.00<br>25.55<br>23.50  | 53.85<br>42.59  | 53.85  |                                     |
| Brevard Broward Calhoun Charlotte Citrus Clay Collier Columbia  | 15.16           13.35           0.00           8.07           4.69           17.65           14.98  | 16.70<br>16.97<br>33.33<br>32.92<br>12.50   | 31.86<br>30.31<br>33.33  | 25.55   | 42.59   |  | 100.00                              |
| Broward Calhoun Charlotte Citrus Clay Collier Columbia  | 13.35           0.00           8.07           4.69           17.65           14.98  | 16.97<br>33.33<br>32.92<br>12.50  | 30.31<br>33.33   | 23.50   |   | 68.14  | 100.00                              |
| Calhoun Charlotte Citrus Clay Collier Columbia  | 0.00<br>8.07<br>4.69<br>17.65<br>14.98  | 33.33<br>32.92<br>12.50   | 33.33  |   | 46.18   | 69.69  | 100.00                              |
| Charlotte Citrus Clay Collier Columbia  | 8.07<br>4.69<br>17.65<br>14.98  | 32.92<br>12.50  |  | 25.00   | 41.67   | 66.67  | 100.00                              |
| Citrus Clay Collier Columbia  | 4.69<br>17.65<br>14.98  | 12.50   | 40.99  | 22.98   | 36.02   | 59.01  | 100.00                              |
| Clay<br>Collier<br>Columbia   | 17.65<br>14.98  |   | 17.19  | 14.84   | 67.97   | 82.81  | 100.00                              |
| Collier<br>Columbia   | 14.98   | 27.94   | 45.59  | 20.59   | 33.82   | 54.41  | 100.00                              |
| Columbia  |   | 9.42  | 24.40  | 34.78   | 40.82   | 75.60  | 100.00                              |
|   | 12.12   | 33.33   | 45.45  | 16.67   | 37.88   | 54.55  | 100.00                              |
| DeSoto  | 14.29   | 21.43   | 35.71  | 14.29   | 50.00   | 64.29  | 100.00                              |
| Dixie   | 20.00   | 40.00   | 60.00  | 40.00   | 0.00  | 40.00  | 100.00                              |
| Duval   | 17.76   | 19.24   | 36.99  | 22.56   | 40.44   | 63.01  | 100.00                              |
| Escambia  | 11.59   | 18.84   | 30.43  | 18.84   | 50.72   | 69.57  | 100.00                              |
| Flagler   | 14.71   | 16.67   | 31.37  | 20.59   | 48.04   | 68.63  | 100.00                              |
| Franklin  | 0.00  | 54.55   | 54.55  | 0.00  | 45.45   | 45.45  | 100.00                              |
| Gadsden   | 15.63   | 40.63   | 56.25  | 15.63   | 28.13   | 43.75  | 100.00                              |
| Gilchrist   | 16.67   | 41.67   | 58.33  | 25.00   | 16.67   | 41.67  | 100.00                              |
| Glades  | 44.44   | 0.00  | 44.44  | 22.22   | 33.33   | 55.56  | 100.00                              |
| Gulf  | 0.00  | 20.00   | 20.00  | 20.00   | 60.00   | 80.00  | 100.00                              |
| Hamilton  | 13.33   | 40.00   | 53.33  | 20.00   | 26.67   | 46.67  | 100.00                              |
| Hardee  | 0.00  | 40.00   | 40.00  | 0.00  | 60.00   | 60.00  | 100.00                              |
| Hendry  | 28.57   | 14.29   | 42.86  | 23.81   | 33.33   | 57.14  | 100.00                              |
| Hernando  | 13.02   | 13.54   | 26.56  | 16.67   | 56.77   | 73.44  | 100.00                              |
| Highlands   | 13.85   | 26.15   | 40.00  | 12.31   | 47.69   | 60.00  | 100.00                              |
| Hillsborough  | 12.20   | 19.40   | 31.60  | 19.08   | 49.32   | 68.40  | 100.00                              |
| Holmes  | 0.00  | 83.33   | 83.33  | 0.00  | 16.67   | 16.67  | 100.00                              |
| Indian River  | 9.94  | 18.01   | 27.95  | 19.88   | 52.17   | 72.05  | 100.00                              |
| Jackson   | 9.52  | 28.57   | 38.10  | 19.05   | 42.86   | 61.90  | 100.00                              |
| Jefferson   | 0.00  | 30.00   | 30.00  | 30.00   | 40.00   | 70.00  | 100.00                              |
| Lafayette   | 0.00  | 33.33   | 33.33  | 33.33   | 33.33   | 66.67  | 100.00                              |
| Lake  | 17.30   | 32.49   | 49.79  | 11.81   | 38.40   | 50.21  | 100.00                              |
| Lee   | 12.09   | 17.76   | 29.85  | 23.28   | 46.87   | 70.15  | 100.00                              |
| Leon  | 23.97   | 7.08  | 31.05  | 35.39   | 33.56   | 68.95  | 100.00                              |
| Levy  | 12.12   | 6.06  | 18.18  | 9.09  | 72.73   | 81.82  | 100.00                              |
| Liberty   | 40.00   | 0.00  | 40.00  | 40.00   | 20.00   | 60.00  | 100.00                              |
| Madison   | 25.00   | 37.50   | 62.50  | 25.00   | 12.50   | 37.50  | 100.00                              |
| Manatee   | 15.08   | 20.67   | 35.75  | 24.02   | 40.22   | 64.25  | 100.00                              |
| Marion  | 10.93   | 18.85   | 29.78  | 17.76   | 52.46   | 70.22  | 100.00                              |
| Martin  | 15.48   | 12.90   | 28.39  | 20.65   | 50 97   | 71.61  | 100.00                              |
| Miami-Dade  |   |   |  | 20.00   | 00.71   | /1.01  | 100.00                              |

### Table IV-4c. All cost burdened renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and age (continued)\*

|            |               | Change in households, 2002-2007 |          |                |             |          |        |  |  |  |
|------------|---------------|---------------------------------|----------|----------------|-------------|----------|--------|--|--|--|
|            | Cost bi       | urden 40-49%                    |          | Cost bu        | ırden 50+ % |          |        |  |  |  |
|            | Age of housel | nolder                          |          | Age of househo | older       |          |        |  |  |  |
| County     | 15-54         | 55+                             | Subtotal | 15-54          | 55+         | Subtotal | Total  |  |  |  |
|            |               |                                 |          |                |             |          |        |  |  |  |
| Monroe     | 9.86          | 16.90                           | 26.76    | 29.58          | 43.66       | 73.24    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Nassau     | 21.54         | 27.69                           | 49.23    | 16.92          | 33.85       | 50.77    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Okaloosa   | 18.87         | 14.34                           | 33.21    | 30.94          | 35.85       | 66.79    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Okeechobee | 12.90         | 9.68                            | 22.58    | 12.90          | 64.52       | 77.42    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Orange     | 23.40         | 12.75                           | 36.15    | 32.26          | 31.59       | 63.85    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Osceola    | 17.76         | 14.17                           | 31.94    | 32.73          | 35.33       | 68.06    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Palm Beach | 13.17         | 17.85                           | 31.02    | 21.97          | 47.02       | 68.98    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Pasco      | 11.95         | 25.07                           | 37.03    | 12.24          | 50.73       | 62.97    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Pinellas   | 3.35          | 34.39                           | 31.04    | 6.51           | 75.46       | 68.96    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Polk       | 9.40          | 21.80                           | 31.20    | 16.17          | 52.63       | 68.80    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Putnam     | 5.88          | 41.18                           | 47.06    | 8.82           | 44.12       | 52.94    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| St. Johns  | 14.85         | 13.37                           | 28.22    | 22.28          | 49.50       | 71.78    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| St. Lucie  | 20.68         | 10.13                           | 30.80    | 29.11          | 40.08       | 69.20    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Santa Rosa | 17.55         | 13.83                           | 31.38    | 30.32          | 38.30       | 68.62    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Sarasota   | 5.44          | 24.07                           | 29.51    | 9.17           | 61.32       | 70.49    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Seminole   | 12.81         | 14.39                           | 27.19    | 23.45          | 49.35       | 72.81    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Sumter     | 4.62          | 12.31                           | 16.92    | 15.38          | 67.69       | 83.08    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Suwannee   | 9.76          | 41.46                           | 51.22    | 12.20          | 36.59       | 48.78    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Taylor     | 0.00          | 100.00                          | 100.00   | 0.00           | 0.00        | 0.00     | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Union      | 28.57         | 42.86                           | 71.43    | 7.14           | 21.43       | 28.57    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Volusia    | 11.78         | 16.67                           | 28.45    | 25.08          | 46.46       | 71.55    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Wakulla    | 20.00         | 10.00                           | 30.00    | 25.00          | 45.00       | 70.00    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Walton     | 17.46         | 23.81                           | 41.27    | 23.81          | 34.92       | 58.73    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Washington | 27.78         | 0.00                            | 27.78    | 22.22          | 50.00       | 72.22    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Florida    | 13.66         | 17.50                           | 31.17    | 22.26          | 46.57       | 68.83    | 100.00 |  |  |  |

### Table IV-4c. All cost burdened renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and age (continued)\*

|              |           |                  | H              | ouseholds, 2001 |                  |                |              |
|--------------|-----------|------------------|----------------|-----------------|------------------|----------------|--------------|
|              | Cos       | st burden 40-499 | V <sub>0</sub> | Co              | ost burden 50+ % | / <sub>0</sub> |              |
|              | Age of ho | useholder        |                | Age of ho       | useholder        |                |              |
| County       | 15-54     | 55+              | Subtotal       | 15-54           | 55+              | Subtotal       | Total        |
| Alachua      | 37.97     | 1.59             | 39.56          | 47.01           | 13.43            | 60.44          | 100.00       |
| Baker        | 27.27     | 0.00             | 27.27          | 45.45           | 27.27            | 72.73          | 100.00       |
| Bay          | 35.47     | 4.43             | 39.90          | 40.69           | 19.41            | 60.10          | 100.00       |
| Bradford     | 32.26     | 20.97            | 53.23          | 22.58           | 24.19            | 46.77          | 100.00       |
| Brevard      | 21.60     | 7.59             | 29.18          | 47.92           | 22.90            | 70.82          | 100.00       |
| Broward      | 24.93     | 7.78             | 32.71          | 41.88           | 25.41            | 67.29          | 100.00       |
| Calhoun      | 55.56     | 0.00             | 55.56          | 44.44           | 0.00             | 44.44          | 100.00       |
| Charlotte    | 32.46     | 9.42             | 41.88          | 18.85           | 39.27            | 58.12          | 100.00       |
| Citrus       | 0.00      | 0.00             | 0.00           | 56.77           | 43.23            | 100.00         | 100.00       |
| Clay         | 29.91     | 17.59            | 47.50          | 31.84           | 20.67            | 52.50          | 100.00       |
| Collier      | 26.98     | 1.07             | 28.05          | 51.14           | 20.81            | 71.95          | 100.00       |
| Columbia     | 33.12     | 19.75            | 52.87          | 21.66           | 25.48            | 47.13          | 100.00       |
| DeSoto       | 0.00      | 7.58             | 7.58           | 75.76           | 16.67            | 92.42          | 100.00       |
| Dixie        | 33.33     | 33.33            | 66.67          | 0.00            | 33.33            | 33.33          | 100.00       |
| Duval        | 34.43     | 6.33             | 40.76          | 46.60           | 12.65            | 59.24          | 100.00       |
| Escambia     | 28.33     | 6.88             | 35.21          | 47.45           | 17.34            | 64.79          | 100.00       |
| Flagler      | 20.00     | 3.33             | 23.33          | 40.00           | 36.67            | 76.67          | 100.00       |
| Franklin     | 50.00     | 0.00             | 50.00          | 50.00           | 0.00             | 50.00          | 100.00       |
| Gadsden      | 52.27     | 0.00             | 52.27          | 47.73           | 0.00             | 47.73          | 100.00       |
| Gilchrist    | 50.00     | 16.67            | 66.67          | 16.67           | 16.67            | 33.33          | 100.00       |
| Glades       | 0.00      | 0.00             | 0.00           | 80.00           | 20.00            | 100.00         | 100.00       |
| Gulf         | 70.59     | 0.00             | 70.59          | 29.41           | 0.00             | 29.41          | 100.00       |
| Hamilton     | 46.67     | 20.00            | 66.67          | 13.33           | 20.00            | 33.33          | 100.00       |
| Hardee       | 0.00      | 8.62             | 8.62           | 74.14           | 17.24            | 91.38          | 100.00       |
| Hendry       | 0.00      | 7.58             | 7.58           | 75.76           | 16.67            | 92.42          | 100.00       |
| Hernando     | 31.25     | 12.50            | 43.75          | 17.31           | 38.94            | 56.25          | 100.00       |
| Highlands    | 0.00      | 18.18            | 18.18          | 52.38           | 29.44            | 81.82          | 100.00       |
| Hillsborough | 27.92     | 7.62             | 35.54          | 44.24           | 20.22            | 64.46          | 100.00       |
| Holmes       | 38.46     | 23.08            | 61.54          | 15.38           | 23.08            | 38.46          | 100.00       |
| Indian River | 13.14     | 12.11            | 25.26          | 39.95           | 34.79            | /4./4          | 100.00       |
| Jackson      | 68./5     | 0.00             | 68.75          | 31.25           | 0.00             | 31.25          | 100.00       |
| Jefferson    | 53.57     | 0.00             | 53.57          | 25.00           | 21.43            | 46.43          | 100.00       |
| Latayette    | 20.00     | 20.00            | 40.00          | 40.00           | 20.00            | 60.00          | 100.00       |
| Lake         | 51.41     | 22.08            | 24.09          | 19.19           | 20.71            | 45.91          | 100.00       |
| Lee          | 14.70     | 10.10            | 24.80          | 45.97           | 29.17            | /5.14          | 100.00       |
| Leon         | 38.13     | 1.54             | 39.67          | 47.15           | 13.18            | 100.00         | 100.00       |
| Levy         | 0.00      | 0.00             | 0.00           | /1.0/           | 20.33            | 100.00         | 100.00<br>NA |
| Madican      | 26.50     | NA<br>26.92      | (2.41          | 12 20           | 24.20            | 26.50          | 100.00       |
| Manataa      | 30.39     | 20.83            | 03.41          | 12.20           | 24.39            | 50.59          | 100.00       |
| Marian       | 25.30     | 12.05            | 20.00          | 35.83           | 20.82            | 02.00          | 100.00       |
| Martin       | 14.95     | 13.8/            | 20.10          | 40.74           | 28.44            | 60.91          | 100.00       |
| Miami Dada   | 9.04      | 21.15            | 27.42          | 30.38           | 39.42            | 72 57          | 100.00       |
| mami-Dade    | 19.51     | 7.92             | 27.43          | 45.22           | 29.36            | 12.57          | 100.00       |

#### Table IV-5a. Multi-family cost burdened renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and age\*

|                                      |   |                                | Hous                             | eholds, 2001              |               |              |        |
|--------------------------------------|---|--------------------------------|----------------------------------|---------------------------|---------------|--------------|--------|
|                                      | Cost bu                                     | rden 40-49%                    |                                  | Cost bı                   | ırden 50+ %   |              |        |
|                                      | Age of househ                               | older                          |                                  | Age of househo            | older         |              |        |
| County                               | 15-54                                       | 55+                            | Subtotal                         | 15-54                     | 55+           | Subtotal     | Total  |
|                                      |   |                                |                                  |                           |               |              |        |
| Monroe                               | 28.87                                       | 0.70                           | 29.58                            | 54.93                     | 15.49         | 70.42        | 100.00 |
| Nassau                               | 26.12                                       | 20.90                          | 47.01                            | 27.61                     | 25.37         | 52.99        | 100.00 |
| Okaloosa                             | 27.74                                       | 6.71                           | 34.45                            | 42.38                     | 23.17         | 65.55        | 100.00 |
| Okeechobee                           | 37.50                                       | 12.50                          | 50.00                            | 12.50                     | 37.50         | 50.00        | 100.00 |
| Orange                               | 34.44                                       | 6.73                           | 41.17                            | 43.98                     | 14.85         | 58.83        | 100.00 |
| Osceola                              | 16.93                                       | 7.67                           | 24.60                            | 52.71                     | 22.69         | 75.40        | 100.00 |
| Palm Beach                           | 22.81                                       | 10.54                          | 33.35                            | 37.39                     | 29.26         | 66.65        | 100.00 |
| Pasco                                | 28.59                                       | 16.69                          | 45.28                            | 16.20                     | 38.52         | 54.72        | 100.00 |
| Pinellas                             | 21.32                                       | 14.98                          | 36.29                            | 35.12                     | 28.58         | 63.71        | 100.00 |
| Polk                                 | 21.91                                       | 7.58                           | 29.49                            | 41.57                     | 28.94         | 70.51        | 100.00 |
| Putnam                               | 30.52                                       | 21.43                          | 51.95                            | 20.78                     | 27.27         | 48.05        | 100.00 |
| St. Johns                            | 24.39                                       | 4.28                           | 28.68                            | 41.90                     | 29.42         | 71.32        | 100.00 |
| St. Lucie                            | 35.26                                       | 20.26                          | 55.53                            | 39.47                     | 5.00          | 44.47        | 100.00 |
| Santa Rosa                           | 28.83                                       | 6.57                           | 35.40                            | 48.54                     | 16.06         | 64.60        | 100.00 |
| Sarasota                             | 21.39                                       | 8.66                           | 30.05                            | 42.19                     | 27.75         | 69.95        | 100.00 |
| Seminole                             | 24.10                                       | 7.53                           | 31.63                            | 41.91                     | 26.46         | 68.37        | 100.00 |
| Sumter                               | 0.00  | 0.00                           | 0.00                             | 54.95                     | 45.05         | 100.00       | 100.00 |
| Suwannee                             | 28.07                                       | 22.81                          | 50.88                            | 17.54                     | 31.58         | 49.12        | 100.00 |
| Taylor                               | 32.50                                       | 20.00                          | 52.50                            | 20.00                     | 27.50         | 47.50        | 100.00 |
| Union                                | 36.36                                       | 18.18                          | 54.55                            | 18.18                     | 27.27         | 45.45        | 100.00 |
| Volusia                              | 16.80                                       | 9.73                           | 26.53                            | 48.61                     | 24.86         | 73.47        | 100.00 |
| Wakulla                              | 38.46                                       | 0.00                           | 38.46                            | 46.15                     | 15.38         | 61.54        | 100.00 |
| Walton                               | 33.78                                       | 5.41                           | 39.19                            | 40.54                     | 20.27         | 60.81        | 100.00 |
| Washington                           | 37.50                                       | 12.50                          | 50.00                            | 12.50                     | 37.50         | 50.00        | 100.00 |
| Florida                              | 25.19                                       | 8.41                           | 33.60                            | 42.43                     | 23.97         | 66.40        | 100.00 |
| *Note: Cost burd<br>income between 2 | ened households are<br>to percent and 60 pe | e those with<br>ercent of adiu | a housing burd<br>sted area medi | en of 40 percent o<br>an. | r more of inc | come and hou | sehold |

### Table IV-5a. Multi-family cost burdened renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and age (continued)\*

|                   |                    |              | Change in h  | ouseholds, 2001   | 1-2002           |              |         |
|-------------------|--------------------|--------------|--------------|-------------------|------------------|--------------|---------|
|                   | Cost bi            | urden 40-49% |              | Co                | ost burden 50+ % | )            |         |
|                   | Age of house       | nolder       |              | Age of ho         | useholder        |              |         |
| County            | 15-54              | 55+          | Subtotal     | 15-54             | 55+              | Subtotal     | Total   |
|                   |                    |              |              |                   |                  |              |         |
| Alachua           | 36.84              | 2.63         | 39.47        | 36.84             | 23.68            | 60.53        | 100.00  |
| Baker             | NA                 | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA               | NA           | NA      |
| Bay               | 37.50              | 12.50        | 50.00        | 12.50             | 37.50            | 50.00        | 100.00  |
| Bradford          | NA                 | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA               | NA           | NA      |
| Brevard           | 9.09               | 12.73        | 21.82        | 34.55             | 43.64            | 78.18        | 100.00  |
| Broward           | 13.72              | 15.16        | 28.88        | 23.83             | 47.29            | 71.12        | 100.00  |
| Calhoun           | NA                 | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA               | NA           | NA      |
| Charlotte         | 28.57              | 14.29        | 42.86        | 14.29             | 42.86            | 57.14        | 100.00  |
| Citrus            | 0.00               | 0.00         | 0.00         | 33.33             | 66.67            | 100.00       | 100.00  |
| Clay              | 13.04              | 34.78        | 47.83        | 13.04             | 39.13            | 52.17        | 100.00  |
| Collier           | 17.24              | 3.45         | 20.69        | 37.93             | 41.38            | 79.31        | 100.00  |
| Columbia          | 0.00               | 50.00        | 50.00        | 0.00              | 50.00            | 50.00        | 100.00  |
| DeSoto            | 0.00               | 50.00        | 50.00        | 0.00              | 50.00            | 50.00        | 100.00  |
| Dixie             | 0.00               | 0.00         | 0.00         | 100.00            | 0.00             | 100.00       | 100.00  |
| Duval             | 19.39              | 18.37        | 37.76        | 27.55             | 34.69            | 62.24        | 100.00  |
| Escambia          | 7.14               | 21.43        | 28.57        | 21.43             | 50.00            | 71.43        | 100.00  |
| Flagler           | 0.00               | 0.00         | 0.00         | 0.00              | 100.00           | 100.00       | 100.00  |
| Franklin          | NA                 | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA               | NA           | NA      |
| Gadsden           | NA                 | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA               | NA           | NA      |
| Gilchrist         | NA                 | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA               | NA           | NA      |
| Glades            | NA                 | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA               | NA           | NA      |
| Gulf              | 0.00               | 0.00         | 0.00         | 100.00            | 0.00             | 100.00       | 100.00  |
| Hamilton          | NA                 | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA               | NA           | NA      |
| Hardee            | 0.00               | 0.00         | 0.00         | 0.00              | 100.00           | 100.00       | 100.00  |
| Hendry            | 0.00               | 33.33        | 33.33        | 33.33             | 33.33            | 66.67        | 100.00  |
| Hernando          | 14.29              | 28.57        | 42.86        | 0.00              | 57.14            | 57.14        | 100.00  |
| Highlands         | 0.00               | 50.00        | 50.00        | 0.00              | 50.00            | 50.00        | 100.00  |
| Hillsborough      | 12.94              | 17.91        | 30.85        | 20.90             | 48.26            | 69.15        | 100.00  |
| Holmes            | 0.00               | 100.00       | 100.00       | 0.00              | 0.00             | 0.00         | 100.00  |
| Indian River      | 0.00               | 40.00        | 40.00        | 20.00             | 40.00            | 60.00        | 100.00  |
| Jackson           | 100.00             | 0.00         | 100.00       | 0.00              | 0.00             | 0.00         | 100.00  |
| Jefferson         | NA                 | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA               | NA           | NA      |
| Lafayette         | NA                 | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA               | NA           | NA      |
| Lake              | 23.53              | 29.41        | 52.94        | 11.76             | 35.29            | 47.06        | 100.00  |
| Lee               | 10.20              | 16.33        | 26.53        | 34.69             | 38.78            | 73.47        | 100.00  |
| Leon              | 30.43              | 4.35         | 34.78        | 41.30             | 23.91            | 65.22        | 100.00  |
| Levy              | NA                 | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA               | NA           | NA      |
| Liberty           | NA                 | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA               | NA           | NA      |
| Madison           | 100.00             | 0.00         | 100.00       | 0.00              | 0.00             | 0.00         | 100.00  |
| Manatee           | 10.34              | 20.69        | 31.03        | 17.24             | 51.72            | 68.97        | 100.00  |
| Marion            | 13.04              | 26.09        | 39.13        | 21.74             | 39.13            | 60.87        | 100.00  |
| Martin            | 6.25               | 31.25        | 37.50        | 25.00             | 37.50            | 62.50        | 100.00  |
| Miami-Dade        | 9.07               | 14.29        | 23.35        | 21.98             | 54.67            | 76.65        | 100.00  |
| *Note: Cost burde | ned households are | those with a | housing burd | en of $40$ percer | nt or more of in | come and hou | isebold |

### Table IV-5b. Multi-family cost burdened renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and age (continued)\*

|            |              |              | Change in ho | useholds, 2001-20 | 02           |          |        |
|------------|--------------|--------------|--------------|-------------------|--------------|----------|--------|
|            | Cost bi      | ırden 40-49% |              | Cost b            | ourden 50+ % |          |        |
|            | Age of house | nolder       |              | Age of househ     | older        |          |        |
| County     | 15-54        | 55+          | Subtotal     | 15-54             | 55+          | Subtotal | Total  |
| Monroe     | 0.00         | 0.00         | 0.00         | 0.00              | 100.00       | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Nassau     | 0.00         | 50.00        | 50.00        | 25.00             | 25.00        | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Okaloosa   | 25.00        | 16.67        | 41.67        | 25.00             | 33.33        | 58.33    | 100.00 |
| Okeechobee | NA           | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA           | NA       | NA     |
| Orange     | 24.70        | 13.69        | 38.39        | 31.85             | 29.76        | 61.61    | 100.00 |
| Osceola    | 12.96        | 12.96        | 25.93        | 35.19             | 38.89        | 74.07    | 100.00 |
| Palm Beach | 13.69        | 17.26        | 30.95        | 21.43             | 47.62        | 69.05    | 100.00 |
| Pasco      | 0.00         | 23.53        | 23.53        | 0.00              | 76.47        | 76.47    | 100.00 |
| Pinellas   | 0.00         | 39.06        | 39.06        | 1.56              | 62.50        | 60.94    | 100.00 |
| Polk       | 15.38        | 7.69         | 23.08        | 20.51             | 56.41        | 76.92    | 100.00 |
| Putnam     | 50.00        | 0.00         | 50.00        | 0.00              | 50.00        | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| St. Johns  | 11.76        | 11.76        | 23.53        | 29.41             | 47.06        | 76.47    | 100.00 |
| St. Lucie  | 37.50        | 25.00        | 62.50        | 25.00             | 12.50        | 37.50    | 100.00 |
| Santa Rosa | 0.00         | 33.33        | 33.33        | 33.33             | 33.33        | 66.67    | 100.00 |
| Sarasota   | 8.70         | 17.39        | 26.09        | 21.74             | 52.17        | 73.91    | 100.00 |
| Seminole   | 11.58        | 14.74        | 26.32        | 23.16             | 50.53        | 73.68    | 100.00 |
| Sumter     | 0.00         | 0.00         | 0.00         | 50.00             | 50.00        | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Suwannee   | 0.00         | 100.00       | 100.00       | 0.00              | 0.00         | 0.00     | 100.00 |
| Taylor     | NA           | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA           | NA       | NA     |
| Union      | NA           | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA           | NA       | NA     |
| Volusia    | 11.90        | 14.29        | 26.19        | 26.19             | 47.62        | 73.81    | 100.00 |
| Wakulla    | NA           | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA           | NA       | NA     |
| Walton     | 0.00         | 0.00         | 0.00         | 25.00             | 75.00        | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Washington | NA           | NA           | NA           | NA                | NA           | NA       | NA     |
| Florida    | 14.88        | 16.23        | 31.11        | 24.47             | 44.42        | 68.89    | 100.00 |

## Table IV-5b. Multi-family cost burdened renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and age (continued)\*

|                   |                    |              | Change in   | households, 200 | 2-2007           |               |        |
|-------------------|--------------------|--------------|-------------|-----------------|------------------|---------------|--------|
|                   | Cost bu            | rden 40-49%  |             | C               | ost burden 50+ % | Ó             |        |
|                   | Age of househ      | older        |             | Age of ho       | useholder        |               |        |
| County            | 15-54              | 55+          | Subtotal    | 15-54           | 55+              | Subtotal      | Total  |
|                   |                    |              |             |                 |                  |               |        |
| Alachua           | 33.03              | 2.71         | 35.75       | 40.72           | 23.53            | 64.25         | 100.00 |
| Baker             | 20.00              | 0.00         | 20.00       | 40.00           | 40.00            | 80.00         | 100.00 |
| Bay               | 16.92              | 10.77        | 27.69       | 20.00           | 52.31            | 72.31         | 100.00 |
| Bradford          | 0.00               | 25.00        | 25.00       | 0.00            | 75.00            | 75.00         | 100.00 |
| Brevard           | 12.87              | 15.44        | 28.31       | 25.00           | 46.69            | 71.69         | 100.00 |
| Broward           | 13.08              | 15.21        | 28.29       | 21.58           | 50.14            | 71.71         | 100.00 |
| Calhoun           | NA                 | NA           | NA          | NA              | NA               | NA            | NA     |
| Charlotte         | 18.75              | 12.50        | 31.25       | 12.50           | 56.25            | 68.75         | 100.00 |
| Citrus            | 0.00               | 0.00         | 0.00        | 26.67           | 73.33            | 100.00        | 100.00 |
| Clay              | 14.63              | 31.71        | 46.34       | 14.63           | 39.02            | 53.66         | 100.00 |
| Collier           | 18.93              | 1.78         | 20.71       | 34.91           | 44.38            | 79.29         | 100.00 |
| Columbia          | 15.79              | 26.32        | 42.11       | 10.53           | 47.37            | 57.89         | 100.00 |
| DeSoto            | 0.00               | 33.33        | 33.33       | 33.33           | 33.33            | 66.67         | 100.00 |
| Dixie             | NA                 | NA           | NA          | NA              | NA               | NA            | NA     |
| Duval             | 18.87              | 18.45        | 37.32       | 25.16           | 37.53            | 62.68         | 100.00 |
| Escambia          | 12.94              | 18.82        | 31.76       | 18.82           | 49.41            | 68.24         | 100.00 |
| Flagler           | 14.29              | 14.29        | 28.57       | 14.29           | 57.14            | 71.43         | 100.00 |
| Franklin          | NA                 | NA           | NA          | NA              | NA               | NA            | NA     |
| Gadsden           | 50.00              | 0.00         | 50.00       | 50.00           | 0.00             | 50.00         | 100.00 |
| Gilchrist         | 0.00               | 50.00        | 50.00       | 0.00            | 50.00            | 50.00         | 100.00 |
| Glades            | 0.00               | 0.00         | 0.00        | 100.00          | 0.00             | 100.00        | 100.00 |
| Gulf              | NA                 | NA           | NA          | NA              | NA               | NA            | NA     |
| Hamilton          | 16.67              | 33.33        | 50.00       | 16.67           | 33.33            | 50.00         | 100.00 |
| Hardee            | 0.00               | 50.00        | 50.00       | 0.00            | 50.00            | 50.00         | 100.00 |
| Hendry            | 0.00               | 33.33        | 33.33       | 33.33           | 33.33            | 66.67         | 100.00 |
| Hernando          | 20.83              | 16.67        | 37.50       | 8.33            | 54.17            | 62.50         | 100.00 |
| Highlands         | 0.00               | 26.32        | 26.32       | 21.05           | 52.63            | 73.68         | 100.00 |
| Hillsborough      | 11.84              | 19.15        | 30.99       | 18.48           | 50.53            | 69.01         | 100.00 |
| Holmes            | NA                 | NA           | NA          | NA              | NA               | NA            | NA     |
| Indian River      | 0.00               | 16.13        | 16.13       | 22.58           | 61.29            | 83.87         | 100.00 |
| Jackson           | 0.00               | 0.00         | 0.00        | 100.00          | 0.00             | 100.00        | 100.00 |
| Jefferson         | 0.00               | 0.00         | 0.00        | 0.00            | 100.00           | 100.00        | 100.00 |
| Lafayette         | NA                 | NA           | NA          | NA              | NA               | NA            | NA     |
| Lake              | 14.61              | 34.83        | 49.44       | 8.99            | 41.57            | 50.56         | 100.00 |
| Lee               | 8.22               | 17.81        | 26.03       | 23.74           | 50.23            | 73.97         | 100.00 |
| Leon              | 30.29              | 3.32         | 33.61       | 37.76           | 28.63            | 66.39         | 100.00 |
| Levy              | 0.00               | 0.00         | 0.00        | 40.00           | 60.00            | 100.00        | 100.00 |
| Liberty           | NA                 | NA           | NA          | NA              | NA               | NA            | NA     |
| Madison           | NA                 | NA           | NA          | NA              | NA               | NA            | NA     |
| Manatee           | 13.51              | 21.62        | 35.14       | 18.24           | 46.62            | 64.86         | 100.00 |
| Marion            | 6.02               | 27.71        | 33.73       | 18.07           | 48.19            | 66.27         | 100.00 |
| Martin            | 3.51               | 31.58        | 35.09       | 8.77            | 56.14            | 64.91         | 100.00 |
| Miami-Dade        | 8.36               | 15.71        | 24.07       | 17.99           | 57.94            | 75.93         | 100.00 |
| *Note: Cost burde | nod households are | those with a | housing hur | dan of 10 norae | nt or more of in | acome and has | rahald |

#### Table IV-5c. Multi-family cost burdened renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and age (continued)\*

|            | Change in households, 2002-2007 |               |          |             |         |          |        |  |  |  |  |  |
|------------|---------------------------------|---------------|----------|-------------|---------|----------|--------|--|--|--|--|--|
|            | Cost                            | burden 40-49% |          | Cost        |         |          |        |  |  |  |  |  |
|            | Age of hou                      | seholder      |          | Age of hous | eholder |          |        |  |  |  |  |  |
| County     | 15-54                           | 55+           | Subtotal | 15-54       | 55+     | Subtotal | Total  |  |  |  |  |  |
|            |                                 |               |          |             |         |          |        |  |  |  |  |  |
| Monroe     | 0.00                            | 16.67         | 16.67    | 16.67       | 66.67   | 83.33    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Nassau     | 10.00                           | 40.00         | 50.00    | 10.00       | 40.00   | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Okaloosa   | 14.29                           | 12.70         | 26.98    | 26.98       | 46.03   | 73.02    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Okeechobee | NA                              | NA            | NA       | NA          | NA      | NA       | NA     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Orange     | 23.83                           | 14.22         | 38.05    | 30.27       | 31.68   | 61.95    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Osceola    | 11.41                           | 13.31         | 24.71    | 36.50       | 38.78   | 75.29    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Palm Beach | 11.67                           | 18.18         | 29.85    | 19.16       | 50.98   | 70.15    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Pasco      | 13.45                           | 23.53         | 36.97    | 8.40        | 54.62   | 63.03    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Pinellas   | 2.53                            | 36.71         | 34.18    | 6.33        | 72.15   | 65.82    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Polk       | 7.51                            | 16.76         | 24.28    | 15.61       | 60.12   | 75.72    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Putnam     | 11.11                           | 44.44         | 55.56    | 0.00        | 44.44   | 44.44    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| St. Johns  | 15.38                           | 9.23          | 24.62    | 21.54       | 53.85   | 75.38    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| St. Lucie  | 21.62                           | 43.24         | 64.86    | 24.32       | 10.81   | 35.14    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Santa Rosa | 20.59                           | 8.82          | 29.41    | 35.29       | 35.29   | 70.59    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Sarasota   | 7.41                            | 19.44         | 26.85    | 11.11       | 62.04   | 73.15    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Seminole   | 12.32                           | 14.75         | 27.07    | 21.01       | 51.92   | 72.93    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Sumter     | 0.00                            | 0.00          | 0.00     | 28.57       | 71.43   | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Suwannee   | 10.00                           | 30.00         | 40.00    | 20.00       | 40.00   | 60.00    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Taylor     | 0.00                            | 100.00        | 100.00   | 0.00        | 0.00    | 0.00     | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Union      | 0.00                            | 100.00        | 100.00   | 0.00        | 0.00    | 0.00     | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Volusia    | 9.36                            | 17.45         | 26.81    | 27.66       | 45.53   | 73.19    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Wakulla    | 50.00                           | 0.00          | 50.00    | 50.00       | 0.00    | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Walton     | 28.57                           | 14.29         | 42.86    | 14.29       | 42.86   | 57.14    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Washington | NA                              | NA            | NA       | NA          | NA      | NA       | NA     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Florida    | 13.90                           | 16.68         | 30.58    | 22.03       | 47.39   | 69.42    | 100.00 |  |  |  |  |  |

#### Table IV-5c. Multi-family cost burdened renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and age (continued)\*

#### Table IV-6a. Multi-family renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and household size\*

|              |       | Households, 2001 |           |          |        |              |      |          |        |  |  |
|--------------|-------|------------------|-----------|----------|--------|--------------|------|----------|--------|--|--|
|              |       | Cost burd        | en 40-49% |          |        |              |      |          |        |  |  |
|              | Н     | ousehold siz     | ze        |          | Н      | ousehold siz | ze   |          |        |  |  |
| County       | 1-2   | 3-4              | 5+        | Subtotal | 1-2    | 3-4          | 5+   | Subtotal | Total  |  |  |
| Alachua      | 35.99 | 3.57             | 0.00      | 39.56    | 57.53  | 2.91         | 0.00 | 60.44    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Baker        | 27.27 | 0.00             | 0.00      | 27.27    | 63.64  | 9.09         | 0.00 | 72.73    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Bay          | 30.74 | 6.70             | 2.46      | 39.90    | 50.84  | 9.26         | 0.00 | 60.10    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Bradford     | 25.81 | 27.42            | 0.00      | 53.23    | 46.77  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 46.77    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Brevard      | 21.95 | 7.24             | 0.00      | 29.18    | 61.99  | 8.25         | 0.58 | 70.82    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Broward      | 23.19 | 8.01             | 1.52      | 32.71    | 55.23  | 9.77         | 2.29 | 67.29    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Calhoun      | 55.56 | 0.00             | 0.00      | 55.56    | 44.44  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 44.44    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Charlotte    | 9.42  | 32.46            | 0.00      | 41.88    | 58.12  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 58.12    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Citrus       | 0.00  | 0.00             | 0.00      | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00         | 0.00 | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |
| Clay         | 42.75 | 4.75             | 0.00      | 47.50    | 32.61  | 14.38        | 5.52 | 52.50    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Collier      | 22.68 | 5.37             | 0.00      | 28.05    | 56.11  | 11.54        | 4.30 | 71.95    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Columbia     | 24.20 | 28.66            | 0.00      | 52.87    | 47.13  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 47.13    | 100.00 |  |  |
| DeSoto       | 7.58  | 0.00             | 0.00      | 7.58     | 45.45  | 46.97        | 0.00 | 92.42    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Dixie        | 33.33 | 33.33            | 0.00      | 66.67    | 33.33  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 33.33    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Duval        | 28.19 | 11.51            | 1.05      | 40.76    | 49.54  | 8.36         | 1.35 | 59.24    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Escambia     | 27.08 | 8.13             | 0.00      | 35.21    | 60.16  | 4.64         | 0.00 | 64.79    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Flagler      | 13.33 | 10.00            | 0.00      | 23.33    | 53.33  | 20.00        | 3.33 | 76.67    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Franklin     | 50.00 | 0.00             | 0.00      | 50.00    | 50.00  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Gadsden      | 52.27 | 0.00             | 0.00      | 52.27    | 47.73  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 47.73    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Gilchrist    | 33.33 | 33.33            | 0.00      | 66.67    | 33.33  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 33.33    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Glades       | 0.00  | 0.00             | 0.00      | 0.00     | 60.00  | 40.00        | 0.00 | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |
| Gulf         | 70.59 | 0.00             | 0.00      | 70.59    | 29.41  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 29.41    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hamilton     | 33.33 | 33.33            | 0.00      | 66.67    | 33.33  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 33.33    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hardee       | 8.62  | 0.00             | 0.00      | 8.62     | 44.83  | 46.55        | 0.00 | 91.38    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hendry       | 7.58  | 0.00             | 0.00      | 7.58     | 45.45  | 46.97        | 0.00 | 92.42    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hernando     | 12.50 | 31.25            | 0.00      | 43.75    | 56.25  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 56.25    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Highlands    | 18.18 | 0.00             | 0.00      | 18.18    | 60.17  | 21.65        | 0.00 | 81.82    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hillsborough | 30.49 | 3.99             | 1.06      | 35.54    | 53.82  | 8.38         | 2.25 | 64.46    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Holmes       | 30.77 | 30.77            | 0.00      | 61.54    | 38.46  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 38.46    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Indian River | 18.30 | 6.19             | 0.77      | 25.26    | 64.95  | 9.02         | 0.77 | 74.74    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Jackson      | 68.75 | 0.00             | 0.00      | 68.75    | 31.25  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 31.25    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Jefferson    | 53.57 | 0.00             | 0.00      | 53.57    | 46.43  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 46.43    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Lafayette    | 20.00 | 20.00            | 0.00      | 40.00    | 60.00  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 60.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Lake         | 46.31 | 7.79             | 0.00      | 54.09    | 45.91  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 45.91    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Lee          | 17.26 | 6.70             | 0.91      | 24.86    | 63.81  | 10.33        | 1.00 | 75.14    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Leon         | 36.11 | 3.55             | 0.00      | 39.67    | 57.38  | 2.95         | 0.00 | 60.33    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Levy         | 0.00  | 0.00             | 0.00      | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00         | 0.00 | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |
| Liberty      | NA    | NA               | NA        | NA       | NA     | NA           | NA   | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Madison      | 31.71 | 31.71            | 0.00      | 63.41    | 36.59  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 36.59    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Manatee      | 30.75 | 6.60             | 0.00      | 37.35    | 58.93  | 3.72         | 0.00 | 62.65    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Marion       | 17.06 | 13.76            | 0.00      | 30.82    | 62.57  | 0.00         | 6.61 | 69.18    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Martin       | 25.58 | 4.62             | 0.00      | 30.19    | 69.81  | 0.00         | 0.00 | 69.81    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Miami-Dade   | 16.17 | 8.58             | 2.67      | 27.43    | 52.47  | 16.04        | 4.06 | 72.57    | 100.00 |  |  |

|            |       |             |           | На       | ouseholds, 200 | 01          |           |          |        |
|------------|-------|-------------|-----------|----------|----------------|-------------|-----------|----------|--------|
|            |       | Cost burd   | len 40-49 | 9%       |                | Cost burd   | len 50+ % | /0       |        |
|            | Hou   | sehold size | e         |          | Hous           | sehold size |           |          |        |
| County     | 1-2   | 3-4         | 5+        | Subtotal | 1-2            | 3-4         | 5+        | Subtotal | Total  |
|            |       |             |           |          |                |             |           |          |        |
| Monroe     | 23.94 | 5.63        | 0.00      | 29.58    | 53.52          | 12.32       | 4.58      | 70.42    | 100.00 |
| Nassau     | 43.28 | 3.73        | 0.00      | 47.01    | 35.82          | 12.69       | 4.48      | 52.99    | 100.00 |
| Okaloosa   | 29.42 | 5.03        | 0.00      | 34.45    | 58.84          | 4.42        | 2.29      | 65.55    | 100.00 |
| Okeechobee | 37.50 | 12.50       | 0.00      | 50.00    | 50.00          | 0.00        | 0.00      | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Orange     | 31.46 | 7.80        | 1.91      | 41.17    | 45.43          | 11.68       | 1.71      | 58.83    | 100.00 |
| Osceola    | 24.60 | 0.00        | 0.00      | 24.60    | 65.01          | 10.38       | 0.00      | 75.40    | 100.00 |
| Palm Beach | 26.00 | 6.18        | 1.17      | 33.35    | 55.11          | 10.02       | 1.51      | 66.65    | 100.00 |
| Pasco      | 32.32 | 12.96       | 0.00      | 45.28    | 48.45          | 6.27        | 0.00      | 54.72    | 100.00 |
| Pinellas   | 28.67 | 6.55        | 1.07      | 36.29    | 57.28          | 6.42        | 0.00      | 63.71    | 100.00 |
| Polk       | 24.99 | 4.50        | 0.00      | 29.49    | 63.60          | 6.36        | 0.55      | 70.51    | 100.00 |
| Putnam     | 25.32 | 26.62       | 0.00      | 51.95    | 48.05          | 0.00        | 0.00      | 48.05    | 100.00 |
| St. Johns  | 16.20 | 12.48       | 0.00      | 28.68    | 46.37          | 19.74       | 5.21      | 71.32    | 100.00 |
| St. Lucie  | 48.42 | 7.11        | 0.00      | 55.53    | 28.68          | 15.79       | 0.00      | 44.47    | 100.00 |
| Santa Rosa | 27.37 | 8.03        | 0.00      | 35.40    | 60.22          | 4.38        | 0.00      | 64.60    | 100.00 |
| Sarasota   | 29.57 | 0.00        | 0.48      | 30.05    | 62.41          | 6.74        | 0.80      | 69.95    | 100.00 |
| Seminole   | 26.72 | 4.91        | 0.00      | 31.63    | 60.23          | 5.95        | 2.19      | 68.37    | 100.00 |
| Sumter     | 0.00  | 0.00        | 0.00      | 0.00     | 100.00         | 0.00        | 0.00      | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Suwannee   | 26.32 | 24.56       | 0.00      | 50.88    | 49.12          | 0.00        | 0.00      | 49.12    | 100.00 |
| Taylor     | 25.00 | 27.50       | 0.00      | 52.50    | 47.50          | 0.00        | 0.00      | 47.50    | 100.00 |
| Union      | 27.27 | 27.27       | 0.00      | 54.55    | 45.45          | 0.00        | 0.00      | 45.45    | 100.00 |
| Volusia    | 22.14 | 4.39        | 0.00      | 26.53    | 68.50          | 4.97        | 0.00      | 73.47    | 100.00 |
| Wakulla    | 38.46 | 0.00        | 0.00      | 38.46    | 61.54          | 0.00        | 0.00      | 61.54    | 100.00 |
| Walton     | 31.08 | 5.41        | 2.70      | 39.19    | 51.35          | 9.46        | 0.00      | 60.81    | 100.00 |
| Washington | 37.50 | 12.50       | 0.00      | 50.00    | 50.00          | 0.00        | 0.00      | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Florida    | 25.02 | 7.23        | 1.35      | 33.60    | 54.21          | 10.15       | 2.03      | 66.40    | 100.00 |
|            |       |             |           |          |                |             |           |          |        |

### Table IV-6a. Multi-family renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|              | Change in Households 2001-2002 |             |          |          |        |             |      |          |        |  |  |  |
|--------------|--------------------------------|-------------|----------|----------|--------|-------------|------|----------|--------|--|--|--|
|              |                                | Cost burder | n 40-49% | 6        |        |             |      |          |        |  |  |  |
|              | Hou                            | sehold size |          |          | Hou    | sehold size |      |          |        |  |  |  |
| County       | 1-2                            | 3-4         | 5+       | Subtotal | 1-2    | 3-4         | 5+   | Subtotal | Total  |  |  |  |
| Alachua      | 36.84                          | 2.63        | 0.00     | 39.47    | 57.89  | 2.63        | 0.00 | 60.53    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Baker        | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA          | NA   | NA       | NA     |  |  |  |
| Bay          | 37.50                          | 6.25        | 6.25     | 50.00    | 50.00  | 0.00        | 0.00 | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Bradford     | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA          | NA   | NA       | NA     |  |  |  |
| Brevard      | 18.18                          | 3.64        | 0.00     | 21.82    | 69.09  | 9.09        | 0.00 | 78.18    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Broward      | 23.83                          | 5.05        | 0.00     | 28.88    | 64.62  | 5.78        | 0.72 | 71.12    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Calhoun      | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA          | NA   | NA       | NA     |  |  |  |
| Charlotte    | 14.29                          | 28.57       | 0.00     | 42.86    | 57.14  | 0.00        | 0.00 | 57.14    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Citrus       | 0.00                           | 0.00        | 0.00     | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00        | 0.00 | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Clay         | 47.83                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 47.83    | 47.83  | 4.35        | 0.00 | 52.17    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Collier      | 20.69                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 20.69    | 68.97  | 6.90        | 3.45 | 79.31    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Columbia     | 50.00                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 50.00    | 50.00  | 0.00        | 0.00 | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| DeSoto       | 50.00                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 50.00    | 50.00  | 0.00        | 0.00 | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Dixie        | 0.00                           | 0.00        | 0.00     | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00        | 0.00 | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Duval        | 31.63                          | 5.10        | 1.02     | 37.76    | 53.06  | 6.12        | 3.06 | 62.24    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Escambia     | 28.57                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 28.57    | 71.43  | 0.00        | 0.00 | 71.43    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Flagler      | 0.00                           | 0.00        | 0.00     | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00        | 0.00 | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Franklin     | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA          | NA   | NA       | NA     |  |  |  |
| Gadsden      | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA          | NA   | NA       | NA     |  |  |  |
| Gilchrist    | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA          | NA   | NA       | NA     |  |  |  |
| Glades       | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA          | NA   | NA       | NA     |  |  |  |
| Gulf         | 0.00                           | 0.00        | 0.00     | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00        | 0.00 | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Hamilton     | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA          | NA   | NA       | NA     |  |  |  |
| Hardee       | 0.00                           | 0.00        | 0.00     | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00        | 0.00 | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Hendry       | 33.33                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 33.33    | 33.33  | 33.33       | 0.00 | 66.67    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Hernando     | 28.57                          | 14.29       | 0.00     | 42.86    | 57.14  | 0.00        | 0.00 | 57.14    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Highlands    | 50.00                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 50.00    | 50.00  | 0.00        | 0.00 | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Hillsborough | 27.36                          | 2.49        | 1.00     | 30.85    | 62.69  | 4.98        | 1.49 | 69.15    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Holmes       | 0.00                           | 100.00      | 0.00     | 100.00   | 0.00   | 0.00        | 0.00 | 0.00     | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Indian River | 40.00                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 40.00    | 40.00  | 20.00       | 0.00 | 60.00    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Jackson      | 100.00                         | 0.00        | 0.00     | 100.00   | 0.00   | 0.00        | 0.00 | 0.00     | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Jefferson    | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA          | NA   | NA       | NA     |  |  |  |
| Lafayette    | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA          | NA   | NA       | NA     |  |  |  |
| Lake         | 47.06                          | 5.88        | 0.00     | 52.94    | 47.06  | 0.00        | 0.00 | 47.06    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Lee          | 20.41                          | 6.12        | 0.00     | 26.53    | 63.27  | 10.20       | 0.00 | 73.47    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Leon         | 30.43                          | 4.35        | 0.00     | 34.78    | 63.04  | 2.17        | 0.00 | 65.22    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Levy         | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA          | NA   | NA       | NA     |  |  |  |
| Liberty      | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA          | NA   | NA       | NA     |  |  |  |
| Madison      | 0.00                           | 100.00      | 0.00     | 100.00   | 0.00   | 0.00        | 0.00 | 0.00     | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Manatee      | 31.03                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 31.03    | 68.97  | 0.00        | 0.00 | 68.97    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Marion       | 26.09                          | 13.04       | 0.00     | 39.13    | 56.52  | 0.00        | 4.35 | 60.87    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Martin       | 31.25                          | 6.25        | 0.00     | 37.50    | 62.50  | 0.00        | 0.00 | 62.50    | 100.00 |  |  |  |
| Miami-Dade   | 16.48                          | 4.40        | 2.47     | 23.35    | 63.46  | 10.99       | 2.20 | 76.65    | 100.00 |  |  |  |

#### Table IV-6b. Multi-family renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|                  |               |             |          | Change in       | Households 2001-2002 |             |             |               |        |  |
|------------------|---------------|-------------|----------|-----------------|----------------------|-------------|-------------|---------------|--------|--|
|                  |               | Cost burde  | en 40-49 | %               |                      | Cost bure   | den 50+ %   |               |        |  |
|                  | Hous          | ehold size  |          |                 | Hou                  | sehold size | e           |               |        |  |
| County           | 1-2           | 3-4         | 5+       | Subtotal        | 1-2                  | 3-4         | 5+          | Subtotal      | Tota   |  |
|                  |               |             |          |                 |                      |             |             |               |        |  |
| Monroe           | 0.00          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 0.00            | 100.00               | 0.00        | 0.00        | 100.00        | 100.00 |  |
| Nassau           | 50.00         | 0.00        | 0.00     | 50.00           | 25.00                | 0.00        | 25.00       | 50.00         | 100.00 |  |
| Okaloosa         | 33.33         | 8.33        | 0.00     | 41.67           | 50.00                | 0.00        | 8.33        | 58.33         | 100.00 |  |
| Okeechobee       | NA            | NA          | NA       | NA              | NA                   | NA          | NA          | NA            | NA     |  |
| Orange           | 30.06         | 7.14        | 1.19     | 38.39           | 50.60                | 9.82        | 1.19        | 61.61         | 100.00 |  |
| Osceola          | 25.93         | 0.00        | 0.00     | 25.93           | 62.96                | 11.11       | 0.00        | 74.07         | 100.00 |  |
| Palm Beach       | 25.60         | 4.76        | 0.60     | 30.95           | 61.90                | 6.55        | 0.60        | 69.05         | 100.00 |  |
| Pasco            | 23.53         | 0.00        | 0.00     | 23.53           | 76.47                | 0.00        | 0.00        | 76.47         | 100.00 |  |
| Pinellas         | 39.06         | 0.00        | 0.00     | 39.06           | 60.94                | 0.00        | 0.00        | 60.94         | 100.00 |  |
| Polk             | 17.95         | 5.13        | 0.00     | 23.08           | 71.79                | 5.13        | 0.00        | 76.92         | 100.00 |  |
| Putnam           | 0.00          | 50.00       | 0.00     | 50.00           | 50.00                | 0.00        | 0.00        | 50.00         | 100.00 |  |
| St. Johns        | 11.76         | 11.76       | 0.00     | 23.53           | 58.82                | 17.65       | 0.00        | 76.47         | 100.00 |  |
| St. Lucie        | 62.50         | 0.00        | 0.00     | 62.50           | 37.50                | 0.00        | 0.00        | 37.50         | 100.00 |  |
| Santa Rosa       | 33.33         | 0.00        | 0.00     | 33.33           | 66.67                | 0.00        | 0.00        | 66.67         | 100.00 |  |
| Sarasota         | 26.09         | 0.00        | 0.00     | 26.09           | 69.57                | 4.35        | 0.00        | 73.91         | 100.00 |  |
| Seminole         | 24.21         | 2.11        | 0.00     | 26.32           | 69.47                | 4.21        | 0.00        | 73.68         | 100.00 |  |
| Sumter           | 0.00          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 0.00            | 100.00               | 0.00        | 0.00        | 100.00        | 100.00 |  |
| Suwannee         | 100.00        | 0.00        | 0.00     | 100.00          | 0.00                 | 0.00        | 0.00        | 0.00          | 100.00 |  |
| Taylor           | NA            | NA          | NA       | NA              | NA                   | NA          | NA          | NA            | NA     |  |
| Union            | NA            | NA          | NA       | NA              | NA                   | NA          | NA          | NA            | NA     |  |
| Volusia          | 23.81         | 2.38        | 0.00     | 26.19           | 71.43                | 2.38        | 0.00        | 73.81         | 100.00 |  |
| Wakulla          | NA            | NA          | NA       | NA              | NA                   | NA          | NA          | NA            | NA     |  |
| Walton           | 0.00          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 0.00            | 100.00               | 0.00        | 0.00        | 100.00        | 100.00 |  |
| Washington       | NA            | NA          | NA       | NA              | NA                   | NA          | NA          | NA            | NA     |  |
| Florida          | 25.82         | 4.48        | 0.81     | 31.11           | 61.05                | 6.72        | 1.12        | 68.89         | 100.00 |  |
| *Note: Cost burg | dened househo | olds are th | nose wit | h a housing bur | den of 40 pe         | rcent or n  | nore of inc | come and hous | sehold |  |

# Table IV-6b. Multi-family renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|              | Change in Households 2002-2007 |             |          |          |        |              |            |          |        |  |  |
|--------------|--------------------------------|-------------|----------|----------|--------|--------------|------------|----------|--------|--|--|
|              |                                | Cost bure   | len 40-4 | 9%       |        | Cost bu      | rden 50+ % | ó        |        |  |  |
|              | Hou                            | usehold siz | e        |          | He     | ousehold siz | ze         |          |        |  |  |
| County       | 1-2                            | 3-4         | 5+       | Subtotal | 1-2    | 2 3-4        | 5+         | Subtotal | Total  |  |  |
| Alachua      | 32.58                          | 3.17        | 0.00     | 35.75    | 61.54  | 4 2.71       | 0.00       | 64.25    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Baker        | 20.00                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 20.00    | 80.00  | 0.00         | 0.00       | 80.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Bay          | 24.62                          | 3.08        | 0.00     | 27.69    | 66.15  | 6.15         | 0.00       | 72.31    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Bradford     | 25.00                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 25.00    | 75.00  | 0.00         | 0.00       | 75.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Brevard      | 23.16                          | 5.15        | 0.00     | 28.31    | 67.28  | 4.04         | 0.37       | 71.69    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Broward      | 22.88                          | 4.45        | 0.96     | 28.29    | 64.59  | 5.89         | 1.23       | 71.71    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Calhoun      | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA NA        | NA         | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Charlotte    | 12.50                          | 18.75       | 0.00     | 31.25    | 68.75  | 5 0.00       | 0.00       | 68.75    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Citrus       | 0.00                           | 0.00        | 0.00     | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00         | 0.00       | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |
| Clay         | 43.90                          | 2.44        | 0.00     | 46.34    | 43.90  | 7.32         | 2.44       | 53.66    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Collier      | 16.57                          | 4.14        | 0.00     | 20.71    | 68.64  | 1 7.69       | 2.96       | 79.29    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Columbia     | 26.32                          | 15.79       | 0.00     | 42.11    | 57.89  | 0.00         | 0.00       | 57.89    | 100.00 |  |  |
| DeSoto       | 33.33                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 33.33    | 33.33  | 33.33        | 0.00       | 66.67    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Dixie        | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA NA        | NA         | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Duval        | 29.77                          | 6.92        | 0.63     | 37.32    | 57.23  | 5.03         | 0.42       | 62.68    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Escambia     | 27.06                          | 4.71        | 0.00     | 31.76    | 63.53  | 4.71         | 0.00       | 68.24    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Flagler      | 14.29                          | 14.29       | 0.00     | 28.57    | 42.86  | 5 14.29      | 14.29      | 71.43    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Franklin     | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA NA        | NA         | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Gadsden      | 50.00                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 50.00    | 50.00  | 0.00         | 0.00       | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Gilchrist    | 50.00                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 50.00    | 50.00  | 0.00         | 0.00       | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Glades       | 0.00                           | 0.00        | 0.00     | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00         | 0.00       | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |
| Gulf         | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA NA        | NA         | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Hamilton     | 33.33                          | 16.67       | 0.00     | 50.00    | 50.00  | 0.00         | 0.00       | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hardee       | 50.00                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 50.00    | 50.00  | 0.00         | 0.00       | 50.00    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hendry       | 33.33                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 33.33    | 33.33  | 3 33.33      | 0.00       | 66.67    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hernando     | 16.67                          | 20.83       | 0.00     | 37.50    | 62.50  | 0.00         | 0.00       | 62.50    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Highlands    | 26.32                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 26.32    | 63.16  | 5 10.53      | 0.00       | 73.68    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Hillsborough | 28.49                          | 1.73        | 0.77     | 30.99    | 64.00  | 4.14         | 0.87       | 69.01    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Holmes       | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA NA        | NA         | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Indian River | 16.13                          | 0.00        | 0.00     | 16.13    | 77.42  | 2 3.23       | 3.23       | 83.87    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Jackson      | 0.00                           | 0.00        | 0.00     | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00         | 0.00       | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |
| Jefferson    | 0.00                           | 0.00        | 0.00     | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00         | 0.00       | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |
| Lafayette    | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA NA        | NA         | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Lake         | 44.94                          | 4.49        | 0.00     | 49.44    | 50.56  | 6 0.00       | 0.00       | 50.56    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Lee          | 21.46                          | 4.11        | 0.46     | 26.03    | 68.49  | 9 4.57       | 0.91       | 73.97    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Leon         | 30.71                          | 2.90        | 0.00     | 33.61    | 63.90  | 2.49         | 0.00       | 66.39    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Levy         | 0.00                           | 0.00        | 0.00     | 0.00     | 100.00 | 0.00         | 0.00       | 100.00   | 100.00 |  |  |
| Liberty      | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA NA        | NA         | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Madison      | NA                             | NA          | NA       | NA       | NA     | NA NA        | NA         | NA       | NA     |  |  |
| Manatee      | 31.76                          | 3.38        | 0.00     | 35.14    | 62.84  | 2.03         | 0.00       | 64.86    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Marion       | 24.10                          | 9.64        | 0.00     | 33.73    | 63.86  | 6 0.00       | 2.41       | 66.27    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Martin       | 33.33                          | 1.75        | 0.00     | 35.09    | 64.91  | 0.00         | 0.00       | 64.91    | 100.00 |  |  |
| Miami-Dade   | 17.04                          | 5.56        | 1.48     | 24.07    | 64.66  | 9.21         | 2.06       | 75.93    | 100.00 |  |  |

### Table IV-6c. Multi-family renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

|            |        |             |          | Change i | n H              | Iouseholds 2 |             |           |          |        |
|------------|--------|-------------|----------|----------|------------------|--------------|-------------|-----------|----------|--------|
|            |        | Cost burd   | en 40-49 | %        |                  |              | Cost bure   | den 50+ % | /0       |        |
|            | Hou    | sehold size |          |          |                  | Hou          | sehold size |           |          |        |
| County     | 1-2    | 3-4         | 5+       | Subtotal |                  | 1-2          | 3-4         | 5+        | Subtotal | Total  |
| Monroe     | 16.67  | 0.00        | 0.00     | 16.67    |                  | 83.33        | 0.00        | 0.00      | 83.33    | 100.00 |
| Nassau     | 45.00  | 5.00        | 0.00     | 50.00    |                  | 45.00        | 5.00        | 0.00      | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Okaloosa   | 25.40  | 1.59        | 0.00     | 26.98    |                  | 66.67        | 6.35        | 0.00      | 73.02    | 100.00 |
| Okeechobee | NA     | NA          | NA       | NA       |                  | NA           | NA          | NA        | NA       | NA     |
| Orange     | 30.15  | 6.55        | 1.36     | 38.05    |                  | 51.09        | 9.68        | 1.18      | 61.95    | 100.00 |
| Osceola    | 24.71  | 0.00        | 0.00     | 24.71    |                  | 63.88        | 11.41       | 0.00      | 75.29    | 100.00 |
| Palm Beach | 25.92  | 3.44        | 0.49     | 29.85    |                  | 64.00        | 5.41        | 0.74      | 70.15    | 100.00 |
| Pasco      | 31.09  | 5.88        | 0.00     | 36.97    |                  | 59.66        | 3.36        | 0.00      | 63.03    | 100.00 |
| Pinellas   | 34.81  | 0.63        | 0.00     | 34.18    |                  | 66.46        | 0.63        | 0.00      | 65.82    | 100.00 |
| Polk       | 21.39  | 2.89        | 0.00     | 24.28    |                  | 72.83        | 2.89        | 0.00      | 75.72    | 100.00 |
| Putnam     | 44.44  | 11.11       | 0.00     | 55.56    |                  | 44.44        | 0.00        | 0.00      | 44.44    | 100.00 |
| St. Johns  | 10.77  | 13.85       | 0.00     | 24.62    |                  | 58.46        | 13.85       | 3.08      | 75.38    | 100.00 |
| St. Lucie  | 59.46  | 5.41        | 0.00     | 64.86    |                  | 24.32        | 10.81       | 0.00      | 35.14    | 100.00 |
| Santa Rosa | 20.59  | 8.82        | 0.00     | 29.41    |                  | 61.76        | 8.82        | 0.00      | 70.59    | 100.00 |
| Sarasota   | 26.85  | 0.00        | 0.00     | 26.85    |                  | 70.37        | 2.78        | 0.00      | 73.15    | 100.00 |
| Seminole   | 24.44  | 2.63        | 0.00     | 27.07    |                  | 67.68        | 4.04        | 1.21      | 72.93    | 100.00 |
| Sumter     | 0.00   | 0.00        | 0.00     | 0.00     |                  | 100.00       | 0.00        | 0.00      | 100.00   | 100.00 |
| Suwannee   | 20.00  | 20.00       | 0.00     | 40.00    |                  | 60.00        | 0.00        | 0.00      | 60.00    | 100.00 |
| Taylor     | 100.00 | 0.00        | 0.00     | 100.00   |                  | 0.00         | 0.00        | 0.00      | 0.00     | 100.00 |
| Union      | 100.00 | 0.00        | 0.00     | 100.00   |                  | 0.00         | 0.00        | 0.00      | 0.00     | 100.00 |
| Volusia    | 24.68  | 2.13        | 0.00     | 26.81    |                  | 69.79        | 3.40        | 0.00      | 73.19    | 100.00 |
| Wakulla    | 0.00   | 50.00       | 0.00     | 50.00    |                  | 50.00        | 0.00        | 0.00      | 50.00    | 100.00 |
| Walton     | 28.57  | 14.29       | 0.00     | 42.86    |                  | 57.14        | 0.00        | 0.00      | 57.14    | 100.00 |
| Washington | NA     | NA          | NA       | NA       |                  | NA           | NA          | NA        | NA       | NA     |
| Florida    | 25.50  | 4.37        | 0.72     | 30.58    | $\left  \right $ | 62.22        | 6.16        | 1.04      | 69.42    | 100.00 |
|            |        |             | 0.72     | 20.00    |                  |              | 0.10        | 1.01      | 07.12    | 100.00 |

#### Table IV-6c. Multi-family renter households as a percent of county by cost burden and household size (continued)\*

### Table IV-7. Multi-family cost burdened households by county as a percent of state total by cost burden\*

|              |         |        | Percent o | of State Total |         |        |        |  |
|--------------|---------|--------|-----------|----------------|---------|--------|--------|--|
|              |         | 2002   |           |                |         | 2007   |        |  |
|              | Cost bu | rden   |           |                | Cost bu | rden   |        |  |
| County       | 40-49%  | 50+%   | Total     |                | 40-49%  | 50+%   | Total  |  |
| Alachua      | 1.940   | 1.498  | 1.646     |                | 1.961   | 1.520  | 1.667  |  |
| Baker        | 0.006   | 0.008  | 0.007     |                | 0.007   | 0.011  | 0.009  |  |
| Bay          | 0.775   | 0.586  | 0.649     |                | 0.759   | 0.587  | 0.644  |  |
| Bradford     | 0.062   | 0.027  | 0.039     |                | 0.060   | 0.028  | 0.039  |  |
| Brevard      | 1.914   | 2.360  | 2.210     |                | 1.933   | 2.369  | 2.223  |  |
| Broward      | 12.987  | 13.531 | 13.349    |                | 12.925  | 13.519 | 13.321 |  |
| Calhoun      | 0.009   | 0.004  | 0.006     |                | 0.009   | 0.004  | 0.005  |  |
| Charlotte    | 0.156   | 0.109  | 0.125     |                | 0.155   | 0.111  | 0.126  |  |
| Citrus       | 0.000   | 0.150  | 0.075     |                | 0.000   | 0.153  | 0.076  |  |
| Clay         | 0.715   | 0.399  | 0.505     |                | 0.772   | 0.430  | 0.544  |  |
| Collier      | 0.796   | 1.038  | 0.957     |                | 0.809   | 1.085  | 0.993  |  |
| Columbia     | 0.159   | 0.072  | 0.101     |                | 0.164   | 0.077  | 0.106  |  |
| DeSoto       | 0.011   | 0.059  | 0.043     |                | 0.012   | 0.056  | 0.042  |  |
| Dixie        | 0.004   | 0.002  | 0.003     |                | 0.004   | 0.002  | 0.002  |  |
| Duval        | 7.629   | 5.609  | 6.287     |                | 7.478   | 5.485  | 6.150  |  |
| Escambia     | 1.276   | 1.189  | 1.218     |                | 1.246   | 1.158  | 1.187  |  |
| Flagler      | 0.013   | 0.023  | 0.020     |                | 0.016   | 0.026  | 0.022  |  |
| Franklin     | 0.008   | 0.004  | 0.005     |                | 0.007   | 0.004  | 0.005  |  |
| Gadsden      | 0.043   | 0.020  | 0.028     |                | 0.042   | 0.019  | 0.027  |  |
| Gilchrist    | 0.008   | 0.002  | 0.004     |                | 0.009   | 0.003  | 0.005  |  |
| Glades       | 0.000   | 0.005  | 0.003     |                | 0.000   | 0.005  | 0.004  |  |
| Gulf         | 0.023   | 0.006  | 0.011     |                | 0.021   | 0.005  | 0.011  |  |
| Hamilton     | 0.019   | 0.005  | 0.009     |                | 0.023   | 0.007  | 0.012  |  |
| Hardee       | 0.009   | 0.051  | 0.037     |                | 0.011   | 0.049  | 0.036  |  |
| Hendry       | 0.011   | 0.060  | 0.043     |                | 0.012   | 0.057  | 0.042  |  |
| Hernando     | 0.176   | 0.115  | 0.135     |                | 0.181   | 0.120  | 0.141  |  |
| Highlands    | 0.083   | 0.181  | 0.148     |                | 0.086   | 0.181  | 0.149  |  |
| Hillsborough | 10.208  | 9.381  | 9.659     |                | 10.155  | 9.365  | 9.628  |  |
| Holmes       | 0.017   | 0.005  | 0.009     |                | 0.016   | 0.004  | 0.008  |  |
| Indian River | 0.188   | 0.278  | 0.248     |                | 0.185   | 0.282  | 0.249  |  |
| Jackson      | 0.107   | 0.024  | 0.052     |                | 0.100   | 0.023  | 0.049  |  |
| Jefferson    | 0.028   | 0.012  | 0.018     |                | 0.026   | 0.012  | 0.017  |  |
| Lafayette    | 0.004   | 0.003  | 0.003     |                | 0.004   | 0.003  | 0.003  |  |
| Lake         | 0.773   | 0.332  | 0.480     |                | 0.803   | 0.349  | 0.500  |  |
| Lee          | 1.054   | 1.607  | 1.421     |                | 1.091   | 1.639  | 1.456  |  |
| Leon         | 1.769   | 1.365  | 1.501     |                | 1.804   | 1.412  | 1.543  |  |
| Levy         | 0.000   | 0.057  | 0.028     |                | 0.000   | 0.057  | 0.029  |  |
| Liberty      | 0.000   | 0.000  | 0.000     |                | 0.000   | 0.000  | 0.000  |  |
| Madison      | 0.051   | 0.014  | 0.026     |                | 0.048   | 0.013  | 0.025  |  |
| Manatee      | 1.355   | 1.153  | 1.221     |                | 1.364   | 1.158  | 1.227  |  |
| Marion       | 0.454   | 0.509  | 0.491     |                | 0.476   | 0.522  | 0.507  |  |
| Martin       | 0.306   | 0.354  | 0.338     |                | 0.322   | 0.362  | 0.349  |  |
| Miami-Dade   | 18.154  | 24.324 | 22.253    |                | 17.851  | 23.908 | 21.887 |  |

|            | Percent of State Total |       |        |  |         |       |        |  |  |  |
|------------|------------------------|-------|--------|--|---------|-------|--------|--|--|--|
|            | Cost burder            | 1     |        |  | Cost bu | rden  |        |  |  |  |
| County     | 40-49%                 | 50+%  | Total  |  | 40-49%  | 50+%  | Total  |  |  |  |
| Monroe     | 0.158                  | 0.192 | 0.180  |  | 0.150   | 0.183 | 0.172  |  |  |  |
| Nassau     | 0.122                  | 0.069 | 0.087  |  | 0.132   | 0.073 | 0.093  |  |  |  |
| Okaloosa   | 0.433                  | 0.414 | 0.421  |  | 0.437   | 0.426 | 0.430  |  |  |  |
| Okeechobee | 0.008                  | 0.004 | 0.005  |  | 0.007   | 0.004 | 0.005  |  |  |  |
| Orange     | 13.045                 | 9.440 | 10.650 |  | 13.388  | 9.713 | 10.939 |  |  |  |
| Osceola    | 0.844                  | 1.304 | 1.150  |  | 0.907   | 1.389 | 1.228  |  |  |  |
| Palm Beach | 5.929                  | 5.998 | 5.975  |  | 5.996   | 6.087 | 6.057  |  |  |  |
| Pasco      | 1.214                  | 0.749 | 0.905  |  | 1.218   | 0.763 | 0.915  |  |  |  |
| Pinellas   | 7.085                  | 6.279 | 6.549  |  | 6.844   | 6.028 | 6.300  |  |  |  |
| Polk       | 1.418                  | 1.722 | 1.620  |  | 1.406   | 1.718 | 1.614  |  |  |  |
| Putnam     | 0.152                  | 0.071 | 0.098  |  | 0.152   | 0.070 | 0.097  |  |  |  |
| St. Johns  | 0.296                  | 0.375 | 0.349  |  | 0.307   | 0.393 | 0.364  |  |  |  |
| St. Lucie  | 0.405                  | 0.163 | 0.244  |  | 0.423   | 0.163 | 0.250  |  |  |  |
| Santa Rosa | 0.184                  | 0.170 | 0.174  |  | 0.190   | 0.179 | 0.183  |  |  |  |
| Sarasota   | 1.066                  | 1.256 | 1.192  |  | 1.052   | 1.239 | 1.177  |  |  |  |
| Seminole   | 2.512                  | 2.759 | 2.676  |  | 2.596   | 2.887 | 2.789  |  |  |  |
| Sumter     | 0.000                  | 0.088 | 0.044  |  | 0.000   | 0.094 | 0.047  |  |  |  |
| Suwannee   | 0.056                  | 0.027 | 0.037  |  | 0.060   | 0.030 | 0.040  |  |  |  |
| Taylor     | 0.039                  | 0.018 | 0.025  |  | 0.039   | 0.017 | 0.024  |  |  |  |
| Union      | 0.011                  | 0.005 | 0.007  |  | 0.012   | 0.004 | 0.007  |  |  |  |
| Volusia    | 1.653                  | 2.313 | 2.092  |  | 1.663   | 2.305 | 2.091  |  |  |  |
| Wakulla    | 0.009                  | 0.008 | 0.008  |  | 0.011   | 0.008 | 0.009  |  |  |  |
| Walton     | 0.054                  | 0.046 | 0.049  |  | 0.056   | 0.047 | 0.050  |  |  |  |
| Washington | 0.008                  | 0.004 | 0.005  |  | 0.007   | 0.004 | 0.005  |  |  |  |

### Table IV-7. Multi-family cost burdened households by county as a percent of state total by cost burden (continued)\*

#### 2002 2007 Growth Growth House-Percent Percent House-Percent Percent holds 2001-2002 of state 2001-2002 of state County of state of state holds Large counties 35,333 16.32 37,223 16.74 Miami-Dade 22.25 364 21.89 1,890 15.01 16,910 10.65 336 15.06 18,605 10.94 1.695 Orange Broward 21,195 13.35 277 12.42 22,655 13.32 1.460 12.93 Hillsborough 15,336 9.66 201 9.01 16,375 9.63 1,039 9.20 5.98 7.21 Palm Beach 9,487 168 7.53 10,301 6.06 814 9.983 6.29 4.39 6.15 477 4.23 Duval 98 10,460 Pinellas 10,399 6.55 64 2.87 10,715 6.30 316 2.80 118,643 74.72 1,508 67.59 126,334 74.28 7,691 68.12 Subtotal Medium counties Seminole 4,249 2.68 95 4.26 4,744 2.79 495 4.38 55 3,509 2.21 3,781 2.22 272 2.41 Brevard 2.47 1,826 1.15 54 2.42 2,089 1.23 263 2.33 Osceola Leon 2,383 1.50 46 2.06 2,624 1.54 241 2.13 3,321 2.09 42 1.88 2.09 235 2.08 Volusia 3,556 2,614 1.65 38 1.70 2,835 1.67 221 1.96 Alachua 2,257 49 1.94 Lee 1.42 2.20 2,476 1.46 219 Polk 2,572 1.62 39 1.75 2,745 1.61 173 1.53 0.96 29 1.30 0.99 169 1.50 Collier 1,519 1,688 1.938 1.22 29 2,086 1.23 1.31 Manatee 1.30 148 23 0.54 123 1.09 Clay 802 0.51 1.03 925 1,437 0.91 17 0.76 1,556 0.92 119 1.05 Pasco 1.893 1.19 23 1.03 2,001 1.18 108 0.96 Sarasota Lake 762 0.48 17 0.76 851 0.50 89 0.79 1,934 1.22 14 2,019 1.19 85 0.75 Escambia 0.63 779 0.49 23 1.03 862 0.51 83 0.74 Marion Bay 1,031 0.65 16 0.72 1.096 0.64 65 0.58 Saint Johns 554 0.35 17 0.76 619 0.36 65 0.58 0.42 63 668 12 0.54 731 0.43 0.56 Okaloosa Martin 536 0.34 16 0.72 593 0.35 57 0.51 388 0.24 8 0.36 0.25 37 0.33 Saint Lucie 425 277 0.17 3 0.18 34 0.30 Santa Rosa 0.13 311 Indian River 393 0.25 5 0.22 424 0.25 31 0.28 215 0.14 7 0.31 239 0.14 24 0.21 Hernando 7 0.14 Charlotte 198 0.13 0.31 214 0.13 16 Citrus 158 0.10 3 0.13 173 0.10 15 0.13 38,213 24.50 24.07 687 30.79 41.663 3,450 30.56 Subtotal Small counties 0.09 Nassau 138 4 0.18 158 0.09 20 0.18 0.10 4 Columbia 161 0.18 180 0.11 19 0.17 235 0.15 4 0.18 254 0.15 19 0.17 Highlands 2 93 0.06 107 0.06 14 0.12 Sumter 0.09 10 Suwannee 58 0.04 1 0.05 68 0.04 0.09 0.10 2 0.09 0.10 9 0.08 156 165 Putnam 7 31 0.02 1 0.05 38 0.02 0.06 Flagler

### Table IV-8. Multi-family cost burdened households, growth and percent of state in 2002 and 2007\*

|                    |                | 2           | 2002                |           | 2007             |             |                 |           |  |  |  |
|--------------------|----------------|-------------|---------------------|-----------|------------------|-------------|-----------------|-----------|--|--|--|
|                    | House-         | Percent     | Growth              | Percent   | House-           | Percent     | Growth          | Percent   |  |  |  |
| County             | holds          | of state    | 2001-2002           | of state  | holds            | of state    | 2001-2002       | of state  |  |  |  |
| Small counties (Co | ontinued)      |             |                     |           |                  |             |                 |           |  |  |  |
| Walton             | 78             | 0.05        | 4                   | 0.18      | 85               | 0.05        | 7               | 0.06      |  |  |  |
| Hamilton           | 15             | 0.01        | 0                   | 0.00      | 21               | 0.01        | 6               | 0.05      |  |  |  |
| Monroe             | 286            | 0.18        | 2                   | 0.09      | 292              | 0.17        | 6               | 0.05      |  |  |  |
| Baker              | 11             | 0.01        | 0                   | 0.00      | 16               | 0.01        | 5               | 0.04      |  |  |  |
| Levy               | 60             | 0.04        | 0                   | 0.00      | 65               | 0.04        | 5               | 0.04      |  |  |  |
| Bradford           | 62             | 0.04        | 0                   | 0.00      | 66               | 0.04        | 4               | 0.04      |  |  |  |
| DeSoto             | 68             | 0.04        | 2                   | 0.09      | 71               | 0.04        | 3               | 0.03      |  |  |  |
| Hendry             | 69             | 0.04        | 3                   | 0.13      | 72               | 0.04        | 3               | 0.03      |  |  |  |
| Gadsden            | 44             | 0.03        | 0                   | 0.00      | 46               | 0.03        | 2               | 0.02      |  |  |  |
| Gilchrist          | 6              | 0.00        | 0                   | 0.00      | 8                | 0.01        | 2               | 0.02      |  |  |  |
| Hardee             | 59             | 0.04        | 1                   | 0.05      | 61               | 0.04        | 2               | 0.02      |  |  |  |
| Wakulla            | 13             | 0.01        | 0                   | 0.00      | 15               | 0.01        | 2               | 0.02      |  |  |  |
| Glades             | 5              | 0.00        | 0                   | 0.00      | 6                | 0.00        | 1               | 0.01      |  |  |  |
| Jackson            | 82             | 0.05        | 2                   | 0.09      | 83               | 0.05        | 1               | 0.01      |  |  |  |
| Jefferson          | 28             | 0.02        | 0                   | 0.00      | 29               | 0.02        | 1               | 0.01      |  |  |  |
| Taylor             | 40             | 0.03        | 0                   | 0.00      | 41               | 0.02        | 1               | 0.01      |  |  |  |
| Union              | 11             | 0.01        | 0                   | 0.00      | 12               | 0.01        | 1               | 0.01      |  |  |  |
| Calhoun            | 9              | 0.01        | 0                   | 0.00      | 9                | 0.01        | 0               | 0.00      |  |  |  |
| Dixie              | 4              | 0.00        | 1                   | 0.05      | 4                | 0.00        | 0               | 0.00      |  |  |  |
| Franklin           | 8              | 0.01        | 0                   | 0.00      | 8                | 0.01        | 0               | 0.00      |  |  |  |
| Gulf               | 18             | 0.01        | 1                   | 0.05      | 18               | 0.01        | 0               | 0.00      |  |  |  |
| Holmes             | 14             | 0.01        | 1                   | 0.05      | 14               | 0.01        | 0               | 0.00      |  |  |  |
| Lafayette          | 5              | 0.00        | 0                   | 0.00      | 5                | 0.00        | 0               | 0.00      |  |  |  |
| Liberty            | 0              | 0.00        | 0                   | 0.00      | 0                | 0.00        | 0               | 0.00      |  |  |  |
| Madison            | 42             | 0.03        | 1                   | 0.05      | 42               | 0.03        | 0               | 0.00      |  |  |  |
| Okeechobee         | 8              | 0.01        | 0                   | 0.00      | 8                | 0.01        | 0               | 0.00      |  |  |  |
| Washington         | 8              | 0.01        | 0                   | 0.00      | 8                | 0.01        | 0               | 0.00      |  |  |  |
| Subtotal           | 1,925          | 1.21        | 36                  | 1.61      | 2,075            | 1.22        | 150             | 1.33      |  |  |  |
| Florida            | 158,781        | (X)         | 2,231               | (X)       | 170,072          | (X)         | 11,291          | (X)       |  |  |  |
| *Note: Cost burde  | ned households | are those w | vith a housing cost | of 40% or | more and a house | ehold incom | e between 20% a | nd 60% of |  |  |  |

### Table IV-8. Multi-family cost burdened households, growth and percent of state in 2002 and 2007 (continued)\*

\*Note: Cost burdened households are those with a housing cost of 40% or more and a household income between 20% and 60% of adjusted area median income. County size is based on 2000 Census population.
#### V. Florida Housing Finance Corporation Supported Units and County Location Compared to Need

This section of the needs assessment compares the inventory of multi-family rental units supported by FHFC with the demand for housing by renters with incomes between 20 and 60 percent of the area median. Most FHFC units are targeted to households with incomes in the 20 to 60 percent of area median range. Of these, the bulk of the units are targeted toward maximum incomes of 50 or 60 percent of median income, consistent with the requirements of the Low Income Housing Tax Credit program. The FHFC also supports some units for households between 60.1 and 150 percent of the area median income.

#### **FHFC Inventory**

The FHFC provided income targeting information for a total of 101,708 income restricted units; that is, a household must have an income at or below the qualifying income to occupy the unit.<sup>2</sup> Of the income-restricted units, 82,405 are restricted to households with income between 20 and 60 percent of local area median. The remaining income-restricted units have maximum income restrictions from 60.1 to 150 percent of area median income.

Table V-1 on the following pages lists these units by county and by the income level that sets the upper bound of eligibility (income restriction of the unit based on a percentage of the area median income). Table V-2 summarizes the same information into broader income categories.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> In this section we are limiting the discussion to those FHFC units for which we have information about the income categories of the restricted units. The FHFC provides or monitors a larger number of units, including those "in the pipeline" but for which we do not have corresponding information on income categories served.

| County       | 25.1-30%<br>AMI | 30.1-35%<br>AMI | 35.1-40%<br>AMI | 40.1-45%<br>AMI | 45.1-50%<br>AMI | 50.1-60%<br>AMI | 60.1-80%<br>AMI | 80.1-150%<br>AMI | Total Units |
|--------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|-------------|
| Alachua      | 0               | 30              | 0               | 0               | 64              | 654             | 36              | 142              | 926         |
| Baker        | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 10              | 30              | 0               | 0                | 40          |
| Bay          | 0               | 0               | 0               | 20              | 60              | 121             | 0               | 0                | 201         |
| Bradford     | 0               | 0               | 0               | 8               | 0               | 29              | 0               | 0                | 37          |
| Brevard      | 0               | 53              | 24              | 20              | 0               | 1,081           | 0               | 56               | 1,234       |
| Broward      | 0               | 0               | 60              | 0               | 331             | 3,376           | 776             | 1,739            | 6,282       |
| Calhoun      | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 38              | 0               | 0                | 38          |
| Charlotte    | 0               | 26              | 0               | 0               | 0               | 418             | 0               | 0                | 444         |
| Citrus       | 0               | 0               | 19              | 0               | 10              | 299             | 0               | 0                | 328         |
| Clay         | 27              | 0               | 0               | 0               | 62              | 590             | 212             | 224              | 1,115       |
| Collier      | 0               | 0               | 24              | 24              | 280             | 2,386           | 0               | 0                | 2,714       |
| Columbia     | 0               | 5               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 66              | 0               | 0                | 104         |
| DeSoto       | 0               | 19              | 14              | 0               | 0               | 163             | 0               | 0                | 196         |
| Dixie        | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0                | 0           |
| Duval        | 30              | 87              | 312             | 91              | 668             | 4,499           | 338             | 266              | 7,022       |
| Escambia     | 0               | 9               | 9               | 0               | 34              | 681             | 158             | 0                | 885         |
| Flagler      | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 88              | 0               | 0                | 88          |
| Franklin     | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 85              | 0               | 0                | 85          |
| Gadsden      | 0               | 0               | 0               | 8               | 0               | 89              | 0               | 0                | 67          |
| Gilchrist    | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 24              | 0               | 0                | 24          |
| Glades       | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 28              | 0               | 0                | 28          |
| Gulf         | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 113             | 0               | 0                | 113         |
| Hamilton     | 0               | 0               | 22              | 0               | 0               | 87              | 0               | 0                | 109         |
| Hardee       | 0               | 0               | 0               | 10              | 0               | 89              | 0               | 0                | 66          |
| Hendry       | 0               | 27              | 9               | 9               | 15              | 184             | 0               | 0                | 238         |
| Hernando     | 0               | 4               | 0               | 0               | 8               | 147             | 0               | 0                | 159         |
| Highlands    | 0               | 0               | 29              | 7               | 30              | 234             | 0               | 0                | 300         |
| Hillsborough | 0               | 91              | 445             | 8               | 429             | 4,226           | 1,259           | 3,635            | 10,093      |
| Holmes       | 0               | 0               | 4               | 0               | 0               | 34              | 0               | 0                | 38          |
| Indian River | 0               | 53              | 49              | 0               | 8               | 1,507           | 0               | 0                | 1,617       |
| Jackson      | 0               | 11              | 17              | 0               | 21              | 170             | 0               | 0                | 219         |
| Jefferson    | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 75              | 0               | 0                | 75          |
| Lafayette    | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0               | 0                | 0           |
| Lake         | 0               | 0               | 2               | 7               | 0               | 1,944           | 0               | 0                | 1,958       |

Table V-1. Income-restricted FHFC units by targeted income category and county

Revised December 2001

| County           | 25.1-30% | 30.1-35% | 35.1-40% | 40.1-45% | 45.1-50%   | 50.1-60% | 60.1-80% | 80.1-150% | <b>Total Units</b> |
|------------------|----------|----------|----------|----------|------------|----------|----------|-----------|--------------------|
|                  | AMI      | AMI      | AMI      | AMI      | AMI        | AMI      | AMI      | AMI       |                    |
| Lee              | 0        | 43       | 75       | 7        | 180        | 1,444    | 105      | 210       | 2,064              |
| Leon             | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0        | 240        | 1,143    | 563      | 160       | 2,106              |
| Levy             | 0        | 4        | 0        | 7        | 0          | 126      | 0        | 0         | 137                |
| Liberty          | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0          | 0        | 0        | 0         | 0                  |
| Madison          | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0          | 81       | 0        | 0         | 81                 |
| Manatee          | 24       | 39       | 34       | 10       | 14         | 1,301    | 3        | 0         | 1,425              |
| Marion           | 0        | 60       | 39       | 0        | 12         | 757      | 0        | 0         | 868                |
| Martin           | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0        | 51         | 620      | 0        | 0         | 671                |
| Miami-Dade       | 0        | 224      | 815      | 101      | 1,822      | 10,840   | 223      | 800       | 14,825             |
| Monroe           | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0        | 113        | 114      | 122      | 13        | 362                |
| Nassau           | 0        | 0        | 7        | 0        | 0          | 285      | 0        | 0         | 292                |
| Okaloosa         | 0        | 0        | 9        | 0        | 0          | 163      | 0        | 0         | 169                |
| Okeechobee       | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0          | 34       | 0        | 0         | 34                 |
| Orange           | 0        | 242      | 286      | 24       | 404        | 13,391   | 777      | 2,668     | 17,792             |
| Osceola          | 0        | 40       | 0        | 0        | 103        | 3,987    | 138      | 320       | 4,588              |
| Palm Beach       | 0        | 50       | 165      | 0        | 427        | 5,168    | 366      | 728       | 6,904              |
| Pasco            | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0        | 10         | 948      | 0        | 0         | 958                |
| Pinellas         | 0        | 60       | 14       | 0        | 86         | 805      | 175      | 369       | 1,521              |
| Polk             | 0        | 51       | 45       | 31       | 24         | 680      | 0        | 0         | 831                |
| Putnam           | 0        | 0        | 70       | 0        | 30         | 367      | 0        | 0         | 467                |
| Saint Johns      | 0        | 14       | 46       | 0        | 0          | 236      | 0        | 0         | 296                |
| Saint Lucie      | 0        | 22       | 0        | 0        | 68         | 1,137    | 0        | 0         | 1,227              |
| Santa Rosa       | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0          | 157      | 0        | 0         | 157                |
| Sarasota         | 0        | 12       | 0        | 9        | 0          | 461      | 137      | 550       | 1,166              |
| Seminole         | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0        | 6 <i>L</i> | 2,193    | 153      | 563       | 2,988              |
| Sumter           | 0        | 7        | 8        | 0        | 0          | 167      | 0        | 0         | 182                |
| Suwannee         | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0          | 24       | 0        | 0         | 24                 |
| Taylor           | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0          | 67       | 0        | 0         | 67                 |
| Union            | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0          | 32       | 0        | 0         | 32                 |
| Volusia          | 0        | 38       | 34       | 0        | 51         | 1,743    | 140      | 448       | 2,454              |
| Wakulla          | 0        | 5        | 0        | 0        | 0          | 25       | 0        | 0         | 30                 |
| Walton           | 0        | 0        | 5        | 0        | 0          | 46       | 0        | 0         | 51                 |
| Washington       | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0        | 0          | 33       | 0        | 0         | 33                 |
| State of Florida | 81       | 1,323    | 2,687    | 395      | 5,756      | 72,163   | 5,681    | 13,622    | 101,708            |

Table V-1. Income-restricted FHFC units by targeted income category and county (continued)

Revised December 2001

105

| County       | 25.1-50% AMI | 50.1-60% AMI | 25.1-60% AMI | 60.1-150% AMI |
|--------------|--------------|--------------|--------------|---------------|
| Alachua      | 94           | 654          | 748          | 178           |
| Baker        | 10           | 30           | 40           | 0             |
| Bay          | 80           | 121          | 201          | 0             |
| Bradford     | 8            | 29           | 37           | 0             |
| Brevard      | 26           | 1,081        | 1,178        | 56            |
| Broward      | 391          | 3,376        | 3,767        | 2,515         |
| Calhoun      | 0            | 38           | 38           | 0             |
| Charlotte    | 26           | 418          | 444          | 0             |
| Citrus       | 29           | 299          | 328          | 0             |
| Clay         | 89           | 590          | 679          | 436           |
| Collier      | 328          | 2,386        | 2,714        | 0             |
| Columbia     | 5            | 99           | 104          | 0             |
| DeSoto       | 33           | 163          | 196          | 0             |
| Dixie        | 0            | 0            | 0            | 0             |
| Duval        | 1,188        | 4,499        | 5,687        | 1,335         |
| Escambia     | 46           | 681          | 727          | 158           |
| Flagler      | 0            | 88           | 88           | 0             |
| Franklin     | 0            | 85           | 85           | 0             |
| Gadsden      | 8            | 89           | 26           | 0             |
| Gilchrist    | 0            | 24           | 24           | 0             |
| Glades       | 0            | 28           | 28           | 0             |
| Gulf         | 0            | 113          | 113          | 0             |
| Hamilton     | 22           | 87           | 109          | 0             |
| Hardee       | 10           | 89           | 66           | 0             |
| Hendry       | 54           | 184          | 238          | 0             |
| Hernando     | 12           | 147          | 159          | 0             |
| Highlands    | 66           | 234          | 300          | 0             |
| Hillsborough | 973          | 4,226        | 5,199        | 4,894         |
| Holmes       | 4            | 34           | 38           | 0             |
| Indian River | 110          | 1,507        | 1,617        | 0             |
| Jackson      | 49           | 170          | 219          | 0             |
| Jefferson    | 0            | 75           | 75           | 0             |
| Lafayette    | 0            | 0            | 0            | 0             |

Table V-2. Subtotals of FHFC income restricted units by county

| County           | 25.1-50% AMI | 50.1-60% AMI | 25.1-60% AMI | 60.1-150% AMI |
|------------------|--------------|--------------|--------------|---------------|
| Lake             | 14           | 1,944        | 1,958        | 0             |
| Lee              | 305          | 1,444        | 1,749        | 315           |
| Leon             | 240          | 1,143        | 1,383        | 723           |
| Levy             | 11           | 126          | 137          | 0             |
| Liberty          | 0            | 0            | 0            | 0             |
| Madison          | 0            | 81           | 81           | 0             |
| Manatee          | 121          | 1,301        | 1,422        | 3             |
| Marion           | 111          | 757          | 898          | 0             |
| Martin           | 51           | 620          | 671          | 0             |
| Miami-Dade       | 2,962        | 10,840       | 13,802       | 1,023         |
| Monroe           | 113          | 114          | 227          | 135           |
| Nassau           | 7            | 285          | 292          | 0             |
| Okaloosa         | 9            | 163          | 169          | 0             |
| Okeechobee       | 0            | 34           | 34           | 0             |
| Orange           | 926          | 13,391       | 14,347       | 3,445         |
| Osceola          | 143          | 3,987        | 4,130        | 458           |
| Palm Beach       | 642          | 5,168        | 5,810        | 1,094         |
| Pasco            | 10           | 948          | 958          | 0             |
| Pinellas         | 172          | 805          | <i>LL</i> 6  | 544           |
| Polk             | 151          | 680          | 831          | 0             |
| Putnam           | 100          | 367          | 467          | 0             |
| Saint Johns      | 09           | 236          | 296          | 0             |
| Saint Lucie      | 06           | 1,137        | 1,227        | 0             |
| Santa Rosa       | 0            | 157          | 157          | 0             |
| Sarasota         | 18           | 461          | 479          | 687           |
| Seminole         | 79           | 2,193        | 2,272        | 716           |
| Sumter           | 15           | 167          | 182          | 0             |
| Suwannee         | 0            | 24           | 24           | 0             |
| Taylor           | 0            | 67           | 67           | 0             |
| Union            | 0            | 32           | 32           | 0             |
| Volusia          | 123          | 1,743        | 1,866        | 588           |
| Wakulla          | 5            | 25           | 30           | 0             |
| Walton           | 5            | 46           | 51           | 0             |
| Washington       | 0            | 33           | 33           | 0             |
| State of Florida | 10,242       | 72,163       | 82,405       | 19,303        |

| 2                                    |  |
|--------------------------------------|--|
| Ĕ                                    |  |
| =                                    |  |
| Ξ.                                   |  |
| Ŧ                                    |  |
| P                                    |  |
| 0                                    |  |
| ್ಲಲ್ರ                                |  |
| $\sim$                               |  |
|                                      |  |
| Ħ                                    |  |
|                                      |  |
| 2                                    |  |
| 2                                    |  |
| 9                                    |  |
| ⊳ >                                  |  |
| 9                                    |  |
|                                      |  |
| Ľ,                                   |  |
| 5                                    |  |
|                                      |  |
|                                      |  |
| Б                                    |  |
| - a                                  |  |
| ÷                                    |  |
| . <u> </u>                           |  |
|                                      |  |
| Ť.                                   |  |
|                                      |  |
|                                      |  |
| <u> </u>                             |  |
| L                                    |  |
| le r                                 |  |
| me r                                 |  |
| ome r                                |  |
| come r                               |  |
| ncome r                              |  |
| income r                             |  |
| C income r                           |  |
| C income r                           |  |
| IFC income r                         |  |
| HFC income r                         |  |
| FHFC income r                        |  |
| f FHFC income r                      |  |
| of FHFC income r                     |  |
| of FHFC income r                     |  |
| ls of FHFC income r                  |  |
| als of FHFC income r                 |  |
| tals of FHFC income r                |  |
| otals of FHFC income r               |  |
| ototals of FHFC income r             |  |
| ibtotals of FHFC income r            |  |
| subtotals of FHFC income r           |  |
| Subtotals of FHFC income r           |  |
| 2. Subtotals of FHFC income r        |  |
| -2. Subtotals of FHFC income r       |  |
| /-2. Subtotals of FHFC income r      |  |
| V-2. Subtotals of FHFC income r      |  |
| e V-2. Subtotals of FHFC income r    |  |
| ole V-2. Subtotals of FHFC income r  |  |
| uble V-2. Subtotals of FHFC income r |  |
| able V-2. Subtotals of FHFC income r |  |

The income distributions above demonstrate that most units are targeted toward households with incomes in the 50 to 60 percent of area median income range. Eighty-eight percent of the units with restrictions in the 20 to 60 percent of local area median income range, over 72,000 units, have restrictions for which the highest income allowable is between 50 and 60 percent. Approximately 10,000 units are restricted to households with income levels below 50 percent; of these, 6,000 fall within the 40 to 49.9 percent income range.

Not surprisingly, large counties have the highest number of income-restricted FHFC units. Only three counties have more than 10,000 rent-restricted units: Orange, with approximately 17,800 units; Miami-Dade, with almost 15,000 units; and Hillsborough, with just over 10,000 units. These three counties account for 42 percent of all rent restricted units in the state. Moreover, of the approximately 19,000 units in the 60 to 150 percent of area median income qualifying range, over 40 percent are found in two counties: Hillsborough and Orange.

Other large county totals include Broward with almost 6,300 units, Duval with 7,000, Palm Beach with 6,900, and Pinellas with slightly over 1,500. The numbers of units for large counties are not necessarily distributed consistent with county population. For example, Orange County contains a high number of units relative to its population, while Pinellas County contains a substantially smaller number of units relative to population.

Among the medium counties, the largest number of FHFC units is found in Osceola County. Counties with 2,000-3,000 units include Seminole, Collier, Lee, Leon and Volusia. Other counties with more than 1,000 FHFC supported units include Lake, Brevard, Clay, Indian River, Manatee, St. Lucie, and Sarasota.

#### **Comparison of Inventory to Need**

To determine the level of effort in meeting housing needs in each county, the Shimberg Center developed a ratio of the FHFC inventory relative to need. The ratio is the number of FHFC units with income restrictions at 60% of area median income divided by the number of renters with incomes between 40 and 60 percent of area median income.

In order to match the 60 percent income restricted FHFC units to the "most likely pool of renters" the Shimberg Center assumed that a household could pay up to 40 percent of income for housing, that is, a 40 percent cost burden. This assumption resulted in a redefinition of the household income range defining the likely pool of renter. That income range is between 40 and 60 percent of area median income adjusted for household size.

Table V-3 on the following pages shows the results of all of these calculations.

# Table V-3. Ratio of FHFC units to renters (Units with income restrictions at 60% compared to renters with incomes 40%-60% of AMI – Units with income restrictions expiring through 2004 are not counted)

| County       | All Renters, 2001,<br>with incomes 40-60%<br>AMI | 60% Only Units - post<br>2004 | Ratio: 60% units/All<br>Renters 40-60% |
|--------------|--|-------------------------------|--|
| Alachua      | 4,015  | 619                           | 15.4%                                  |
| Baker        | 217  | 30                            | 13.8%                                  |
| Bay          | 3,390  | 60                            | 1.8%                                   |
| Bradford     | 260  | 29                            | 11.2%                                  |
| Brevard      | 7,977  | 1,081                         | 13.6%                                  |
| Broward      | 32,537   | 2,880                         | 8.9%                                   |
| Calhoun      | 151  | 0                             | 0.0%                                   |
| Charlotte    | 1,781  | 418                           | 23.5%                                  |
| Citrus       | 1,365  | 227                           | 16.6%                                  |
| Clay         | 1,928  | 545                           | 28.3%                                  |
| Collier      | 3,680  | 2,344                         | 63.7%                                  |
| Columbia     | 711  | 31                            | 4.4%                                   |
| DeSoto       | 386  | 163                           | 42.2%                                  |
| Dixie        | 130  | 0                             | 0.0%                                   |
| Duval        | 17,425   | 4,443                         | 25.5%                                  |
| Escambia     | 5,252  | 635                           | 12.1%                                  |
| Flagler      | 545  | 88                            | 16.1%                                  |
| Franklin     | 139  | 55                            | 39.6%                                  |
| Gadsden      | 540  | 52                            | 9.6%                                   |
| Gilchrist    | 116  | 0                             | 0.0%                                   |
| Glades       | 117  | 28                            | 23.9%                                  |
| Gulf         | 143  | 0                             | 0.0%                                   |
| Hamilton     | 155  | 87                            | 56.1%                                  |
| Hardee       | 302  | 51                            | 16.9%                                  |
| Hendry       | 446  | 184                           | 41.3%                                  |
| Hernando     | 1,755  | 107                           | 6.1%                                   |
| Highlands    | 1,262  | 192                           | 15.2%                                  |
| Hillsborough | 19,467   | 4,206                         | 21.6%                                  |
| Holmes       | 203  | 34                            | 16.7%                                  |
| Indian River | 1,835  | 1,498                         | 81.6%                                  |
| Jackson      | 564  | 146                           | 25.9%                                  |
| Jefferson    | 143  | 36                            | 25.2%                                  |
| Lafayette    | 59   | 0                             | 0.0%                                   |
| Lake         | 2,758  | 1,688                         | 61.2%                                  |
| Lee          | 7,038  | 1,444                         | 20.5%                                  |
| Leon         | 4,307  | 1,142                         | 26.5%                                  |
| Levy         | 427  | 126                           | 29.5%                                  |
| Liberty      | 72   | 0                             | 0.0%                                   |
| Madison      | 227  | 81                            | 35.7%                                  |

# Table V-3. Ratio of FHFC units to renters (Units with income restrictions at 60% compared to renters with incomes 40%-60% of AMI – Units with income restrictions expiring through 2004 are not counted) (continued)

| County           | All Renters, 2001,<br>with incomes 40-60%<br>AMI | 60% Only Units - post<br>2004 | Ratio: 60% units/All<br>Renters 40-60% |
|------------------|--|-------------------------------|--|
| Manatee          | 4 688  | 1 301                         | 27.8%                                  |
| Marion           | 3 148  | 532                           | 16.9%                                  |
| Martin           | 1 947  | 578                           | 29.7%                                  |
| Miami-Dade       | 49.885   | 9.069                         | 18.2%                                  |
| Monroe           | 1.921  | 114                           | 5.9%                                   |
| Nassau           | 801  | 72                            | 9.0%                                   |
| Okaloosa         | 3,834  | 88                            | 2.3%                                   |
| Okeechobee       | 555  | 34                            | 6.1%                                   |
| Orange           | 23,076   | 13,146                        | 57.0%                                  |
| Osceola          | 3,963  | 3,794                         | 95.7%                                  |
| Palm Beach       | 17,938   | 5,162                         | 28.8%                                  |
| Pasco            | 5,172  | 574                           | 11.1%                                  |
| Pinellas         | 17,251   | 801                           | 4.6%                                   |
| Polk             | 8,100  | 627                           | 7.7%                                   |
| Putnam           | 819  | 227                           | 27.7%                                  |
| Saint Johns      | 1,551  | 236                           | 15.2%                                  |
| Saint Lucie      | 2,196  | 1,137                         | 51.8%                                  |
| Santa Rosa       | 1,341  | 43                            | 3.2%                                   |
| Sarasota         | 4,384  | 458                           | 10.4%                                  |
| Seminole         | 5,894  | 1,833                         | 31.1%                                  |
| Sumter           | 501  | 151                           | 30.1%                                  |
| Suwannee         | 396  | 24                            | 6.1%                                   |
| Taylor           | 209  | 67                            | 32.1%                                  |
| Union            | 124  | 0                             | 0.0%                                   |
| Volusia          | 6,570  | 1,696                         | 25.8%                                  |
| Wakulla          | 201  | 25                            | 12.4%                                  |
| Walton           | 609  | 46                            | 7.6%                                   |
| Washington       | 256  | 33                            | 12.9%                                  |
| State of Florida | 291,155  | 66,618                        | 22.9%                                  |

Table V-3 shows that statewide, FHFC units with 60 percent income restrictions provide units equaling about 23 percent of the number of renter households with incomes between 40 and 60 percent of AMI. This is a significant accomplishment in slightly over a decade. Several counties vary significantly from the state average. Osceola County's FHFC units equal 96 percent of renters in the 40 – 60 percent income range. Other large and medium-sized counties with large percentages (in excess of 50 percent) of renters in this income category include Indian River at approximately 82 percent, Lake at 61 percent, Orange at 57 percent, St. Lucie at approximately 52 percent and Collier at almost 64 percent. Three of the six large and medium counties with ratios over 50 percent are in the Orlando metropolitan area. Among small counties, Franklin, Hendry, DeSoto and Hamilton have ratios of approximately 40 percent or more. In the latter counties, the ratio is indicative of the relatively small number of renters in the county rather than large numbers of FHFC units; each of these counties has fewer than 200 units of FHFC supported housing.

#### VI. Federal- and State-Supported Units and County Location Compared to Need

In addition to the FHFC-supported units discussed above, the federal government subsidizes rental housing units for low-income Florida households through programs administered by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the Department of Agriculture's Rural Development (RD) division. This section of the report summarizes the inventory of federal- and state-supported rental housing units by county and compares this stock to numbers of renter households.

#### **Subsidized Housing Inventory**

Table VI-1 on the following pages lists the subsidized units available by county that are assumed to be generally (but not exclusively) restricted to households with incomes between 20 and 60 percent of area median income.<sup>3</sup> The list includes units supported by FHFC, RD, and HUD. The list was originally compiled by The Department of Elder Affairs from three sources: FHFC's compliance database, HUD's "Picture of Subsidized Housing," and Rural Development. The original list has been subsequently updated through 2000 by the Shimberg Center and includes local housing finance agency projects, to the extent that the local project received 4 percent credits or received a credit enhancement from the Guarantee Fund and hasn't received credits; FHFC projects from the 2000 cycle; and RD and HUD projects funded in 2000 but not yet completed. The federal agencies have not yet made funding awards for 2001. Local projects funded through federal entitlement funds, such as the Community Development Block Grants and HOME, are not included in the list below. Because specific data on income restrictions is not available for all federally subsidized units or all FHFC units, the units are not divided into categories based on maximum allowable income.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Rents in HUD- and RD-subsidized units are based on a percentage of the tenant's income, so it is not possible to determine an exact number of units reserved for those between 20 and 60 percent of area median income. Based on summary statistics from HUD regarding the incomes of current tenants, it is assumed that 16 percent of HUD's public housing units and 21 percent of its Section 8 vouchers and certificates are occupied by households with incomes between 20 and 60 percent of the area median.

| County       | Subsidized<br>Units | Percentage Share of State's<br>Subsidized Units |
|--------------|---------------------|---|
| Alachua      | 3,397               | 1.59%   |
| Baker        | 146                 | 0.07%   |
| Bay          | 1,872               | 0.88%   |
| Bradford     | 426                 | 0.20%   |
| Brevard      | 4,096               | 1.92%   |
| Broward      | 13,313              | 6.24%   |
| Calhoun      | 138                 | 0.06%   |
| Charlotte    | 1,449               | 0.68%   |
| Citrus       | 805                 | 0.38%   |
| Clay         | 1,255               | 0.59%   |
| Collier      | 3,663               | 1.72%   |
| Columbia     | 502                 | 0.24%   |
| Desoto       | 190                 | 0.09%   |
| Dixie        | 32                  | 0.01%   |
| Duval        | 17,707              | 8.30%   |
| Escambia     | 3,930               | 1.84%   |
| Flagler      | 294                 | 0.14%   |
| Franklin     | 130                 | 0.06%   |
| Gadsden      | 708                 | 0.33%   |
| Gilchrist    | 81                  | 0.04%   |
| Glades       | 28                  | 0.01%   |
| Gulf         | 188                 | 0.09%   |
| Hamilton     | 147                 | 0.07%   |
| Hardee       | 192                 | 0.09%   |
| Hendry       | 454                 | 0.21%   |
| Hernando     | 437                 | 0.20%   |
| Highlands    | 858                 | 0.40%   |
| Hillsborough | 19,243              | 9.02%   |
| Holmes       | 122                 | 0.06%   |
| Indian River | 1,902               | 0.89%   |
| Jackson      | 1,090               | 0.51%   |
| Jefferson    | 198                 | 0.09%   |
| Lafayette    | 36                  | 0.02%   |
| Lake         | 3,981               | 1.87%   |
| Lee          | 4,036               | 1.89%   |
| Leon         | 3,892               | 1.82%   |
| Levy         | 403                 | 0.19%   |
| Liberty      | 0                   | 0.00%   |
| Madison      | 303                 | 0.14%   |
| Manatee      | 3,036               | 1.42%   |
| Marion       | 2,049               | 0.96%   |

Table VI-1. Subsidized units by county, 2000

| County                 | Subsidized<br>Units | Percentage Share of State's<br>Subsidized Units |
|------------------------|---------------------|---|
| Martin                 | 990                 | 0.46%   |
| Miami-Dade             | 37,484              | 17.56%  |
| Monroe                 | 1,142               | 0.54%   |
| Nassau                 | 639                 | 0.30%   |
| Okaloosa               | 881                 | 0.41%   |
| Okeechobee             | 155                 | 0.07%   |
| Orange                 | 24,619              | 11.54%  |
| Osceola                | 5,170               | 2.42%   |
| Palm Beach             | 12,994              | 6.09%   |
| Pasco                  | 2,926               | 1.37%   |
| Pinellas               | 7,660               | 3.59%   |
| Polk                   | 3,713               | 1.74%   |
| Putnam                 | 1,066               | 0.50%   |
| Saint Johns            | 642                 | 0.30%   |
| Saint Lucie            | 2,031               | 0.95%   |
| Santa Rosa             | 510                 | 0.24%   |
| Sarasota               | 2,161               | 1.01%   |
| Seminole               | 5,371               | 2.52%   |
| Sumter                 | 379                 | 0.18%   |
| Suwannee               | 341                 | 0.16%   |
| Taylor                 | 267                 | 0.13%   |
| Union                  | 99                  | 0.05%   |
| Volusia                | 4,885               | 2.29%   |
| Wakulla                | 113                 | 0.05%   |
| Walton                 | 288                 | 0.13%   |
| Washington             | 157                 | 0.07%   |
| State of Florida Total | 213,412             | 100.00%   |

 Table VI-1. Subsidized units by county, 2000 (continued)

In total, Florida has an estimated 213,412 subsidized units serving households between 20 and 60 percent of the area median income. Most (62 percent) are located in the large counties, with over 17 percent of the state total in Miami-Dade County, almost 12 percent in Orange County, 9 percent in Hillsborough County, 8 percent in Duval County, 6 percent in Broward County, 6 percent in Palm Beach County, and almost 4 percent in Pinellas County. A number of medium counties contain between 1.5 and 2.5 percent of the state's total subsidized units, including Alachua, Brevard, Collier, Escambia, Lake, Lee, Leon, Osceola, Polk, Seminole, and Volusia Counties.

#### **Comparison of Inventory to Need**

To determine the extent to which subsidized units meet housing needs in each county, the Shimberg Center developed two measures of the subsidized housing inventory relative to need:

- Ratio 1: The number of subsidized units as a percentage of all renters;
- Ratio 2: The number of subsidized units as a percentage of all renters with incomes in the 20 to 60 percent of area median income category.

Table VI-2 on the following pages lists each of these ratios by Florida county.

| County       | Ratio 1:<br>Subsidized units/All renters | Ratio 2:<br>Subsidized units/All renters with incomes<br>20-60% AMI |
|--------------|--|---|
| Alachua      | 12.41%                                   | 37.17%  |
| Baker        | 11.01%                                   | 33.18%  |
| Bay          | 9.89%                                    | 29.89%  |
| Bradford     | 23.61%                                   | 65.44%  |
| Brevard      | 8.03%                                    | 25.83%  |
| Broward      | 6.59%                                    | 22.03%  |
| Calhoun      | 15.42%                                   | 37.30%  |
| Charlotte    | 13.64%                                   | 49.05%  |
| Citrus       | 10.42%                                   | 29.81%  |
| Clay         | 11.06%                                   | 34.77%  |
| Collier      | 14.23%                                   | 53.92%  |
| Columbia     | 10.30%                                   | 28.47%  |
| Desoto       | 6.93%                                    | 23.60%  |
| Dixie        | 4.53%                                    | 11.23%  |
| Duval        | 15.67%                                   | 51.17%  |
| Escambia     | 11.16%                                   | 33.43%  |
| Flagler      | 8.37%                                    | 27.45%  |
| Franklin     | 15.26%                                   | 37.57%  |
| Gadsden      | 19.95%                                   | 50.18%  |
| Gilchrist    | 11.55%                                   | 31.64%  |
| Glades       | 3.91%                                    | 11.91%  |
| Gulf         | 19.96%                                   | 51.93%  |
| Hamilton     | 15.54%                                   | 39.30%  |
| Hardee       | 8.81%                                    | 29.95%  |
| Hendry       | 14.97%                                   | 48.82%  |
| Hernando     | 5.74%                                    | 13.74%  |
| Highlands    | 11.11%                                   | 32.03%  |
| Hillsborough | 13.57%                                   | 47.47%  |
| Holmes       | 9.47%                                    | 25.63%  |
| Indian River | 16.97%                                   | 55.00%  |
| Jackson      | 29.27%                                   | 73.95%  |
| Jefferson    | 21.78%                                   | 55.77%  |
| Lafayette    | 8.67%                                    | 26.09%  |
| Lake         | 23.87%                                   | 68.28%  |
| Lee          | 8.94%                                    | 30.85%  |
| Leon         | 13.25%                                   | 40.05%  |
| Levy         | 17.37%                                   | 46.64%  |
| Liberty      | 0.00%                                    | 0.00%   |
| Madison      | 20.82%                                   | 51.71%  |
| Manatee      | 10.15%                                   | 33.29%  |

| Table VI-2 | . Comparisons | of subsidized | unit totals to | renter totals |
|------------|---------------|---------------|----------------|---------------|
|------------|---------------|---------------|----------------|---------------|

| County                 | Ratio 1:<br>Subsidized units/All renters | Ratio 2:<br>Subsidized units/All renters with incomes<br>20-60% AMI |
|------------------------|--|---|
| Marion                 | 9.32%                                    | 31.22%  |
| Martin                 | 8.74%                                    | 30.46%  |
| Miami-Dade             | 11.35%                                   | 33.96%  |
| Monroe                 | 8.62%                                    | 33.01%  |
| Nassau                 | 14.77%                                   | 43.80%  |
| Okaloosa               | 3.90%                                    | 12.15%  |
| Okeechobee             | 4.85%                                    | 12.68%  |
| Orange                 | 18.30%                                   | 62.50%  |
| Osceola                | 25.62%                                   | 81.67%  |
| Palm Beach             | 10.66%                                   | 37.92%  |
| Pasco                  | 11.10%                                   | 28.79%  |
| Pinellas               | 6.30%                                    | 22.09%  |
| Polk                   | 7.37%                                    | 22.48%  |
| Putnam                 | 18.95%                                   | 50.35%  |
| Saint Johns            | 5.35%                                    | 19.02%  |
| Saint Lucie            | 11.79%                                   | 47.36%  |
| Santa Rosa             | 5.79%                                    | 17.10%  |
| Sarasota               | 6.81%                                    | 26.04%  |
| Seminole               | 12.39%                                   | 51.95%  |
| Sumter                 | 13.15%                                   | 38.87%  |
| Suwannee               | 12.99%                                   | 33.43%  |
| Taylor                 | 18.41%                                   | 51.05%  |
| Union                  | 11.53%                                   | 33.67%  |
| Volusia                | 10.57%                                   | 35.60%  |
| Wakulla                | 8.27%                                    | 25.39%  |
| Walton                 | 8.11%                                    | 24.08%  |
| Washington             | 10.72%                                   | 28.24%  |
| State of Florida Total | 11.27%                                   | 36.75%  |

Table VI-2. Comparisons of subsidized unit totals to renter totals (continued)

Ratio 1 shows that statewide, the number of subsidized units equals slightly more than 11 percent of the total number of renters. Three large counties have ratios of subsidized units to renters in excess of the state average, including Orange with a ratio of 18.3 percent, Duval with a ratio of 15.7 percent, and Hillsborough with a ratio of 13.6 percent. Two other large counties nearly mirror the state average: Miami-Dade's ratio is 11.3 percent, and Palm Beach's ratio is 10.7 percent. However, the ratios in Broward and Pinellas County are well below the state average at 6.6 percent and 6.3 percent respectively. A number of other counties' ratios of subsidized units to all renters equal or exceed 15 percent. Many of these are small counties for whom one project may have a large impact. These counties include Bradford, Calhoun, Franklin, Gadsden, Gulf, Hamilton, Hendry, Indian River, Jackson, Jefferson, Lake, Levy, Madison, Osceola, Putnam , and Taylor.

The second ratio includes only renter households with incomes between 20 and 60 percent of area median income. While definitely not all of the subsidized units are restricted to that income group, these households are primary targets for assistance for much of the subsidized housing programs included in the total. Statewide, subsidized units equal almost 37 percent of the renter households in the 20 to 60 percent of area median income category. Again, of the large counties, Orange County had the largest ratio of subsidized units to renter households in the target income group, with a ratio of 62.5 percent. Percentages in the other large counties included 51.2 in Duval, 47.5 in Hillsborough, 34 in Miami-Dade, 37.9 in Palm Beach, 22.1 percent in Pinellas, and 22 in Broward. Among other counties, Osceola had the largest ratio: 81.7 percent. Other small and medium counties with ratios over 50 percent included Bradford, Collier, Gadsden, Gulf, Indian River, Jackson, Jefferson, Lake, Madison, Putnam, Seminole and Taylor County

#### VII. Market Survey Multi-family Housing Survey: Methodology and Implementation

The survey of multi-family apartment complexes was conducted by Policy Management Research (PMR) from June 2001 through August 2001. PMR attempted to contact all apartment complexes in the state of Florida that have 17 or more units. The population of complexes was identified by the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation that licenses non-transient apartment complexes of 5 units or more. Because the very small complexes (16 or fewer units) represent only ten percent of all units in the DBPR database and because it was assumed that these complexes would be extremely difficult to contact a decision was made to focus the survey primarily on complexes of more than 16 units. There are approximately 7,600 complexes with 17 or more units statewide containing 837,000 units or 90 percent of all units in the state.

The basic research agenda consisted of a minimum of five direct telephone calls, a faxed survey instrument when requested, and voice mail messages for complexes for which only answering machines were reached (requesting that managers call a toll-free number to complete a survey). When the manager/owner was busy at the time of initial contact, we attempted to identify a more convenient time to complete the survey, and appointments were scheduled and adhered to. Extensive efforts were also made to locate working numbers for those complexes which did not have a contact number listed with the state, which did not have a working telephone number, or which had a wrong number filed with the state. Both Bell South directory assistance and the on-line Yellow Pages were contacted in an attempt to locate a working number. When a working number was found, normal attempts at contact resumed.

Despite these efforts, it was not possible to contact all of these complexes for a variety of reasons. Some managers or owners simply refused to complete the survey. A small number of operations were classified by their managers or owners as something other than an apartment complex. For many complexes there were no answers or responses to messages (after repeated calls), unlisted or incorrect telephone numbers, or no phone numbers listed with either the state or directory assistance.

The following are some specific numbers about completions in the state's 67 counties:

- In the seven largest counties sampling targets were met or exceeded for all categories of complexes except those with 17-50 units (the sampling target was a 95% confidence interval, +/- 5%, stratified into the four apartment complex size categories).
- Surveys were completed for 40% or more of the complexes in 37 counties.
- Eight counties had so few apartment complexes that no completions were obtained. Those eight counties are Baker, Franklin, Gilchrist, Glades, Holmes, Lafayette, Taylor, and Wakulla. The ninth county, Liberty, does not appear to have either market rate or subsidized unit complexes.
- The remaining 14 counties had lower completion rates for reasons described above as well as the small number of complexes present. In these counties and the eight discussed above a significant proportion of the multi-family units are subsidized, not market rate units.
- The apartment complexes surveyed encompassed 277,000 market rate units.

To provide descriptive characteristics of the market rate units for counties with either no or few completed surveys of market rate complexes five regional averages were developed. Three of the regions encompassed several small counties in the south central, north central and Panhandle/west Florida sections of the state. The south central counties are DeSoto, Glades, Hardee, Hendry, Highlands and Okeechobee; the regional average is constructed using survey data from DeSoto, Highlands and Okeechobee. The north central counties are Baker, Columbia, Dixie, Gilchrist, Hamilton, Jefferson, Lafayette, Madison, Suwannee, Taylor and Union; the regional average is constructed using survey data from Columbia and Jefferson. The Panhandle/west Florida counties are Calhoun, Franklin, Gulf, Holmes, Jackson, Liberty, Wakulla, Walton and Washington; the regional average is constructed from Jackson and Walton. In the fourth region which included Citrus, Levy, Marion, and Sumter, we averaged data from Citrus and Marion and used this regional average for Citrus, Levy and Sumter. Region 5 was composed of Clay, Nassau and St. Johns and this average was used for Nassau, which had few surveyed units.

Two tables of market rate unit data follow, VII-1 and VII-2. The first table, VII-1, presents total units surveyed, average rents and average square feet by number of bedrooms for market rate units. Data is presented for all units and for units in apartment complexes built from 1997 to the present. The apartment complexes surveyed encompassed 277,000 market rate units.

The second table, VII-2, compares average rent by number of bedrooms for market rate units to the 60 percent rent rate, the maximum allowable gross rent based on an income of 60 percent of area median and a 30 percent cost burden. In order to make the 60 percent rent rate comparable to a market rent a utility allowance was subtracted from the 60 percent rate. The utility allowances used in this report are based on the allowances set by local public housing authorities (PHAs) for Section 8 voucher holders. The PHAs designate utility allowances based on the number of bedrooms in the tenant's unit, ranging from zero to four bedrooms. The figures included here indicate the allowance for electricity costs, assuming that a household uses electricity for each possible item: heating, cooking, air conditioning, water heating, and miscellaneous electricity uses. For the metropolitan or non-metropolitan counties for which we did not receive schedules, we assumed that utility allowances equaled the statewide metropolitan or non-metropolitan average allowances for the counties for which we did receive data. Where allowances were not available for efficiencies, we extrapolated values using the statewide average ratio between the allowances for zero- and one-bedroom units. Table VII-2 uses the average market rate rent for units built 1997 to the present when available, when not available the average of all units has been substituted.

In table VII-2 a simple ratio of average market rate rent to the 60 percent rent rate is calculated for each unit type (number of bedrooms). A ratio greater or less than 100 percent means the market rate is higher or lower than the 60 percent rate. This ratio is an indicator of where the private market has the most difficulty providing units affordable to households at or below 60 percent of area median income. It is important to point out that the use of a single indicator, average rent, can disguise large variations in rent distribution and is a simple comparison across a wide variation in apartment complex and unit characteristics. Not surprisingly, however, it is in the urban counties, particularly the large urban counties, where the ratio is the highest. Using 125 percent (the largest of the four unit type unweighted statewide average ratios) and above as a threshold we find that almost all of the one-, two- and three-bedroom units in the largest counties exceed 125 percent. Almost all of the small counties also have one or more unit types with ratios at or above 125 percent (Levy and Sumter have a three-bedroom unit ratio above 125 percent).

|             |        | All u   | ınits    |         |       | Built 1997 to present<br>Average<br>Total Average rent per Avera<br>units sq. ft. sq. ft. re |          |         |
|-------------|--------|---------|----------|---------|-------|--|----------|---------|
|             |        |         | Average  |         |       |  | Average  |         |
|             | Total  | Average | rent per | Average | Total | Average  | rent per | Average |
| Unit class  | units  | sq. ft. | sq. ft.  | rent    | units | sq. ft.  | sq. ft.  | rent    |
| Alachua     |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| Efficiency  | 103    | 329     | 1.25     | 412     |       |  |          |         |
| 1 BR        | 2,366  | 672     | 0.73     | 487     | 216   | 833  | 0.81     | 673     |
| 2 BR        | 3,304  | 1,146   | 0.67     | 765     | 280   | 1,197  | 0.64     | 770     |
| 3 BR        | 978    | 1,203   | 0.67     | 803     |       | ,  |          |         |
| 4 BR        |        | ,       |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| Baker (2)   |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| Efficiency  | 61     | 300     | 1.49     | 448     |       |  |          |         |
| 1 BR        | 109    | 639     | 0.67     | 427     |       |  |          |         |
| 2 BR        | 101    | 836     | 0.58     | 481     |       |  |          |         |
| 3 BR        | 95     |         |          | 623     |       |  |          |         |
| 4 BR        |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| Bay         |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| Efficiency  | 98     | 323     | 1.34     | 432     |       |  |          |         |
| 1 BR        | 603    | 648     | 0.75     | 484     | 40    | 780  | 0.83     | 650     |
| 2 BR        | 875    | 946     | 0.61     | 576     | 120   | 1,050  | 0.73     | 765     |
| 3 BR        | 142    | 1,237   | 0.6      | 744     | 40    | 1,200  | 0.72     | 865     |
| 4 BR        |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| Bradford    |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| Efficiency  |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| 1 BR        | 12     | 576     | 0.45     | 260     |       |  |          |         |
| 2 BR        | 42     | 720     | 0.39     | 280     |       |  |          |         |
| 3 BR        | 24     | 880     | 0.34     | 300     |       |  |          |         |
| 4 BR        |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| Brevard     |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| Efficiency  | 250    | 399     | 0.93     | 371     |       |  |          |         |
| 1 BR        | 2,703  | 737     | 0.73     | 540     | 505   | 862  | 0.77     | 664     |
| 2 BR        | 4,485  | 1,005   | 0.63     | 634     | 638   | 1,116  | 0.67     | 749     |
| 3 BR        | 577    | 1,126   | 0.81     | 912     | 234   |  |          | 1,068   |
| 4 BR        |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| Broward     |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| Efficiency  | 936    | 527     | 1.06     | 561     |       |  |          |         |
| 1 BR        | 10,018 | 760     | 0.96     | 731     | 1,148 | 809  | 1.06     | 859     |
| 2 BR        | 14,314 | 1,029   | 0.84     | 865     | 1,625 | 1,085  | 0.89     | 968     |
| 3 BR        | 3,015  | 1,266   | 0.9      | 1,134   | 864   | 1,287  | 0.90     | 1,162   |
| 4 BR        |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| Calhoun (3) |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| Efficiency  |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| 1 BR        | 49     | 310     | 1.22     | 377     |       |  |          |         |
| 2 BR        | 138    | 678     | 0.65     | 443     |       |  |          |         |
| 3 BR        |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |
| 4 BR        |        |         |          |         |       |  |          |         |

Table VII-1. Market rate unit description by county and number of bedrooms

See footnotes at end of table.

|              |       | All u   | ınits    |            |       | Built 19 | 97 to presei | <u>nt</u><br><u>Average</u><br><u>rent</u><br>776<br>950<br>1,082 |  |  |
|--------------|-------|---------|----------|------------|-------|----------|--------------|---|--|--|
|              |       |         | Average  |            |       |          | Average      |   |  |  |
|              | Total | Average | rent per | Average    | Total | Average  | rent per     | Average   |  |  |
| Unit class   | units | sq. ft. | sq. ft.  | rent       | units | sq. ft.  | sq. ft.      | rent  |  |  |
| Charlotto    |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| Efficiency   | 12    |         |          | 200        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
|              | 12    |         |          | 590<br>460 |       |          |              |   |  |  |
|              | 39    |         |          | 400        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 2 DK<br>2 DD | 20    |         |          | 555        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| J DK         | Z     |         |          | 030        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 4 DK         |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| Citrus (1)   | (0    | 440     | 0.06     | 424        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 1 DD         | 08    | 442     | 0.96     | 424        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 1 BK         | 681   | 628     | 0.67     | 419        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 2 BR         | 880   | 959     | 0.55     | 525        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 3 BR         | 116   | 1,227   | 0.63     | 779        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 4 BR         |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| Clay         |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| Efficiency   |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 1 BR         | 374   | 706     | 0.72     | 508        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 2 BR         | 1,302 | 940     | 0.61     | 577        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 3 BR         | 238   | 1,193   | 0.62     | 744        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 4 BR         |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| Collier      |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| Efficiency   |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 1 BR         | 1,022 | 814     | 0.80     | 651        | 335   | 830      | 0.93         | 776   |  |  |
| 2 BR         | 1,592 | 1,075   | 0.78     | 841        | 596   | 1,097    | 0.87         | 950   |  |  |
| 3 BR         | 330   | 1,296   | 0.82     | 1,063      | 300   | 1,325    | 0.82         | 1,082   |  |  |
| 4 BR         |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| Columbia (2) |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| Efficiency   | 61    | 300     | 1.49     | 448        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 1 BR         | 109   | 639     | 0.67     | 427        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 2 BR         | 101   | 836     | 0.58     | 481        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 3 BR         | 95    |         |          | 623        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 4 BR         |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| DeSoto (4)   |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| Efficiency   | 9     | 295     | 1.04     | 308        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 1 BR         | 123   | 570     | 0.77     | 441        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 2 BR         | 92    | 777     | 0.60     | 464        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 3 BR         |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 4 BR         |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| Dixie (2)    |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| Efficiency   | 61    | 300     | 1.49     | 448        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 1 BR         | 109   | 639     | 0.67     | 427        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 2 BR         | 101   | 836     | 0.58     | 481        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 3 BR         | 95    |         |          | 623        |       |          |              |   |  |  |
| 4 BR         |       |         |          |            |       |          |              |   |  |  |

See footnotes at end of table.

|               |        | All ı   | ınits    |         | Built 1997 to present |         |          | t       |
|---------------|--------|---------|----------|---------|-----------------------|---------|----------|---------|
|               |        |         | Average  |         |                       |         | Average  |         |
|               | Total  | Average | rent per | Average | Total                 | Average | rent per | Average |
| Unit class    | units  | sq. ft. | sq. ft.  | rent    | units                 | sq. ft. | sq. ft.  | rent    |
| Duval         |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| Efficiency    | 1.266  | 485     | 0.90     | 437     |                       |         |          |         |
| 1 BR          | 11.481 | 713     | 0.78     | 559     | 1.246                 | 826     | 0.84     | 694     |
| 2 BR          | 14,078 | 1,016   | 0.66     | 671     | 999                   | 1,129   | 0.71     | 796     |
| 3 BR          | 3,729  | 1,291   | 0.65     | 844     | 372                   | 1,427   | 0.64     | 914     |
| 4 BR          | 22     | 1,323   | 0.85     | 1,119   | 6                     | 1,554   | 0.58     | 903     |
| Escambia      |        | ,       |          | ,       |                       | ,       |          |         |
| Efficiency    | 106    | 432     | 0.92     | 397     |                       |         |          |         |
| 1 BR          | 1,499  | 700     | 0.69     | 480     | 206                   | 846     | 0.71     | 598     |
| 2 BR          | 2,299  | 1,017   | 0.54     | 552     | 300                   | 1,098   | 0.61     | 673     |
| 3 BR          | 484    | 1,241   | 0.59     | 734     | 236                   | 1,251   | 0.61     | 759     |
| 4 BR          | 12     | 1,672   | 0.69     | 1,160   |                       | ŕ       |          |         |
| Flagler       |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| Efficiency    |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| 1 BR          | 19     | 640     | 0.62     | 395     |                       |         |          |         |
| 2 BR          | 9      | 920     | 0.54     | 495     |                       |         |          |         |
| 3 BR          |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| 4 BR          |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| Franklin (3)  |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| Efficiency    |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| 1 BR          | 49     | 310     | 1.22     | 377     |                       |         |          |         |
| 2 BR          | 138    | 678     | 0.65     | 443     |                       |         |          |         |
| 3 BR          |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| 4 BR          |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| Gadsden       |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| Efficiency    | 7      |         | 0.71     | 500     |                       |         |          |         |
| 1 BR          | 5      |         | 0.86     | 600     |                       |         |          |         |
| 2 BR          | 29     |         | 4.03     | 625     |                       |         |          |         |
| 3 BR          | 64     |         |          | 721     |                       |         |          |         |
| 4 BR          |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| Gilchrist (2) |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| Efficiency    | 61     | 300     | 1.49     | 448     |                       |         |          |         |
| 1 BR          | 109    | 639     | 0.67     | 427     |                       |         |          |         |
| 2 BR          | 101    | 836     | 0.58     | 481     |                       |         |          |         |
| 3 BR          | 95     |         |          | 623     |                       |         |          |         |
| 4 BR          |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| Glades (4)    |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| Efficiency    | 9      | 295     | 1.04     | 308     |                       |         |          |         |
| 1 BR          | 123    | 570     | 0.77     | 441     |                       |         |          |         |
| 2 BR          | 92     | 777     | 0.60     | 464     |                       |         |          |         |
| 3 BR          |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |
| 4 BR          |        |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |

See footnotes at end of table.

|               |        | All ı      | inits    | ·          | -     | Built 1997 to present           Average           Total Average rent per           units         sq. ft.           sq. ft.         sq. ft. |          |         |  |
|---------------|--------|------------|----------|------------|-------|--|----------|---------|--|
|               |        |            | Average  |            |       |  | Average  |         |  |
|               | Total  | Average    | rent per | Average    | Total | Average  | rent per | Average |  |
| Unit class    | units  | sq. ft.    | sq. ft.  | rent       | units | sq. ft.  | sq. ft.  | rent    |  |
| C = I(2)      |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| Guir (3)      |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| Efficiency    | 10     | 210        | 1.00     | 277        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 1 BR          | 49     | 310        | 1.22     | 3/7        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 2 BR          | 138    | 678        | 0.65     | 443        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 3 BR          |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| 4 BR          |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| Hamilton (2)  |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| Efficiency    | 61     | 300        | 1.49     | 448        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 1 BR          | 109    | 639        | 0.67     | 427        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 2 BR          | 101    | 836        | 0.58     | 481        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 3 BR          | 95     |            |          | 623        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 4 BR          |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| Hardee (4)    |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| Efficiency    | 9      | 295        | 1.04     | 308        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 1 BR          | 123    | 570        | 0.77     | 441        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 2 BR          | 92     | 777        | 0.60     | 464        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 3 BR          |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| 4 BR          |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| Hendry (4)    |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| Efficiency    | 9      | 295        | 1.04     | 308        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 1 BR          | 123    | 570        | 0.77     | 441        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 2 BR          | 92     | 777        | 0.60     | 464        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 3 BR          |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| 4 BR          |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| Hernando      |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| Efficiency    | 44     | 552        | 0.72     | 395        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 1 BR          | 69     | 666        | 0.61     | 407        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 2 BR          | 285    | 926        | 0.01     | 518        | 17    | 1.042  | 0.57     | 595     |  |
| 3 BR          | 205    | )20        | 0.50     | 510        | 17    | 1,042  | 0.57     | 575     |  |
| 7 DR<br>4 DD  |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| Highlands (1) |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| Efficiency    | 0      | 205        | 1.04     | 200        |       |  |          |         |  |
|               | 102    | 293<br>570 | 0.77     | 506<br>441 |       |  |          |         |  |
|               | 125    | 570        | 0.77     | 441        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 2 BR          | 92     | ///        | 0.60     | 464        |       |  |          |         |  |
| 3 BR          |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| 4 BR          |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |
| Hillsborough  | 1 ( 10 | 10.0       | 1.0.1    |            | 2.0   |  | 1 4 7    | (00     |  |
| Efficiency    | 1,648  | 430        | 1.06     | 454        | 30    | 477  | 1.45     | 690     |  |
| I BR          | 12,527 | 675        | 0.83     | 557        | 1,805 | 814  | 0.78     | 637     |  |
| 2 BR          | 12,974 | 1,000      | 0.69     | 692        | 2,402 | 1,101  | 0.75     | 825     |  |
| 3 BR          | 2,474  | 1,276      | 0.67     | 850        | 849   | 1,237  | 0.74     | 918     |  |
| 4 BR          |        |            |          |            |       |  |          |         |  |

See footnotes at end of table.

|               |       | All ı      | ınits    |         |       | Built 19 | 97 to presen | t       |
|---------------|-------|------------|----------|---------|-------|----------|--------------|---------|
|               |       |            | Average  |         |       |          | Average      |         |
|               | Total | Average    | rent per | Average | Total | Average  | rent per     | Average |
| Unit class    | units | sq. ft.    | sq. ft.  | rent    | units | sq. ft.  | sq. ft.      | rent    |
| Holmog (2)    |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency    |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
|               | 40    | 210        | 1 22     | 277     |       |          |              |         |
|               | 120   | 510<br>679 | 0.65     | 377     |       |          |              |         |
| 2 DR<br>2 DR  | 130   | 078        | 0.05     | 443     |       |          |              |         |
| J DR<br>4 DD  |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| 4 DK          |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
|               | 10    | 500        | 0.70     | 205     |       |          |              |         |
|               | 18    | 500        | 0.79     | 393     |       |          |              |         |
| 1 BK          | 91    | 666        | 0.67     | 444     |       |          |              |         |
| 2 BR          | 315   |            | 1.42     | 589     |       |          |              |         |
| 3 BR          |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| 4 BR          |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Jackson (3)   |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency    |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| 1 BR          | 49    | 310        | 1.22     | 377     |       |          |              |         |
| 2 BR          | 138   | 678        | 0.65     | 443     |       |          |              |         |
| 3 BR          |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| 4 BR          |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Jefferson (2) |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency    | 61    | 300        | 1.49     | 448     |       |          |              |         |
| 1 BR          | 109   | 639        | 0.67     | 427     |       |          |              |         |
| 2 BR          | 101   | 836        | 0.58     | 481     |       |          |              |         |
| 3 BR          | 95    |            |          | 623     |       |          |              |         |
| 4 BR          |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Lafayette (2) |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency    | 61    | 300        | 1.49     | 448     |       |          |              |         |
| 1 BR          | 109   | 639        | 0.67     | 427     |       |          |              |         |
| 2 BR          | 101   | 836        | 0.58     | 481     |       |          |              |         |
| 3 BR          | 95    |            |          | 623     |       |          |              |         |
| 4 BR          |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Lake          |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency    | 28    | 297        | 1.26     | 375     |       |          |              |         |
| 1 BR          | 557   | 604        | 0.73     | 440     |       |          |              |         |
| 2 BR          | 246   | 955        | 0.54     | 512     |       |          |              |         |
| 3 BR          | 8     | 1,160      | 0.59     | 680     |       |          |              |         |
| 4 BR          |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Lee           |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency    | 109   | 538        | 0.97     | 522     |       |          |              |         |
| 1 BR          | 921   | 715        | 0.82     | 588     | 32    | 938      | 0.82         | 765     |
| 2 BR          | 1,488 | 986        | 0.70     | 689     | 166   | 1,056    | 0.75         | 790     |
| 3 BR          | 294   | 1,203      | 0.70     | 838     | 56    | 1,345    | 0.77         | 1,040   |
| 4 BR          |       |            |          |         |       |          |              |         |

See footnotes at end of table.

|              |       | All ı   | inits    | -       | Built 1997 to present |         |          |         |  |
|--------------|-------|---------|----------|---------|-----------------------|---------|----------|---------|--|
|              |       |         | Average  |         |                       |         | Average  |         |  |
|              | Total | Average | rent per | Average | Total                 | Average | rent per | Average |  |
| Unit class   | units | sq. ft. | sq. ft.  | rent    | units                 | sq. ft. | sq. ft.  | rent    |  |
| -            |       |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |  |
| Leon         | 107   | 216     | 1.04     | 202     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| Efficiency   | 187   | 316     | 1.24     | 392     | •••                   | 010     |          | (2.1    |  |
| I BR         | 2,982 | 653     | 0.73     | 475     | 294                   | 812     | 0.78     | 634     |  |
| 2 BR         | 2,501 | 1,025   | 0.61     | 626     | 432                   | 1,009   | 0.67     | 681     |  |
| 3 BR         | 1,356 | 1,234   | 0.53     | 648     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 4 BR         | 12    | 1,239   | 0.54     | 669     |                       | 1,280   | 0.62     | 798     |  |
| Levy (1)     |       |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |  |
| Efficiency   | 68    | 442     | 0.96     | 424     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 1 BR         | 681   | 628     | 0.67     | 419     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 2 BR         | 880   | 959     | 0.55     | 525     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 3 BR         | 116   | 1,227   | 0.63     | 779     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 4 BR         |       |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |  |
| Liberty (3)  |       |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |  |
| Efficiency   |       |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 1 BR         | 49    | 310     | 1.22     | 377     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 2 BR         | 138   | 678     | 0.65     | 443     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 3 BR         |       |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 4 BR         |       |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |  |
| Madison (2)  |       |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |  |
| Efficiency   | 61    | 300     | 1 49     | 448     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 1 BR         | 109   | 639     | 0.67     | 427     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 2 BR         | 101   | 836     | 0.58     | 427     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 2 DR<br>2 DR | 05    | 850     | 0.56     | 623     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 3 DK<br>4 DD | 95    |         |          | 023     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 4 DK         |       |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |  |
|              | 15    | 252     | 1.20     | 422     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| Efficiency   | 45    | 353     | 1.20     | 423     | 174                   | 70.4    | 0.07     | (22     |  |
| I BK         | 991   | /02     | 0.79     | 556     | 1/4                   | /24     | 0.87     | 632     |  |
| 2 BR         | 1,440 | 976     | 0.70     | 682     | 332                   | 1,087   | 0.76     | 822     |  |
| 3 BR         | 246   | 1,301   | 0.70     | 908     | 92                    | 1,191   | 0.85     | 1,008   |  |
| 4 BR         |       |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |  |
| Marion       |       |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |  |
| Efficiency   | 68    | 441     | 0.96     | 424     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 1 BR         | 550   | 628     | 0.71     | 449     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 2 BR         | 849   | 962     | 0.55     | 530     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 3 BR         | 116   | 1,226   | 0.64     | 779     |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 4 BR         |       |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |  |
| Martin       |       |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |  |
| Efficiency   |       |         |          |         |                       |         |          |         |  |
| 1 BR         | 140   | 680     | 0.84     | 570     | 32                    | 725     | 1.01     | 730     |  |
| 2 BR         | 323   | 1,072   | 0.74     | 797     | 240                   | 1,116   | 0.78     | 866     |  |
| 3 BR         | 64    | 1,250   | 0.88     | 1,096   | 64                    | 1,250   | 0.88     | 1,096   |  |
| 4 BR         |       | , -     |          | ,       |                       | , -     |          | , -     |  |

See footnotes at end of table.

|                |         | All ı      | ınits    |              |       | Built 19 | 97 to prese | to present |  |  |
|----------------|---------|------------|----------|--------------|-------|----------|-------------|------------|--|--|
|                |         |            | Average  |              |       |          | Average     | age        |  |  |
|                | Total   | Average    | rent per | Average      | Total | Average  | rent per    | Average    |  |  |
| Unit class     | units   | sq. ft.    | sq. ft.  | rent         | units | sq. ft.  | sq. ft.     | rent       |  |  |
| Miami Dada     |         |            |          |              |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| Efficiency     | 1 532   | 118        | 1 10     | 535          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| 1 BR           | 10.621  | 711        | 0.03     | 663          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| 1 DK<br>2 BR   | 9.644   | 058        | 0.95     | 823          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| 2 DR<br>3 BR   | 1 0/0   | 1 1 2 5    | 0.80     | 823<br>877   |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| J DK<br>4 DD   | 1,049   | 1,123      | 0.78     | 0//          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| 4 DK<br>Monroe |         |            |          |              |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| Efficiency     | 1       |            |          | 600          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
|                | 4<br>50 | 600        | 1 2 2    | 800          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
|                | 100     | 000        | 1.55     | 000          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| 2 DK<br>2 DD   | 100     | 900        | 1.00     | 930          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| J DK<br>4 DD   | 48      | 930        | 1.03     | 1,000        |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| 4 DK           |         |            |          |              |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| Nassau (5)     | 16      | 200        | 1 40     | 125          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
|                | 10      | 500<br>702 | 1.42     | 423          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
|                | 852     | /02        | 0.80     | 505<br>(24   |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| 2 BK<br>2 DD   | 1,940   | 948        | 0.07     | 0 <i>3</i> 4 |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| 3 BK           | 284     | 1,243      | 0.04     | 800          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| 4 BK           |         |            |          |              |       |          |             |            |  |  |
|                | 20      | 200        | 1.20     | 201          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| 1 DD           | 28      | 288        | 1.30     | 522          | 120   | 745      | 0.07        |            |  |  |
| I BK           | 351     | 691        | 0.//     | 532          | 129   | /45      | 0.87        | 646        |  |  |
| 2 BR           | 567     | 960        | 0.66     | 629          | 328   | 1,006    | 0.73        | /31        |  |  |
| 3 BR           | 83      | 1,057      | 0.70     | /34          | 43    | 1,146    | 0.81        | 931        |  |  |
| 4 BR           |         |            |          |              |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| Okeechobee (4) | 0       | 205        | 1.04     | 200          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| Efficiency     | 9       | 295        | 1.04     | 308          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| I BR           | 123     | 570        | 0.77     | 441          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| 2 BR           | 92      | 777        | 0.60     | 464          |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| 3 BR           |         |            |          |              |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| 4 BR           |         |            |          |              |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| Orange         | 1.460   | 100        | 0.02     | 457          | 107   | (02      | 1.00        | <05        |  |  |
| Efficiency     | 1,462   | 499        | 0.92     | 457          | 107   | 682      | 1.00        | 685        |  |  |
| I BR           | 14,634  | 688        | 0.85     | 585          | 1,345 | 810      | 0.82        | 662        |  |  |
| 2 BR           | 17,267  | 1,008      | 0.72     | 727          | 2,575 | 1,115    | 0.72        | 803        |  |  |
| 3 BR           | 3,450   | 1,217      | 0.74     | 895          | 795   | 1,248    | 0.68        | 845        |  |  |
| 4 BR           |         |            |          |              |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| Osceola        |         |            |          |              |       |          |             |            |  |  |
| Efficiency     | 70      | 490        | 1.22     | 599          | 60    | 524      | 1.19        | 625        |  |  |
| 1 BR           | 1,141   | 752        | 0.84     | 635          | 255   | 733      | 0.94        | 691        |  |  |
| 2 BR           | 1,761   | 1,001      | 0.74     | 737          | 608   | 1,001    | 0.77        | 769        |  |  |
| 3 BR           | 599     | 1,181      | 0.70     | 823          | 195   | 1,110    | 0.76        | 846        |  |  |
| 4 BR           |         |            |          |              |       |          |             |            |  |  |

See footnotes at end of table.

|            |       | All ı    | inits    |            |       | Built 19 | 97 to presen | t       |
|------------|-------|----------|----------|------------|-------|----------|--------------|---------|
|            |       |          | Average  |            |       |          | Average      |         |
|            | Total | Average  | rent per | Average    | Total | Average  | rent per     | Average |
| Unit class | units | sq. ft.  | sq. ft.  | rent       | units | sq. ft.  | sq. ft.      | rent    |
| Dalm Daash |       |          |          |            |       |          |              |         |
| Faim Beach | 201   | 401      | 1.22     | 500        |       |          |              |         |
| 1 DD       | 5 072 | 491      | 1.22     | 598<br>720 | (40   | 7()      | 1.02         | 701     |
|            | 5,072 | /4/      | 0.99     | / 39       | 040   | /02      | 1.02         | /81     |
| 2 BR       | 8,802 | 1,038    | 0.84     | 869        | 1,511 | 1,139    | 0.83         | 945     |
| 3 BR       | 1,466 | 1,240    | 0.88     | 1,091      | 549   | 1,304    | 0.87         | 1,134   |
| 4 BR       | 10    |          |          | 1,195      | 10    | 1,499    | 0.80         | 1,195   |
| Pasco      |       |          |          |            |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency | 52    | 399      | 0.88     | 353        |       |          |              |         |
| 1 BR       | 1,048 | 697      | 0.67     | 468        |       |          |              |         |
| 2 BR       | 832   | 940      | 0.63     | 590        |       |          |              |         |
| 3 BR       | 40    | 1,198    | 0.6      | 719        |       |          |              |         |
| 4 BR       |       |          |          |            |       |          |              |         |
| Pinellas   |       |          |          |            |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency | 693   | 480      | 0.90     | 431        |       |          |              |         |
| 1 BR       | 7,785 | 675      | 0.83     | 563        | 735   | 752      | 0.86         | 644     |
| 2 BR       | 8,840 | 1,018    | 0.67     | 686        | 827   | 1,005    | 0.73         | 731     |
| 3 BR       | 1,303 | 1,214    | 0.79     | 962        | 315   | 1,091    | 0.81         | 888     |
| 4 BR       | 30    | 1,366    | 0.69     | 939        |       |          |              |         |
| Polk       |       |          |          |            |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency | 163   | 478      | 0.80     | 385        | 32    | 460      | 0.82         | 377     |
| 1 BR       | 2,718 | 688      | 0.65     | 447        | 586   | 709      | 0.70         | 494     |
| 2 BR       | 2,998 | 1,000    | 0.60     | 603        | 869   | 1,004    | 0.64         | 644     |
| 3 BR       | 534   | 1,346    | 0.60     | 802        | 302   | 1,367    | 0.62         | 853     |
| 4 BR       |       | <u> </u> |          |            |       | , ·      |              |         |
| Putnam     |       |          |          |            |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency | 15    | 300      | 1 20     | 360        |       |          |              |         |
| 1 BR       | 60    | 611      | 0.73     | 444        |       |          |              |         |
| 2 BR       | 55    | 1 092    | 0.51     | 558        |       |          |              |         |
| 3 BR       | 55    | 1,072    | 0.01     | 556        |       |          |              |         |
| 4 BR       |       |          |          |            |       |          |              |         |
| St Johns   |       |          |          |            |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency | 16    | 300      | 1 42     | 125        |       |          |              |         |
|            | 10    | 500      | 0.02     | 423        | 120   | 800      | 0.01         | 725     |
|            | 433   | 090      | 0.92     | 762        | 120   | 1 150    | 0.91         | 723     |
| 2 BR       | 388   | 904      | 0.79     | /05        | 1/0   | 1,150    | 0.78         | 900     |
| 3 BR       | 46    | 1,500    | 0.72     | 1,085      | 46    | 1,500    | 0.72         | 1,085   |
| 4 BK       |       |          |          |            |       |          |              |         |
| St. Lucie  |       | • • •    |          | <b>.</b>   |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency | 68    | 294      | 1.34     | 395        |       |          |              |         |
| I BR       | 335   | 600      | 0.79     | 472        |       |          |              |         |
| 2 BR       | 346   | 936      | 0.64     | 601        |       |          |              |         |
| 3 BR       |       |          |          |            |       |          |              |         |
| 4 BR       |       |          |          |            |       |          |              |         |

See footnotes at end of table.

|                    |              | All ı      | ınits    |            |            | Built 19 | 97 to presen | e<br>e<br>r Average<br>. rent |  |  |  |  |
|--------------------|--------------|------------|----------|------------|------------|----------|--------------|-------------------------------|--|--|--|--|
|                    |              |            | Average  |            |            |          | Average      |                               |  |  |  |  |
|                    | Total        | Average    | rent per | Average    | Total      | Average  | rent per     | Average                       |  |  |  |  |
| Unit class         | units        | sq. ft.    | sq. ft.  | rent       | units      | sq. ft.  | sq. ft.      | rent                          |  |  |  |  |
| Santa Rosa         |              |            |          |            |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| Efficiency         |              |            |          |            |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| 1 BR               | 97           | 638        | 0.69     | 438        | 24         | 680      | 0.84         | 569                           |  |  |  |  |
| 2 BR               | 496          | 935        | 0.62     | 580        | 170        | 954      | 0.67         | 635                           |  |  |  |  |
| 3 BR               | 470          | )55        | 0.02     | 500        | 170        | 754      | 0.07         | 055                           |  |  |  |  |
| 4 BR               |              |            |          |            |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| Sarasota           |              |            |          |            |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| Efficiency         | 24           | 437        | 0.98     | 427        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| 1 BR               | 1 165        | 736        | 0.20     | 629        | 212        | 860      | 0.81         | 698                           |  |  |  |  |
| 1 BR<br>2 BR       | 1,105        | 1 1 4 2    | 0.85     | 806        | 531        | 1 200    | 0.61         | 80/                           |  |  |  |  |
| 2 DR<br>3 BR       | 288          | 1,142      | 0.71     | 070        | 82         | 1,290    | 0.09         | 1 172                         |  |  |  |  |
| J DR               | 200          | 1,275      | 0.77     | 1 005      | 82         | 1,501    | 0.85         | 1,172                         |  |  |  |  |
| 4 DK<br>Sominolo   | 50           | 1,515      | 0.00     | 1,005      |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| Efficiency         | 450          | 546        | 0.97     | 175        | 22         | 650      | 1 09         | 705                           |  |  |  |  |
|                    | 432<br>5 402 | 752        | 0.87     | 4/3        | 820        | 030      | 1.00         | 703                           |  |  |  |  |
|                    | 5,000        | 1 022      | 0.82     | 756        | 020<br>801 | 1 1 5 2  | 0.80         | /1/                           |  |  |  |  |
| 2 DR<br>2 DR       | 5,908        | 1,052      | 0.75     | /30        | 422        | 1,132    | 0.78         | 1 090                         |  |  |  |  |
| J DR<br>1 DD       | 1,122        | 1,204      | 0.75     | 932        | 422        | 1,307    | 0.79         | 1,080                         |  |  |  |  |
| 4 DK<br>Sumton (1) |              |            |          |            |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| Efficiency         | 69           | 112        | 0.06     | 121        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
|                    | 691          | 442<br>629 | 0.90     | 424        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
|                    | 001          | 028        | 0.07     | 419<br>525 |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| 2 DR<br>2 DD       | 116          | 1 227      | 0.55     | 525<br>770 |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| J DR<br>1 PP       | 110          | 1,227      | 0.05     | 113        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| 4 DK               |              |            |          |            |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| Efficiency         | 61           | 300        | 1 40     | 118        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
|                    | 100          | 630        | 0.67     | 440        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| 1 DK<br>2 BP       | 109          | 836        | 0.07     | 427        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| 2 DK<br>3 DD       | 05           | 850        | 0.38     | 623        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| J BR               | 95           |            |          | 023        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| Taylor (?)         |              |            |          |            |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| Efficiency         | 61           | 300        | 1 /0     | 118        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| 1 BR               | 100          | 630        | 0.67     | 440        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| 1 BR<br>2 BR       | 109          | 836        | 0.07     | 427        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| 2 DR<br>3 BR       | 05           | 850        | 0.58     | 623        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| J BR               | 95           |            |          | 023        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| 4 DR<br>Union (2)  |              |            |          |            |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| Efficiency         | 61           | 300        | 1 40     | 118        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| 1 BR               | 100          | 630        | 0.67     | 440        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| 2 BR               | 109          | 836        | 0.07     | 427<br>181 |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| 2 BR<br>3 BR       | 95           | 050        | 0.58     | 673        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |
| 4 BR               | ))           |            |          | 025        |            |          |              |                               |  |  |  |  |

See footnotes at end of table.

| _              |       | All u   | inits    |         |       | Built 19 | 97 to presen | t       |
|----------------|-------|---------|----------|---------|-------|----------|--------------|---------|
|                |       |         | Average  |         |       |          | Average      |         |
|                | Total | Average | rent per | Average | Total | Average  | rent per     | Average |
| Unit class     | units | sq. ft. | sq. ft.  | rent    | units | sq. ft.  | sq. ft.      | rent    |
| Volusia        |       |         |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency     | 120   | 556     | 0.77     | 427     |       |          |              |         |
| 1 BR           | 2,365 | 704     | 0.73     | 513     |       |          |              |         |
| 2 BR           | 2,527 | 872     | 0.71     | 621     |       |          |              |         |
| 3 BR           | 130   | 1,193   | 0.65     | 772     |       |          |              |         |
| 4 BR           |       | ,       |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Wakulla (3)    |       |         |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency     |       |         |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| 1 BR           | 49    | 310     | 1.22     | 377     |       |          |              |         |
| 2 BR           | 138   | 678     | 0.65     | 443     |       |          |              |         |
| 3 BR           |       |         |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| 4 BR           |       |         |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Walton (3)     |       |         |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency     |       |         |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| 1 BR           | 49    | 310     | 1.22     | 377     |       |          |              |         |
| 2 BR           | 138   | 678     | 0.65     | 443     |       |          |              |         |
| 3 BR           |       |         |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| 4 BR           |       |         |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Washington (3) |       |         |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| Efficiency     |       |         |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| 1 BR           | 49    | 310     | 1.22     | 377     |       |          |              |         |
| 2 BR           | 138   | 678     | 0.65     | 443     |       |          |              |         |
| 3 BR           |       |         |          |         |       |          |              |         |
| 4 BR           |       |         |          |         |       |          |              |         |

(1) Computed from aggregate statistics of Citrus and Marion counties.

(2) Computed from aggregate statistics of Columbia and Jefferson counties.

 $(3)\ Computed\ from\ aggregate\ statistics\ of\ Jackson\ and\ Walton\ counties.$ 

(4) Computed from aggregate statistics of DeSoto, Highlands and Okeechobee counties.

(5) Computed from aggregate statistics of Clay and St. Johns counties.

|                | Averag     | e rent - m  | arket rate  | units       |                     |             |             |            |
|----------------|------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|---------------------|-------------|-------------|------------|
|                | 199        | 7-present   | or all unit | S           | 60 perc             | ent rate a  | dj. for uti | lities     |
| County         | EFF        | 1 BR        | 2 BR        | 3 BR        | EFF                 | 1 BR        | 2 BR        | 3 BR       |
| Alachua        | 412        | 673         | 770         | 803         | 467                 | 493         | 581         | 670        |
| Baker (2)      | 412        | 427         | 481         | 623         | 407                 | 495         | 505         | 588        |
| Bay            | 432        | 427<br>650  | 765         | 865         | 405                 | 445         | 530         | 608        |
| Bradford       | NA         | 260         | 280         | 300         |                     | 468         | 556         | 643        |
| Brevard        | 371        | 200<br>664  | 200<br>749  | 1 068       | 454                 | 488         | 582         | 665        |
| Broward        | 561        | 859         | 968         | 1,000       | 597                 | 639         | 768         | 888        |
| Calhoun (3)    | NA         | 377         | 908<br>1/13 | 1,102<br>NA | 367                 | 386         | /08         | 520        |
| Charlotte      | 300        | <i>4</i> 60 | 555         | 650         | 413                 | 145         | 530         | 612        |
| Citrus (1)     | 390<br>424 | 400         | 525         | 770         | 415<br>364          | 44J<br>370  | 330<br>436  | 102        |
| Cluus (1)      | 424<br>NA  | 508         | 525<br>577  | 744         | 518                 | 517         | 430         | 490<br>768 |
| Callier        | NA<br>NA   | 508<br>776  | 050         | 1 082       | 510<br>654          | 685         | 81 <i>4</i> | 017        |
| Columbia (2)   | 118        | 170         | 930<br>491  | 622         | 400                 | 421         | 509         | 597        |
| Columbia $(2)$ | 440<br>208 | 427         | 401         | 025<br>NIA  | 400                 | 421         | 508<br>450  | 520        |
| De 5010 (4)    | 308        | 441         | 404         | NA<br>622   | 267                 | 200         | 439         | 529        |
| Dixie (2)      | 448        | 427         | 481         | 025         | 510                 | 500         | 439         | 329        |
| Duval          | 437        | 694<br>509  | /90<br>(72  | 914<br>750  | 518                 | 547<br>422  | 004<br>515  | /08        |
| Escambia       | 397        | 598<br>205  | 6/3         | /39         | 413                 | 433         | 515         | 598        |
| Flagler        | NA         | 395         | 495         | NA          | 408                 | 422         | 506         | 578        |
| Franklin (3)   | NA<br>500  | 5//         | 443         | NA<br>701   | 367<br>5 <b>2</b> 0 | 380         | 459         | 529        |
| Gadsden        | 500        | 600         | 625         | /21         | 529                 | 558         | 667         | /65        |
| Gilchrist (2)  | 448        | 427         | 481         | 623         | 379                 | 400         | 474         | 545        |
| Glades (4)     | 308        | 441         | 464         | NA          | 367                 | 386         | 459         | 529        |
| Gulf (3)       | NA         | 377         | 443         | NA          | 367                 | 386         | 459         | 529        |
| Hamilton (2)   | 448        | 427         | 481         | 623         | 367                 | 386         | 459         | 529        |
| Hardee (4)     | 308        | 441         | 464         | NA          | 385                 | 406         | 483         | 557        |
| Hendry (4)     | 308        | 441         | 464         | NA          | 367                 | 386         | 459         | 529        |
| Hernando       | 395        | 407         | 595         | NA          | 457                 | 475         | 565         | 645        |
| Highlands (4)  | 308        | 441         | 464         | NA          | 367                 | 386         | 459         | 529        |
| Hillsborough   | 690        | 637         | 825         | 918         | 457                 | 475         | 565         | 645        |
| Holmes (3)     | NA         | 377         | 443         | NA          | 372                 | 391         | 469         | 538        |
| Indian River   | 395        | 444         | 589         | NA          | 455                 | 483         | 585         | 680        |
| Jackson (3)    | NA         | 377         | 443         | NA          | 367                 | 386         | 459         | 529        |
| Jefferson (2)  | 448        | 427         | 481         | 623         | 385                 | 405         | 481         | 555        |
| Lafayette (2)  | 448        | 427         | 481         | 623         | 367                 | 386         | 459         | 529        |
| Lake           | 375        | 440         | 512         | 680         | 479                 | 503         | 603         | 685        |
| Lee            | 522        | 765         | 790         | 1,040       | 472                 | 495         | 590         | 679        |
| Leon           | 392        | 634         | 681         | 648         | 529                 | 558         | 667         | 765        |
| Levy (1)       | 424        | 419         | 525         | 779         | 379                 | 400         | 474         | 545        |
| Liberty (3)    | NA         | 377         | 443         | NA          | 399                 | 419         | 499         | 575        |
| Madison (2)    | 448        | 427         | 481         | 623         | 367                 | 386         | 459         | 529        |
|                |            |             |             |             | See footn           | otes at end | l of table. |            |

#### Table VII-2a. Comparison of average rents for market rate units to the 60% rent rate

### Table VII-2a. Comparison of average rents for market rate units to the 60% rent rate (Continued)

|                | Averag | e rent - m | arket rate | units |         |            |             |         |
|----------------|--------|------------|------------|-------|---------|------------|-------------|---------|
|                | 199    | 7-present  | or all uni | ts    | 60 perc | ent rate a | dj. for uti | ilities |
| County         | EFF    | 1 BR       | 2 BR       | 3 BR  | EFF     | 1 BR       | 2 BR        | 3 BR    |
| Manatee        | 423    | 632        | 822        | 1.008 | 498     | 524        | 621         | 707     |
| Marion         | 424    | 449        | 530        | 779   | 393     | 412        | 486         | 564     |
| Martin         | NA     | 730        | 866        | 1,096 | 484     | 510        | 608         | 698     |
| Miami-Dade     | 535    | 663        | 823        | 877   | 425     | 453        | 543         | 629     |
| Monroe         | 600    | 800        | 950        | 1,000 | 511     | 540        | 643         | 743     |
| Nassau (5)     | 425    | 565        | 634        | 800   | 573     | 613        | 736         | 850     |
| Okaloosa       | 391    | 646        | 731        | 931   | 466     | 490        | 586         | 671     |
| Okeechobee (4) | 308    | 441        | 464        | NA    | 367     | 386        | 459         | 529     |
| Orange         | 685    | 662        | 803        | 845   | 479     | 503        | 603         | 685     |
| Osceola        | 625    | 691        | 769        | 846   | 479     | 503        | 603         | 685     |
| Palm Beach     | 598    | 781        | 945        | 1,134 | 567     | 591        | 710         | 802     |
| Pasco          | 353    | 468        | 590        | 719   | 457     | 475        | 565         | 645     |
| Pinellas       | 431    | 644        | 731        | 888   | 457     | 475        | 565         | 645     |
| Polk           | 377    | 494        | 644        | 853   | 425     | 447        | 533         | 611     |
| Putnam         | 360    | 444        | 558        | NA    | 367     | 386        | 459         | 529     |
| St. Johns      | 425    | 725        | 900        | 1,085 | 518     | 547        | 664         | 768     |
| St. Lucie      | 395    | 472        | 601        | NA    | 484     | 510        | 608         | 698     |
| Santa Rosa     | NA     | 569        | 635        | NA    | 413     | 433        | 515         | 598     |
| Sarasota       | 427    | 698        | 894        | 1,172 | 498     | 524        | 621         | 707     |
| Seminole       | 705    | 717        | 894        | 1,080 | 479     | 503        | 603         | 685     |
| Sumter (1)     | 424    | 419        | 525        | 779   | 388     | 404        | 474         | 546     |
| Suwannee (2)   | 448    | 427        | 481        | 623   | 367     | 386        | 459         | 529     |
| Taylor (2)     | 448    | 427        | 481        | 623   | 367     | 386        | 459         | 529     |
| Union (2)      | 448    | 427        | 481        | 623   | 403     | 425        | 505         | 584     |
| Volusia        | 427    | 513        | 621        | 772   | 408     | 422        | 506         | 578     |
| Wakulla (3)    | NA     | 377        | 443        | NA    | 413     | 433        | 521         | 601     |
| Walton (3)     | NA     | 377        | 443        | NA    | 405     | 426        | 507         | 585     |
| Washington (3) | NA     | 377        | 443        | NA    | 367     | 386        | 459         | 529     |

t - markat rata units A .....

(1) Computed from aggregate statistics of Citrus and Marion counties.

(2) Computed from aggregate statistics of Columbia and Jefferson counties.

(3) Computed from aggregate statistics of Jackson and Walton counties.

(4) Computed from aggregate statistics of De Soto, Highlands, and Okeechobee counties

(5) Computed from aggregate statistics of Clay and St. Johns counties.

| County                  | Marke | et rate mi | nus 60% : | rate | Market | Market rate divided by 60% rate |       |       |  |
|-------------------------|-------|------------|-----------|------|--------|---------------------------------|-------|-------|--|
|                         | EFF   | 1 BR       | 2 BR      | 3 BR | EFF    | 1 BR                            | 2 BR  | 3 BR  |  |
|                         |       |            |           |      |        |                                 |       |       |  |
| Alachua                 | -55   | 180        | 189       | 133  | 88%    | 137%                            | 133%  | 120%  |  |
| Baker (2)               | 45    | 3          | -24       | 35   | 111%   | 101%                            | 95%   | 106%  |  |
| Bay                     | 8     | 205        | 235       | 257  | 102%   | 146%                            | 144%  | 142%  |  |
| Bradford                | NA    | -208       | -276      | -343 | 0%     | 56%                             | 50%   | 47%   |  |
| Brevard                 | -83   | 176        | 167       | 403  | 82%    | 136%                            | 129%  | 161%  |  |
| Broward                 | -36   | 220        | 200       | 274  | 94%    | 134%                            | 126%  | 131%  |  |
| Calhoun (3)             | NA    | -9         | -16       | NA   | 0%     | 98%                             | 97%   | 0%    |  |
| Charlotte               | -23   | 15         | 25        | 38   | 94%    | 103%                            | 105%  | 106%  |  |
| Citrus (1)              | 60    | 40         | 89        | 281  | 116%   | 111%                            | 120%  | 156%  |  |
| Clay                    | NA    | -39        | -87       | -24  | 0%     | 93%                             | 87%   | 97%   |  |
| Collier                 | NA    | 91         | 136       | 165  | 0%     | 113%                            | 117%  | 118%  |  |
| Columbia (2)            | 48    | 6          | -27       | 36   | 112%   | 101%                            | 95%   | 106%  |  |
| DeSoto (4)              | -59   | 55         | 5         | NA   | 84%    | 114%                            | 101%  | 0%    |  |
| Dixie (2)               | 81    | 41         | 22        | 94   | 122%   | 111%                            | 105%  | 118%  |  |
| Duval                   | -81   | 147        | 132       | 146  | 84%    | 127%                            | 120%  | 119%  |  |
| Escambia                | -16   | 165        | 158       | 161  | 96%    | 138%                            | 131%  | 127%  |  |
| Flagler                 | NA    | -27        | -11       | NA   | 0%     | 94%                             | 98%   | 0%    |  |
| Franklin (3)            | NA    | -9         | -16       | NA   | 0%     | 98%                             | 97%   | 0%    |  |
| Gadsden                 | -29   | 42         | -42       | -44  | 95%    | 108%                            | 94%   | 94%   |  |
| Gilchrist (2)           | 69    | 27         | 7         | 78   | 118%   | 107%                            | 101%  | 114%  |  |
| Glades (4)              | -59   | 55         | 5         | NA   | 84%    | 114%                            | 101%  | 0%    |  |
| Gulf (3)                | NA    | -9         | -16       | NA   | 0%     | 98%                             | 97%   | 0%    |  |
| Hamilton (2)            | 81    | 41         | 22        | 94   | 122%   | 111%                            | 105%  | 118%  |  |
| Hardee (4)              | -77   | 35         | -19       | NA   | 80%    | 109%                            | 96%   | 0%    |  |
| Hendry (4)              | -59   | 55         | 5         | NA   | 84%    | 114%                            | 101%  | 0%    |  |
| Hernando                | -62   | -68        | 30        | NA   | 86%    | 86%                             | 105%  | 0%    |  |
| Highlands (4)           | -59   | 55         | 5         | NA   | 84%    | 114%                            | 101%  | 0%    |  |
| Hillsborough            | 233   | 162        | 260       | 273  | 151%   | 134%                            | 146%  | 142%  |  |
| Holmes (3)              | NA    | -14        | -26       | NA   | 0%     | 96%                             | 94%   | 0%    |  |
| Indian River            | -60   | -39        | 4         | NA   | 87%    | 92%                             | 101%  | 0%    |  |
| Jackson (3)             | NA    | -9         | -16       | NA   | 0%     | 98%                             | 97%   | 0%    |  |
| Jefferson (2)           | 63    | 22         | 0         | 68   | 116%   | 105%                            | 100%  | 112%  |  |
| Lafavette (2)           | 81    | 41         | 22        | 94   | 122%   | 111%                            | 105%  | 118%  |  |
| Lake                    | -104  | -63        | -91       | -5   | 78%    | 87%                             | 85%   | 99%   |  |
| Lee                     | 50    | 270        | 200       | 361  | 111%   | 155%                            | 134%  | 153%  |  |
| Leon                    | -137  | 76         | 14        | -117 | 74%    | 114%                            | 102%  | 85%   |  |
| Levy (1)                | 45    | 19         | 51        | 234  | 112%   | 105%                            | 111%  | 143%  |  |
| Liberty (3)             | NA    | -42        | -56       | NA   | 0%     | 90%                             | 89%   | 0%    |  |
| Madison (2)             | 81    | 41         | 20        | 94   | 122%   | 111%                            | 105%  | 118%  |  |
| 1110013011 ( <i>2</i> ) | 01    | <b>T</b> 1 | <i>44</i> | 77   | 122/0  | 111/0                           | 103/0 | 110/0 |  |

#### Table VII-2b. Comparison of rents for market rate units to the 60% rent rate

See footnote at end of table.

|                | Market rate minus 60% rate |      |      |      | Market rate divided by 60% rate |      |      |      |
|----------------|----------------------------|------|------|------|---------------------------------|------|------|------|
| County         | EFF                        | 1 BR | 2 BR | 3 BR | EFF                             | 1 BR | 2 BR | 3 BR |
|                |                            |      |      |      |                                 |      |      |      |
| Manatee        | -75                        | 108  | 201  | 301  | 85%                             | 121% | 132% | 143% |
| Marion         | 31                         | 37   | 44   | 215  | 108%                            | 109% | 109% | 138% |
| Martin         | NA                         | 220  | 258  | 398  | 0%                              | 143% | 142% | 157% |
| Miami-Dade     | 110                        | 210  | 280  | 248  | 126%                            | 146% | 152% | 139% |
| Monroe         | 89                         | 260  | 307  | 257  | 117%                            | 148% | 148% | 135% |
| Nassau (5)     | -148                       | -48  | -102 | -50  | 74%                             | 92%  | 86%  | 94%  |
| Okaloosa       | -75                        | 156  | 145  | 260  | 84%                             | 132% | 125% | 139% |
| Okeechobee (4) | -59                        | 55   | 5    | NA   | 84%                             | 114% | 101% | 0%   |
| Orange         | 206                        | 159  | 200  | 160  | 143%                            | 132% | 133% | 123% |
| Osceola        | 146                        | 188  | 166  | 161  | 130%                            | 137% | 128% | 124% |
| Palm Beach     | 31                         | 190  | 235  | 332  | 105%                            | 132% | 133% | 141% |
| Pasco          | -104                       | -7   | 25   | 74   | 77%                             | 99%  | 104% | 111% |
| Pinellas       | -26                        | 169  | 166  | 243  | 94%                             | 136% | 129% | 138% |
| Polk           | -48                        | 47   | 111  | 242  | 89%                             | 111% | 121% | 140% |
| Putnam         | -7                         | 58   | 99   | NA   | 98%                             | 115% | 122% | 0%   |
| St. Johns      | -93                        | 178  | 236  | 317  | 82%                             | 133% | 136% | 141% |
| St. Lucie      | -89                        | -38  | -7   | NA   | 82%                             | 93%  | 99%  | 0%   |
| Santa Rosa     | NA                         | 136  | 120  | NA   | 0%                              | 131% | 123% | 0%   |
| Sarasota       | -71                        | 174  | 273  | 465  | 86%                             | 133% | 144% | 166% |
| Seminole       | 226                        | 214  | 291  | 395  | 147%                            | 143% | 148% | 158% |
| Sumter (1)     | 36                         | 15   | 51   | 233  | 109%                            | 104% | 111% | 143% |
| Suwannee (2)   | 81                         | 41   | 22   | 94   | 122%                            | 111% | 105% | 118% |
| Taylor (2)     | 81                         | 41   | 22   | 94   | 122%                            | 111% | 105% | 118% |
| Union (2)      | 45                         | 2    | -24  | 39   | 111%                            | 100% | 95%  | 107% |
| Volusia        | 19                         | 91   | 115  | 194  | 105%                            | 122% | 123% | 134% |
| Wakulla (3)    | NA                         | -56  | -78  | NA   | 0%                              | 87%  | 85%  | 0%   |
| Walton (3)     | NA                         | -49  | -64  | NA   | 0%                              | 88%  | 87%  | 0%   |
| Washington (3) | NA                         | -9   | -16  | NA   | 0%                              | 98%  | 97%  | 0%   |

# Table VII-2b. Comparison of rents for market rate units to the 60% rent rate(Continued)

(1) Computed from aggregate statistics of Citrus and Marion counties.

(2) Computed from aggregate statistics of Columbia and Jefferson counties.

(3) Computed from aggregate statistics of Jackson and Walton counties.

(4) Computed from aggregate statistics of De Soto, Highlands, and Okeechobee counties

(5) Computed from aggregate statistics of Clay and St. Johns counties.

#### VIII. Summary of Methodology

Creating the estimates and projections contained in this report required the following steps:

- 1. Project the number of renter households by county for 2005 and 2010.
- 2. Translate those projections and Census 2000 household figures into an estimate of renter households in 2001 and projections of renter households in 2002 and 2007, including information about household characteristics.
- 3. Separate multi-family households from all renter households and create similar estimates and projections of multi-family households by household characteristics in 2001, 2002, and 2007.

The following discussion summarizes the methods used to perform these estimates and projections.

#### Initial Household Projections for 2005 and 2010

Projections of renter households for 2002 and 2007 are based on projections of the number of those households in 2005 and 2010. The 2005 and 2010 household projections themselves are based on two sources of county-level demographic and institutional data: the 1990 U.S. Census of Population and Housing, and estimates and projections of population by age and institutional population by age from the University of Florida's Bureau of Economic and Business Research (BEBR). Using the 2000 population estimate and the 2005 and 2010 population projections, the Shimberg Center created county-level population by age projections for 2005 and 2010. The population by age data in turn formed the basis for estimates and projections of the number of households by county.

Three major steps were employed to create the estimates and projections of households by county:

- 1. Develop estimates and projections of the population that is "household-forming." Exclude the institutional populations that are not household-forming from the Census Bureau's population estimates.
- 2. Calculate the 1990 household formation rate ratios or distributions for various household characteristics, such as age of householder and tenure.
- 3. Apply the 1990 household formation rates or distributions to the 2000, 2005, and 2010 household-forming population to estimate the number of households by these various characteristics.

The last section, 1990 Headship Rate Assumption, provides a more detailed discussion of the method by which population by age was translated into household estimates and projections.

#### Renter Household Projections for 2001, 2002 and 2007

This methodology was developed to estimate the numbers of two groups of renter households – all renters and multi-family renters – and their selected characteristics for 2001, 2002 and 2007. The primary approach used in this methodology was the development of frequency distributions for the following characteristics among renter households: (1) housing cost burden as a percent of household income, (2) household income as a percent of area median household income, (3) age of householder, and (4) household size. Since the 2000 census data at this level of detail had not been released by summer of 2001, we used a combination of timely 2000 Census data and the 1990 Public Use Microdata 5 percent Sample (PUMS).

#### Estimates of all renters and their characteristics

Data for renters by householder age by county in 2000 were taken from the Census 2000 Summary File 1 (SF 1) 100-Percent Data. These data, in Census table H16, *TENURE BY AGE OF HOUSEHOLDER*, were released in late July 2001. Estimates for 2001, 2002 and 2007 county level renter households by age were then generated based on the 2000 Census totals and projections of annual county growth taken from the Shimberg Center's estimates and projections of households for 2005 and 2010. For example, the estimate of households in 2001 for each county and age group was calculated from the 2000 Census renters by age (table H16) in the following way. First, the Census data were aggregated by the two age groups of interest, 15-54 and 55 and older. Next, these numbers were increased by one-fifth of the compounded annual growth rate over the period 2000-2005 taken from the Shimberg household projections. Similarly, to create projections of 2002 total renters, that same percentage growth was applied to 2001 renters. Estimates of renters in 2005 were generated in a similar fashion. Finally, the 2007 county age group estimates of renter households were generated by applying two-fifths of the Shimberg estimates' compounded annual growth rate over the period 2005 were generated in a similar fashion. Finally, the 2007 county age group estimates of renter households were generated by applying two-fifths of the Shimberg estimates' compounded annual growth rate over the period 2005-2010 to the newly adjusted 2005 renter estimate.

#### Estimates of multi-family renter households

The next step was to estimate the multi-family renter householder subset among all renters by multiplying a ratio ( $R_1$ ) by all renter estimates for each year. The ratio was defined, generally, as:  $R_1 = (multi-family renter households)/(all renter households)$ . While we considered three possible methods to determine the total number of multi-family renter households in the state, ultimately we decided to set the number of multi-family households equal to the number of multi-family units taken from the Department of Business and Professional Regulation's (DBPR) master file of licensed apartments. Thus, in most counties,  $R_1$  is equal to the ratio of the multi-family units in 2001 divided by the total number of households in our adjusted 2001 estimate of all renters for all ages. For Alachua and Leon Counties both numbers are adjusted to reflect only non-student populations; for Escambia County all numbers reflect only non-military renters. For 11 counties (Baker, Bradford, Calhoun, DeSoto, Flagler, Gadsden, Gulf, Hendry, Jackson, Levy, Suwannee and Wakulla), the number of DBPR multi-family units in 2001 fell below the estimate of subsidized units. Therefore, we used the higher estimate of subsidized units as the estimate of multi-family units for these 11 counties.

The 1990 Public Use Microdata Sample (PUMS) data served as the data source for county-level estimations of multi-family renters and their characteristics. This presented a problem, since PUMS data are reported by Public Use Microdata Areas (PUMAs) that may represent a single county, a group of counties, or portions of a single county. In 15 cases in the state, PUMAs represent one county directly; characteristics for eight other counties may be derived by summing two or more PUMAs. For the remaining 44 Florida counties, which are grouped into 12 multi-county PUMAs, we performed a factor analysis to derive a PUMA-tocounty assignment. This was a two-step process. First, the 12 PUMAs and their 44 remaining counties were examined for internal consistency within the original, Census-assigned PUMA. County median household incomes, housing cost burden and median housing values were examined by county within the PUMA. This resulted in the assignment of 26 counties to their original PUMA characteristics. In the second step, the remaining 18 counties were examined for correlations with all other PUMAs on the following characteristics: (1) total population, (2) percentage who are elderly, (3) percentage aged 0-18 years, (4) percentage high school graduates, (5) county median household income, (6) number of households, (7) distribution of household size, (8) number of housing units, (9) percentage renters, (10) percentage owners, (11) median value of housing, (12) number of workers, (13) percentage workers employed by the state, (14) percentage of worker who are self-employed, and (15) cost burden. In this way, the last 18 counties were assigned to PUMAs other than that to which they belonged geographically. See the attached PUMA-to-County assignment in the Appendix to this chapter.

#### Estimates of multi-family renter household characteristics

The study reported data on four multi-family renter household characteristics: household income, expressed as a percentage of adjusted area median income; cost burden, expressed as the percentage of household income spent for housing costs; household size in number of persons; and age of the householder.

The adjusted area median income (AMI) was derived by the same method used by HUD. In most cases, the base AMI consists of the county or metropolitan statistical area (MSA) median family income as derived from the 1990 PUMS data. The median income is adjusted for family size by assigning the median to a household size of 4 and then reducing income by .1 for each person in smaller households and increasing incomes by .08 for each person in larger households. Finally, we increased the median income numbers in selected nonmetropolitan counties where the area medians fell below a minimum support level. This last adjustment was made for the following counties: Calhoun, Citrus, DeSoto, Dixie, Franklin, Gadsden, Gilchrist, Glades, Gulf, Hamilton, Hendry, Highlands, Holmes, Jackson, Lafayette, Levy, Madison, Okeechobee, Putnam, Suwannee, Taylor, and Washington.

We developed a series of ratios from the 1990 PUMS file to determine the distribution of cost burden, household income, age of householder, and household size across the estimates of multi-family rental households. Multi-family households were defined as those identified in the PUMS data that lived in structures with 5 or more apartments. Each ratio, R<sub>i</sub>, defines the proportion of all multi-family rental households that fall into one of the many cells defined for each county and age group. For each county, data were assigned to two age groups: 15-54 and 55 and over; four cost burden categories indicating the percentage of household income spent for

housing (less than 30 percent, 30-39 percent, 40-49 percent and 50 percent or more); nine income categories, expressed as a percentage of adjusted AMI (less than 20 percent, 20-24.9 percent, 25-29.9 percent, 30-34.9 percent, 35-39.9 percent, 40-49.9 percent, 50-60 percent and over 60 percent); and seven household sizes (1-6 persons, 7 and more persons). Thus, each county may have multi-family rental households falling within up to 504 categories defined by all of the possible combinations of these demographic and economic characteristics.

For example, the following ratios of PUMS data express three of these combinations:

R1 = (MFR age 15-54,cost burden 40-49%,income <20%, household size 1 )/(all MFR)R2 = (MFR age 15-54,cost burden 40-49%,income <20%, household size 2 )/(all MFR)R3 = (MFR age 15-54,cost burden 40-49%,income <20%, household size 3 )/(all MFR)

where MFR = multi-family households.

Finally, we applied each ratio to the estimate of multi-family rental households by year and county to generate a number in each characteristic cell.

#### Estimates of income and affordable rents for Multi-family Housing Units

The estimates of affordable rents for each income level and household size were produced in the following way. First, we calculated fifty percent of the median household income for each county adjusted for six different household sizes. We then rounded these numbers to the nearest \$50. This provided a basis for other calculations.

Second, we computed other percentages of median income based on this 50 percent calculation. For example, a household with 5 members in the 40 percent of median income category was assumed to have an income equal to the 50 percent calculation for that household size times 0.8 (50% x 80% =  $.5 \times .8 = .4$ ).<sup>4</sup>

Third, we defined affordable annual rents for each income level and household size as 30 percent of the annual income derived through the method above. Monthly rents were then derived by dividing by the annual rents by 12.

Finally, given a county's affordable rents by household size, we translated household size into number of bedrooms per unit and appropriate affordable rents using the following correspondences:

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> This is a technical note on our computations which allows us to match numbers on the HUD/FHFC tables. Forty percent of the original county household income, adjusted for household size, would yield equivalent although not exactly equal numbers.
| Persons per household | Beds | Affordable Rents               |
|-----------------------|------|--------------------------------|
| 1                     | 0    | $AFR_1$                        |
| 2                     | 1    | $(AFR_1 + AFR_2)/2$            |
| 3                     | 2    | AFR <sub>3</sub>               |
| 5                     | 3    | $\left(AFR_4 + AFR_5\right)/2$ |
| 6                     | 4    | AFR <sub>6</sub>               |
| 8+                    | 5+   | $\left(AFR_2 + AFR_8\right)/2$ |

 $AFR_i$  = affordable rent for household of *i* members

In this way, we developed affordable rents for units of each bedroom size in each county that could be compared to the county's supply of such units.

## **1990 Headship Rate Assumption**

Households are the fundamental unit of demand for housing. They are the way in which the population divides itself to occupy housing units. One member of a household is considered the representative of that household and is referred to as the *householder*. In previous Census terminology, that person was referred to as the head of household. The percentage of the population in a given age group that are householders yields the *headship rate* in that age group; that is, the propensity of persons in that age group to be a householder. Therefore, headship rates allow the conversion of the population of an age group into households. Different age groups have different propensities for forming households, so that as the age structure of the population shifts, the number of households that a given population would yield would also change. Estimates and projections of households are therefore based on age-specific householder (headship) rates.

To estimate and project housing demand, we first divided the population into households and then allocated the households across tenure classes, size, and income groups. The way in which the population divides itself into households is related to a number of economic and social factors including income, housing prices, governmental assistance, marriage and divorce rates, and the mobility of the population. While household sizes declined substantially in the 1970s and continued to decline more slowly in the 1980s, the rate of decline slowed significantly during the 1990s. Further, factors that lead to changes in household size do not exhibit a clear and convincing pointer to the direction of future change. The methodology for construction of the household estimates in this study therefore assumes that household formation rates and the distribution of household characteristics remain constant in their 1990 proportions. However, changes in the age distribution of the population are expected to lead to shifts in the number of households and average household size as different age groups have different propensities to form households. Therefore, the number of households was estimated using age-specific headship rates to reflect the projected changing age structure.

## **APPENDIX: PUMA-to-County Assignments**

| County       | PUMA  | (s)   |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
|--------------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|-------|
| Alachua      | 00700 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Volusia      | 00900 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Duval        | 01000 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Lake         | 01500 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Osceola      | 02100 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Charlotte    | 02500 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Saint Lucie  | 02700 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Martin       | 02800 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Marion       | 04100 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Hernando     | 04200 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Pasco        | 04300 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Pinellas     | 04400 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Hillsborough | 04500 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Polk         | 04600 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Manatee      | 04700 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Brevard      | 01200 | 01300 | 01400 |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Broward      | 03503 | 03506 | 03200 | 03501 | 03504 | 03300 | 03502 | 03505 | 03400 |
| Dade         | 03902 | 03905 | 03908 | 03601 | 03800 | 03903 | 03906 | 03909 | 03602 |
|              |       | 03901 | 03904 | 03907 | 03700 |       |       |       |       |
| Orange       | 02000 | 01800 | 01600 | 01900 | 01700 |       |       |       |       |
| Palm Beach   | 02905 | 02903 | 02906 | 02902 | 02904 | 02901 |       |       |       |
| Sarasota     | 03102 | 03101 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Seminole     | 02300 | 02200 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Lee          | 03002 | 03003 | 03001 |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Escambia     | 00100 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Santa Rosa   | 00100 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Clay         | 00200 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Nassau       | 00200 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Bay          | 00300 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Walton       | 00300 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Okeechobee   | 00400 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Washington   | 00400 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Calhoun      | 00500 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Franklin     | 00500 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Gadsden      | 00500 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Gulf         | 00500 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Jackson      | 00500 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Jefferson    | 00500 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Liberty      | 00500 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Alachua      | 00700 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |
| Leon         | 00700 |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |       |

| Wakulla      | 00700 |       |       |
|--------------|-------|-------|-------|
| Bradford     | 00800 |       |       |
| Columbia     | 00800 |       |       |
| Dixie        | 00800 |       |       |
| Gilchrist    | 00800 |       |       |
| Hamilton     | 00800 |       |       |
| Holmes       | 00800 |       |       |
| Lafayette    | 00800 |       |       |
| Madison      | 00800 |       |       |
| Putnam       | 00800 |       |       |
| Suwannee     | 00800 |       |       |
| Taylor       | 00800 |       |       |
| Union        | 00800 |       |       |
| Flagler      | 01100 |       |       |
| Saint Johns  | 01100 |       |       |
| Okaloosa     | 02200 | 02300 |       |
| Seminole     | 02200 | 02300 |       |
| Monroe       | 02400 |       |       |
| Collier      | 02400 |       |       |
| DeSoto       | 02600 |       |       |
| Glades       | 02600 |       |       |
| Hardee       | 02600 |       |       |
| Hendry       | 02600 |       |       |
| Highlands    | 02600 |       |       |
| Indian River | 03001 | 03002 | 03003 |
| Lee          | 03001 | 03002 | 03003 |
| Citrus       | 04000 |       |       |
| Levy         | 04000 |       |       |
| Sumter       | 04000 |       |       |
| Baker        | 04600 |       |       |
| Polk         | 04600 |       |       |

## **IX.** Conclusion

This report has summarized data on housing needs prepared for the Florida Housing Finance Corporation. The data shows that the FHFC has a created a substantial presence in Florida's multi-family housing market, with a total of FHFC-supported 101,708 income restricted units<sup>5</sup> or approximately 11 percent of the state's multi-family rental stock (as defined by the DBPR apartment database).

Nevertheless, Florida continues to face a need for affordable housing for its cost burdened households: those with lower incomes paying high percentages of their income for housing costs. Based on the data in this report, it appears that most multi-family, cost burdened renters have incomes between 20 and 39 percent of the area median, with the next largest group those households with incomes between 40 and 49 percent. Moreover, this lowest income group, 20-39 percent, faces the most severe cost burden, with a large proportion paying 50 percent or more of their income toward rent.

The problem of cost burden among the lowest income households is expected to increase. Based on its growing and aging population, Florida is projected to add 27,219 cost burdened renter households with incomes between 20 and 60 percent of local area median income are projected for the state. The largest proportion of this growth will take place among households in the 20-39 percent income category, and the second largest proportion will take place in the 40-49 percent category. If the Multi-family Revenue Bond and Tax Credit programs continue to mainly serve households with incomes in the 40 to 60 percent of area median income range, additional subsidies will be needed to serve the growing number of cost burdened households with lower incomes.

Examining the characteristics of cost burdened renters, 1-2 person households comprise over 68 percent of the total households with cost burden in the 20-60 percent of AMI income category. Sixty-eight percent of the householders in cost burdened households are 15-54 years old. However, as this age group represents a larger portion of the population, this result is not surprising and should not be taken as an indication that older households do not have rental housing needs. As Florida's population ages, the number of cost burdened multi-family households who are in the age 55-and-over category will increase more rapidly than those in the 15-54 category. Moreover, older households' needs are severe, with 73 percent of the cost burdened households aged 55-and-over paying 50 percent or more of their income toward rent. The older households are highly concentrated in populous areas of the state, with 70 percent of the cost burdened 55-and-over population found in six large counties.

Finally, the distribution of FHFC-assisted units by county shows that the extent to which FHFC-assisted units meets the demand by lower-income households varies considerably throughout the state. Not surprisingly, the largest numbers of FHFC units are found in the largest counties, but these counties also have the largest housing needs. In several small and medium counties, including Collier, DeSoto, Franklin, Hamilton,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> This is the number of units for which we have information on income restrictions. The total number of FHFC-supported units is higher.

Hendry, Indian River, Lake, Orange, Osceola and St. Lucie, FHFC-supported units with 60 percent income restrictions serve a substantial percentage of renter households with incomes between 40 and 60 percent of median.

This report indicates that the FHFC has had a substantial impact on the supply of housing available to households with incomes in the 40 to 60 percent of area median income category. Despite this significant accomplishment, the magnitude of need and the continuing growth of the state will result in a continuing need for additional units of affordable multi-family housing in the years to come.